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This Annual Report on Form 10-K, including Managet®Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditenmd Results of Operations,
contains forward-looking statements, within the meg of the Private Securities Litigation ReformtA¢ 1995, that reflect our views about
future events and financial performance. When usdkis report, the words “may,” “will,” “should,anticipate,” “estimate,” “expect,” “plan,”
“believe,” “feel,” “predict,” “project,” “potentia)” “intend” and similar expressions are intendeddentify forward-looking statements, which
are generally not historical in nature. Forwardkiog statements include, but are not limited toaficial projections and estimates and their
underlying assumptions; statements regarding ptarjectives and expectations with respect to futyrerations, products and services; and
statements regarding future performance. Forwanlithg statements are subject to known and unkndsts and uncertainties, many of which
are difficult to predict and generally beyond oantol, that could cause actual results to diffatenially from those expressed in, or impliec
projected by, the forward-looking information aridtesments. You are cautioned not to place undiencs on these forward-looking
statements that speak only as of the date hereaf.are also urged to carefully review and condidervarious disclosures made by us, which
attempt to advise interested parties of the fadtmsaffect our business, including “Risk Factast forth in Part I, Item 1A hereof and our
reports filed with the U.S. Securities and Excha@genmission, or SEC, from time to time. Excepthe éxtent otherwise required by federal
securities laws, we do not undertake any obligatborepublish revised forward-looking statementsefitect events or circumstances after the
date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of ungted events.

" ou ” o ” w

References in this Annual Report on Form 10-K éotémms “we,” “our,” “us,” “WellPoint” or the “Comp any” refer to WellPoint, Inc.,
an Indiana corporation, and its direct and indirexttbsidiaries, as the context requires.
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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS.
General

We are one of the largest health benefits compamiessms of medical membership in the United Stagerving 35.7 million medical
members through our affiliated health plans andentiban 67.8million individuals through all subsidiaries asdécember 31, 2013. We are
independent licensee of the Blue Cross and Bluel&®&issociation, or BCBSA, an association of indefant health benefit plans. We serve
our members as the Blue Cross licensee for Caldand as the Blue Cross and Blue Shield, or BdiB&see for: Colorado, Connecticut,
Georgia, Indiana, Kentucky, Maine, Missouri (ex¢éhgd30 counties in the Kansas City area), Nevaaday Nampshire, New York (as BCBS
10 New York city metropolitan and surrounding céestand as Blue Cross or BCBS in selected upstateties only), Ohio, Virginia
(excluding the Northern Virginia suburbs of Washorg D.C.), and Wisconsin. In a majority of thesevice areas we do business as Anthem
Blue Cross, Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield, Blugss and Blue Shield of Georgia, and Empire Bluess Blue Shield, or Empire Blue
Cross (in our New York service areas). We also aohtusiness through our AMERIGROUP CorporationAererigroup, subsidiary in
Florida, Georgia, Kansas, Louisiana, Maryland, MievdNew Jersey, New York, Tennessee, Texas andikigash. Amerigroup also provided
services in the state of Ohio through June 30, 201Bin the state of New Mexico through Decembei2B13. We also serve customers
throughout the country as HealthLink, UniCare amdertain Arizona, California, Nevada, New York afidginia markets through our
CareMore Health Group, Inc., or CareMore, subsydigfe are licensed to conduct insurance operatioa$i 50 states through our subsidiar

We have a vision of becoming America's valued hgadirtner. Together we are transforming health edttetrusted and caring solutions
and as a result, we focus on delivering qualitydprts and services that give members access ttatheghey need. With an unyielding
commitment to meeting the needs of our diverseotosts, we are guided by the following values:

. Accountable

. Caring

. Easy to do business with
. Innovative

. Trustworthy

We offer a broad spectrum of network-based manageslhealth benefit plans to the large and smableyer, individual, Medicaid and
Medicare markets. Our managed care plans incluééenped provider organizations, or PPOs; healtmtaaance organizations, or HMOs;
point-of-service plans, or POS plans; traditiomaldmnity plans and other hybrid plans, includingstaonerdriven health plans, or CDHPs; ¢
hospital only and limited benefit products. In datehi, we provide a broad array of managed cardasvo self-funded customers, including
claims processing, underwriting, stop loss insueaactuarial services, provider network access,jecaédost management, disease
management, wellness programs and other admimgtisgrvices. We provide an array of specialty aietr insurance products and services
such as behavioral health benefit services, derigagn, life and disability insurance benefitsji@ogy benefit management, analytics-driven
personal health care guidance and long-term cartgance. We also provide services to the Federaé®ment in connection with the Federal
Employee Program, or FEP, and various Medicarerprog. Finally, prior to January 31, 2014, we saldtact lenses, eyeglasses and other
ocular products through our 1-800 CONTACTS, Inc.1 800 CONTACTS, business. In preparation forabming changes to the health care
system and to focus on our core growth opportunagross our Commercial and Specialty Businesssavérnment Business segments, we
entered into a definitive agreement in DecembeB203sell our 1-800 CONTACTS subsidiary to the ptéevequity firm Thomas H. Lee
Partners, L.P. Concurrently, we entered into aptgasrchase agreement with Luxottica Group toasllglasses.com related assets. The
divestitures were completed on January 31, 2014.

The increased focus on health care costs by enmgloyee government and consumers has continuedviottie growth of alternatives to
traditional indemnity health insurance. HMO, PP@ agbrid plans, such as POS plans and CDHPs, avagthe various forms of managed
care products that have been developed. Througle tigpes of products, insurers
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attempt to contain the cost of health care by riatiog contracts with hospitals, physicians andeotbroviders to deliver high quality health
care to members at favorable rates. These prodaatly feature medical management and other guaaiidl cost optimization measures such
as pre-admission review and approval for certaim@&mergency services, pre-authorization of outpagargical procedures, network
credentialing to determine that network doctors laosbitals have the required certifications anceetige, and various levels of care
management programs to help members better unddratel navigate the health care system. In addipi@viders may have incentives to
achieve certain quality measures, may share mechstlrisk or may have other incentives to delyeality medical services in a cost-effective
manner. Also, certain plans offer members incestfee healthy behaviors, such as smoking cessatidnveight management. Members are
charged periodic, prepaid premiums and generaljycpgpayments, coinsurance and/or deductibles ulenreceive services. While the
distinctions between the various types of plansHassened over recent years, PPO, POS and CDldBgsayenerally provide reduced
benefits for out-of-network services, while tradlital HMO products generally provide little to nannbursement for non-emergency out-of-
network utilization, but often offer more generdenefit coverage. An HMO plan may also require merso select one of the network
primary care physicians to coordinate their cam @pprove any specialist or other services.

Economic factors and greater consumer awarenessrbaumlted in the increasing popularity of prodiilets offer larger, more extensive
networks, more member choice related to coveradgssigians and hospitals, and a desire for greberibflity for customers to assume larger
deductibles and co-payments in return for lowenpoens. CDHPs, which are relatively high deductiBfO products and are often paired witt
some type of member tax-advantaged health carenditpee account that can be used at the membestsation to help fund member out-of-
pocket costs, help to meet this demand. CDHPsuasally incorporate member education, wellness,caind management programs to help
customers make better informed health care deciside believe we are well-positioned in each ofregions to respond to these market
preferences.

For our fully-insured products, we charge a premamd assume all of the health care risk. Undeffaatied and partially-insured
products, we charge a fee for services, and theéogmpor plan sponsor reimburses us for all or nobshe health care costs. In addition, we
charge a premium to provide administrative serviodarge group employers that maintain $etided health plans and we underwrite stop
insurance for self-funded plans.

Our medical membership includes seven differentorner types:
. Local Group
. Individual

. National Accounts

. BlueCard®
. Medicare
. Medicaid
. FEP

BCBS-branded business generally refers to memheyariservice areas licensed by the BCBSA. Non-BGBfided business refers to
members in our non-BCBS-branded Amerigroup and l@are plans, as well as HealthLink and UniCare mensia addition to the above
medical membership, we also serve customers whthpse one or more of our other products or serviwgsare often ancillary to our health
business.

Our products are generally developed and marketédan emphasis on the differing needs of our austs. In particular, our product
development and marketing efforts take into accthumdiffering characteristics between the varicustomers served by us, as well as the
unique needs of educational and public entitigmdgroups, federal employee health and benefijnaras, national employers and state-run
programs servicing low-income, high-risk and unsierved markets. Each business unit is respongiblgréduct design, pricing, enrolling,
underwriting and servicing customers in specifistomer types. Overall, we seek to establish priaimg) product designs to achieve an
appropriate level of profitability for each of ocmstomer categories balanced with the competitbjeative to grow market share. We believe
that one of the keys to our success has been ous fin these distinct customer types, which betiables us to develop benefit plans and
services that meet our customers’ unique needs.




We market our products through direct marketingvéigs and an extensive network of independennhemgdrokers and retail partnerships
for Individual and Medicare customers, and for @i@rt. ocal Group customers with a smaller employaseb Products for National Accounts
and Local Group customers with a larger employese lase generally sold through independent brokecsmsultants retained by the customer
and working with industry specialists from our iotse sales force. In the individual and small gnmagpkets we offer on-exchange products
through state or federally facilitated marketplaaed off-exchange products. Federal premium subssigiie available only for certain on-
exchange individual products.

Each of the BCBS member companies, of which thene\87 independent primary licensees as of Decef&ihe2013 , works
cooperatively in a number of ways that create §icanit market advantages, especially when compdtingery large multi-state employer
groups. As a result of this cooperation, each BGi#nber company is able to take advantage of otB&®Blicensees’ substantial provider
networks and discounts when any BCBS member warkseels outside of the state in which their pplig written. This program is referred
as BlueCard@®nd is a source of revenue when we provide mendeicss in the states where we are the BCBS lieetssandividuals who ar
customers of BCBS plans not affiliated with us.sThiogram also provides a national provider netWiorlour members when they travel to
other states.

For additional information describing each of oustomer types, detailed marketing efforts and chearmg medical membership over the
last three years, see Part Il, Item 7 “Managemddissussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &w®bults of Operations” included in this
Form 10-K.

Our results of operations depend in large partamuiately predicting health care costs and ouitaltd manage future health care costs
through adequate product pricing, medical managgrpesduct design and negotiation of favorable mtewcontracts.

The aging of the population and other demographécacteristics and advances in medical technologgirtue to contribute to rising
health care costs. Our managed care plans andgisoaie designed to encourage providers and mentbpessticipate in quality, costffective
health benefit programs by using the full rangewfinnovative medical management services, quatitiatives and financial incentives. Our
leading market share and high business retenties emable us to realize the long-term benefitawafsting in preventive and early detection
programs. Our ability to provide cost-effective lledenefits products and services is enhancedigira disciplined approach to internal cost
containment, prudent management of our risk exgoand successful integration of acquired businessesidition, our ability to manage
selling, general and administrative costs contirtadse a driver of our overall profitability.

Our future results of operations will also be imeacby certain external forces and resulting chamg®ur business model and strategy. It
2010, the U.S. Congress passed and the Presidaetsinto law the Patient Protection and AffordaBére Act, or ACA, as well as the Health
Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010, afectively, Health Care Reform, which represemgsificant changes to the U.S. health «
system. The legislation is far-reaching and isndtsl to expand access to health insurance covevagdime by increasing the eligibility
thresholds for state Medicaid programs and progidiertain other individuals and small businessél taix credits to subsidize a portion of the
cost of health insurance coverage. As a resulimtomplexity of the law, its impact on health daréhe United States and the continuing
modification and interpretation of Health Care Refts rules, we continue to analyze the impact afithe our estimates of the ultimate impact
of Health Care Reform on our business, cash fléiwancial condition and results of operations. t bf certain material changes resulting f
Health Care Reform include:

* Requirements to modify our products to cover esakim¢alth benefits and comply with other defineitecia;
* Requirement to cancel existing products andlenesv and renewing members in the new A€émpliant product
» Introduction of exchanges, subsidies and mandatesquire and allow previously uninsured custonem®nter the market; a

» Significant new taxes and fees which will be pajchiealth insurers, and which may or may not begmfisrough to custome

The above changes resulting from Health Care Refuithprovide growth opportunities for health ingws, but also introduce new risks
and uncertainties, and require changes in the wagugts are designed, underwritten, priced, distei
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and administered.
For additional discussion, see “Regulation,” hesmd Part |, Item 1A “Risk Factors” in this Form-KO

In addition to the external forces discussed inpiteeeding paragraph, our results of operationgn@pacted by levels and mix of
membership. In recent years, we experienced sigmfimembership declines due to unfavorable ecanoariditions driving increased
unemployment. In addition, we believe the self-neslportion of our group membership base will aoundi to increase as a percentage of total
group membership. These membership trends coulkel havaterial adverse effect on our future resiltperations. See Part I, Item 1A “Risk
Factors” and Part Il, Iltem 7 “Management’s Discasaind Analysis of Financial Condition and Resaft®perations” included in this Form
10-K.

We continue to believe health care is local antitfes we have the strong local presence requoathtierstand and meet local customer
needs. We believe we are well-positioned to dekvieat customers want: innovative, choice-basedadfddable products; distinctive service;
simplified transactions; and better access to médion for quality care. Our local presence, corabiwith our national expertise, has created
opportunities for collaborative programs that redvahysicians and hospitals for clinical quality anaellence. We feel that our commitmen
health improvement and care management providesdaeilue to customers and health care professidvadelieve that an essential
ingredient for practical and sustainable improvetsé@mhealth care is raising health care qualityyevmanaging costs for total cost
affordability. We have identified initiatives thate believe will deliver better health care whilelueing costs. These include driving innovation
in paying and partnering with providers to compeproved cost, quality and health along with findiveyv, effective ways to manage risk and
engage the member as a consumer. In addition, @ketsechieve efficiencies from our national sealféle optimizing service performance for
our customers. Finally, we seek to continue taretiize our portfolio of businesses and produgtd,aign our investments to capitalize on
new opportunities to drive growth in both our exigtand new markets in the future.

We continue to enhance interactions with custontenkers, agents, employees and other stakehdliensgh web-enabled technology
and improving internal operations. Our approachuites not only sales and distribution of healthdfigs products on the Internet, but also
implementation of advanced capabilities that impregrvices benefiting customers, agents, brokadspeoviders while optimizing
administrative costs. These enhancements can elgarmprove the quality, coordination and safetyheélth care through increased
communications between patients and their physician

We intend to continue pursuing our vision of beaogmAmerica's valued health partner by transfornfieglth care with trusted and caring
solutions and by delivering quality products and/iees that give members access to the care they. #d the same time, we will focus on
earnings per share, or EPS, growth through orgaeimbership gains, improvements in our operating stoscture, strategic acquisitions and
the efficient use of capital.

Significant Transactions

The more significant transactions that have occuorer the last five years that have impacted tirimpact our capital structure or that
have or will influence how we conduct our businegsrations include:

e Use of Capital—Board of Directors declaratiordefidends on common stock (2013, 2012 and 201d)aah6.7% increase in the
quarterly dividend to $0.4375 per share (2014)hauitation for repurchases of our common stock 82&id prior); and debt
repurchases and new debt issuance (2013 and prior);

. Acquisition of Amerigroup and the related delsuiance (2012);

. Acquisition of 1-800 CONTACTS (2012) and subsegudivestiture (2014);

e Acquisition of CareMore (2011

« Sale of our pharmacy benefits management, or PRi¥inkss to Express Scripts, Inc., or Express Scf3t09); an
. Acquisition of DeCare Dental, LLC, or DeCare (200

For additional information regarding certain ofghdransactions, see Note 3, “Business AcquisitimkDivestitures,” Note 13, “Debt,”
and Note 15, “Capital Stock,” to our audited coigated financial statements as of and for the geded December 31, 2013, included in this
Form 10-K.




Competition

The managed care industry is highly competitiveéhbtionally and in our regional markets. Compmtittontinues to be intense due to
aggressive marketing, business consolidationsplggration of new products, the impact of Healthr€ Reform, and increased quality
awareness and price sensitivity among customers.

Health benefits industry participants compete fstomers mainly on the following factors:

e quality of service

s price

e access to provider networ

e access to care management and wellness prograshglimg health informatiol

e innovation, breadth and flexibility of products amehefits

* reputation (including National Committee on Qualitysurance, or NCQA, accreditation stat
* brand recognition; at

» financial stability

Over the last few years, a health plan’s abilitynteract with employers, members and other thadies (including health care
professionals) via the Internet has become a nmpeitant competitive factor and we have made diamt investments in technology to
enhance our electronic interaction with provideraployers, members and third parties.

We believe our exclusive right to market productder the most recognized brand in the industry, BB our most significant markets
provides us with an advantage over our competitur. provider networks in our markets enable usctieve efficiencies and distinctive
service levels enabling us to offer a broad rarfdesalth benefits to our customers on a more cffsttve basis than many of our competitors.
We strive to distinguish our products through pdeviaccess, service, care management, product aatlibrand recognition.

Pricing in our Commercial and Specialty Busineggrsent (defined below), including our individual asmdall group lines of business,
remains highly competitive and we strive to price bealth care benefit products consistent witlicgrgted underlying medical trends. We
believe our pricing strategy, based on predictiwsleling, proprietary research and data-driven meeg as well as our overall investments fo
Health Care Reform, have positioned us to benefihfthe potential growth opportunities availablduly-insured commercial products as a
result of Health Care Reform. The ultimate leveérthange enroliment cannot be predicted and aithdus not yet clear whether our
products sold on the exchanges will be more orpesftable products, we believe that our pricibggy, brand name and network quality
will provide a strong foundation for commercialkiimembership growth opportunities in the future.

To build our provider networks, we compete withesthealth benefits plans for the best contracth hatspitals, physicians and other
providers. We believe that physicians and othevideys primarily consider member volume, reimbursatirates, timeliness of reimbursem
and administrative service capabilities along wiith reduction of non-value added administrativikgaghen deciding whether to contract with
a health benefits plan.

At the sales and distribution level, we competegfioalified agents and brokers to recommend andluli¢ our products. Strong
competition exists among insurance companies aalthhieenefits plans for agents and brokers withaestrated ability to secure new busir
and maintain existing accounts. We believe thagtiaity and price of our products, support servjceputation and prior relationships, along
with a reasonable commission structure are thefaetgents and brokers consider in choosing wheth®arket our products. We believe that
we have good relationships with our agents anddymland that our products, support services amuirission structure compare favorably to
those of our competitors in all of our markets. itgfly, we are the largest competitor in each af Blwe-branded markets and, thus, are a
closely watched target by other insurance compstito




Reportable Segments

On May 20, 2013, we announced certain organizaltiamé executive leadership changes to align withr bar new Chief Executive
Officer is managing our operations. Beginning wifth three months ended June 30, 2013, our orgamaéastructure is comprised of three
reportable segments: Commercial and Specialty BssinGovernment Business; and Other. Prior pedgthent information has been
reclassified to conform to the new segment repgrtnucture.

Our Commercial and Specialty Business and GoverhBesiness segments both offer a diversified mimahaged care products,
including PPOs, HMOs, traditional indemnity berefind POS plans, as well as a variety of hybricgfieplans including CDHPs, hospital
only and limited benefit products.

Our Commercial and Specialty Business segmentdesll.ocal Group, National Accounts, Individual 8jkcialty businesses. Business
units in the Commercial and Specialty Business ssgmoffer fully-insured products; provide a broachg of managed care services to self-
funded customers, including claims processing, omdeng, stop loss insurance, actuarial servigesyider network access, medical cost
management, disease management, wellness prognahasheer administrative services; and provide aayaof specialty and other insurance
products and services such as behavioral healt#fibsarvices, dental, vision, life and disabilitsurance benefits, radiology benefit
management, analytics-driven personal health aaidagce and long-term care insurance.

Our Government Business segment includes Medicatdviedicaid businesses, National Government SesymeNGS, and services
provided to the Federal Government in connectiadh WEP. Medicare business includes services subkedicare Advantage, Medicare Part
D, and Medicare Supplement, while Medicaid businesisides our managed care alternatives througlighwfunded health care programs,
including Medicaid, state Children’s Health InswarPrograms, or CHIP, and Medicaid expansion progr&GS acts as a Medicare
contractor in several regions across the nation.

Our Other segment includes other businesses thadtdmeet the quantitative thresholds for an opsgategment as defined by Financial
Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, guidance, @lsas corporate expenses not allocated to the otpertable segments.

Through our participation in various federal goveamt programs, we generated approximately 20.386792 and 23.5% of our total
consolidated revenues from agencies of the U.Semowent for the years ended December 31, 20132 20d 2011 , respectively. These
revenues are contained in the Government Busimggaent. An immaterial amount of our total consdbdarevenues are derived from
activities outside of the U.S.

For additional information regarding the operatiagults of our segments, see Part Il, Item 7 “M@naent’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” &lode 20, “Segment Information,” to our audited anlikated financial statements as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2013, includedisnForm 10-K.

Products and Services
A general description of our products and servisgsovided below:

Preferred Provider Organization: PPO products offer the member an option to selechealth care provider, with benefits reimbursed
by us at a higher level when care is received fagparticipating network provider. Coverage is sobje co-payments or deductibles and
coinsurance, with member cost sharing usually &by out-of-pocket maximums.

Consumer-Driven Health Plans: CDHPs provide consumers with increased financgpoasibility, choice and control regarding how
their health care dollars are spent. Generally, €DEombine a high-deductible PPO plan with an epgptunded and/or employee-funded
personal care account, which may result in tax fisrte the employee. Some or all of the dollamma@ing in the personal care account at
yearend can be rolled over to the next year for fuhealth care needs.

Traditional Indemnity: Indemnity products offer the member an option tecteany health care provider for covered servi€eserage
is subject to deductibles and coinsurance, with begmost sharing usually limited by out-of-pocketximums.

Health Maintenance Organization: HMO products include comprehensive managed carefitgngenerally through a
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participating network of physicians, hospitals atider providers. A member in one of our HMOs myptdally select a primary care physici
or PCP, from our network. PCPs generally are faiictitioners, internists or pediatricians whoyide necessary preventive and primary
medical care, and are generally responsible fordinating other necessary health care servicesoffée HMO plans with varying levels of co-
payments, which result in different levels of pramirates.

Point-of-Service: POS products blend the characteristics of HMO, BR®indemnity plans. Members can have comprehehbi@-
style benefits through participating network prarglwith minimum out-of-pocket expenses (co-payisieand also can go directly, without a
referral, to any provider they choose, subjecatopng other things, certain deductibles and coarstg. Member cost sharing is limited by out
of-pocket maximums.

ACA On- and Off-Exchange ProducfsCA requires the modification of existing produetsd development of new products to meet the
requirements of the legislation. Individual and 8mgeoup products must cover essential health bena$ defined in ACA along with many
other requirements and cost sharing changes. thdiViand small group products offered on and affekchanges must meet the definition of
the “metal” product requirements (bronze, silveidgand platinum). Each metal product must satisépecific actuarial value. Health insurers
participating on exchanges must offer at leastsilwer and one gold product.

In our individual markets we offer bronze, silvexdagold products, both on and off the exchangetharstates of California, Colorado,
Connecticut, Georgia, Indiana, Kentucky, Maine, $digri, Nevada, New Hampshire, New York, Ohio, Miigiand Wisconsin. Additionally,
we offer platinum products, both on and off thelamges, in the states of California and New York.

In our small group markets, we offer bronze, sileed gold products, both on and off the excharigabge states of Colorado, Connectic
Georgia, Indiana, Kentucky, Maine, Missouri, Nevadaw Hampshire, Ohio and Virginia and we offerrize, silver and gold products, off
exchanges, in the states of California, New Yor#t @isconsin. Additionally, we offer platinum prodscoff the exchanges, in the states of
California, Connecticut, Georgia, Maine and Virgini

Administrative Services: In addition to fully-insured products, we providdgnainistrative services to large group employers thaintain
self-funded health plans. These administrativeisesvinclude underwriting, actuarial services, rnaldcost management, disease managemel
wellness programs, claims processing and otherrasghrative services for self-funded employers. Satfded health plans are also able to use
our provider networks and to realize savings thhoogr negotiated provider arrangements, while aigvemployers the ability to design
certain health benefit plans in accordance witlir tn requirements and objectives. We also undéwgtop loss insurance for self-funded
plans.

BlueCard®: BlueCard®host members are generally members who residetiavel to a state in which a WellPoint subsidi@ryhe
Blue Cross and/or Blue Shield licensee and wh@avered under an employer sponsored health plaicedrby a non-WellPoint controlled
BCBS licensee, who is the “home” plan. We perfoertain administrative functions for BlueCdttHost members, for which we receive
administrative fees from the BlueCdtthembershome plans. Other administrative functions, inatigdinaintenance of enrollment informati
and customer service, are performed by the home pla

Medicare Plans: We offer a wide variety of senior plans, productd aptions such as Medicare supplement plans, Meslitdvantage
(including private fee-for-service plans and splecéeds plans) and Medicare Part D Prescriptiorg[®ans, or Medicare Part D. Medicare
supplement plans typically pay the difference betwkealth care costs incurred by a beneficiaryaamndunts paid by Medicare. Medicare
Advantage plans provide Medicare beneficiaries w&ithanaged care alternative to traditional Medieae often include a Medicare Part D
benefit. In addition, our Medicare Advantage spenéeds plans provide tailored benefits to Medidaeeficiaries who have chronic diseases
and also cover certain dual eligible customers, afedlow-income seniors and persons under age t&digiabilities who are enrolled in both
Medicare and Medicaid plans. Medicare Part D oféepsescription drug plan to Medicare and dualilglég(Medicare and Medicaid)
beneficiaries. We offer these plans to customeutih our health benefit subsidiaries throughoetdbuntry, including Amerigroup and
CareMore.

Individual Plans: We offer a full range of health insurance planswaitvariety of options and deductibles for indiatiuunder age 65
who are not covered by employer-sponsored covefgmae of our products target certain demographpuladions such as uninsured younger
individuals between the ages of 19 and 29, famitlesse transitioning between jobs or early reiréedividual policies are generally sold
through independent agents and brokers, retalil




partnerships, our in-house sales force or viankermet. Individual business is sold on a fullydred basis. We offer on-exchange products
through state or federally facilitated marketplaaed off-exchange products. Federal premium subsilie available only for certain on-
exchange products. Individual customers are gdgeraire sensitive to product pricing and, to adesxtent, the configuration of the network,
and the efficiency of administration.

Medicaid Plans and Other State-Sponsored Programé/e have contracts to serve members enrolled inguliinded health care
programs, including Medicaid, CHIP, and Medicaig@&xsion programs. The Medicaid program makes fédaatching funds available to all
states for the delivery of health care benefitddarincome and/or high medical risk individualfh€éEe programs are managed by the indivi
states based on broad federal guidelines. CHIRtata and federally funded program that providesdth care coverage to children not
otherwise covered by Medicaid or other insuranogams. Our Medicaid plans also cover certain dligible customers, as previously
described above, who also receive Medicare benkfiesprovide Medicaid and other State-Sponsoredcs in California, Florida, Georgia,
Indiana, Kansas, Louisiana, Maryland, Massachydé&gada, New Jersey, New York, South Carolinanéseee, Texas, Virginia,
Washington, West Virginia and Wisconsin and begawiging Medicaid services in Kentucky on Januargd14. Amerigroup also provided
services in the state of Ohio through June 30, 201Bin the state of New Mexico through Decembei2813.

Pharmacy Products: We market and sell an integrated prescription gmagluct to both fully-insured and séifnded customers throu
our health benefit subsidiaries throughout the tguiThis comprehensive product includes featuteh ss drug formularies, a pharmacy
network and maintenance of a prescription drugldesa and mail order capabilities. Since Decemb2009, we have delegated certain
functions and administrative services related toimegrated prescription drug products to Exp®sspts under a ten year contract, excluding
Amerigroup and certain self-insured members, whigbe exclusive agreements with different PBM serpimviders, provided however that
Amerigroup will be transitioning to the Expressifts agreement during 2014. Express Scripts marthgasetwork of pharmacy providers,
operates mail order pharmacies and processes iptestidrug claims on our behalf, while we sell angport the product for clients, make
formulary decisions and set drug benefit desigatatyy and provide front line member support.

Life Insurance: We offer an array of competitive individual and gpdife insurance benefit products to both large amall group
customers in conjunction with our health plans. Tifeeproducts include term life and accidental ttheend dismemberment.

Disability: ~We offer short-term and long-term disability protiyaisually in conjunction with our health plans.

Behavioral HealthWe offer specialized behavioral health plans antebemanagement. These plans cover mental headttsabstance
abuse treatment services on both an inpatient amdigatient basis. We have implemented employsistance and behavioral managed care
programs for a wide variety of businesses througtitmiUnited States. These programs are offereaigir our subsidiaries.

Radiology Benefit Management:We offer outpatient diagnostic imaging managementises to health plans. These services include
utilization management for advanced diagnostic imggrocedures, network development and optimiratiatient safety, claims adjudication
and provider payment.

Personal Health Care Guidance: We offer leading evidence-based and analytics-drpersonal health care guidance. These services
help improve the quality, coordination and safdth@alth care, enhance communications betweennpai@ad their physicians, and reduce
medical costs.

Dental: Our dental plans include networks in certain stateshich we operate. Many of the dental benefiess@ovided to customers
enrolled in our health plans and are offered ot lactully-insured and self-funded basis. Our mersla¢so have access to additional dental
providers through our participation in the Natiobantal GRID, a national dental network developgéibd for BCBS plans. The National
Dental GRID includes dentists in all 50 states pravides multi-state customers with a national Sofuproviding in-network discounts across
the country. Additionally, we offer managed derstlvices to other health care plans to assist thlases in providing dental benefits to their
customers.

Vision Services and Products:Our vision plans include networks within the statewhich we operate. Many of the vision benefits a
provided to customers enrolled in our health pkamd are offered on both a fully-insured and setigied
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basis. In addition to vision plans, we sold contanses, eyeglasses and other ocular productsgimur 1-800 CONTACTS subsidiary which
we divested on January 31, 2014.

Long-Term Care Insurance: We offer long-term care insurance products to calif@nia members through a subsidiary. The longate
care products include tax-qualified and non-taxifjad versions of a skilled nursing home care pdawd comprehensive policies covering
skilled, intermediate and custodial long-term camd home health services.

Medicare Administrative Operations: Through our subsidiary, NGS, we serve as a fistatinediary, carrier and Medicare
administrative contractor providing administratservices for the Medicare program, which geneaifvides coverage for persons who art
or older and for persons who are disabled or witth-&age renal disease. Part A of the Medicareramogrovides coverage for services
provided by hospitals, skilled nursing facilitiesdeother health care facilities. Part B of the Madé program provides coverage for services
provided by physicians, physical and occupationefdpists and other professional providers, asagetlertain durable medical equipment anc
medical supplies.

Networks and Provider Relations

Our relationships with physicians, hospitals anafgssionals that render health care services tonemnbers are guided by local, regional
and national standards for network developmentlbarsement and contract methodologies. While fatigvwndustry standards, we are
simultaneously seeking to lead and transform oaftheare system from our current fragmented mpdahised on episodic intervention to
one based on proactive, coordinated care builtrattdlie needs of the patient. A key element ofttiaissformation involves a transition from
traditional fee-for-service payment models to medehere providers are paid based on the value,ibafhality and affordability, of the care
they deliver.

We establish “market-based” hospital reimburserpagiments that we believe are fair, but aggressiné,among the most competitive in
the market. We also seek to ensure that physiaeosr network are paid in a timely manner at appate rates. In many instances, we deplo
multi-year contracting strategies, including caséx@d rates, to limit our exposure to medicaltdafiation and to increase cost predictability.
We maintain both broad and narrow provider netwéoksnsure member choice, based on both price @ess needs, while implementing
programs designed to improve the quality of caceiked by our members. Increasingly, we are supghtimg our broad based networks with
smaller or more cost-effective networks that argglteed to be attractive to a more price-sensitusamer segment, such as health care
exchange customers.

Depending on the consolidation and integrationhyfgician groups and hospitals, reimbursement sfiegevary across markets. Fee-for-
service is our predominant reimbursement methogologphysicians, but as noted above, and morg fidiscribed below, we are transitioning
to a value-based payment program. More traditiphgisician fee schedules are developed at thelstatebased on an assessment of several
factors and conditions, including the Centers fadidare & Medicaid Services, or CMS, resource-baskdive value system, or RBRVS,
medical practice cost inflation and physician sypjVe utilize CMS RBRVS fee schedules as a refexquuint for fee schedule development
and analysis. The RBRVS structure was developedsam@intained by CMS, and is used by the Medipaogram and other major payers. In
addition, we have implemented and continue to eagdnysician incentive contracting, or “pay for merhance”, which ties physician payment
levels to performance on clinical measures.

It is generally our philosophy not to delegate filancial responsibility to our physician providen the form of capitation-based
reimbursement. However, in certain markets we bel@apitation can be a useful method to lower caistsreduce underwriting risk, and we
therefore have some capitation contracts.

Our hospital contracts provide for a variety ohmbursement arrangements depending on local maykeintics and current hospital
utilization efficiency. Most hospitals are reimbeusa fixed amount per day or reimbursed a per-aas®rint, per admission, for inpatient
covered services. A small percentage of hospipaisiarily rural, sole community hospitals, are rbimsed on a discount from approved cht
basis for covered services. Our “per-case” reimdament methods utilize many of the same attribubesained in Medicare’s Diagnosis
Related Groups, or DRG, methodology. Hospital digpéaservices are reimbursed by fixed case réesschedules or percent of approved
charges. Our hospital contracts recognize uniqueitad attributes, such as academic medical centetsmmunity hospitals, and the volume
of care performed for our members. To improve mtadhility of expected cost, we frequently use atirydar contracting approach and have
been transitioning to case rate payment methodedo@lany of our hospital contracts include a “payferformance” component where
reimbursement levels are linked to improved clihgmrformance, patient safety and medical erroucédn.

-11 -




Fee-for-service currently remains our predominaithbursement methodology for physicians, but aschabove, we are rapidly
transitioning to value-based payment programs. §hdae-for-service or fee-for-service combined vtty for performance remains our
predominant payment model today, our provider eagemnt and contracting strategies are moving away funit price” or volume-based
payment models to payment models that align congiemswith the value delivered as measured by heate, quality and cost. We launched
the most significant of these efforts, our Enhareetsonal Health Care program, in the fourth quaft@012. This program augments
traditional fee-for-service with a shared savingsgpam that allows participating providers to sharany achieved savings, when actual healt
care costs are below projected costs, providedhlegtmeet threshold performance on quality meas(ige quality measures are based on
nationally accepted, credible standards (e.g. NCi& American Diabetes Association and the Ameriseademy of Pediatrics) and span
preventive, acute and chronic care. We combinepidnygnent model with a highly collaborative relaship approach under which we give
participating providers the tools and informatibeyt need to proactively manage the health of thegient population, improve health outcor
and reduce the cost associated with preventablécaiezients. In some of these arrangements, gaatiog physician practices receive a per-
member, pemonth clinical coordination fee to compensate thiemmportant care management activities that ocuside of the patient vis
fostering a move away from episodic visiised interventions to a proactive patient engagearel coordinated care model. Since the laun
Enhanced Personal Health Care, we now have arrageiwith provider organizations covering nearly@f our primary care physicians ¢
have rolled this program out in all 14 of our Cormaied and Specialty Business markets. Thereatieough 2015, we intend to continue to
expand the breadth of our programs in each maskatltling additional physicians until the majorifypbysicians participate in a value-based
payment program.

Medical Management Programs

Our medical management programs include a broay afractivities that facilitate improvements irethuality of care provided to our
members and promote cost-effective medical cares&medical management activities and programadcanénistered and directed by
physicians and trained nurses. The goals of outicabthanagement strategies are to ensure thabtieedelivered to our members is supportec
by appropriate medical and scientific evidenceeceived on a timely basis and occurs in the mostapriate location.

Precertification: A traditional medical management program involveseasment of the appropriateness of certain htizattans and
other medical services prior to the service bearglered. For example, precertification is usedeterdnine whether a set of hospital and
medical services is being appropriately applietheomember’s clinical condition, in accordance veititeria for medical necessity as that term
is defined in the member’s benefits contract. Albor health plans have implemented precertificapoograms for common high-tech
radiology studies, including cardiac diagnostitites addressing an area of historically signiftcamst trends. Through our American Imaging
Management Specialty Health subsidiary we promppeapriate, safe and affordable member care iniingegs well as oncology, sleep
management and specialty pharmacy benefits. Thgmaded specialty benefit management solutiongdgpeeclinical expertise and
technology to engage our provider communities archbrers in more effective and efficient use of otigpd services.

Care Coordination: Another traditional medical management strategysesis care coordination, which is based on ndtipna
recognized criteria developed by third-party meldigeecialists. With inpatient care coordinatiore thquirements and intensity of services
during a patient’s hospital stay are reviewedimae$ by an onsite skilled nurse professional itataration with the hospital’s medical and
nursing staff, in order to coordinate care and rieitge the most effective transition of care frora tiospital setting. In addition, guidance for
many continued stay cases is reviewed with physiciadical directors to ensure appropriate utilmatf medical services. We also coordinats
care for outpatient services to help ensure théma with chronic conditions who receive carenfrmultiple physicians are able to manage
exchange of information between physicians anddinate office visits to their physicians.

Case Management: We have implemented a medical management strategigéd on identifying the small percentage of the
membership that will require a high level of intemtion to manage their health care needs. Theteegisnurses and medical directors focus o
members likely to be readmitted to the hospital laglg them coordinate their care through pharmacypdiance, post-hospital care, follow-up
visits to see their physician and support in theime.

Formulary management: We have developed formularies, which are selectidrsugs based on clinical quality and effectiveneA
pharmacy and therapeutics committee of physiciars gcientific and clinical evidence to ensure dloat
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members have access to the appropriate drug tlesrapi

Medical policy: A medical policy group comprised of physician le@deom various areas of the country, working iogeration with
academic medical centers, practicing community jgfiesss and medical specialty organizations such@#imerican College of Radiology a
national organizations such as the Centers ford3s€ontrol and Prevention and the American Ca®aeiety, determines our national policy
for the application of new medical technologies tmedtments.

Quality programs: We are actively engaged with our hospital and ghgsinetworks to enable them to improve medicalsandical
care and achieve better outcomes for our membezseMlorse, encourage and incent hospitals andqiaysito support national initiatives to
improve the quality of clinical care and patientammes and to reduce medication errors and hospitdtions. We have demonstrated our
leadership in developing hospital quality programs.

External review procedures: We work with outside experts through a processctdreal review to provide our members scientifigall
and clinically, evidence-based medical care. Wherreeeive member concerns, we have formal appeadegures that ultimately allow
coverage disputes related to medical necessitgidas under the benefits contract to be settleidddgpendent expert physicians.

Service management: In HMO and POS networks, primary care physiciamgesas the overall coordinators of members’ hecdite
needs by providing an array of preventive healtliises and overseeing referrals to specialistafmropriate medical care. In PPO networks,
patients have access to network physicians withgutmary care physician serving as the coordinattaare.

Estimate Your Cost & Anthem Care Comparisbhese health care provider comparison tools disdiggical cost estimates and quality
data for common services at contracted provideith, @ost estimates accounting for facility, profeasl and ancillary services. The cost
estimates bundle related services typically peréatmat the time of the procedure, not just for thaeedure itself. Users can review cost dat:
over 350 procedures in 49 states. The Estimate €ost tool also includes member out-of-pocket estimates based on a member’s own
benefit coverage, deductible, and out of pocketimam. We also offer information on overall facilitstings and patient experience using
trusted third party data. We continue to work ohating and evolving our tools to assist membermaking informed and value-based healtt
care decisions. In addition, we collaborate witteaternal independent vendor to support employearstiwg to purchase a transparency and
consumer engagement web solution with certain madit functionality.

Personal Health Care Guidance: These services help improve the quality, coordamasind safety of health care, enhance
communications between patients and their physiciand reduce medical costs. Examples of servicdsde member and physician
messaging, providing access to evidence-based alegliclelines, physician quality profiling, and ettconsulting services.

Anthem Health GuideAnthem Health Guide integrates customer servick wlihical and wellness coaching to provide eas#iigation o
health care services for our members. Membersugmgosted by a team of nurses, coaches, educatatsaaial workers using voice, click-to-
chat, secure email and mobile technology. Our SErgagement Platform supports this integrated t@sing our smart engagement triggers
for speech recognition, preventative and cliniagggin care and highlighting when we have membérsave identified for health care support
and we have been unable to reach them. This ctrang of professionals also supports our membelsauit shared decision making support
portfolio.

Care Management Programs

We continue to expand 0860° Healthsuite of integrated care management programs amsl 860° Healthoffers the following program
among others, that have been proven to increaditygarad reduce medical costs for our members:

ConditionCareandFutureMomsare care management and maternity management preghat serve as adjuncts to physician care. 8l
nurse professionals with added support from ountefdietitians, social workers, pharmacists, eattucators and other health professionals
help participants understand their condition, tideictor's orders and how to become a better seffager of their condition. We also offer
members infertility consultation through our Sp#oifers@Anthem program, a comprehensive and intedrassembly of discounted health
and wellness products and services from a varietlyeonation's leading retailers.

24/7 NurseLineffers access to qualified, registered nurses angytirhis allows our members to make informed
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decisions about the appropriate level of care anidaunnecessary worry. This program also inclualesferral process to the nearest urgent
care facility, a robust audiotape library, accdsslty phone, with more than 400 health and welltegiks, as well as on-line health education
topics designed to educate members about symptoedseatment of many common health concerns.

ComplexCards an advanced care management program that reaghtsparticipants with multiple health care isswho are at risk for
frequent and high levels of medical care in ordesffer support and assistance in managing thailthheare need€omplexCarédentifies
candidates through claims analysis using predictieeeling techniques, the use of health risk agsestsdata, utilization management reports
and referrals from a physician or one of our offregrams, such as ti2d/7 NurseLine

MyHealth Advantagetilizes integrated information systems and sopfagtd data analytics to help our members imprbe& tomplianc
with evidence-based care guidelines, providinggreakcare notes that alert members to potentiad gapare, enable more prudent health care
choices, and assist in the realization of membenbpocket cost savings. Key opportunities are alsared with physicians through Availity
at the time of membership eligibility verificatioAvaility ®is an electronic data interchange system that alfmwthe exchange of health
information among providers over a secure network.

MyHealth Coactprovides our members with a professional guide tlps them navigate the health care system and better decisior
about their well-beingMlyHealth Coaclproactively reaches out to people who are at nslsérious health issues or have complex health car
needs. Our health coaches help participants urahelsthd manage chronic conditions, handle anytaall wellness related services they |
and make smatrt lifestyle choices.

HealthyLifestyleielps employees transform unhealthy habits intdtigesones by focusing on behaviors that can hapesitive effect on
their health and their employer’s financial wellzp HealthyLifestyleprograms include smoking cessation, weight managemgess
management, physical activity and diet and nutritio

MyHealth@Anthens our secure web-based solution, complementingrgitograms by reinforcing telephonic coaching anadl
campaigns. The website engages participants idaggassessing their health status, gives themiidf@ek about their progress, and tracks
important health measures such as blood presseightvand blood glucose levels.

Employee Assistance Prograpr®vide many resources that allow members to balamrk and personal life by providing quick andyeas
access to confidential resources to help meettiaenges of daily life. Examples of services aalal in person as well as via telephone or
internet are counseling for child care, health wetiness, financial issues, legal issues, adogihdaily living.

Health Care Quality Initiatives

Increasingly, the health care industry is abledfing quality health care based on preventive heaftasurements, outcomes of care and
optimal care management for chronic disease. Atk@yr success has been our ability to work withretwork physicians and hospitals to
improve the quality and outcomes of the health sargices provided to our members. Our abilityrimnpote quality medical care has been
recognized by the NCQA, the largest and most résgdatational accreditation program for managed bagdth plans.

Several quality health care measures, includindtba&ithcare Effectiveness Data and Information @etJEDIS®, have been incorporated
into the NCQA'’s accreditation processes. HEDBeasures range from preventive services, suchresrsng mammography and pediatric
immunization, to elements of care, including desiregthe complications of diabetes and improviegtiment for patients with heart disease.
For health plans, NCQA's highest accreditationustatf Excellent is granted only to those plans tleshonstrate levels of service and clinical
quality that meet or exceed NCQA's rigorous requieats for consumer protection and quality improvetnelans earning this accreditation
level must also achieve HEDfSesults that are in the highest range of nationatgional performance. Details for each of ounpla
accreditation levels can be found at www.ncga.org.

We have committed to measuring our progress inawipg the quality of care that our members andommmunities receive through our
proprietary Member Health Index, or MHI, and Stdtalth Index, or SHI. The MHI is comprised of 2hially relevant measures for our
health plan members and combines prevention, carmgement, clinical outcome and
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patient safety metrics. The SHI measures the he&Hlii the residents in our BCBSA licensed statexd,just our members, using public data
from the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

Our wholly-owned clinical research and health ootes research subsidiary, HealthCore, has suppoidptiarmaceutical manufacturers,
health professionals, and health plans by enaltioge effective medical management and increasesighy adherence to evidence-based
care, and creating new knowledge on the valueinitel therapies, resulting in better care decisidn addition, HealthCore works closely v
government entities, including the Food and Drugnxdstration and the Centers for Disease ContrdlRrevention, on initiatives aimed at
improving healthcare safety and enhancing natisatdty surveillance capabilities.

Our wholly-owned specialty benefit management subsidiary, Spécialty Health, or AIM, has supported qualityitmplementing clinice
appropriateness and patient safety solutions feamced imaging procedures, cardiology, sleep meelicpecialty pharmaceuticals and
oncology, including drugs covered under medicakieand radiation therapy. These programs, basedidely accepted clinical guidelines,
promote the most appropriate use of diagnostictia@cpeutic services to improve the quality of alldrealth care delivered to our members
and members of other health plans that are cowerddr AIM’s programs. To provide additional impé&its clinical appropriateness program,
AIM has also implemented a provider assessmentranegOptiNet®, which promotes more informed selection of diagiedmaging and
testing facilities by providing cost and facilityformation to physicians at the point that a prareds ordered. We have also leveraged AIM’s
provider network assessment information to proatfiengage and educate our members about imaginvidprs and sleep testing choices
based on site capabilities and cost differences ffitogram is another example of how we facilifedprovements in the quality of care
provided to our members and promote cost effectiedical care. In addition, AIM radiology, cardiologleep medicine, radiation therapy,
network assessment and member engagement solbiwaseen evaluated as quality improvement expemsks the National Association of
Insurance Commissioners, or NAIC, medical losrair MLR, regulations. Fees for these programsheaimcluded in calculations of a health
plan's MLR.

Our wholly-owned analytics-driven personal healihecguidance subsidiary, Resolution Health, Inas, supported quality by helping our
members take action to get healthy, stay healthybatter manage chronic iliness. Our analysis ahdividual member’s health data identifies
opportunities to improve health care quality anétyawe then send personalized messages to theberetheir doctor and care manager to
take action. For example, our drug safety messag@sn a member’s doctor, pharmacist or care manafjgotentially dangerous drug-drug,
drug-condition, drug-age, or drug-dose interactioesitified in our Drug Safety Scan. This helps ioye safety, drug effectiveness and
medication adherence.

Pricing and Underwriting of Our Products

We price our products based on our assessmentreintinealth care claim costs and emerging health cost trends, combined with
charges for administrative expenses, risk and fpiafiluding charges for new ACA taxes and fees.dafatinually review our product designs
and pricing guidelines on a national and regiorali®so that our products remain competitive amgistent with our profitability goals and
strategies.

In applying our pricing to each employer group andtomer, we maintain consistent, competitive,igised underwriting standards. We
employ our proprietary accumulated actuarial datdetermining underwriting and pricing parametévbere allowed by law and regulation,
we underwrite large groups based on each grougjseggte claim experience. Also, we employ crediteuwriting procedures with respect to
our self-funded products.

In most circumstances, our pricing and underwritiegisions follow a prospective rating process fmclv a fixed premium is determined
at the beginning of the contract period. For fullgured business, any deviation, favorable or umfavie, from the medical costs assumed in
determining the premium is our responsibility. Sasheur larger groups employ retrospective ratiegjews, where positive experience is
partially refunded to the group, and negative elgmee is charged against a rate stabilization &stdblished from the group’s favorable
experience, or charged against future favorablergspce.

BCBSA Licenses
We are a party to license agreements with the BCB@Aentitle us to the exclusive, and in certagaa, non-exclusive use of the Blue

Cross and Blue Shield names and marks in assigeagraphic territories. BCBSA is a national trade
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association of Blue Cross and Blue Shield licenstbesprimary function of which is to promote anéserve the integrity of the BCBS names
and marks, as well as provide certain coordinagimong the member companies. Each BCBSA licensaeiisdependent legal organization
and is not responsible for obligations of other EB2Bmember organizations. We have no right to magpkedlucts and services using the BCBS
names and marks outside of the states in whichrevécensed to sell BCBS products. We are requtiogahy an annual license fee to the
BCBSA based on enrollment and also to comply wihous operational and financial standards set forthe licenses.

We believe that we and our licensed affiliatesangently in compliance with these standards. Thadards under the license agreement:
may be modified in certain instances by the BCBS@e Part |, Item 1A “Risk Factors” in this Form K@er additional details of our licensing
requirements and the impact if we were not to cgrmpth these license agreements.

Regulation
General

Our operations are subject to comprehensive arallggtstate, federal and international regulatfoouaghout the jurisdictions in which we
do business. As discussed below, the regulatoryctsipf the U.S. health care system have been dincbwtinue to be significantly affected
Health Care Reform. Supervisory agencies, inclugiate health, insurance and corporation deparsnkave broad authority to:

» grant, suspend and revoke licenses to transaatdss

e regulate many aspects of our products and ser

e monitor our solvency and reserve adequ

e scrutinize our investment activities on the basiguality, diversification and other quantitativeteria; ant

* impose monetary and criminal sanctions for stompliance with regulatory requireme;
To carry out these tasks, these regulators peatigiexamine our operations and accounts.
Regulation of Insurance Company and HMO Businesisifyc

The governments of the states in which we condusiness, as well as the federal government, hawgted laws and regulations that
govern our business activities in various waystharn Health Care Reform has resulted in increésgeral regulation that is likely to have a
significant impact on our business. These lawsragdlations, which vary significantly from statestate and on the federal level, may restrict
how we conduct our businesses and may result iti@wnia burdens and costs to us. Areas of govertaheegulation include but are not
limited to:

* medical loss ratio

» tax deductibility of certain compensation and He&are Reform related fe
+ licensure

e premium rate!

* benefits

« eligibility requirements

» guaranteed availability and renewabil

* service area

* market conduc

» sales and marketing activities, including use asmdmensation of brokers and other distribution cless;
e quality assurance procedul

» plan design and disclosures, including mandatedfiis;

» underwriting, marketing, pricing and rating redidas for insurance produc
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» utilization review activities

e prompt payment of claim

e member rights and responsibiliti

» collection, access or use of protected health métion

» data reporting, including financial data and stadddor electronic transactiol

» payment of dividend

» provider rates of payme!

» surcharges on provider payme

» provider contract form

» provider access standat

e premium taxes, assessments for the uninsured amdderinsured and insolvency guaranty paym
 member and provider complaints and app

« financial condition (including reserves and minimaapital or risk based capital requirements andstments
» reimbursement or payment levels for governmentddnousiness; ai

* corporate governanc
These state and federal laws and regulations &jecfito amendments and changing interpretatioesah jurisdiction.

States generally require health insurers and HMQbtain a certificate of authority prior to comrogmy operations. If we were to
establish a health insurance company or an HM@ynj@isdiction where we do not presently operate, generally would have to obtain such
a certificate. The time necessary to obtain sucértificate varies from jurisdiction to jurisdictioEach health insurer and HMO must file
periodic financial and operating reports with theges in which it does business. In addition, ealsurers and HMOs are subject to state
examination and periodic license renewal. The hdanefits business also may be adversely impastedurt and regulatory decisions that
expand the interpretations of existing statutesragdlations. It is uncertain whether we can re¢ttumugh higher premiums or other
measures, the increased costs of mandated bemeditser increased costs caused by potential &gisl, regulation or court rulings. See Pa
Item 1A “Risk Factors” in this Form 10-K.

Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act

The ACA, signed into law on March 23, 2010, hasatad significant changes and will continue to @esdgnificant changes for health
insurance markets for the next several years. Sgaty, many of the near-term changes were effector certain groups and individuals on
their first renewal on or after September 23, 20d€luding a prohibition on lifetime limits, certaannual limits, member cost-sharing on
specified preventive benefits, pre-existing coditexclusions for children, increased restrictiongescinding coverage and extension of
coverage of dependents to the age of 26. Certgiirements for insurers were also effective in 20adluding changes to Medicare Advant
payments and the minimum MLR provision that requiresurers to pay rebates to customers when irssdeenot meet or exceed the specified
MLR thresholds. Most of the provisions of ACA wittore significant effects on the health insuranceketplace, both state and federal, went
into effect on January 1, 2014, including a requieat that insurers guarantee the issuance of ogeéoaall individuals regardless of health
status, strict rules on how health insurance eahe assessment of new taxes and fees (incladimgal fees on health insurance companies
the creation of new insurance exchanges for indaligland small groups, the availability of premismbsidies for certain individual products,
and substantial expansions in eligibility for Mealat.

Despite significant preparation for the adventhaf hew federal and state health insurance exchatinges have been many technical
difficulties in the implementation of the exchangehich entail uncertainties associated with mig aonlume of business. In November 2013,
CMS notified the various state Insurance Commisgiethat, under a transitional policy, health iasiwe coverage in the individual or small
group market that is renewed for a policy yeartistgbetween

-17 -




January 1, 2014 and October 1, 2014 that wouldwibe have been deemed non-compliant with certairkeat reforms under Health Care
Reform will nonetheless not be considered by CMBamut of compliance with respect to such maréfstrms provided certain conditions are
met. CMS further encouraged state agencies redgerier enforcing the specified market reforms dojat the same transitional policy with
respect to this coverage. Some states have adihgtehnsitional policy, some have not adopteddt get others have not taken a position.

Due to the impact of the transitional policy, weynte adversely selected by individuals who will @ahigher acuity level than the
anticipated pool of participants in the exchangekeis. In addition, the risk adjustment, reinsugrand risk corridor premium stabilization
programs of Health Care Reform, or Health Care Refeéremium Stabilization Programs, establishefmetion risk amongst insurers, may
not be effective in appropriately mitigating thedncial risks related to our exchange productssé ffigctors, along with the limited informati
about the individuals who have access to theseynesthblished exchanges that was available whessteblished premiums, may have a
material adverse effect on our results of operatibpremiums are not adequate or do not appralyiaeflect the acuity of these individuals.
Any variation from our expectations regarding aguiinroliment levels, adverse selection, or otlssuenptions utilized in setting adequate
premium rates could have a material adverse effectur results of operations, financial positiomg @ash flows.

In addition, there have been other material chaagdsdelays in the implementation of ACA that couwdve a material adverse effect on
our results of operations, financial position, @agh flows. These include:

« Delay in the effective date of the employer mandiatan 2014 to 201!

» Extension of the 2013 open enrollment period toddarer 23, 2013 for a January 1, 2014 effective;

» Delay of the commencement of the 2014 open enrolimperiod from October 15 to November 15 througtuday 15, 201!
» Changes to the annual fees on health insurancearigay

» Deferral of the online Small Business Health Opti®nogram (SHOP) enrollment capabilities;

» Other yet to be announced changes and di

These delays and changes may have a material gmticgint impact on anticipated enrollment in ondaff-exchange products, thus
affecting the risk pools and premium rates. Thénéml difficulties in implementing exchanges havgacted the sharing of enrollment
information between the federal government andthéasurers and will significantly delay paymentiasubsidies to insurers. Finally,
implementation of ACA brings with it significant eksight responsibilities by health insurers thay mesult in increased governmental audits,
increased assertions of False Claims Act violatiansl an increased risk of other litigation.

ACA continues to require additional guidance anecdirity to be provided by the Department of Headihd Human Services, or HHS, the
Department of Labor, CMS and the Department offtteasury. These regulatory agencies continue teidenrecommendations from external
groups, such as the NAIC. Many provisions havel finkes available for review while some proposegutations have been released for
comment or have yet to be released and othersameocess. Of particular note is the yet to beddsegulation pertaining to administrative
simplification to create uniformity in implementimdectronic standards. We continue to carefullyieata each rule as it is issued; and,
therefore, it continues to be too early to fullyderstand the impacts of the legislation on our aléusiness. Some of the more significant
considerations of ACA are described below:

* MLR regulations were issued by HHS in Decemt®r12 however, significant changes could still odouthe MLR requirements
through additional regulatory guidance and/or modtfon of the regulation. The minimum MLR threst®by line of business, as
defined by HHS, are as follows:

Line of Business %

Large Group 85
Small Group 80
Individual 80

-18 -




New York state regulations require us to meet agmestrictive MLR threshold of 82% for both Smato@p and Individual lines of
business. Certain other states have received apigrom HHS to phase-in the MLR requirements inltindividual markets in those
states and, as a result, are currently using lthvesholds for determination of potential rebaldse minimum MLR thresholds
disclosed above are based on definitions of an MalRulation provided by HHS, or specific statesapglicable, and differ from our
calculation of “benefit expense ratio” based ompten revenue and benefit expense as reported or@daaece with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles, or GAAP. Furtheemtite definitions of the lines of business diffader the various state and federa
regulations and may not correspond to our lindsugfness. Definitions under the MLR regulation atepact insurers differently
depending upon their organizational structure wistatus, which could result in a competitive adage to some insurance providers
that may not be available to us, resulting in aevem playing field in the industry. Significant clg@s to the MLR requirements may
occur through additional regulatory action by HHS.

Approximately 63.1% and 27.3% of our premium rexeeaand medical membership, respectively, were stutjgbe minimum MLR
regulations as of and for the year ended Decenthe2(®BL3 . Approximately 74.4% and 28.5% of our gremrevenue and medical
membership, respectively, were subject to the minimMMLR regulations as of and for the year endededdser 31, 2012 . Beginning
with rebates paid in 2014 for the 2013 benefit y&#rR rebates will be based on a three year averBigis calculation will determine
an average MLR for each market segment within sgatie for the previous three calendar years. Aaithliy, insurers will be able to
adjust experience to account for prior MLR rebaéfanded to groups or individuals. Once the thregryaverage MLR is calculated
and compared to the minimum MLR threshold, the teparcentage will be applied to current year poensi as defined by Health
Care Reform. Beginning with MLR rebates paid in 2@dr the 2014 benefit year, insurers will adjustthe Health Care Reform
Premium Stabilization Programs.

Health Care Reform also imposes a separate miniMuR threshold of 85% for Medicare Advantage plargibning in 2014.
Medicare Advantage plans that do not meet thisstiolel will have to pay a minimum MLR rebate. Iflangs MLR is below 85% for
three consecutive years beginning with 2014, emetit will be restricted. A Medicare Advantage ptamtract will be terminated if
the plan's MLR is below 85% for five consecutivarse

ACA required states to establish health insuraceanges by January 1, 2014 through which qualifidividuals and qualified sm:
employers may access coverage. If a state failedtablish a health insurance exchange, the fegevarnment established a health
insurance exchange in that state. To date sixte¢essplus the District of Columbia have electedferate state-based exchanges. Tr
remaining states have either a federal partneestipange (seven states) or a federally operatdthage (twenty-seven states). In the
states in which we offer products on exchangesstsites have passed legislation or executive osd#ablishing state-based health
insurance exchanges (California, Colorado, Conaeattkentucky, Nevada and New York).

ACA requires the modification of existing prodsi@nd development of new products to meet theinrements of the legislation.
Products must cover essential health benefits fiisedein ACA along with many other requirements &odt sharing changes. Health
insurers must offer individual and small group protd that meet the definition of the “metal” reguirents (bronze, silver, gold and
platinum). Each metal product must satisfy a speaiftuarial value. Health insurers participatinggkchanges must offer at least one
silver and one gold product. Additionally, effeeivanuary 1, 2014, health insurers were requiredrioel or discontinue the sale of
existing non-ACA-compliant individual and small gmproducts, subject to the conditions of the Noven2013 CMS transitional
policy discussed above.

Regulations became effective in September 2Batlrequire filings for premium rate increasesdorall group and individual products
above specified thresholds, generally 10%, to bieweed. The regulations provide for state insuramggilators to conduct the
reviews, except for cases where a state does metdra“effective” rate review program, in which ea$HS will conduct the reviews
for any rate increase filed.

The Health Care Reform Premium Stabilization Progréntroduce new requirements to the MLR calcufgtimeginning with the 201
benefit year for the individual and small group kes. The risk adjustment program is a permanergram that transfers dollars fr
insurers who enroll individuals with lower relatitiealth risk to insurers who enroll individuals lwitigher relative health risk. Risk
adjustment payments/receipts will be determineduseply for each state and for individual and sgalup. The second premium
stabilization program is the transitional reinswaprogram, a temporary program that runs from 2Bdgligh 2016. The transitional
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reinsurance program is intended to help stabilizenpums by reimbursing issuers of ACA-compliant sggandfathered individual
market plans for eligible claims between a defiatdchment point and ceiling, at a coinsurancedafimed by HHS. The program
will be funded through assessments per coveredleanapon the commercial health insurance markétsponsors of self-funded
health benefit plans of approximately $12.0 billi§8.0 billion and $5.0 billion in 2014, 2015 ar@ilB, respectively. The final
premium stabilization program is the temporary dekridors program, also a three year program giind2016, that protects insurers
from inaccurate pricing of individual and small gpoqualified health plans and substantially simiifirexchange products.

Beginning in 2014, MLR rebate calculations will &djusted to reflect the Health Care Reform Prenfiiabilization Programs. To
determine an insurer's MLR, the numerator of theRvkill be reduced by receipts from the risk adjustiiy reinsurance, and risk
corridors programs, or increased by payments florrisk adjustment and risk corridors programs. déominator of the MLR
formula will be reduced by reinsurance contribusiofhis adjusted insurer-specific MLR will thendmmmpared to the minimum MLR
threshold for each line of business. The Healtre@&aform Premium Stabilization Programs are noliegdpe to Large Group
business.

*  Through December 31, 2013 and depending oretlug in each state, health insurers were allowedngider factors such as health
status, gender and age in determining the apptegsi@mium for products in the individual and sngatiup markets. Some states h
adopted rules that limit the variation betweenttlghest and lowest premium for the identical insgeapolicy. The differential in
pricing is commonly referred to as “rating bandBtie process of using these rating bands allowshiedurers to appropriately price
for products and to spread the risk more broadigszcall policyholders. Except for policies issugdier the CMS transitional policy,
beginning in 2014, ACA precludes health insureosiflusing health status and gender in the deterioimaf the appropriate insurance
premium. In addition, rating bands for age canrawy\by more than 3 to 1 and the rating bands foatoo use cannot vary by more
than 1.5 to 1. This change will likely have a sfg@int impact on the majority of individual and dhgroup customers and could lead
to adverse selection in the market.

* In 2014 significant new taxes and fees will laédoy health insurers, some of which may or maybeopassed through to customers.
The most significant of the taxes and fees is tirial fee on health insurance companies. For 201atal of $8.0 billion will be
collected from all health insurance companies taclvthe annual fee is assessed. The annual feeli8 $illion for 2015 and 2016,
$13.9 billion for 2017 and $14.3 billion for 2018or 2019 and beyond, the annual fee will equabtheunt for the preceding year
increased by the rate of premium growth for thepding year. The annual fee will be allocated taltheénsurers based on the ratio of
the amount of an insurer's net premium revenuesanrduring the preceding calendar year to the anofuhealth insurance for all
U.S. health risk for those certain lines of busingésring the preceding calendar year.

* Medicare Advantage reimbursement rates willinotease as much as they would otherwise due &wgpayment formula
promulgated by ACA that is expected to significamdduce reimbursements in the future. We also @xpether and ongoing
regulatory guidance on a number of issues relatddedicare, including the Medicare Advantage MLi&leing methodology for
ratings and quality bonus payments and potenti@aon an audit methodology to review data suleditinder “risk adjuster”
programs.

In June 2012, the U.S. Supreme Court issued aideasfirming that the majority of the provisionstbe ACA were constitutional.
However, the provision of the ACA related to thentiatory expansion of state Medicaid programs wataded unconstitutional. Several cases
pertaining to the constitutionality of the contrptiee mandate are currently pending before the Bupreme Court and will likely be heard ¢
decided during the coming year. Other pending cpsdsin to challenges to the premium tax subsigieswhether the subsidies are available
for eligible residents in all states or only thossidents in states which have established statedbexchanges. In January 2014, the D.C.
District Court upheld the subsidies for both staésed and federal exchanges and an appeal igpateidi

Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Praobecfict

During 2010, the U.S. Congress passed and thedergsigned into law the Dodelank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection
or the Dodd-Frank Act. The Dodd-Frank Act representar-reaching overhaul of the framework forth8. financial services industry. Even
though we are primarily a health benefits compay,business has been impacted by the Dodd-Frahkvey of its provisions require the
adoption of rules for implementation, including skeahat govern which non-bank financial companiag become subject to the oversight of
the Federal Reserve. These non-bank financial coiepare defined as those that could pose a ttor¢la¢ economy’s financial stability either
due to the
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potential of material financial distress at the pamy or due to the company’s ongoing activitiesilédve are not currently considered a non-
bank financial company for purposes of Federal Reseversight, future regulations or interpretasi@ould change that result. Further, our
investments in derivative instruments are subjecteiw rules regarding the reporting and clearinggasfsactions and new margin requirements

In addition, the Dodd-Frank Act creates a Federalitance Office, with limited powers that includéormation-gathering and subpoena
authority. Although the Federal Insurance Officesloot have authority over health insurance, it heaye authority over other parts of our
business, such as life insurance.

HIPAA and Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act

The federal Health Insurance Portability and Accabitity Act of 1996, or HIPAA, imposes obligatiofer issuers of health insurance
coverage and health benefit plan sponsors. Thisdawires guaranteed renewability of health cak@@ge for most group health plans and
certain individuals. Also, the law limits exclusibased on preexisting medical conditions.

The administrative simplification provisions of HAR imposed a number of requirements on coverediestjincluding insurers, HMOs,
group health plans, providers and clearinghoudd®se requirements include uniform standards ofnesomelectronic health care transactions
privacy and security regulations; and unique idamtrules for employers, health plans and proddédditional federal privacy and security
requirements, including breach notification, imprdwenforcement and additional limitations on usgdisclosure of protected health
information were passed through the Health InforomaT echnology for Economic and Clinical Health HITECH, Act provisions of the
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 @rdesponding implementing regulations. CMS po#itednterim Final Rule with
Comment, or IFC, adopting operating rules for thec&onic transactions: eligibility for a healtrapland health care claims status. Based on
the comments received on the IFC, CMS has decidetbrchange any of the policies established irrtite Thus, the interim final rule beca
the final rule. The rule had a January 1, 2013 diampe date and we believe we have effectively dadwith the requirements of the new
rule.

In addition, there are proposed regulations ortHfEAA Privacy Accounting of Disclosures provisioaisd the HIPAA Security Rule that
will greatly increase our administrative costshiéy are enacted as proposed.

The federal Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act generally placestrictions on the disclosure of non-public imfiation to noraffiliated third parties
and requires financial institutions, including insts, to provide customers with notice regarding liweir non-public personal information is
used, including an opportunity to “opt out” of an disclosures. State departments of insuranceentdin federal agencies adopted
implementing regulations as required by federal lavaddition, a number of states have adopted skatarity laws and/or regulations,
regulating data security and/or requiring secusityach notification, which may apply to us in certeircumstances.

Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974

The provision of services to certain employee welfaenefit plans is subject to the Employee Retmnncome Security Act of 1974, as
amended, or ERISA, a complex set of laws and réignia subject to interpretation and enforcementhieyinternal Revenue Service and the
Department of Labor. ERISA regulates certain aspefthe relationships between us, the employatsritaintain employee welfare benefit
plans subject to ERISA and participants in suchgl&ome of our administrative services and otbiiviies may also be subject to regulation
under ERISA. In addition, certain states requicerisure or registration of companies providingdtipiarty claims administration services for
benefit plans. We provide a variety of products sexvices to employee welfare benefit plans thatavered by ERISA. Plans subject to
ERISA can also be subject to state laws and thstigumeof whether and to what extent ERISA preemapttate law has been, and will continue
to be, interpreted by many courts.

HMO and Insurance Holding Company Laws, includingkPBased Capital Requirements

We are regulated as an insurance holding compashai@nsubject to the insurance holding companyaidtse states in which our
insurance company and HMO subsidiaries are dordicilaese acts contain certain reporting requiresastwvell as restrictions on transacti
between an insurer or HMO and its affiliates. Theskeling company laws and regulations generallyiregnsurance companies and HMOs
within an insurance holding company system to tegiwith the insurance department of each stateeviey are domiciled and to file with
those states’ insurance departments certain reports
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describing capital structure, ownership, financ@hdition, certain intercompany transactions antega business operations. In addition,
various notice and reporting requirements geneeglyly to transactions between insurance compamié$iMOs and their affiliates within an
insurance holding company system, depending osiigeand nature of the transactions. Some insuffasidéng company laws and regulations
require prior regulatory approval or, in certaircamstances, prior notice of certain material icwenpany transfers of assets as well as certair
transactions between insurance companies, HMGis,ghieent holding companies and affiliates. Amottigeo provisions, state insurance and
HMO laws may restrict the ability of our regulateubsidiaries to pay dividends.

Additionally, the holding company acts of the ssatewhich our subsidiaries are domiciled resttiet ability of any person to obtain
control of an insurance company or HMO without priegulatory approval. Under those statutes, witlsogh approval (or an exemption), no
person may acquire any voting security of an insteeholding company, which controls an insurangapany or HMO, or merge with such a
holding company, if as a result of such transacsiach person would “control” the insurance holdiognpany. “Control” is generally defined
as the direct or indirect power to direct or catiedirection of the management and policies aéraqn and is presumed to exist if a person
directly or indirectly owns or controls 10% or marthe voting securities of another person.

The states of domicile of our regulated subsidgahiave statutory risk-based capital, or RBC, reguoénts for health and other insurance
companies and HMOs based on the RBC Model Act. @REBC requirements are intended to assess thakagéquacy of life and health
insurers and HMOs, taking into account the riskrabteristics of a company’s investments and praddotgeneral, under these laws, an
insurance company or HMO must submit a reportRIBC level to the insurance department or inswaommissioner of its state of
domicile for each calendar year. The law requinesdasing degrees of regulatory oversight andvatgion as a company’s RBC declines. As
of December 31, 2013, the RBC levels of our insoesand HMO subsidiaries exceeded all RBC threshold

Guaranty Fund Assessments

Under insolvency or guaranty association laws istnstates, insurance companies can be assesseddants paid by guaranty funds for
policyholder losses incurred when an insurance @mypecomes insolvent. Most state insolvency oranig association laws currently
provide for assessments based upon the amoun¢wiiyoms received on insurance underwritten withichsstate (with a minimum amount
payable even if no premium is received). Under mafrthese guaranty association laws, assessmeaitsshgisurance companies that issue
policies of accident or sickness insurance are metilespectively. Some states permit insurers¢over assessments paid through full or
partial premium tax offsets or through future pgliolder assessments.

States’ adoption of the revised NAIC Model Guaranmynd Act will tend to decrease our liability forsblvent insurers. The revised act
reduces the premium base on which assessmentalauntated, by omitting Medicare Parts C and D ptamfrom the assessment base.

While the amount and timing of any future assesssesnnot be predicted with certainty, we belidag future guaranty association
assessments for insurer insolvencies will not feameaterial adverse effect on our liquidity and tapiesources with the exception of potential
exposure related to the Penn Treaty Network Amérisarance Company and its subsidiary American Ngtinsurance Company insolven
as discussed in Note 14, “Commitments and Conticigsi to our audited consolidated financial stagata as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2013, included in this Form 10-K.

Employees

At December 31, 2013, we had approximately 48&@floyees. Our employees are an important assetyarseek to develop them to
their full potential. We believe that our relatibips with our employees is good.

Available Information

We are a large accelerated filer (as defined ireR@b-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934masnded, or Exchange Act) and are
required, pursuant to Iltem 101 of Regulation SeKprovide certain information regarding our websitel the availability of certain documents
filed with or furnished to the U.S. Securities d&wthange Commission, or SEC. Our Internet websiteww.wellpoint.com We have
included our Internet website address throughdatAhnual Report on Form 10-K as textual referemicly. The information contained on our
Internet website is not incorporated into
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this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We make availafike of charge, by mail or through our Internebsite, our Annual Report on Form 10-
K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Repont$-orm 8K, and amendments to those reports filed or fuedsbursuant to Section 13
or 15(d) of the Exchange Act as soon as reasomahbbticable after we electronically file such metewith or furnish it to the SEC. We also
include on our Internet website our Corporate Goaece Guidelines, our Standards of Ethical BusiGesgluct and the charter of each
standing committee of our Board of Directors. lditidn, we intend to disclose on our Internet webany amendments to, or waivers from,
our Standards of Ethical Business Conduct thateayeired to be publicly disclosed pursuant to ratethe SEC and the New York Stock
Exchange, or NYSE. WellPoint, Inc. is an Indiangpooation incorporated on July 17, 2001.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

The following factors, among others, could causeaaeesults to differ materially from those contad in forward-looking statements
made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and presegeisewhere by management from time to time. $aatbrs, among others, may have a
material adverse effect on our business, finargatition, and results of operations and you shoatéfully consider them. It is not possiblt
predict or identify all such factors. Consequengiyyl should not consider any such list to be a detagstatement of all our potential risks or
uncertainties. Because of these and other faqiass,performance should not be considered an itiiicaf future performance.

Federal Health Care Reform legislation, together wth the changes in federal and state regulations th&ave been enacted to
implement Health Care Reform, could adversely affecour business, cash flows, financial condition andesults of operations.

The passage of Health Care Reform during 2010 absesjuent regulations represent significant chatogise U.S. health care system.
The legislation is fareaching and is intended to expand access to hiealihance coverage over time by increasing thggbdity thresholds fo
most state Medicaid programs and providing ceéver individuals and small businesses with taxlitsg¢o subsidize a portion of the cost of
health insurance coverage. The legislation incladesgquirement that most individuals obtain hemfurance coverage beginning in 2014. In
addition, the new laws impose significant feeseassients and taxes on us and other health insbealth plans and other industry
participants. Health Care Reform imposes an anndaktrywide $8.0 billion health insurer fee beginning Bil2 and growing to $14.3 billic
by 2018 and increasing annually thereafter. Thatheénsurance fee is not deductible for incomepasposes and will be allocated pro rata
among us and other industry participants basedebpremiums written. Health Care Reform also impasdustry-wide reinsurance
assessments of $12.0 billion, $8.0 billion and $8lifbn in 2014, 2015 and 2016, respectively. irssice companies will pay the fees based
upon insured members whereas self-insured entiiepay them directly to HHS. As we are one of theion's largest health benefits
companies, we expect our share of the Health CaferR fees, assessments and taxes to be signifilaate is some uncertainty whether we
will be able to include all or a portion of these$§, assessments and taxes in our premium rates.

Health Care Reform also imposes new regulationthemealth insurance sector, including, but noitéchto, guaranteed coverage and
expanded benefit requirements, prohibitions on sanmal and all lifetime limits on amounts paid@half of or to our members, increased
restrictions on rescinding coverage, establishroéntinimum MLR and customer rebate requirementsation of a federal rate review proci
a requirement to cover preventive services onsadiollar basis, the establishment of insurancéa&xges and essential benefit packages and
greater limitations on how we price certain of purducts. The legislation also reduces the reindraent levels for our health plans
participating in the Medicare Advantage programrdirae. There are also limitations on the amountahpensation that is deductible for
income tax purposes.

The legislation also contains risk adjustment Biovis applicable to the individual and small grougrkets that take effect in 2014. These
risk adjustment provisions will effectively transfends from health plans with relatively lowerkrisnrollees to plans with relatively higher
enrollees to help protect against adverse seledsffactively adapting to these risk adjustmentsions may require us to modify our
operational and strategic initiatives to focus ad enanage different populations of potential meraltlean we have in the past. If we are not
able to successfully design and implement operatiand strategic initiatives to adapt to these gkarin certain of our markets, our financial
condition and results of operations may be adveisi#bcted.

Some of the provisions of Health Care Reform becaffextive immediately upon enactment, while mdshe other provisions became
effective in January 2014, with the remaining pstuis to be phased in over the next several yéaese
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changes could impact us through potential disragtiiothe employer-based market, potential costisgifn the health care delivery system to
insurance companies and limitations on the akifitincrease premiums to meet costs. We have dedicand will continue to dedicate,
material resources and incurred, and will contitiuigcur, material expenses to implement and comyitly Health Care Reform at both the
state and federal levels, including implementind eomplying with future regulations that providéadance on and clarification of significant
portions of the legislation. The Health Care Reféaum and regulations are likely to have significaffects on our future operations, which, in
turn, could impact the value of our business madel results of operations, including potential impants of our goodwill and other
intangible assets. Difficulties and delays witharehto implementation of provisions of Health CReform at the end of 2013, including with
regard to the functionality of the federal andeta¢alth insurance exchanges and the lack ofdoiberation and coordination between federal
and state authorities as to implementation of He@hire Reform, have increased uncertainties aneé madplanning relating to Health Care
Reform more difficult and unpredictable, which ieases the risk that we will experience unanticghatdverse consequences arising out of
Heath Care Reform.

Finally, federal and state regulatory agencies fagher restrict our ability to obtain new prodagiprovals, implement changes in
premium rates or impose additional restrictionglarmew or existing laws that could adversely dfter business, cash flows, financial
condition and results of operations.

Changes in the regulation of our business by statnd federal regulators may adversely affect our busess, cash flows, financial
condition and results of operations.

Our insurance, managed health care and HMO subsisliare subject to extensive regulation and sigiervby the insurance, managed
health care or HMO regulatory authorities of eaelesin which they are licensed or authorized tddsiness, as well as to regulation by
federal and local agencies. We cannot assuredhatefregulatory action by state insurance or HM@arities or federal regulatory authorities
will not have a material adverse effect on the ipabflity or marketability of our health benefits managed care products or on our business,
financial condition and results of operations. didition, because of our participation in governrgminsored programs such as Medicare anc
Medicaid, a number of our subsidiaries are alsgestilo regulation by CMS and state Medicaid agesicand to changes in government
regulations or policy with respect to, among otiéngs, reimbursement levels, eligibility requiremtseand additional governmental
participation which could also adversely affect business, financial condition and results of opena. In addition, we cannot ensure that
application of the federal and/or state tax reguiategime that currently applies to us will natfature tax regulation by either federal and/or
state governmental authorities concerning us coatdhave a material adverse effect on our busjmggEsations or financial condition.

State legislatures will continue to focus on heakile delivery and financing issues. Most statessary focused on how to manage and
reduce their budgets and are exploring ways taatii costs. As such, some states have acted toeredlimit increases to premium payme
Others have enacted, or are contemplating enadligiificant reform of their health insurance maski® include provisions affecting both
public programs and privatefjranced health insurance arrangements. We cassateyou that, if enacted into law, these progosauld no
have a negative impact on our business, operatiofisancial condition. In addition, California hasacted legislation to establish minimum
benefit expense ratio thresholds and continuesrsider legislative proposals to require prior tatary approval of premium rate increases.
California also has a November 2014 ballot initi@tiequiring prior regulatory approval of rate eases for the individual and small group
products, which, if passed, could prevent us fregusing necessary rate and benefit changes. Itethabese state proposals could have a
material adverse impact on our business, cash flfimancial condition or results of operations.

The U.S. Supreme Court has determined that sigmifiportions of the ACA, including the provisiorgyarding health care exchanges, are
constitutional. As a result, some states have deeel their own exchanges, while other states &mgeon HHS to operate the exchange in
their states or are implementing partnership exgbamnvith the Federal government. These multipléanxge options have led to increased
uncertainties and made our planning for these héadurance exchanges more difficult. The SupremariGlecision also permitted states to
out of the elements of Health Care Reform thatiregexpansion of Medicaid coverage in January 20itdout losing their current federal
Medicaid funding. A number of states, includingrida, Georgia, Indiana, Maine, Tennessee, Texagjnfa and Wisconsin, have indicated
their current decision to opt out of Medicaid exgian, at least for the present time. If statesnallertain programs to expire or choose to opt
out of Medicaid expansion, we could experience ceduMedicaid enrollment and reduced growth oppdtiesm

-24 -




Additionally, from time to time, Congress has calesed, or may consider in the future, various foofnimanaged care reform legislation
which, if adopted, could fundamentally alter theatment of coverage decisions under ERISA. There haen legislative attempts to limit
ERISA'’s preemptive effect on state laws and litigaability to seek damages beyond the benefitsretf under their plans. If adopted, such
limitations could increase our liability exposuceuld permit greater state regulation of our openat and could expand the scope of damage
including punitive damages, litigants could be aleal While we cannot predict if any of these ititi@s will ultimately become effective or, if
enacted, what their terms will be, their enactnoentid increase our costs, expose us to expandatityiaor require us to revise the ways in
which we conduct business.

Our inability to contain health care costs, implemat increases in premium rates on a timely basis, nirgtain adequate reserves for
policy benefits or maintain our current provider agreements may adversely affect our business and pitzhility.

Our profitability depends in large part on accusapgedicting health care costs and on our abibitynanage future health care costs
through underwriting criteria, medical managemprduct design and negotiation of favorable provimmtracts. Last minute changes in the
implementation of Health Care Reform at the end@if3, in particular those relating to difficultiegth the functionality of federal and state
health insurance exchanges, may increase thehidai that our assumptions underlying the pricing éesign of our exchange products prove
to be inaccurate in a way that materially adverséigcts the expected profitability of those pradu6&Government-imposed limitations on
Medicare and Medicaid reimbursement have also chilgeprivate sector to bear a greater share oéasing health care costs. Changes in
health care practices, demographic characterigtitation, new technologies, the cost of presdoipidrugs, clusters of high cost cases, cha
in the regulatory environment and numerous othetofa affecting the cost of health care may ad¥eisgect our ability to predict and mana
health care costs, as well as our business, finhoondition and results of operations. Relativatyall differences between predicted and actu:
health care costs as a percentage of premium regeraun result in significant changes in our resfltgperations, particularly with respect to
our products sold through the federal and statéthaesurance exchanges, as neither we nor our etitafs have any prior experience with
pricing such products or the utilization ratesrfuedical or other covered services by members whahage our products through such
exchanges. The exchanges may increase the risktharoducts will be selected by individuals wtavé a higher risk profile or utilization
rate than the pool of participants we anticipatégmvwe established the pricing for these exchangugts. Therefore, health care benefit c
in excess of our cost projections reflected in@xashange product pricing cannot be recovered irctineent premium period through higher
premiums; however, in certain circumstances, Fédisiaadjustment mechanisms, including risk adjustt payments, risk corridors and
reinsurance, could help offset health care benefits in excess of our projections. If it is detieed that our assumptions regarding cost tre
utilization, enrollment, adverse selection, acaityl other assumptions utilized in setting our ptemiates are significantly different than ac
results, even with these risk adjustment mechanienorsincome statement and financial position cddddversely affected.

In addition to the challenge of managing healtle carsts, we face pressure to contain premium r@i@scustomers may renegotiate their
contracts to seek to contain their costs or mayariova competitor to obtain more favorable premiurusther, federal and state regulatory
agencies may restrict our ability to implement aesin premium rates. For example, ACA includearmmmual rate review requirement to
prohibit unreasonable rate increases, and beginni@§14, our plans may be excluded from partiéifgpin the health insurance exchanges if
they are deemed to have a history of “unreasonahte”increases. Fiscal concerns regarding théncad viability of programs such as
Medicare and Medicaid may cause decreasing reiramest rates, delays in premium payments or a laskficient increase in
reimbursement rates for government-sponsored pmegia which we participate. A limitation on our kilyito increase or maintain our
premium or reimbursement levels or a significasslof membership resulting from our need to in@easmaintain premium or reimbursem
levels could adversely affect our business, cashid] financial condition and results of operations.

The reserves that we establish for health insurpotiey benefits and other contractual rights aaddiits are based upon assumptions
concerning a number of factors, including trendsealth care costs, expenses, general economidiomsdand other factors. To the extent the
actual claims experience is less favorable thamagtd based on our underlying assumptions, owriad losses would increase and future
earnings could be adversely affected.

Our profitability is dependent in part upon ourlidpito contract on favorable terms with hospitadhysicians and other
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health care providers. The failure to maintainasécure cost-effective health care provider cotdgraay result in a loss of membership or
higher medical costs, which could adversely afestbusiness. In addition, accountable care orgé#ioizs, or ACO, practice management
companies, which aggregate physician practiceadarinistrative efficiency and marketing leveraged ather organizational structures that
physicians, hospitals and other care providers shooay change the way that these providers intefifttius and may change the competitive
landscape. Such organizations or groups of physiaiaay compete directly with us, which may impagt relationship with these providers or
affect the way that we price our products and esgnour costs and may require us to incur costbaoge our operations, and our results of
operations, financial position and cash flow cduddadversely affected. Further, our inability tattact with providers, or if providers attempt
to use their market position to negotiate more falite contracts or place us at a competitive diaathge, or the inability of providers to
provide adequate care, could adversely affect asinless. In addition, we do not have contracts alitproviders that render services to our
members and, as a result, do not have a pre-ettatilagreement about the amount of compensatise thg-of-network providers will accept
for the services they render, which can resulignificant litigation or arbitration proceedings.

A significant reduction in the enrollment in our health benefits programs could have an adverse effeoh our business and
profitability.

A significant reduction in the number of enrollée®ur health benefits programs could adverselgafbur business, financial condition
and results of operations. Factors that could dmuter to a reduction in enrollment include: redoit in workforce by existing customers;
general economic downturn that results in busifeises; employers no longer offering certain tieahre coverage as an employee benefit ¢
electing to offer this coverage on a voluntary, Eappe-funded basis; state and federal regulatoaygés; failure to obtain new customers or
retain existing customers; premium increases andfiiechanges; our exit from a specific market;atag publicity and news coverage;
implementation of federal and state exchanges addmwriting changes in 2014; and failure to at@imaintain nationally recognized
accreditations.

There are various risks associated with participatig in Medicaid and Medicare programs, including degndence upon government
funding, compliance with government contracts andricreased regulatory oversight.

We contract with various state and federal agenuiekiding CMS, to provide managed health cargises, including Medicare
Advantage plans, Medicare Supplement plans, Megliapproved prescription drug plans, Medicaid progrand CHIP. We also provide
various administrative services for several othrtities offering medical and/or prescription drugns to their Medicare eligible members
through our affiliated companies and we offer ergptagroup waiver plans which provide medical angi@scription drug coverage to retire
We are also participating in Medicare and Mediahidl eligible programs in several states. Thesgraros in our Government Business
segment have been the subject of recent regulegéoym initiatives, including Health Care Reformhigh are still in the process of being
implemented. It is difficult to predict the futuirapact of Health Care Reform on our Government Bess segment due to Health Care
Reform’s complexity, gradual and delayed implemtaota and possible amendment. Health Care Refotinera@egulatory reform initiatives or
additional changes in existing laws or regulatiargheir interpretations, could have a materialemsle effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Revenues from the Medicare and Medicaid programsi@pendent, in whole or in part, upon annual fugdiiom the federal government
and/or applicable state governments. The base premdte paid by each state or federal agency ditfepending upon a combination of
various factors such as defined upper paymentdjrmimember’s health status, age, gender, coumggamn, benefit mix, member eligibility
category and risk scores. Future levels of Medieaict Medicaid rates may be affected by continueggonent efforts to contain costs and
may be further affected by state and federal bualgetonstraints. If the federal government or amayesin which we operate were to decrease
rates paid to us, or pay us less than the amowessary to keep pace with our cost trends, it cbale a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of openst Further, certain of our contracts with thetest are subject to cancellation in the event of
the unavailability of state funds. In addition, treious statesiew Medicare and Medicaid dual eligible progranessill subject to uncertair
surrounding payment rates and other requiremetitiefveould affect where we seek to participatehise new programs. An unexpected
reduction, inadequate government funding or sigaiftly delayed payments for these programs mayraelyeaffect our revenues and financial
results.

A portion of our premium revenue comes from CM$tiyh our Medicare Advantage and Medicare Part Draots. As a consequence,
our Medicare Advantage and Medicare Part D plaesiapendent on federal government funding levdis. T
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premium rates paid to Medicare plans are estaldishsed on benchmarks which are now tied to a ptxge of Medicare fee for service,
although the rates differ depending on a combinaticfactors, including upper payment limits esstibd by CMS, a member’s health profile
and status, age, gender, county or region, beméfitmember eligibility categories and risk sco®sginning in 2014, Medicare Advantage
Medicare Part D plans will be subject to MLR rul€sntinuing government efforts to contain healtrea@lated expenditures, including
prescription drug cost, and other federal budgetanstraints that result in changes in the Medipaogram, including changes with respect to
funding, could lead to reductions in the amounte@hbursement, or other changes that could havatarial adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Risks associated with the Medicare Advantage andiddee Part D plans include potential uncollectgbdf receivables resulting from
processing and/or verifying enrollment, inadequaicynderwriting assumptions, inability to receiv@arocess correct information (including
inability due to systems issues by the federal guwent, the applicable state government or us)ligatability of premiums from members,
increased medical or pharmaceutical costs, antintiited enrollment periods in this business. While believe we have adequately reviewed
our assumptions and estimates regarding these earapt wide-ranging programs under Medicare Paged_D, including those related to
collectability of receivables and establishmeniiadjilities, the actual results may be materialiffedtent than our assumptions and estimates
could have a material adverse effect on our busjrfegmncial condition and results of operations.

Our contracts with the various state governmergahaies and CMS contain certain provisions reggrdata submission, provider
network maintenance, quality measures, claims payneentinuity of care, call center performance atiter requirements specific to state anc
federal program regulations. If we fail to complitwthese requirements, we may be subject to fipesalties, liquidated damages and
retrospective adjustments in payments made to ealtthplans, that could impact our profitabilitydditionally, we could be required to file a
corrective plan of action with additional penalties noncompliance, including a negative impacfumre membership enrollment levels.
Further, certain of our CMS and state Medicaid @it are subject to a competitive procurementge®icand if our existing contracts are not
renewed or if we are not awarded new contractsrasut of this competitive procurement processs, ¢tbuld have a material adverse effect on
our business, cash flows, financial condition agglitts of operations.

In addition to the contractual requirements affegour participation in Medicaid and Medicare peogs, we are also subject to various
state and federal health care laws and regulatindsiding those directed at preventing fraud alpdsa in government funded programs.
Failure to comply with these laws and regulatiomsl@d result in investigations or litigation, withd imposition of fines, restrictions or
exclusions from program participation or the impiosi of corporate integrity agreements or otheeagrents with a federal or state
governmental agency that could adversely impacbasimess, cash flows, financial condition and ltesaf operations.

Further, CMS has been conducting audits of our baei Advantage health plans to validate the didgndata and patient claims that are
submitted to CMS. These audits may result in reeosve adjustments in payments made to our he#dtis. In addition, if we fail to report
and correct errors discovered through our own agljirocedures or during a CMS audit or otherwaktd comply with the applicable laws
and regulations, we could be subject to fines] pnalties or other sanctions which could haveatenil adverse effect on our ability to
participate in these programs, and on our finaraadition, cash flows and results of operatioriee ACA also established recovery audit
programs for Medicare Parts C and D. The Medicaré [P Recovery Audit Contractor, or RAC, has beediting Medicare Part D claims and
recouping overpayments since 2012, and CMS expeetward a Medicare Part C RAC contract in fisesry2014, which could increase the
amount of audits and subsequent recoupments Hedleeal government.

Regional concentrations of our business may subjeas to economic downturns in those regions.

Most of our revenues are generated in the stat€slifornia, Colorado, Connecticut, Georgia, In@giakentucky, Maine, Maryland,
Missouri, Nevada, New Hampshire, New York, Ohionfiessee, Texas, Virginia and Wisconsin. Due todbicentration of business in these
states, we are exposed to potential losses regtittm the risk of state specific or regional eamimdownturns impacting these states. If such
negative economic conditions do not improve, we egyerience a reduction in existing and new businghkich could have a material adve
effect on our business, cash flows, financial cbodiand results of operations.
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The health benefits industry is subject to negativeublicity, which can adversely affect our businesand profitability.

The health benefits industry is subject to negagtiwilicity, which can arise from, among other tlsinthe ongoing debate over Health Care
Reform. Negative publicity may result in increasegulation and legislative review of industry pregs, which may further increase our costs
of doing business and adversely affect our prafitglby: adversely affecting our ability to marketir products and services; requiring us to
change our products and services; or increasingetipdatory burdens under which we operate.

In addition, as long as we use the Blue Cross dud Bhield names and marks in marketing our hdsgtiefits products and services, any
negative publicity concerning the BCBSA or otherESA licensees may adversely affect us and theafadar health benefits products and
services. Any such negative publicity could advigraéfect our business, cash flows, financial ctindi and results of operations.

We face competition in many of our markets and cusimers and brokers have flexibility in moving betwer competitors.

As a health benefits company, we operate in a highinpetitive environment and in an industry tisaturrently subject to significant
changes from legislative reform, business consttida, new strategic alliances, aggressive marggiiactices by other health benefits
organizations and market pressures brought aboantgformed and organized customer base, partlgidanong large employers. For
example, beginning in 2014, we have started to &enfor sales on insurance exchanges, which hagedgand will continue to require, us
develop or acquire the tools (including social mddbls) necessary to interact with the exchangdsadth consumers using the exchanges,
increase our focus on individual customers and @awpour consumer-focused marketing, customer mted and product offerings. These
factors have produced and will likely continue toguce significant pressures on the profitabilityhealth benefits companies.

We are currently dependent on the non-exclusivdees of independent agents and brokers in the etiackof our health care products,
particularly with respect to individuals, seniorslamall employer group customers. We face intensgpetition for the services and allegia
of these independent agents and brokers, who nsaynadrket the products of our competitors. Outtiaahip with our brokers and
independent agents could be adversely impactedhdayges in our business practices to address HeatthReform legislation, including
potential reductions in commissions and consulte®s paid to agents and brokers. We cannot ensatreve will be able to compete
successfully against current and future competitothat competitive pressures faced by us willmaterially and adversely affect our
business, cash flows, financial condition and itssefl operations.

We face intense competition to attract and retainmployees. Further, managing key executive successiand retention is critical to
our success.

We are dependent on retaining existing employdgactng additional qualified employees to meatent and future needs and achieving
productivity gains from our investment in technolofVe face intense competition for qualified em@ey, and there can be no assurance tha
we will be able to attract and retain such emplsyaethat such competition among potential employél not result in increasing salaries. An
inability to retain existing employees or attradtidional employees could have a material adveffeeteon our business, cash flows, financial
condition and results of operations.

We would be adversely affected if we fail to addglyaplan for succession of our Chief Executivei€df and other senior management
and retention of key executives. While we have sssion plans in place for members of our senioragament, and continue to review and
update those plans, and we have employment arragsmwith certain key executives, these plans arthgements do not guarantee that the
services of our senior executives will continudéoavailable to us or that we will be able to attend retain suitable successors.

A change in our health care product mix may impacbur profitability.

Our health care products that involve greater g@terisk generally tend to be more profitable tlaiministrative services products and
those health care products where the employer grasgpume the underwriting risks. Individuals andlsamployer groups are more likely to
purchase our higher-risk health care products secauch purchasers are generally unable or ungvillirbear greater liability for health care
expenditures. Typically, government-sponsored @ogralso
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involve our higher-risk health care products. Ih@ yet clear whether our products sold on therfaldand state health insurance exchanges w
be more or less profitable products. A shift ofadliees from more profitable products to less padifie products could have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition and results oémgtions.

As a holding company, we are dependent on dividendiom our subsidiaries. These dividends are necesyao pay our outstanding
indebtedness. Our regulated subsidiaries are subjeto state regulations, including restrictions on he payment of dividends,
maintenance of minimum levels of capital and restdtions on investment portfolios.

We are a holding company whose assets includd #ikmutstanding shares of common stock (or atlarership interest) of our
subsidiaries including our intermediate holding pamies and regulated insurance and HMO subsididdigssubsidiaries are separate legal
entities. As a holding company, we depend on divildefrom our subsidiaries. Furthermore, our subsigs are not obligated to make funds
available to us, and creditors of our subsidianigshave a superior claim to certain of our suligks’ assets. Among other restrictions, state
insurance and HMO laws may restrict the abilityof regulated subsidiaries to pay dividends. Inesstates we have made special
undertakings that may limit the ability of our réaed subsidiaries to pay dividends. In additiaur, subsidiaries’ ability to make any payments
to us will also depend on their earnings, the teofitbeir indebtedness, business and tax considasa&nd other legal restrictions. Our ability
to repurchase shares or pay dividends in the futuoair shareholders and meet our obligationsuifinly paying operating expenses and debt
service on our outstanding and future indebtedveisjepend upon the receipt of dividends from eubsidiaries. An inability of our
subsidiaries to pay dividends in the future in amoant sufficient for us to meet our financial ollfigns may materially adversely affect our
business, cash flows, financial condition and rtissofl operations.

Most of our regulated subsidiaries are subjectB&€Rtandards, imposed by their states of domitilese laws are based on the RBC
Model Act adopted by the NAIC and require our reged subsidiaries to report their results of bisised capital calculations to the departm
of insurance and the NAIC. Failure to maintain thieimum RBC standards could subject our regulatgssigliaries to corrective action,
including state supervision or liquidation. Ourutsged subsidiaries are currently in compliancénlie risk-based capital or other similar
requirements imposed by their respective statemwficile. As discussed in more detail below, weaparty to license agreements with the
BCBSA which contain certain requirements and restms regarding our operations, including minimeapital and liquidity requirements,
which could restrict the ability of our regulataghsidiaries to pay dividends.

Our regulated subsidiaries are subject to state &wd regulations that require diversification of mvestment portfolios and limit the
amount of investments in certain riskier investnaategories, such as below-investment-grade fixatlirity securities, mortgage loans, real
estate and equity investments, which could genéiigteer returns on our investments. Failure to dgmyith these laws and regulations might
cause investments exceeding regulatory limitattortze treated as non-admitted assets for purpdsesasuring statutory surplus and risk-
based capital, and, in some instances, requirsaleeof those investments.

We have substantial indebtedness outstanding and mancur additional indebtedness in the future. Suchndebtedness could also
adversely affect our ability to pursue desirable bainess opportunities.

Our debt service obligations require us to usertigyoof our cash flow to pay interest and printipa debt instead of for other corporate
purposes, including funding future expansion. If cash flow and capital resources are insufficiergervice our debt obligations, we may be
forced to seek extraordinary dividends from ourssdibries, sell assets, seek additional equityetst dapital or restructure our debt. However,
these measures might be unsuccessful or inadeiquag¢emitting us to meet scheduled debt servicegatibns.

We may also incur future debt obligations that miglbject us to restrictive covenants that couldcafour financial and operational
flexibility. Our breach or failure to comply witmg of these covenants could result in a defauleudr credit agreement. If we default under
our credit agreement, the lenders could cease ke fiuather extensions of credit or cause all of outstanding debt obligations under our
credit agreement to become immediately due andigpeytgether with accrued and unpaid intereshdfindebtedness under our notes or our
credit agreement is accelerated, we may be unalvkphy or finance the amounts due. Indebtednedd atso limit our ability to pursue
desirable business opportunities, and may affecability to maintain an investment grade ratingdar indebtedness.
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A downgrade in our credit ratings could have an aderse effect on our business, financial condition ahresults of operations.

Claims-paying ability and financial strength rasngy nationally recognized statistical rating oligations are an important factor in
establishing the competitive position of insuranompanies and health benefits companies. Eacteafrtidit rating agencies reviews its rati
periodically and there can be no assurance thatuwwent credit ratings will be maintained in thiuire. We believe our strong credit ratings
an important factor in marketing our products tetomers, since credit ratings information is brgatisseminated and generally used
throughout the industry. If our credit ratings dmvngraded or placed under review, with possibbgatiee implications, such actions could
adversely affect our business, financial conditiod results of operations. These credit ratingegeéach credit rating agency’s opinion of our
financial strength, operating performance and @gtiiti meet our obligations to policyholders anddia's, and are not evaluations directed
toward the protection of investors in our commarckt

We face risks related to litigation.

We are, or may in the future, be a party to a #aélegal actions that affect any business, sackbmployment and employment
discrimination-related suits and administrativergesa before government agencies, employee belhafits; breach of contract actions, tort
claims and intellectual property-related litigatidm addition, because of the nature of our businee are subject to a variety of legal actions
relating to our business operations, includingdbsign, management and offering of our productssendices. These could include claims
relating to the denial of health care benefits;rdsrission of health insurance policies; develagroe application of medical policy; medical
malpractice actions; product liability claims; gl&ions of anti-competitive and unfair businessévis; provider disputes over compensation;
provider tiering programs; termination of providentracts; the recovery of overpayments from prergdself-funded business; disputes over
co-payment calculations; reimbursement of out-dfwoek claims; the failure to disclose certain besis or corporate governance practices; th
failure to comply with various state or federal &wncluding but not limited to, ERISA and the Maritlealth Parity Act; and customer audits
and contract performance, including governmentreats. These actions or proceedings could haveterialeadverse effect on our business,
cash flows, financial condition and results of Gtiens.

In addition, we are also involved in, or may in theure be party to, pending or threatened litigatf the character incidental to the
business transacted, arising out of our operatioroair 2001 demutualization, including, but notitied to, breaches of security and violations
of privacy requirements, shareholder actions, canpk with federal and state laws and regulatior@duding qui tamor “whistleblower”
actions), or sales and acquisitions of businessassets, and are from time to time involved aartypn various governmental investigations,
audits, reviews and administrative proceedingduifing challenges to the award of government catdrby disappointed bidders. These
investigations, audits and reviews include routind special investigations by various state insteaepartments, state attorneys general anc
the U.S. Attorney General. Such investigations @daasult in the imposition of civil or criminal #&s, penalties and other sanctions. Liabilities
that may result from these actions could have @nahiadverse effect on our cash flows, resultspefrations or financial position.

Recent court decisions and legislative activity nmyease our exposure for any of these typesaiingl. In some cases, substantial non-
economic (including injunctive relief), treble ouptive damages may be sought. We currently haserémce coverage for some of these
potential liabilities. Other potential liabilitiemay not be covered by insurance, insurers may thsmverage or the amount of insurance may
not be enough to cover the damages awarded. Iti@udiertain types of damages, such as punitiveadges, may not be covered by insurance
and insurance coverage for all or certain formisadiflity may become unavailable or prohibitivelypensive in the future. Any adverse
judgment against us resulting in such damage awandsl have an adverse effect on our cash flovesilteof operations and financ
condition.

Our future obligations for state guaranty associatbn assessments could increase in the event that HeaCare Reform and its
implementation result in increased insolvencies dfealth plans.

Under insolvency or guaranty association laws irstnstates, insurance companies can be assessaddants paid by guaranty funds for
policyholder losses incurred when an insurance @mypecomes insolvent. Most state insolvency orajug association laws provide for
assessments based upon the amount of premiumseaea®i insurance underwritten within such stateil®h the past, health insurance
company insolvencies have been infrequent, thegdsto the U.S. health care system and marketsetatéd uncertainties from
implementation of Health Care Reform may resulhgreased
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insolvencies of health insurance companies covieyetiese state insolvency or guaranty associaées.lIn that event, we may experience
increased guaranty association assessments fah reslrer insolvencies, the amount and timing bfolv cannot be predicted with certainty.

There are various risks associated with providing balth care services.

The direct provision of health care services by©areMore subsidiary involves risks of additiontdgation arising from medical
malpractice actions based on our treatment decisiobrought against us or our physician assocfatesleged malpractice or professional
liability claims arising out of the delivery of H#acare and related services. In addition, lis§pihay arise from maintaining health care
premises that serve the public. If we fail to maintadequate insurance coverage for these li@silitir if such insurance is not available, the
resulting costs could adversely affect our casiwgldinancial condition or results of operations.

Additionally, many states in which we operate oaréMore subsidiary limit the practice of medicinditensed individuals or professio
organizations comprised of licensed individualssiBass corporations generally may not exerciserabower the medical decisions of
physicians (“corporate practice of medicine”) angl ave not licensed to practice medicine. Rulesragdlations relating to the practice of
medicine, feesplitting between physicians and referral souraad, similar issues vary from state to state. Furttertain federal and state la\
including those covering our Medicare and Mediqaahs, prohibit the offer, payment, solicitationreceipt of any form of remuneration to
induce, or in return for, the referral of patieate opportunities, including, but not limited togtiicare patients (“anti-kickback rules@nd alsc
generally prohibit physicians from making referr@sany entity providing certain designated heaéthvices if the referring physician or relatec
person has an ownership or financial interest énethtity (“self-referral rules”).

We believe that our health care service operationgply with applicable rules and regulations regaydhe corporate practice of
medicine, fee-splitting, anti-kickback, self-ref@rand similar issues. However, any enforcememnv@sty governmental officials alleging non-
compliance with these rules and regulations codieesely affect our business, cash flows, finanméaldition or results of operations.

We are a party to license agreements with the BCBSthat entitle us to the exclusive and in certain aas non-exclusive use of the
Blue Cross and Blue Shield names and marks in oureggraphic territories. The termination of these liense agreements or changes in
the terms and conditions of these license agreemerttould adversely affect our business, financial ndition and results of operations.

We use the Blue Cross and Blue Shield names ankkmaaridentifiers for our products and serviceseutidenses from the BCBSA. Our
license agreements with the BCBSA contain ceri@dguirements and restrictions regarding our oparatémd our use of the Blue Cross and
Blue Shield names and marks, including: minimumitedpnd liquidity requirements imposed by the B@B8nrollment and customer service
performance requirements; participation in progréimas provide portability of membership betweempladisclosures to the BCBSA relating
enrollment and financial conditions; disclosuresaathe structure of the Blue Cross and Blue Shégktem in contracts with third parties an
public statements; plan governance requirememegj@rement that at least 80% (or, in the caselwé Bross of California, substantially all)

a licensee’s annual combined local net revenudefised by the BCBSA, attributable to health cdemp and related services within its service
areas must be sold, marketed, administered or wnitken under the Blue Cross and Blue Shield naamesmarks; a requirement that at least
66 2/3% of a licensee’s annual combined nationatexeenue, as defined by the BCBSA, attributabledalth care plans and related services
must be sold, marketed, administered or underwriiteder the Blue Cross and Blue Shield names amkisia requirement that neither a plan
nor any of its licensed affiliates may permit atitgrother than a plan or a licensed affiliate tian control of the plan or the licensed affiliate
or to acquire a substantial portion of its asselsed to licensable services; a requirement tieaimide our Board of Directors into three
classes serving staggered three-year terms; areggemt that we guarantee certain contractual anahéial obligations of our licensed
affiliates; and a requirement that we indemnify B@BSA against any claims asserted against it tiegurom the contractual and financial
obligations of any subsidiary that serves as afistermediary providing administrative services Medicare Parts A and B. Failure to con
with the foregoing requirements could result ir@rtination of the license agreements.

The standards under the license agreements mapdifed in certain instances by the BCBSA. For eglamfrom time to time there have
been proposals considered by the BCBSA to modiytéinms of the license agreements to restrict vanmtential business activities of
licensees. These proposals have included, amoeg ttings, a limitation on the ability of a
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licensee to make its provider networks availablisoirance carriers or other entities not holdiigjuee Cross or Blue Shield license. To the
extent that such amendments to the license agresmenadopted in the future, they could have &n@iadverse effect on our future
expansion plans or results of operations. FUrtB€BS licensees have certain requirements to peréaiministrative services for members of
other BCBS licensees. If we or another BCBS licerisanot in compliance with all legal requiremenitsire unable to perform administrative
services as required, this could have an advefset@n our members and our ability to maintain laenses, which could have a material
adverse effect on our business, cash flows, firduwoindition and results of operations.

Upon the occurrence of an event causing terminatidghe license agreements, we would no longer tia@eight to use the Blue Cross ¢
Blue Shield names and marks in one or more of ervice areas. Furthermore, the BCBSA would betivdssue a license to use the Blue
Cross and Blue Shield names and marks in thes&seareas to another entity. Events that coulde#us termination of a license agreement
with the BCBSA include failure to comply with miniim capital requirements imposed by the BCBSA, aghaf control or violation of the
BCBSA ownership limitations on our capital stoakpiending financial insolvency and the appointmér wustee or receiver or the
commencement of any action against a licenseersgékidissolution. We believe that the Blue Crasd Blue Shield names and marks are
valuable identifiers of our products and servicethe marketplace. Accordingly, termination of lisense agreements could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condiiod results of operations.

Upon termination of a license agreement, the BCB&®AId impose a “Re-establishment Fee” upon us, whiould allow the BCBSA to
“re-establish” a Blue Cross and/or Blue Shieldrse in the vacated service area. The fee is $348a83 per licensed enrollee. As of Decembe
31, 2013 we reported 26.6 million Blue Cross an@&loe Shield enrollees. If the Re-establishmentWwas applied to our total Blue Cross
and/or Blue Shield enrollees, we would be assesgprbximately $2.6 billion by the BCBSA.

Large-scale medical emergencies may have a materadverse effect on our business, cash flows, finaakcondition and results of
operations.

Large-scale medical emergencies can take many famti€an cause widespread illness and death. Borge, federal and state law
enforcement officials have issued warnings abotgmi@l terrorist activity involving biological ansther weapons. In addition, natural disas
such as hurricanes and the potential for a wideesppandemic of influenza coupled with the lack\ddilability of appropriate preventative
medicines can have a significant impact on thethexdlithe population of wide-spread areas. If thété States were to experience widesprea
bioterrorism or other attacks, large-scale natdigdsters in our concentrated coverage areasange-$cale pandemic or epidemic, our covere
medical expenses could rise and we could experi@moaterial adverse effect on our business, casgtsflfinancial condition and results of
operations or, in the event of extreme circumstanaer viability could be threatened.

We have built a significant portion of our current business through mergers and acquisitions, joint veures and strategic alliances
and we expect to pursue such opportunities in thaifure.

The following are some of the risks associated wittrgers and acquisitions, joint ventures andesjiatalliances (collectively, “business
combinations”) that could have a material adveffeseeon our business, financial condition and fssof operations:

» some of the acquired businesses may not achigi@pated revenues, earnings or cash flow, basiogportunities, synergies, growth
prospects and other anticipated benefits;

» the goodwill or other intangible assets estalglisas a result of our business combinations maydoerectly valued or become non-
recoverable;

* we may assume liabilities that were not disaio®eus or which were undesstimatec

* we may experience difficulties in integratingjazed businesses, be unable to integrate acqbirsihesses successfully or as quickly
as expected, and be unable to realize anticipateaoenic, operational and other benefits in a tirmgnner, which could result in
substantial costs and delays or other operatiteethnical or financial problems;

» business combinations could disrupt our ongbingjness, distract management, result in the lbkeyoemployees, divert resources,
result in tax costs or inefficiencies and maksffiallt to maintain our current business standards
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controls, information technology systems, poli@esl procedures;

* we may finance future business combinationssbying common stock for some or all of the purchmie, which could dilute the
ownership interests of our shareholders;

e we may also incur additional debt related to futusiness combinations; ¢

* we would be competing with other firms, somevbich may have greater financial and other res@jtteacquire attractive
companies.

The value of our intangible assets may become imped.

Due largely to our past mergers, acquisitions anestitures, goodwill and other intangible assefgresent a substantial portion of our
assets. If we make additional acquisitions itksllf that we will record additional intangible atssen our consolidated balance sheets.

In accordance with applicable accounting standavdgperiodically evaluate our goodwill and othaangible assets to determine whether
all or a portion of their carrying values may nader be recoverable, in which case a charge tarieamay be necessary. This impairment
testing requires us to make assumptions and judgimmegarding the estimated fair value of our répgrunits, including goodwill and other
intangible assets (with indefinite lives). In addlit, certain other intangible assets with indeéifives, such as trademarks, are also tested
separately. Estimated fair values developed basemipassumptions and judgments might be signifigalifferent if other reasonable
assumptions and estimates were to be used. If&stihfair values are less than the carrying vabig®odwill and other intangible assets with
indefinite lives in future impairment tests, osignificant impairment indicators are noted relatio other intangible assets subject to
amortization, we may be required to record impairhesses against future income.

Any future evaluations requiring an impairment af goodwill and other intangible assets could nmaligraffect our results of operations
and shareholders’ equity in the period in whichithpairment occurs. A material decrease in shadstel equity could, in turn, negatively
impact our debt ratings or potentially impact oampliance with existing debt covenants.

In addition, the estimated value of our reportimisimay be impacted as a result of business dasisie make associated with the
implementation of the various Health Care Reforgutations. Such decisions, which could unfavoratffgct our ability to support the
carrying value of certain goodwill and other intdolg assets, could result in impairment chargdstire periods.

Adverse securities and credit market conditions magignificantly affect our ability to meet liquidity needs.

The securities and credit markets have in the g@gstrienced higher than normal volatility, althowginrent market conditions are more
stable. In some cases, the markets have exertedveing pressure on availability of liquidity and ditecapacity for certain issuers. We need
liquidity to pay our operating expenses, make paysen our indebtedness and pay capital expenditilifee principal sources of our cash
receipts are premiums, administrative fees, inveatimcome, other revenue, proceeds from the sateaturity of our investment securities,
proceeds from borrowings and proceeds from thecéseeof stock options.

Our access to additional financing will depend oragety of factors such as market conditions,gbeeral availability of credit, the
volume of trading activities, the overall availatyilof credit to our industry, our credit ratingsdacredit capacity, as well as the possibility that
customers or lenders could develop a negative pgoreof our long- or short-term financial prospeimilarly, our access to funds may be
impaired if regulatory authorities or rating agersctake negative actions against us. If one on@awtion of these factors were to occur, our
internal sources of liquidity may prove to be irf@iént, and in such case, we may not be able ¢toessfully obtain additional financing on
favorable terms. One of our sources of liquiditpis $2,500.0 million commercial paper program undeich we had only $379.2 outstanding
at December 31, 2013 . Should commercial papeam®ibe unavailable, we intend to use a combinafieash on hand and/or our $2,000.0
million senior revolving credit facility to redeeour commercial paper when it matures. We belieedehders participating in our senior credit
facility will be willing and able to provide finaimg in accordance with their legal obligations.
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The value of our investments is influenced by varyig economic and market conditions, and a decrease value may result in a loss
charged to income.

The market values of our investments vary from timéme depending on economic and market conditi6or various reasons, we may
sell certain of our investments at prices thatl@se than the carrying value of the investmentadidition, in periods of declining interest rates,
bond calls and mortgage loan prepayments geneénaligase, resulting in the reinvestment of thesediat the then lower market rates. In
periods of rising interest rates, the market vabfesur fixed maturity securities will generallyaease, which could result in material
unrealized or realized losses on investments uréuperiods. In addition, defaults by issuers, prify from investments in corporate and
municipal bonds, who fail to pay or perform theligations, could reduce net investment income ciwould adversely affect our
profitability. We cannot assure you that our inmesit portfolios will produce positive returns irtdte periods.

In accordance with FASB guidance for debt and gqnitestments, we classify fixed maturity and egsiecurities in our investment
portfolio as “available-for-sale” or “trading” an@port those securities at fair value. Currentland-term available-for-sale investment
securities represented a significant percentageiofotal consolidated assets at December 31, 281s®, in accordance with applicable FASB
accounting guidance, we review our investment seéesito determine if declines in fair value belowst are other-thatemporary. This revie\
is subjective and requires a high degree of judgnWie conduct this review on a quarterly basisyaiafl both quantitative and qualitative
factors. Such factors considered include the len§thme and the extent to which market value heenbless than cost, financial condition and
near term prospects of the issuer, recommendatitingestment advisors and forecasts of economarket or industry trends.

Changes in the economic environment, includingguisriof increased volatility of the securities maskean increase the difficulty of
assessing investment impairment and the same ntffigetend to increase the risk of potential impaithof these assets. We believe we have
adequately reviewed our investment securitiesrfgrairment and we believe that we have appropriastfiynated the fair values of our
investment securities. However, over time, the eatin and market environment may provide additionsilght, which could change our
judgment regarding the fair value of certain samgiand/or impairment. Given the sometimes rapitignging market conditions and 1
significant judgments involved, there is continuiisk that further declines in fair value may ocand material other-than-temporary
impairments may be charged to income in futuregassi resulting in realized losses.

We may not be able to realize the value of our dafed tax assets.

In accordance with applicable accounting standavdsseparately recognize deferred tax assets dad-ek tax liabilities. Such deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities repredentax effect of temporary differences betweenrfiia reporting and tax reporting measured at
tax rates enacted at the time the deferred tax as$iability is recorded.

At each financial reporting date, we evaluate afeded tax assets to determine the likely reabmadf the benefit of the temporary
differences. Our evaluation includes a review eftiypes of temporary differences that created #ferced tax asset; the amount of taxes paid
on both capital gains and ordinary income in pperiods and available for a carry-back claim; re€asted future taxable income, and
therefore, the likely future deduction of the dedertax item; and any other significant issues thight impact the realization of the deferred
tax asset. If it is “more likely than not” that alt a portion of the deferred tax asset may nothéized, we establish a valuation allowance.
Significant judgment is required in determiningappropriate valuation allowance.

Any future increase in the valuation allowance wiondsult in additional income tax expense and aedee in shareholders’ equity, which
could materially affect our financial position areults of operations in the period in which theréase occurs. A material decrease in
shareholders’ equity could, in turn, negatively aopour debt ratings or potentially impact our ctiare with existing debt covenants.

An unauthorized disclosure of sensitive or confideial member information could have an adverse effacon our business,
reputation and profitability.

As part of our normal operations, we collect, psscend retain sensitive and confidential memberimétion. We are subject to various
federal, state and international laws and ruleandigg the use and disclosure of sensitive or denfial
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member and provider information, including HIPAAetHITECH Act, the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, and numes state laws governing
personal information. Despite the security measweeiave in place to help ensure compliance withiegble laws and rules, our facilities &
systems, and those of our third party service pleng, are vulnerable to cyber-attacks, securitadires, acts of vandalism, computer viruses,
misplaced or lost data, programming and/or humesr®por other similar events. Noncompliance witly privacy or security laws and
regulations, or any security breach, cyber-attaakyber security breach, and any incident involvimg misappropriation, loss or other
unauthorized disclosure of, or access to, sensitivanfidential member information, whether byousy one of our vendors, could require us
to expend significant resources to remediate anyagg, interrupt our operations and damage ouraépaot and could also result in regulatory
enforcement actions, material fines and penaliitggation or other actions which could have a mialeadverse effect on our business,
reputation and results of operations.

The failure to effectively maintain and upgrade ourinformation systems could adversely affect our busess.

Our business depends significantly on effectiverimiation systems, and we have many different infdionm systems for our various
businesses. As a result of our merger and acaunisitttivities, we have acquired additional systeng. information systems require an
ongoing commitment of significant resources to rr@mand enhance existing systems and develop ysterss in order to keep pace with
continuing changes in information processing tetdmg emerging cyber security risks and threate)\éng industry and regulatory standards
including the minimum MLR rebates, exchanges aheémoaspects of Health Care Reform, compliance dhl requirements (such as a new
set of standardized diagnostic codes, known as1QDprivate insurance exchanges and changingmestpreferences. In addition, we may
from time to time obtain significant portions ofraystems-related or other services or facilittesnfindependent third parties, which may
make our operations vulnerable to such third psirfelure to perform adequately.

Our failure to maintain effective and efficientanmation systems, or our failure to efficiently aeftectively consolidate our information
systems to eliminate redundant or obsolete apitsitcould have a material adverse effect on asimess, financial condition and results of
operations. If the information we rely upon to rur business were found to be inaccurate or utieliar if we fail to maintain our informatic
systems and data integrity effectively, we couldeha decrease in membership, have problems inndigieg medical cost estimates and
establishing appropriate pricing and reserves, kismutes with customers and providers, have régylgroblems, sanctions or penalties
imposed, have increases in operating expensedfer sther adverse consequences. In addition, &degulations require that we begin using
ICD-10 by October 2014, which will require signditt information technology investment. If we failadequately implement ICD-10 or
comply with the operating rules, we may incur l@saéth respect to the resources invested and hitnez material adverse effects on our
business and results of operations. Also, as weegbor migrate members to our more efficient affidotive systems, the risk of disruption in
our customer service is increased during the mniggrair conversion process and such disruption chale a material adverse effect on our
business, cash flow, financial condition and resoftoperations.

We continue to implement initiatives for more effee and efficient information technology systenysnbodernizing interactions with
customers, brokers, agents, providers, employetsther stakeholders through web-enabling techryodogl redesigning internal operations.
We cannot assure you that we will be able to fiufiplement all desired products or systems in altiraad effective manner. The failure to
implement and maintain the most advanced technodbgapabilities could result in competitive andtadisadvantages to us as compared to
our competitors.

We are dependent on the success of our relationshiyth a large vendor for a significant portion of ar information system
resources and certain other vendors for various ottr services.

We have an agreement with International Businesshivias Corporation, or IBM, pursuant to which weésourced a significant portion of
our data center operations and certain core apigitsadevelopment. We are dependent upon IBM fes¢rsupport functions. The IBM
agreement includes service level agreements, osStefated to issues such as performance and gobpdion, with significant financial
penalties if these SLAs are not met, as well asiteation assistance provisions obligating IBM toyide services during periods following
transitions or terminations. If our relationshiplwiBM is significantly disrupted for any reasongeway not be able to find an alternative
partner in a timely manner or on acceptable firgrterms. As a result, we may not be able to meetiemands of our customers and, in turn,
our business, cash flows, financial condition aslits of operations may be harmed. We may notleguately indemnified
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against all possible losses through the terms anditions of the IBM agreement. In addition, soriewr termination rights are contingent
upon payment of a fee, which may be significant.

We are a party to an agreement with Express Saxipgseby Express Scripts is the exclusive providd?BM services to certain of our
members, excluding Amerigroup and certain selffiedumembers that have exclusive agreements witreift PBM service providers,
provided however that Amerigroup will be transifiog to the Express Scripts agreement during 20hé.Bxpress Scripts PBM services
include, but are not limited to, pharmacy network@agement, home delivery, pharmacy customer seri@iens processing, rebate
management, drug utilization and specialty pharmigca management services. Accordingly, the agesgroontains certain financial and
operational requirements obligating both Expresg®cand us. The failure of either party to méet tespective requirements could potentially
serve as a basis for early termination of the emttif this relationship was terminated for angsen, we may not be able to find alternative
partners in a timely manner or on acceptable fiigberms. As a result, we may not be able to rtteefull demands of our customers, which
could have a material adverse effect on our busjmeputation and results of operations. In addjtaur failure to meet certain minimum script
volume requirements may result in financial peealthat could have a material adverse effect omesults of operations.

We have also entered into agreements with ceriders pursuant to which we have outsourced cdrgk-office functions. If any of
these vendor relationships were terminated forraagon, we may not be able to find an alternataréngr in a timely manner or on acceptable
financial terms. In addition, if for any reasonriés a business continuity interruption resultirggn loss of access to or availability of data, the
physical location, technological resources anddegaiate human assets, we may not be able to nesttlitlemands of our customers and, in
turn, our business, cash flow, financial conditiansl results of operations may be unfavorably ingzhc

Indiana law, and other applicable laws, and our arcles of incorporation and bylaws, may prevent or tscourage takeovers and
business combinations that our shareholders mightomsider in their best interest.

Indiana law and our articles of incorporation agthtvs may delay, defer, prevent or render moraatiff a takeover attempt that our
shareholders might consider in their best interégis instance, they may prevent our shareholders feceiving the benefit from any premi
to the market price of our common stock offeredaliyidder in a takeover context. Even in the abseheetakeover attempt, the existence of
these provisions may adversely affect the prev@itirarket price of our common stock if they are \@evas discouraging takeover attempts in
the future.

We are regulated as an insurance holding compashg@nject to the insurance holding company acteettates in which our insurance
company subsidiaries are domiciled, as well aslaimprovisions included in the health statutes megilations of certain states where these
subsidiaries are regulated as managed care comnspani#MOs. The insurance holding company acts agdlations and these similar health
provisions restrict the ability of any person tdaib control of an insurance company or HMO withprior regulatory approval. Under those
statutes and regulations, without such approvahfoexemption), no person may acquire any votiegriy of a domestic insurance company
or HMO, or an insurance holding company which calstan insurance company or HMO, or merge with subblding company, if as a result
of such transaction such person would “control”itierance holding company, insurance company oOHM ontrol” is generally defined as
the direct or indirect power to direct or causedfrection of the management and policies of agreend is presumed to exist if a person
directly or indirectly owns or controls 10% or markthe voting securities of another person. Furttiee Indiana business corporation law
contains business combination provisions thateimegal, prohibit for five years any business coratiam with a beneficial owner of 10% or
more of our common stock unless the holder’s adtiprisof the stock was approved in advance by casr# of Directors.

Our articles of incorporation restrict the benefi@wnership of our capital stock in excess of gmeownership limits. The ownership
limits restrict beneficial ownership of our votingpital stock to less than 10% for institutionalgators and less than 5% for non-institutional
investors, both as defined in our articles of ipooation. Additionally, no person may beneficiadlyn shares of our common stock
representing a 20% or more ownership interest.ifhese restrictions are intended to ensure ouptiante with the terms of our licenses v
the BCBSA. Our articles of incorporation prohibitrership of our capital stock beyond these ownprbimits without prior approval of a
majority of our continuing directors (as definediur articles of incorporation). In addition, asalissed above in the risk factor describing oul
license
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agreements with the BCBSA, such license agreenaeatsubject to termination upon a change of comindlre-establishment fees would be
imposed upon termination of the license agreements.

Certain other provisions included in our articlésngorporation and bylaws may also have anti-take@ffects and may delay, defer or
prevent a takeover attempt that our shareholdeghtrabnsider in their best interests. In particubaur articles of incorporation and bylaws:
divide our Board of Directors into three classavisg staggered three-year terms (which is requingdur license agreement with the
BCBSA); permit our Board of Directors to determthe terms of and issue one or more series of peefestock without further action by
shareholders; restrict the maximum number of dinsctimit the ability of shareholders to removeedtors; impose restrictions on
shareholders’ ability to fill vacancies on our Bab@af Directors; prohibit shareholders from callspecial meetings of shareholders; impose
advance notice requirements for shareholder prdgpasa nominations of directors to be consideradexdtings of shareholders; and prohibit
shareholders from amending our bylaws.

We also face other risks that could adversely affeour business, financial condition or results of perations, which include:

e any requirement to restate financial results inethent of inappropriate application of accountimiggiples
» asignificant failure of our internal control oviarancial reporting
» our inability to convert to international financigporting standards, if requir
» failure of our prevention and control systems esdab employee compliance with internal policies|uding data securit
» provider fraud that is not prevented or deteeted impacts our medical costs or those of issiired customel
» failure to protect our proprietary information; i
» failure of our corporate governance policies orcprures
ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED SEC STAFF COMMENTS.
None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

Our principal executive offices are located at Mifhument Circle, Indianapolis, Indiana. In addittorthis location, we have other
principal operating facilities located in each loé t14 states where we operate as licensees ofGB&A, in each of the eight additional states
where Amerigroup conducts business and in the iadditstate of Arizona where CareMore maintainsambh office. A majority of these
locations are leased properties. Our facilitiegpsupour various business segments. We believeotirgproperties are adequate and suitable fc
our business as presently conducted as well ahddioreseeable future.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

For information regarding our legal proceedingg, the “Litigation” and “Other Contingencies” sect®of Note 14, “Commitments and
Contingencies” to our audited consolidated finalhstiatements as of and for the year ended Dece®&ih&013 , included in this Form 10-K.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.

Not Applicable.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

Market Prices

Our common stock, par value $0.01 per share,texllien the NYSE under the symbol “WLP.” On Februar014, the closing price on
the NYSE was $84.68. As of February 7, 2014, there 78,847 shareholders of record of our commaceksiThe following table presents
high and low sales prices for our common stockh@nNY SE for the periods indicated.

High Low

2013

First Quarter $ 66.6z $ 58.7¢
Second Quarter 82.3: 65.82
Third Quarter 90.0( 80.7¢
Fourth Quarter 94.3¢ 83.1:
2012

First Quarter $ 747 $ 63.3¢
Second Quarter 73.8( 63.22
Third Quarter 64.6¢ 52.52
Fourth Quarter 63.6: 53.6¢

Dividends

The quarterly cash dividend declared by our Bodicectors was $0.3750, $0.2875 and $0.2500 paresim 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. On January 28, 2014 , our Board oé8ors declared a quarterly cash dividend to $twdders of $0.4375 per share.

We regularly review the appropriate use of capitaluding common stock repurchases, repurchasdshifand dividends to shareholders
The declaration and payment of any dividends oumapases of common stock or debt securities iseatliscretion of our Board of Directors
and depends upon our financial condition, resdltgperations, future liquidity needs, regulatoryl aapital requirements and other factors
deemed relevant by our Board of Directors. Furtbar,ability to pay dividends to our shareholdérauthorized by our Board of Directors, is
significantly dependent upon the receipt of dividefrom our subsidiaries, including Anthem Insum@ompanies, Inc., Anthem Southeast,
Inc., Anthem Holding Corp., WellPoint Holding CorpVellPoint Acquisition, LLC, WellPoint Insurance¥ices, Inc., ATH Holding
Company, LLC and SellCore, Inc. The payment ofdévids by our insurance subsidiaries without pripraval of the insurance departmen
each subsidiary’s domiciliary jurisdiction is lirad by formula. Dividends in excess of these amoargsubject to prior approval by the
respective insurance departments.

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Comensation Plans

The information required by this Item concerningis@ies authorized for issuance under our equitygensation plans is set forth in or
incorporated by reference into Part 111, Iltem 12¢8rity Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners d@nagement and Related Stockholder
Matters” in this Form 10-K.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table presents information relatedtw repurchases of common stock for the periodisénted:

Total Number Approximate

of Shares Dollar Value
Purchased as of Shares that

Part of May Yet Be

Total Number Average Publicly Purchased

of Shares Price Paid Announced Under the
Period Purchased' per Share Programs” Programs®
(In millions, except share and per share data)

October 1, 2013 to October 31, 2013 2,121,08 $ 86.1 2,114,200 % 3,965.¢
November 1, 2013 to November 30, 2013 948,87- 87.6:2 933,80¢ 3,876.¢
December 1, 2013 to December 31, 2013 2,118,53: 90.01 2,066,68! 3,691.(

5,188,48 5,114,69

1 Total number of shares purchased includes 73,7&#&stdelivered to or withheld by us in connectiatinwmployee payroll tax
withholding upon exercise or vesting of stock avga®tock grants to employees and directors and s§saed for stock option plans and
stock purchase plans in the consolidated stateno¢istsareholders’ equity are shown net of theseeshaurchased.

2 Represents the number of shares repurchased thtleeigiommon stock repurchase program authorizeziboard of Directors, which
the Board evaluates periodically. During the yaatesl December 31, 2013, we repurchased 20,748/884s at a cost of $1,645.9 under
the program, including the cost of options to pasghshares. The Board of Directors has authorigedammon stock repurchase progran
since 2003. The Board's most recent authorize@aser to the program was $3,500.0 on Septembed28, Between January 1, 2014 anc
February 7, 2014 , we repurchased 5.4 sharesast®t$457.6 , bringing our current availability$2,633.4 at February 7, 2014 (see not:
3 below for additional discussion of current availiy). No duration has been placed on our comrskmtk repurchase program and we
reserve the right to discontinue the program attamg.

3 On February 4, 2014, we entered into an accelesdtark repurchase, or ASR, program with a countgrpehe agreement provides for a
repurchase of a number of shares, equal to $688 @etermined by the dollar volume weighted-avesigee price during a period up
through at least March 14, 2014, but not to exddacth 31, 2014. At the end of the term of the A8, initial amount of shares will be
adjusted up or down based on the dollar volume ltedyaverage price during the same period. On Bepry 2014, we repurchased 6.0
shares under this program. These ASR shares ameahaded in the shares repurchased subsequerdderiber 31, 2013, discussed in |
2 above, as the final shares to be repurchasedetilbe determined until the completion of the pangin March 2014. However, the
$600.0 has been removed from the authorizationirengpas of February 7, 2014 discussed in notecd¥@b
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Performance Graph

The following Performance Graph and related infaiamacompares the cumulative total return to shalddrs of our common stock for 1
period from December 31, 2008 through DecembeR@13 , with the cumulative total return over suehigd of (i) the Standard & Poor’s 500
Stock Index (the “S&P 500 Index”) and (ii) the Sdand & Poor’s Managed Health Care Index (the “S&Bnlslged Health Care Index”). The
graph assumes an investment of $100 on Decemb@088,in each of our common stock, the S&P 500xraded the S&P Managed Health
Care Index (and the reinvestment of all dividends).

The comparisons shown in the graph below are baisdistorical data and we caution that the stoategperformance shown in the graph
below is not indicative of, and is not intendeddrecast, the potential future performance of @mmmon stock. Information used in the graph
was obtained from S&P Capital I1Q, a source belieedoe reliable, but we are not responsible for @mgrs or omissions in such information.
The following graph and related information shait he deemed “soliciting materials” or to be “fitegith the SEC, nor shall such information
be incorporated by reference into any future filimgler the Securities Act of 1933, as amendedeEkchange Act, except to the extent that
we specifically incorporate it by reference intelstiling.

Comparison of 5 Year Cumulative Total Return
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@\WellPoint, Inc. WS&P 500 Index AS&P Managed Health Care index
December 31,
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
WellPoint, Inc. $ 10C $ 13¢ $ 135 $ 16C $ 14¢ $ 231
S&P 500 Index 10C 12¢ 14¢€ 14¢ 172 22¢
S&P Managed Health Care Index 10C 12¢ 13¢ 187 19¢ 293

Based upon an initial investment of $100 on Decerthe2008 with dividends reinvested.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

The table below provides selected consolidatedhfiiz data of WellPoint. The information has beenivkd from our consolidated
financial statements for each of the years in itve year period ended December 31, 2013 . You shaald this selected consolidated financia
data in conjunction with the audited consolidaiedricial statements and notes as of and for thegreded December 31, 20it®®luded in Par
I, Item 8 “Financial Statements and Supplemeniaya”, and Part II, tem 7 “Management’s Discussaol Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations” included in this Form

10-K.

As of and for the Years Ended December 31

2013* 2012** 20117 2010 2009°

(in millions, except where indicated and exceptgteare data)
Income Statement Data
Total operating revenue $ 70,191 % 60,514.( $ 59,865.: $ 57,740.! % 60,740.(
Total revenues 71,023.! 61,497. 60,710. 58,698.! 64,939.!
Income from continuing operations 2,634.: 2,651.( 2,646. 2,887.: 4,745.¢
Net income 2,489.7 2,655.! 2,646. 2,887.: 4,745
Per Share Data
Basic net income per share - continuing operations $ 88: % 82t § 738 % 7.0 % 9.9¢
Diluted net income per share - continuing operation 8.67 8.17 7.2F 6.94 9.8¢
Dividends per share 1.5C 1.1t 1.0C — —
Other Data (unaudited)
Benefit expense ratib 85.1% 85.2% 85.1% 83.2% 83.t%
Selling, general and administrative expense fatio 14.2% 14.2% 14.1% 15.1% 14.8%
Income from continuing operations before incomesaas a percentage

of total revenues 5.4% 6.2% 6.5% 7.4% 11.2%
Net income as a percentage of total revenues 3.5% 4.3% 4.4% 4.% 7.2%
Medical membershipif thousand$ 35,65 36,13( 34,25 33,320 33,67(
Balance Sheet Data
Cash and investments $ 22,395¢ $ 22,4640 % 20,696.! % 20,3114  $ 22,610.¢
Total assets 59,574.! 58,955. 52,163.. 50,242.! 52,147.¢
Long-term debt, less current portion 13,573. 14,170.¢ 8,465." 8,147.¢ 8,338.:
Total liabilities 34,809.: 35,152 28,875.( 26,429.¢ 27,284.(
Total shareholders’ equity 24,765.. 23,802." 23,288.. 23,812.¢ 24,863..

1  The operating results of 1-800 CONTACTS, Ine.@ported as discontinued operations at Decenihe&t033 as a result of the pending divestiturdubted in Net income
for the year ended December 31, 2013 is a loss disoontinued operations, net of tax, of $144.6luded in Net income for the year ended Decembg2@12 is income
from discontinued operations, net of tax, of $4.5.

2 The net assets of and results of operationANERIGROUP Corporation are included from its acdios date of December 24, 2012. The net asseasdfresults of
operations for CareMore Health Group, Inc. areudet from its acquisition date of August 22, 20MHie net assets of and results of operations forabeOental, LLC are
included from its acquisition date of April 9, 200%he results of operations for our pharmacy bésefanagement, or PBM, business are includeditsshle on
December 1, 2009. The results of operations foy#ae ended December 31, 2009 includes pre-taxai@dtax gains related to the sale of our PBM ess$ of $3,792.3 and
$2,361.2, respectively.

3 Operating revenue is obtained by adding premiudhsjristrative fees and other rever

The benefit expense ratio represents benefit exgessa percentage of premium reve

5  The selling, general and administrative expense rapresents selling, general and administratiperses as a percentage of total operating re\

N
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

(In Millions, Except Per Share Data or As Otherwi&ated Herein)

References to the terms “we”, “our” or “us” usedotighout this Management’s Discussion and Analgéiinancial Condition and
Results of Operations, or MD&A, refer to WellPoihic., an Indiana corporation, and unless the comtherwise requires, its direct and
indirect subsidiaries.

This MD&A should be read in conjunction with ourdiied consolidated financial statements as of anthie year ended December 31,
2013, included in this Form 10-K.

Overview

On May 20, 2013, we announced certain organizaltiamé executive leadership changes to align withr bar new Chief Executive
Officer is managing our operations. Beginning with three months ended June 30, 2013, our orgamaéstructure is comprised of three
reportable segments: Commercial and Specialty BssinGovernment Business; and Other. Prior pedgthent information has been
reclassified to conform to the new segment repgrsinucture.

Our Commercial and Specialty Business segmentdeslwur Local Group, National Accounts, Individaat Specialty businesses.
Business units in the Commercial and Specialty B2ss segment offer fully-insured products; proddeoad array of managed care services
to selffunded customers including claims processing, umdgng, stop loss insurance, actuarial servicesyider network access, medical
management, disease management, wellness prognanegheer administrative services; and provide aayaof specialty and other insurance
products and services such as behavioral healfibservices, dental, vision, life and disabilifgurance benefits, radiology benefit
management, analytics-driven personal health asidagce and long-term care insurance.

Our Government Business segment includes our Medlanad Medicaid businesses, National Governmeni@e, or NGS, and services
provided to the Federal Government in connectiah tie Federal Employee Program, or FEP. Our Meeibasiness includes services such
as Medicare Advantage, Medicare Part D, and Meedi8aipplement, while our Medicaid business incluesnanaged care alternatives
through publicly funded health care programs, iditlg Medicaid, state Children’s Health InsurancegPams, or CHIP, and Medicaid
expansion programs. NGS acts as a Medicare cootriacteveral regions across the nation.

Our Other segment includes other businesses thavtdmeet the quantitative thresholds for an ojfegagegment as defined by Financial
Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, guidance, @sag corporate expenses not allocated to the odipertable segments.

In preparation for the coming changes to the hezltk system and to focus on our core growth oppitigs across our Commercial and
Specialty Business and Government Business segmenentered into a definitive agreement in Decar2bé 3 to sell our 1-800
CONTACTS, Inc., or 1-800 CONTACTS, business tophgate equity firm Thomas H. Lee Partners, L.Pn@arently, we entered into an
asset purchase agreement with Luxottica Groupltogeglasses.com related assets. The divestituees completed on January 31, 2014. Th
operating results for 1-800 CONTACTS are reportediacontinued operations as a result of the pgndivestiture at December 31, 2013.
These results were previously reported in the Comisleand Specialty Business segment. Additionahg, assets and liabilities of 1-800-
CONTACTS are reported as held for sale in the clicteted balance sheets included in this FornK1@nless otherwise specified, all financ
information, other than cash flows, disclosed is MID&A is from continuing operations. In accordaneith FASB guidance, we have elected
to not separately disclose net cash provided lysed in operating, investing, and financing adégiand the net effect of those cash flows on
cash and cash equivalents for discontinued op@asatiaring the periods presented. For additionakmbtion regarding these transactions, see
Note 3,“Business Acquisitions and Divestitures," to oudié&d consolidated financial statements as of andhfe year ended December 31,
2013, included in this Form 10-K.

Our operating revenue consists of premiums, adinatige fees and other revenue. Premium revenuesdrom fully-insured contracts
where we indemnify our policyholders against cdstovered health and life benefits. Administratiees come from contracts where our
customers are self-insured, or where the fee ischan either processing of transactions or a peafemetwork discount savings realized.
Additionally, we earn administrative fee revenuesrf our Medicare
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processing business and from other health-relatsthbsses including disease management prograims: @venue includes miscellaneous
income other than premium revenue and administrdées.

Our benefit expense primarily includes costs oédar health services consumed by our members, asiclitpatient care, inpatient
hospital care, professional services (primarilygbian care) and pharmacy benefit costs. All fmmponents are affected both by unit costs
and utilization rates. Unit costs include the afstutpatient medical procedures per visit, inp#tieospital care per admission, physician fees
per office visit and prescription drug prices. (tition rates represent the volume of consumptfdrealth services and typically vary with the
age and health status of our members and theialsai lifestyle choices, along with clinical protds and medical practice patterns in each o
our markets. A portion of benefit expense recoghinecach reporting period consists of actuaritiheges of claims incurred but not yet paid
by us. Any changes in these estimates are recamdbd period the need for such an adjustmentsariséile we offer a diversified mix of
managed care products and services through ourgedreare plans, our aggregate cost of care catuditecbased on a change in the overall
mix of these products and services. Our managedpans include: preferred provider organizatiam? POs; health maintenance
organizations, or HMOs; point-of-service plansP@S plans; traditional indemnity plans and othédarltyplans, including consumer-driven
health plans, or CDHPs; and hospital only and &ohibenefit products.

We classify certain claims-related costs as bepgfiense to reflect costs incurred for our membeaslitional medical care, as well as
those expenses which improve our members’ healthhadical outcomes. These claims-related costshmaymprised of expenses incurred
for: (i) medical management, including case anlization management; (ii) health and wellness,udgig disease management services for
such conditions as diabetes, high-risk pregnanceggestive heart failure and asthma managemenualhgess initiatives like weight-loss
programs and smoking cessation treatments; afal(iiical health policy. These types of claimsateld costs are designed to ultimately lower
our members’ cost of care.

Our selling expense consists of external brokerm@sion expenses, and generally varies with prendumembership volume. Our
general and administrative expense consists ofl farel variable costs. Examples of fixed costs epgatiation, amortization and certain
facilities expenses. Other costs are variable sardtionary in nature. Certain variable costs, agchremium taxes, vary directly with premium
volume. Other variable costs, such as salariedbandfits, do not vary directly with changes in piam but are more aligned with changes in
membership. The acquisition or loss of a signifidaock of business would likely impact staffingyéds, and thus associated compensation
expense. Examples of discretionary costs includéepsional and consulting expenses and adverti€itiger factors can impact our
administrative cost structure, including systenfieicies, inflation and changes in productivity.

Our results of operations depend in large partwreability to accurately predict and effectively mage health care costs through effective
contracting with providers of care to our memberd aur medical management and health and wellrmegggms. Several economic factors
related to health care costs, such as regulatongatas of coverage as well as direct-to-consumesrtising by providers and pharmaceutical
companies, have a direct impact on the volume & cansumed by our members. The potential effeesoélating health care costs, any
changes in our ability to negotiate competitivesatith our providers and any regulatory or madkiten restrictions on our ability to obtain
adequate premium rates to offset overall inflatiohealth care costs, including increases in wstEand utilization resulting from the aging of
the population and other demographics, as weltlgareces in medical technology, may impose furttsisrto our ability to profitably
underwrite our business, and may have a materj@@tnon our results of operations.

Our future results of operations will also be imeacby certain external forces and resulting chamg®ur business model and strategy. It
2010, the U.S. Congress passed and the Presidaetsinto law the Patient Protection and AffordaBére Act, or ACA, as well as the Health
Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010, afectively, Health Care Reform, which represemgsificant changes to the U.S. health «
system. The legislation is far-reaching and isndtsl to expand access to health insurance covevagédime by increasing the eligibility
thresholds for state Medicaid programs and progidiertain other individuals and small businessél taix credits to subsidize a portion of the
cost of health insurance coverage. As a resuli@tomplexity of the law, its impacts on healtheciarthe United States and the continuing
modification and interpretation of Health Care Refts rules, we continue to analyze the impact afithe our estimates of the ultimate impact
of Health Care Reform on our business, cash fléiwancial condition and results of operations. #t bf certain material changes resulting f
Health Care Reform include:

* Requirements to modify our products to cover esakiméalth benefits and comply with other defineitecia;

* Requirement to cancel existing products andlenesv and renewing members in the new ACA-complfametal”
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products (bronze, silver, gold and platinum);
» Introduction of exchanges, subsidies and mandatesquire and allow previously uninsured custonem®nter the market; a

» Significant new taxes and fees which will be pajchiealth insurers, and which may or may not begmfisrough to custome

The above changes resulting from Health Care Refuithprovide growth opportunities for health ingws, but also introduce new risks
and uncertainties, and require changes in the waypmducts are designed, underwritten, pricedridiged and administered.

Pricing in our Commercial and Specialty Busineggysnt, including our individual and small groupelinof business, remains highly
competitive and we strive to price our health darefit products consistent with anticipated undeg medical trends. We believe our pricing
strategy, based on predictive modeling, proprietasgarch and data-driven processes, as well asvetall investments for Health Care
Reform, have positioned us to benefit from the ptidé¢ growth opportunities available in fully-ingd commercial products as a result of
Health Care Reform. While the ultimate level of lexage enroliment cannot be predicted, we have exrd a greater number of policy
applications for new members through the exchatigsexpected, including geographical regions Veiver price competition. The
exchanges may increase the risk that our produtitbevselected by individuals who have a highek profile or utilization rate than the pool
of participants we anticipated when we establighedpricing for these exchange products. Howeaaty éndications of the risk characteristics
of new applicants appear to be tracking closelhéorisk levels utilized in the development of puicing assumptions. Although it is not yet
clear whether our products sold on the exchangkk®evmore or less profitable products, we belithat our pricing strategy, brand name and
network quality will provide a strong foundatiorr fmtommercial risk membership growth opportunitieshe future.

In our individual markets we offer bronze, silveidagold products, both on and off the exchangetharstates of California, Colorado,
Connecticut, Georgia, Indiana, Kentucky, Maine, $4igri, Nevada, New Hampshire, New York, Ohio, \fiilgiand Wisconsin. Additionally,
we offer platinum products, both on and off thelexges, in the states of California and New York.

In our small group markets, we offer bronze, sileed gold products, both on and off the exchangebge states of Colorado, Connectic
Georgia, Indiana, Kentucky, Maine, Missouri, Nevadaw Hampshire, Ohio and Virginia and we offerrize, silver and gold products, off
exchanges, in the states of California, New Yor#t @isconsin. Additionally, we offer platinum prodscoff the exchanges, in the states of
California, Connecticut, Georgia, Maine and Virgini

The legislation also imposes new regulations orhthadth insurance sector, including, but not lichite, guaranteed coverage requireme
prohibitions on some annual and all lifetime limots amounts paid on behalf of or to our membeggmsed restrictions on rescinding
coverage; establishment of minimum medical lossrat MLR, requirements; a requirement to covevgntive services on a first dollar ba
the establishment of state insurance exchangessshtial benefit packages; and greater limitationkow we price certain of our products.
The legislation also reduces the reimbursementddwee health plans participating in the MedicardgvAntage program over time.

As a result of Health Care Reform, the Departmémtealth and Human Services, or HHS, issued MLRilagpns that require us to meet
minimum MLR thresholds for large group, small grarm individual lines of business. For purposedatérmining MLR rebates, HHS has
defined the types of costs that should be inclidede MLR rebate calculation. However, certain poments of the MLR calculation as
defined by HHS cannot be classified consistentigaur.S. generally accepted accounting principle §GAAP. While considered benefit
expense or a reduction of premium revenue by Hid8ain of these costs are classified as other tgpegpense, such as income tax expen
selling, general and administrative expense, inGAAP basis financial statements. Accordingly, blemefit expense ratio determined using
consolidated GAAP operating results is not comgartbthe MLR calculated under HHS regulations.

Beginning with rebates paid in 2014 for the 2018dfi year, MLR rebates will be based on a thresr yeerage. This calculation will
determine an average MLR for each market segmehinvg@ach state for the previous three calendaisy@alditionally, insurers will be able
adjust experience to account for prior MLR rebaéfanded to groups or individuals. Once the thregryaverage MLR is calculated and
compared to the minimum MLR threshold, the reba&tegntage will be applied to current year premiassdefined by Health Care Reform.
Beginning with MLR rebates paid in 2015 for the 201
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benefit year, insurers will adjust for the risk @tment, reinsurance, and risk corridor premiurbiktation programs of Health Care Reform.

Health Care Reform also imposes a separate miniMuR threshold of 85% for Medicare Advantage plargibning in 2014. Medicare
Advantage plans that do not meet this thresholbhawe to pay a minimum MLR rebate. If a plan’s MiRbelow 85% for three consecutive
years beginning with 2014, enrollment will be reeted. A Medicare Advantage plan contract will bentinated if the plan's MLR is belc
85% for five consecutive years.

These and other provisions of Health Care Refomrlikely to have significant effects on our futugerations, which, in turn, could
impact the value of our business model and resftiligperations, including potential impairments af goodwill and other intangible assets.
We will continue to evaluate the impact of Healdwr€Reform as key aspects go into effect and aditiguidance is made available. For
additional discussion regarding Health Care Refa®e, Part I, Item 1 “Business—Regulation” and Rdatém 1A “Risk Factors” in this Form
10-K.

Finally, federal and state regulatory agencies fagher restrict our ability to obtain new prodagiprovals, implement changes in
premium rates or impose additional restrictionglarmew or existing laws that could adversely dfteo business, cash flows, financial
condition and results of operations.

We are also subject to regulations that may réswassessments under state insurance guarantegssissolaws. The National
Organization of Life & Health Insurance Guarantys@siations, or NOLHGA, is a voluntary organizatmmsisting of the state life and health
insurance guaranty associations located througheut.S. State life and health insurance guarasgg@ations, working together with
NOLHGA, provide a safety net for their st's policyholders, ensuring that they continue toeiee coverage even if their insurer is declared
insolvent. We are aware that the Pennsylvania &msxg Commissioner, or Insurance Commissioner, lageg Penn Treaty Network America
Insurance Company and its subsidiary American Negtwsurance Company, or collectively Penn Tremtyehabilitation, an intermediate
action before insolvency. The state court deniednisurance Commissioner’s petition for the ligtiimla of Penn Treaty and ordered the
Insurance Commissioner to file an updated plarebébilitation, which proposed plan was filed on iR, 2013. The state court has ordered .
hearing on the proposed plan for which a date baget been set. The Insurance Commissioner hebdilNotice of Appeal asking the
Pennsylvania Supreme Court to reverse the ordefimtgthe liquidation petition. The Supreme Cours paobable jurisdiction over the appeal
and issued a schedule for filing briefs. In thergwvehabilitation of Penn Treaty is unsuccessfal Benn Treaty is declared insolvent and pl:
in liquidation, we and other insurers may be reglito pay a portion of their policyholder claimsatiigh state guaranty association assesst
in future periods. Given the uncertainty around tiibe Penn Treaty will ultimately be declared ingslvand, if so, the amount of the
insolvency, the amount and timing of any associfitatte guaranty fund assessments and the avéadild amount of any potential premium
tax and other offsets, we currently cannot estimatenet exposure, if any, to this potential insoley. We will continue to monitor the
situation and may record a liability and expenstutare reporting periods, which could be matetgabur cash flows and results of operations.

In addition to external forces discussed in the@ding paragraphs, our results of operations apadted by levels and mix of
membership. In recent years, we experienced meimpetteclines due to unfavorable economic conditingng increased unemployment. In
addition, we believe the self-insured portion of group membership base will continue to increasa percentage of total group membership
Further, our mix of membership may include moreviaiials with a higher acuity level obtaining coage through our products available on
the exchanges, which may not be appropriately sefjufer in our premium rates. These membershipis@ould have a material adverse effec
on our future results of operations. Also see Ratem 1A “Risk Factors” in this Form 10-K.

Executive Summary

We are one of the largest health benefits compamiesms of medical membership in the United Staserving 35.7 medical members
through our affiliated health plans and a totab 818 individuals through all subsidiaries as of &aber 31, 2013 . We are an independent
licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Assimiabr BCBSA, an association of independent hdadthefit plans. We serve our membel
the Blue Cross licensee for California and as thue Eross and Blue Shield, or BCBS, licensee foto@do, Connecticut, Georgia, Indiana,
Kentucky, Maine, Missouri (excluding 30 countieglie Kansas City area), Nevada, New Hampshire, etk (as BCBS in 10 New York
City metropolitan and surrounding counties, an@lag Cross or BCBS in selected upstate countieg) p@hio, Virginia (excluding the
Northern Virginia suburbs of Washington, D.C.), dNgsconsin. In a majority of these service areaslo
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business as Anthem Blue Cross, Anthem Blue Crod$3are Shield, Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Gemrghd Empire Blue Cross Blue
Shield, or Empire Blue Cross (in our New York seevareas). We also conduct business through ourRIBROUP Corporation, or
Amerigroup, subsidiary in Florida, Georgia, Kandasjisiana, Maryland, Nevada, New Jersey, New Yddqgnessee, Texas and Washington.
Amerigroup also provided services in the state lsio@hrough June 30, 2013 and in the state of Neaxitb through December 31, 2013. We
also serve customers throughout the country astidaéak, UniCare and in certain Arizona, Californevada, New York and Virginia mark
through our CareMore Health Group, Inc., or Caredsubsidiary. We are licensed to conduct insurapeeations in all 50 states through our
subsidiaries. We also sold contact lenses, eyesfassd other ocular products through our 1-800 CAOITS business, which was divested on
January 31, 2014.

Operating revenue for the year ended December(®@B ®as $70,191.4 , an increase of $9,677.4 , @46 from the year ended
December 31, 2012 , primarily reflecting higherrpiem revenue in our Government Business segmerttalbaoffset by lower premium
revenue in our Commercial and Specialty Businegssat. The higher premium revenue in our GovernrBesiness segment primarily
resulted from the acquisition of Amerigroup in Dexteer 2012, growth in our FEP business resultinmfbmth premium rate increases
designed to cover overall cost trends and increas@embership as well as increased membershipri€CareMore subsidiary. These increase
were partially offset by lower revenues in our r@areMore Medicare Advantage and Medicare Part Inbases primarily due to membership
losses as a result of our product repositioningtetyy toward HMO product offerings. The premiumemwe decrease in our Commercial and
Specialty Business segment was driven primariljully-insured membership declines in our Local Grduusiness resulting from strategic
product portfolio changes in certain states, coitipetpressure in certain markets and, we beliafferdability challenges affecting healthcare
consumers in general. This decrease was partifiigtdoy premium rate increases in our Local Grdagividual and National Accounts
businesses designed to cover overall cost trendelhas premium rate and membership increasearispecialty businesses, primarily relatec
to our dental and vision products, and increasedimmdtrative fees resulting from pricing increagasself-funded members in our Commercial
businesses.

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2013p2a89.7 , a decrease of $165.8 , or 6.2% , fimryear ended December 31, 2012
The decrease in net income was primarily drivethigyloss on disposal of our800 CONTACTS business, costs incurred in prepardtothe
implementation of Health Care Reform effective @12, realized losses on extinguishment of debinemase in interest expense resulting
from higher outstanding debt balances associatddauir acquisition of Amerigroup and lower opergtiesults in our Commercial and
Specialty Business segment. These decreases wésdlpaffset by higher operating results in ouow&rnment Business segment, primarily
from Amerigroup.

Our diluted earnings per share, or EPS, for the geded December 31, 2013 was $8.20 , an incré&&®e@®2 , or 0.2% , from the year
ended December 31, 2012 . Our diluted EPS fromimmaingg operations for the year ended December @13 2vas $8.67 , an increase of $0,50
or 6.1% , from the year ended December 31, 2012 dduted shares for the year ended December@i3 Were 303.8 million , a decrease of
21.0 million , or 6.5% , compared to the year enBedember 31, 2012 . The increase in diluted EBStead primarily from the lower number
of shares outstanding in 2013 due to share buyaeiikity under our share repurchase program pbriiddset by the decrease in net income.

Our results of operations discussed throughout\Miid& A are determined in accordance with GAAP. Weoatalculate adjusted net
income, adjusted EPS and operating gain, whiclmaneGAAP measures, to further aid investors in ustd@ding and analyzing our core
operating results and comparing them among periddjsisted net income and adjusted EPS excludezeshljains and losses on investments,
other-than-temporary losses on investments recednizincome, impairment of other intangible asseis certain other items, if applicable,
that we do not consider a part of our core opegatsults. Operating gain is calculated as totafrajing revenue less benefit expense, selling,
general and administrative expense. We use theasures as a basis for evaluating segment perfoenatocating resources, setting incen
compensation targets and forecasting future opeyaeriods. This information is not intended tocbesidered in isolation or as a substitute
income before income tax expense, net income otedilEPS prepared in accordance with GAAP, andmoape comparable to similarly titl
measures reported by other companies. For addititaails on operating gain, see our “Reportabign@nts Results of Operationdiscussior
included in this MD&A.
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The table below reconciles net income and dilute& Ealculated in accordance with GAAP to adjusttdntome and adjusted diluted
EPS for the years ended December 31, 2013 and.2012

Years Ended
December 31

2013 2012 Change % Change

Net income $ 2,489.. $ 2,655 $ (165.9) (6.2)%
Less (net of tax):

Net realized gains on investments 176.% 217.1 (41.0

Other-than-temporary impairment losses on investsnen (64.%) (24.¢) (39.9)

Loss on extinguishment of debt (94.9 — (94.9

Tax benefit from favorable tax election 65.C — 65.C

Impairment of held for sale assets (164.5) — (164.5)

Acquisition and integration related costs (16.9) (68.9) 52.1

Litigation related costs — (24.0 24.C

Income tax settlements — 140.1 (140.7)

Tax impact of non-deductible litigation related tsos — (41.9 41.4
Adjusted net income $ 2587 $ 2,456.. $ 131.c 5.5%
Diluted EPS $ 8.2( $ 8.1t $ 0.0z 0.2%
Less (net of tax):

Net realized gains on investments 0.5¢ 0.67 (0.09)

Other-than-temporary impairment losses on investsnen (0.21) (0.07) (0.19

Loss on extinguishment of debt (0.37) — (0.3))

Tax benefit from favorable tax election 0.21 — 0.21

Impairment of held for sale assets (0.59 — (0.59

Acquisition and integration related costs (0.0%) (0.27) 0.1¢€

Litigation related costs — (0.09) 0.07

Income tax settlements — 0.4z (0.43)

Tax impact of non-deductible litigation related tsos — (0.13) 0.1z
Adjusted diluted EPS $ 85z § 7.5¢ $ 0.9¢ 12.7%

Operating cash flow for the year ended DecembeR@13 was $3,052.3 , or 1.2 times net income. Qipgraash flow for the year ended
December 31, 2012 was $2,744.6 , or 1.0 timeswenie. The increase in operating cash flow fron22f1$307.7 was driven primarily by an
increase in net income adjusted for non-cash itpnisarily due to the loss on disposal of discomtid operations, changes in amortization
expense and realized losses on extinguishmenthf dhe increase was further attributable to lopsyments for litigation related matters,
incentive compensation and minimum MLR rebates;anét increase in the collection of income taxmes in 2013.

We intend to expand through a combination of orggnowth, strategic acquisitions and efficient afeapital in both existing and new
markets. Our growth strategy is designed to enabl® take advantage of additional economies déssawell as providing us access to new
and evolving technologies and products. In addjtvea believe geographic and product diversity redumur exposure to local or regional
regulatory, economic and competitive pressurespgoddes us with increased opportunities for growthnile we have achieved strong growth
as a result of strategic mergers and acquisitiwashave also achieved organic growth in our exgstirarkets over time by providing excellent
service, offering competitively priced productscess to high quality provider networks and effesdtihcapitalizing on the brand strength of the
Blue Cross and Blue Shield names and marks.
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Significant Transactions

The more significant transactions that have occuoreer the last three years that have impactedlbimpact our capital structure or that
have or will influence how we conduct our businegsrations include:

Use of Capital—Board of Directors declaratiordefidends on common stock (2013, 2012 and 201d)aah6.7% increase in the
quarterly dividend to $0.4375 per share (2014)hauitation for repurchases of our common stock 828id prior); and debt
repurchases and new debt issuance (2013 and prior);

Acquisition of Amerigroup and the related debt @ste (2012
Acquisition of 1800 CONTACTS (2012) and subsequent divestiture420nc
Acquisition of CareMore (2011

For additional information regarding these transad, see Note 3, “Business Acquisitions and Diug®ts,” Note 13, "Debt" and Note 15,
“Capital Stock,” to our audited consolidated finmhstatements as of and for the year ended Dece®ih@013 , included in this Form 10-K.

Membership

Our medical membership includes seven differentocnsr types: Local Group, Individual, National Aceds, BlueCard, Medicare,
Medicaid and FEP. BCBS-branded business geneeflys to members in our service areas licensetidBCBSA. Non-BCBS-branded
business refers to Amerigroup and CareMore merdseveell as Healthlink and UniCare members predontipautside of our BCBSA
service areas.

Local Group consists of those employer customélifsless than 5% of eligible employees locatetsiole of the headquarter state, as
well as customers with more than 5% of eligible kypes located outside of the headquarter statewgitto 5,000 eligible employe
In addition, Local Group includes UniCare local gpanembers. These groups are generally sold thrbrakers or consultants
working with industry specialists from our in-housaes force. Local Group insurance premiums mayased on claims incurred by
the group or sold on a self-insured basis. Theooust's buying decision is typically based upongtze and breadth of our networks,
customer service, the quality of our medical manag# services, the administrative cost includedunquoted price, our financial
stability, reputation and our ability to effectiyedervice large complex accounts. Local Group actsalifor 41.2% , 40.5% and 44.4%
of our medical members at December 31, 2013 , 20622011 , respectively.

Individual consists of individual customers undge 65 (including UniCare) and their covered deleats. Individual policies are
generally sold through independent agents and bspketail partnerships, our in-house sales forogathe Internet. Individual
business is sold on a fully-insured basis. We affeexchange products through state or federatljittted marketplaces and off-
exchange products. Federal premium subsidies aitable only for certain on-exchange individual guots. Individual customers are
generally more sensitive to product pricing anda tesser extent, the configuration of the netwarld the efficiency of administratic
Account turnover is generally higher with Individ@es compared to Local Group. Individual businessanted for 4.9% , 5.1% and
5.4% of our medical members at December 31, 2@032 and 2011 , respectively.

National Accounts generally consist of m-state employer groups primarily headquarteredWedlPoint service area with at least
5% of the eligible employees located outside offteadquarter state and with more than 5,000 efigibiployees. Some exceptions
are allowed based on broker relationships. Seiea is defined as the geographic area in whichrerdicensed to sell BCBS
products. National Accounts are generally soldugtoindependent brokers or consultants retainetidogustomer working with our
in-house sales force. We have an advantage whepeationg for very large National Accounts due to ¢ime and breadth of our
networks and our ability to access the nationaVigker networks of BCBS companies at their compaditocal market rates. National
Accounts represented 19.0% , 19.4% and 21.6% ofmaadlical members at December 31, 2013, 2012 ahtl A@spectively.

BlueCard®host customers represent enrollees of Blue Crad®rBlue Shield plans not owned by WellPoint whkoeive health care
services in our BCBSA licensed markets. BlueCarembership consists of estimated host members tisingational BlueCard
program. Host members are generally members wihder@sor travel to a state in which a WellPoinbsidiary is the Blue Cross
and/or Blue Shield licensee and who are covereéuan employer-sponsored health plan issued byaMalPoint controlled
BCBSA licensee (i.e., the “home plan”). We perfarertain administrative functions for BlueC&rchembers, for which we receive
administrative fees from the BlueCdtthembers’ home plans. Other administrative functioamduding maintenance of enrollment
information and customer service, are performethbyhome plan. Host members are computed usingh@uther things, the
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average number of BlueCafdlaims received per month. BlueCé&rdost membership accounted for 14.2% , 13.9% antbd4f our
medical members at December 31, 2013, 2012 antl 2@Epectively.

Medicare customers are Medicare-eligible indiidmembers age 65 and over who have enrolled uliddee Advantage, a managed
care alternative for the Medicare program, who hawehased Medicare Supplement benefit coverages stisabled under 65, or all
ages with End Stage Renal Disease. Medicare Supplamolicies are sold to Medicare recipients apkuments to the benefits they
receive from the Medicare program. Rates are filéd and in some cases approved by state insuidegartments. Most of the
premium for Medicare Advantage is paid directlytbg Federal government on behalf of the participard may also be charged a
small premium. Medicare Supplement and Medicareafithge products are marketed in the same maniegry through
independent agents and brokers. Medicare busicessiated for 4.1% , 4.4% and 4.3% of our medicahimers at December 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011 , respectively.

Medicaid membership represents eligible meminis receive health care benefits through publialydied health care programs,
including Medicaid, CHIP and Medicaid expansiongseans. Total Medicaid program business accountediZ@3% , 12.5% anf.5%
of our medical members at December 31, 2013 , 2062011 , respectively.

FEP members consist of United States governemptoyees and their dependents within our geogeapharkets through our
participation in the national contract betweenBI@GBSA and the U.S. Office of Personnel ManagemeBP business accounted for
4.3% , 4.2% and 4.4% of our medical members at Dbee 31, 2013 , 2012 and 2011 , respectively.

In addition to reporting our medical membershipcgtomer type, we report by funding arrangemenbralieg to the level of risk that we
assume in the product contract. Our two principabling arrangement categories are fully-insuredsatfdfunded. Fully-insured products are
products in which we indemnify our policyholdersaagt costs for health benefits. Self-funded prdslace offered to customers, generally
larger employers, who elect to retain most or fithe financial risk associated with their employedwealth care costs. Some self-funded
customers choose to purchase stop-loss coverdigaititheir retained risk.

-49 -




The following table presents our medical memberslyigustomer type, funding arrangement and replertsdgment as of December 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011 . Also included below is othembership by product. The medical membershipodimer membership presented are
unaudited and in certain instances include estisnaft¢he number of members represented by eachacot the end of the period.

December 31 2013 vs. 2012 2012 vs. 2011
(In thousands) 2013 2012 2011 Change % Change Change % Change
Medical Membership
Customer Type
Local Group 14,69( 14,63¢ 15,21: 56 0.4 (57¢) 3.9
Individual 1,75t 1,85¢ 1,84¢ (200 (5.9 9 0.t
National:
National Accounts 6,77¢ 6,99¢ 7,401 (229 (3.2 (402) (5.9
BlueCard® 5,05( 5,01¢ 4,93t 34 0.7 81 1.€
Total National 11,82t 12,01t 12,33¢ (290 (1.6 (321 (2.€)
Medicare 1,47¢ 1,58¢ 1,471 (20€) (6.6 11¢ 7.8
Medicaid 4,37¢ 4,52( 1,867 (142 (3.7 2,65: 142.1
FEP 1,527 1,52( 1,51¢ 7 0.t 1 0.1
Total Medical Membership by Customer Type  35,65¢ 36,13( 34,25! (477) (1.9 1,87¢ 5.E
Funding Arrangement
Self-Funded 20,29 20,17¢ 20,50¢ 11€ 0.€ (330 (1.€)
Fully-Insured 15,35¢ 15,95¢ 13,74: (595) (3.7) 2,20¢ 16.1
Total Medical Membership by Funding
Arrangement 35,65: 36,13( 34,25! (477) (1.9 1,87¢ 5.5
Reportable Segment
Commercial and Specialty Business 28,27( 28,50« 29,39 (239 (0.8 (890 (3.0
Government Business 7,38: 7,62¢ 4,857 (243 (3.2 2,76¢ 57.C
Total Medical Membership by Reportable
Segment 35,65 36,13( 34,25 (477 (1.9 1,87¢ 5.E
Other Membership & Customers
Behavioral Health Members 24,37: 24,15¢ 25,13t 21€ 0.€ (979 (3.9
Life and Disability Members 4,81¢ 4,83¢ 5,012 (19 (0.9 (179 (3.5
Dental Members 4,89t 4,86: 5,06¢ 32 0.7 (206) 4.7
Dental Administration Members 4,88¢ 4,10 4,16 783 19.1 (59) (1.9
Vision Members 4,74 4,51¢ 3,78: 224 5.C 73€ 19.t
Medicare Advantage Part D Members 62¢ 734 63E (10€) (14.9 99 15.€
Medicare Part D Standalone Members 474 574 667 (100 (17.9 (93 (13.9
Retail Vision Customers 3,11¢ 3,13( — (16) (0.5 3,13( —

December 31, 2013 Compared to December 31, 2012

Medical Membership (in thousands

During the year ended December 31, 2013 , totaicakthembership decreased 477 , or 1.3% , primdtily to decreases in our National
Accounts, Medicaid, Medicare and Individual memhbgrs
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Self-funded medical membership increased 118 ,6%Q primarily due to increases in our Local Greeff-funded accounts, partially
offset by lapses in our National Accounts and Blaet® business.

Fully-insured membership decreased 595 , or 3.gfinarily due to membership losses in certain L&gadup and Individual markets, as
well as membership losses in our Medicaid and Madibusiness, described below.

Local Group membership increased 56 , or 0.4%mamily due to new sales in several markets, partidfset by insured membership
losses from strategic product portfolio changeseiniain states, competitive pressure in certairketarand, we believe, affordability challenges
affecting healthcare consumers in general.

Individual membership decreased 100 , or 5.4%maniy due to a heightened competitive environmermertain markets.
National Accounts membership decreased 224 , 86 3&imarily due to lapses in our self-funded bess.

BlueCard® membership increased 34 , or 0.7% , primarily duiavorable membership activity at other BCBSA plarhose members
reside in or travel to our licensed areas.

Medicare membership decreased 108 , or 6.8% , ghyntlue to our product repositioning strategy tosv&iMO product offerings.

Medicaid membership decreased 142 , or 3.1% , pifyrdue to membership losses in our California &ledv York plans and termination
of the Ohio contract on June 30, 2013, partialfgeifby an increase in membership in various aitees.

FEP membership increased 7 , or 0.5% , primariby tdufavorable in-group change.

Other Membership & Customers (in thousands)

Our Other products are often ancillary to our Hehlisiness and can therefore be impacted by caméamy changes in our medical
membership.

Behavioral health membership increased 216 , &6 Q.primarily due to increased penetration into@menmercial market.

Life and disability membership decreased 19 , %0, primarily due to the overall declines in owun@mercial and Specialty Business
medical membership. Life and disability products generally offered as part of Commercial and $igcBusiness medical membership si

Dental membership increased 32 , or 0,88imarily due to growth from the launch of nevaguct offerings, partially offset by declines
our Commercial and Specialty Business membership.

Dental administration membership increased 783L9at%, primarily due to the acquisition of a large maségental contract pursuant
which we provide dental administrative services.

Vision membership increased 224 , or 5.0% , prilpaliie to strong sales and in-group change in @eal Group business.

Medicare Advantage Part D membership decreased dil084.4% , primarily due to our product repositig strategy toward HMO
product offerings.

Medicare Part D standalone membership decreaseddrQl7.4% , primarily due to competitive pressiareertain markets.

Retail vision customers decreased 16 , or 0.5%mauily due to a contract termination with a laigdependent retailer.
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December 31, 2012 Compared to December 31, 2011

Medical Membership (in thousand:s

During the year ended December 31, 2012 , totaicaethembership increased 1,879 , or 5.5% , primdtie to Medicaid membership
acquired with the acquisition of Amerigroup andwtio in our Medicare membership, partially offsetdgcreases in our Local Group and
National Accounts membershi

Self-funded medical membership decreased 330.686 1 primarily due to pricing increases in ouriNaal Accounts business.

Fully-insured membership increased 2,209 , or 16.p¥marily due to Medicaid membership acquirethvihe acquisition of Amerigroup
and growth in our Medicare membership, partialfisef by membership losses in certain Local Grougkata resulting primarily from stratec
product portfolio changes and heightened compatitio

Local Group membership decreased 578, or 3.8%napity due to increased competition, strategicdmat portfolio changes in the New
York market and network rental markets and negatixgroup change.

Individual membership increased 9 , or 0.5% , prilpaue to an overall improved competitive positim our California market.

National Accounts membership decreased 402 , 8t 5 grimarily driven by pricing increases in oulfganded National Accounts
business and negative in-group change.

BlueCard® membership increased 81 , or 1.6% , primarily dulavorable net sales and in-group change at @B&SA plans whose
members reside in or travel to our licensed areas.

Medicare membership increased 115, or 7.8% , pilyndue to strong sales during the open enrollnpartod resulting from our
geographic expansion into several new countiesMeticare Advantage membership acquired with theliaatgn of Amerigroup, partially
offset by the withdrawal of the California RegioP®*O Medicare Advantage product.

Medicaid membership increased 2,653 , or 142.18itngpily due to 2,621 members acquired with theusgitjion of Amerigroup and
growth in Wisconsin, California and Kansas, paliaffset by exiting selected markets.

FEP membership increased 1, or 0.1% , primariby tdufavorable in-group change.

Other Membership & Customers (in thousands)

Our Other products are often ancillary to our Hehlisiness and can therefore be impacted by camegm changes in our medical
membership.

Behavioral health membership decreased 979 , &t 3®imarily due to the overall declines in oullyftinsured medical membership and
negative in-group change.

Life and disability membership decreased 174 ,.8%3, primarily due to the overall declines in gommercial fully-insured medical
membership and negative in-group change. Life asabdity products are generally offered as partahmercial medical fully-insured
membership sales.

Dental membership decreased 206 , or 4.1% , piyrduie to the lapse of a large dental contractjgddr offset by the launch of new
dental products in 2012.

Dental administration membership decreased 54,486 , primarily due to the lapse of a large carttpursuant to which we provided
dental administrative services.

Vision membership increased 736 , or 19.5% , prilgndue to strong sales and positive in-group cleaingour National Accounts, Local
Group and Medicare businesses.

Medicare Advantage Part D membership increased®45.6% , primarily due to strong sales duringy ¢ipen enroliment period resulting
from our geographic expansion into several new tiesrand members acquired with the
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acquisition of Amerigroup, partially offset by owithdrawal of the California Regional PPO MedicAavantage product.
Medicare Part D standalone membership decreasedraB3.9% , primarily due to competitive pressiareertain markets.
Retail vision customers increased 3,130 due taoquisition of 1-800 CONTACTS.

Cost of Care

The following discussion summarizes our aggregatetlying cost of care trends for the year endedeler 31, 2013 for our Local
Group fully-insured business only.

Our cost of care trends are calculated by compdhiagyear-over-year change in average per membeangeath claim costs, including
member co-payments and deductibles. While ourafostre trend varies by geographic location, basednderlying medical cost trends, we
estimate that our aggregate cost of care trendappioximately 6.0% for the full year of 2013 . Waieipate that medical cost trends will
increase by approximately 50 basis points in 2014.

Overall, our medical cost trend is driven by umistt Inpatient hospital trend is in the mid-to-h&jhgle digit range and is 80% cost driven
and 20% utilization driven. While provider ratelieases are a primary driver of unit cost trendscevginually negotiate with hospitals to
manage these cost trends. We remain committedtimiapng our reimbursement rates and strategidwetp address the cost pressures faced |
employers and consumers. Inpatient admission cqertthousand members and inpatient day countdipasand members are both slightly
higher than the prior year. The average lengthayf s slightly lower than the prior year. In adlulit to our re-contracting efforts, a number of
clinical management initiatives are in place tgheitigate the inpatient trend. Focused reviewrgffoontinue in key areas, including targeting
outlier facilities for length of stay and readmdssi and spinal surgery cases, among others. Additig we continue to refine our programs
related to readmission management, focused belaiealth readmission reduction and post-dischinigmwv-up care.

Outpatient trend is in the mid-single digit rangel & 90% cost driven and 10% utilization drivemt@atient costs are a collection of
different types of expenses, such as outpatieiiitfes, labs, x-rays, emergency room, and occuyeti and physical therapy. Per visit costs ar
still the largest contributor to overall outpati¢rend, influenced largely by price increases withértain provider contracts. Outpatient
utilization (visits per thousand members) is slighigher than the prior year. We continue to waiikh vendors and providers to help optimize
site of service decisions, including key areas saschmergency room, lab, radiology, sleep studied,surgery settings. As an example, we
have launched a Sleep Management Program throughroerican Imaging Management subsidiary in westitial and north-east states. The
program aligns the diagnosis and treatment of sipega with clinical guidelines based on widelyegated medical literature, while at the se
time enhancing member access to high value pravialed ensuring treatment compliance for the coimtinpayment for equipment rental and
ongoing supplies. Programs like this, along withtdwed expansion and optimization of our utilizatmanagement programs, are serving to
moderate trend.

Physician services trend is in the mid-single digitge and is unit cost driven. Increases in thgiplan care category are partially driven
by contracting changes. We continue to collabonétie physicians to improve quality of care throywgy-for-performance programs and
bundled payment initiatives. Additionally, we cante to enhance our ability to detect and detedfend abuse, reducing waste in the system

Pharmacy trend is in the mid-single digit range &80% unit cost related and 50% utilization retatContinued inflation in the average
wholesale price of drugs is applying upward pressarthe overall cost per prescription, as is tloedasing cost of specialty drugs. The incr
in cost per prescription measures continues toibgated by improvements in our generic usage ratesbenefit plan design changes. We are
continuously evaluating our drug formulary to emstite most effective pharmaceutical therapies aaiadle to our members.

In response to cost trends, we continue to pursaogacting and plan design changes, promote antkimgnt performance-based contract:
that reward clinical outcomes and quality, and expaur radiology management, disease managemermtduaticed care management
programs. We believe we are taking a leading rotbé area of payment reform as evidenced by obafted Personal Health Care program
(previously the Patient Centered Primary Care @ogr By establishing the primary care doctor asraéto the coordination of a patient’s
health care needs, the initiative
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builds on the success of current patient-centeredical home programs in helping to improve pateame while lowering costs. We have
instituted clinical liaisons working with participiag provider offices sharing reports and costarecdata with providers as well as facilitating
referrals to and from care management programsitiddelly, our valuebased contracting initiative continues to unders@ur commitment
partnering with providers to improve quality anevér cost.

-54 -




Consolidated Results of Operations

Our consolidated summarized results of operationghie years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and&@ldiscussed in the following
section.

Change
Years Ended December 31 2013 vs. 2012 2012 vs. 2011
2013 2012 2011 $ % $ %

Total operating revenue $ 70,191. $ 60514( $ 59.865.:. $ 9,677. 16.C $ 648.¢ 1.1
Net investment income 659.1 686.1 703.7 27.0 3.9 (17.¢) (2.5)
Net realized gains on investments 271.¢ 334.¢ 235.1 (63.0 (18.¢) 99.¢ 42.F
Other-than-temporary impairment losses on

investments (98.9) (37.9) (93.9 (61.7) (161.¢ 55.t 59.t
Total revenues 71,023.! 61,497.. 60,710. 9,526.! 15.F 786.t 1.3
Benefit expense 56,237.: 48,213 47,647 8,023.! 16.€ 566.1
Selling, general and administrative expense 9,952.¢ 8,680.! 8,435.¢ 1,272.¢ 14.7 244 ¢ 2.8
Other expensé 993.¢ 744.¢ 669.7 248t 33.4 75.1 11.2
Total expenses 67,183.. 57,638. 56,752.¢ 9,544.. 16.€ 886.1 1.6
Income from continuing operations before

income tax expense 3,840.: 3,858.! 3,957.¢ (18.3) (0.5 (99.6) (2.5)
Income tax expense 1,205.¢ 1,207.: 1,311.: (1.4 (0.7 (103.9) (7.9
Income from continuing operations 2,634.0 2,651.( 2,646." (16.7) (0.€) 4.2 0.2
(Loss) income from discontinued operations,

net of tax? (144.¢ 4.5 — (249.) NM 2 4.5 —
Net income $ 2,489 % 2,655 % 2,646.7 $ (165.9) 6.2 $ 8.8 0.3
Average diluted shares outstanding 303.¢ 324.¢ 365.1 (21.0 (6.5) (40.9) (11.0
Diluted net income (loss) per share:

Diluted - continuing operations $ 867 $ 817 $ 728 % 0.5C 6.1 $ 0.92 12.7

Diluted - discontinued operatiofs (0.47) 0.01 — (0.4¢) NM 2 0.01 —
Diluted net income per share $ 82 $ 8.1 % 728 % 0.0z 0z $ 0.9z 12.¢
Benefit expense ratib 85.1% 85.2% 85.1% (20)bp® 20bp°®
Selling, general and administrative expense fatio

14.2% 14.2% 14.1% (10)bp® 20bp*®

Income from continuing operations before

income taxes as a percentage of total rever 5.4% 6.3% 6.5% (90)bp°® (20)bp°®
Net income as a percentage of total revenue 3.5% 4.3% 4.4% (80)bp® (10)bp®

Certain of the following definitions are also agplble to all other results of operations tablethis discussion:

Includes interest expense, amortization of othemigible assets and loss on extinguishment of

2 The operating results of 1-800 CONTACTS are repbaie discontinued operations at December 31, 28 83 asult of the pending
divestiture.

3 Calculation not meaningft
Benefit expense ratio represents benefit expenagpascentage of premium revenue. Premiums foye¢hes ended December 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011 were $66,119.1 , $56,496.7 and $95B96espectively. Premiums are included in tofsrating revenue presented above
bp = basis point; one hundred basis points =

Selling, general and administrative expense rajoasents selling, general and administrative esgpas a percentage of total operating
revenue.
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Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared to the Yeuwled December 31, 2012

Total operating revenue increased $9,677.4 , @%6.to $70,191.4 in 2013 , resulting primarilyrfrdiigher premiums and, to a lesser
extent, increased administrative fees. The highempms were mainly due to increases in our Medibaisiness primarily as a result of our
acquisition of Amerigroup in December 2012. Ratg@ases in our Local Group, FEP, Individual anddya businesses designed to cover
overall cost trends as well as premium rate and Ipeeship increases in our Specialty businessesramnedsed administrative fees resulting
from pricing increases for self-funded membersin©@ommercial businesses also contributed to theased operating revenue. These
increases were partially offset by fully-insuredmisrship declines in our Local Group business dusrategic portfolio changes in certain
states, competitive pressure in certain marketswwadelieve, affordability challenges affectingliecare consumers in general. Additionally,
lower revenues in our Medicare Advantage and Medi€art D businesses primarily due to membershifirdss as a result of our product
repositioning strategy toward HMO product offeripgartially offset the increased operating revenues

Net investment income decreased $27.0 , or 3.9246%59.1 in 2013 , primarily due to lower investringields.

Net realized gains on investments decreased $68.08.8% , to $271.9 in 2013rimarily due to lower net realized gains on saléfixed
maturity securities partially offset by an increas@et realized gains on sales of equity secatiteerealized gain on the partial divestiture of ar
equity method investment and an increase in nékzegbgains on sales and settlements of derivditiamcial instruments.

Other-than-temporary impairment losses on investsiecreased $61.1 , or 161.6% , to $98.9 in 2pfi®arily due to the impairment of
certain joint venture investments and fixed mayusicurities.

Benefit expense increased $8,023.5 , or 16.69856237.1 in 2013, primarily from our acquisitiohAmerigroup and increased benefit
costs in our Local Group, Individual and FEP busses. These increases were partially offset bjutheinsured membership declines in our
Local Group and Medicare Advantage businessessasibded above.

Our benefit expense ratio decreased 20.0 basisspoi85.1% in 2013, due, in part, to our prodepbsitioning strategy in certain
Medicare Advantage plans toward HMO product offgsimvith lower benefit costs. The decrease wasduidktributable to the favorable imp
of declines in membership in our Local Group buséni@ products with higher benefit costs and lothan expected medical cost trends. Thes
improvements were partially offset by the acquisitof Amerigroup, which carries higher average fiergpense ratios than our consolidated
average as well as higher than expected medicatrepsls in our Individual business.

Selling, general and administrative expense ine&4,272.4 , or 14.7% , to $9,952.9 in 2013 , grily due to the inclusion of selling,
general and administrative expense related to averfgroup subsidiary in 2013. The increase wahéurattributable to costs incurred in
preparation for the implementation of Health CaedédRm effective in 2014 as well as increases ieimive compensation as a result of our
operating performance.

Our selling, general and administrative expende decreased 10.0 basis points to 14.2% in 201iBnapily due to the effect of the
increase in operating revenue from Amerigroup plytoffset by the increased selling general antiatstrative expense discussed in the
preceding paragraph.

Other expenses increased $248.5 , or 33.4% , t8.39%9 2013 , primarily due to losses on debt eptishment of $145.3 associated with
our early redemption and repurchases of $1,10@€eggte principal amount of outstanding notes. @y 30, 2013, we initiated a cash tender
offer and consent solicitation to purchase certdiour outstanding 5.875% Notes due 2017, 7.000%eNdue 2019, 5.950% Notes due 2034,
5.850% Notes due 2036, 6.375% Notes due 2037 &% Notes due 2040 (collectively, the “Tenderedesd. On August 13, 2013, we
repurchased $700.0 of the Tendered Notes for caaling $837.7. Holders who tendered their notésr po the early tender date received the
principal amounts, applicable premium for earlyen@ghtion and accrued and unpaid interest to thg eéamtler offer settlement date.
Additionally, on September 5, 2013, we redeemeds#®.0 outstanding principal balance of our 6.0@&%ior unsecured notes due 2014,
applicable premium for early redemption and accramd unpaid interest to the redemption date, feh ¢ataling $411.0. The increase in other
expense was further attributable to increasedastarxpense resulting from higher outstanding balances associated with our acquisition of
Amerigroup and the issuance on July 30, 2013 o0$b6f 2.300% notes due 2018 and $600.0 of 5.10884srdue 2044 to fund, in part, the
early redemption and repurchases discussed above.
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Income tax expense decreased $1.4 , or 0.1% 208D in 2013 . The effective tax rates in 2018 2012 were 31.4% and 31.3%,
respectively. The effective tax rate in 2013 inésidhenefits resulting from a favorable tax electiade subsequent to the Amerigroup
acquisition and inclusion of Amerigroup in our stapportionment factors calculation, which producéswer effective state tax rate. The
effective tax rate in 2012 includes benefits resglfrom settlement with the IRS of items relatedhbt-for-profit conversions and corporate
reorganizations prior to 2012, as well as issukeda@ to certain of our acquired companies incupiar to our acquisition of those companies.
These favorable items in the 2012 effective ta@ ve¢re partially offset by increases due to theaichpf non-tax deductible litigation
settlement expenses and an increase in our stigieatbtax asset valuation allowance attributablertcertainty associated with certain state
operating loss carryforwards.

In December 2013, we entered into a definitive agrent to sell our 1-800 CONTACTS business and setgmirchase agreement to sell
our glasses.com related assets (collectively, 1@BONTACTS). The operating results for 1-800 CONT/A8Are reported as discontinued
operations as a result of the pending divestittiizegember 31, 2013. For the year ended Decemh&@03B, we recorded a loss from
discontinued operations, net of tax, of $144.6 careg to income from discontinued operations, néaxfof $4.5 for the year ended Decen
31, 2012. Included in the loss from discontinuedrafions for the year ended December 31, 2013lassson disposal of held for sale assets,
net of tax, of $164.5. The loss on disposal wasutated as the difference between the fair vals@edermined by the sales agreements less
costs to sell, and the carrying value of the hetdshle assets at December 31, 2013. The divesstituere completed on January 31, 2014 and
did not result in any material difference to thesdmn disposal recognized during the year endedreer 31, 2013.

Our net income as a percentage of total revenueadsed 80.0 basis points to 3.5% in 2013 as compar2012 as a result of all factors
discussed above.

Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared to the Yeuwled December 31, 2011

Total operating revenue increased $648.8 , or 1dl$60,514.0 in 2012 , resulting primarily from hé premium revenue and, to a lesser
extent, increased administrative fees. The highempm revenue was due primarily to membership tliawour Medicare Advantage
business, including CareMore, and growth in our Maid business, primarily in the California markes, well as revenue from Amerigroup’s
operations during the post-acquisition period.ddition, premium rate increases in our Local Grang Individual businesses designed to
cover overall cost trends and increased reimbursemeur FEP business contributed to the incregsedhium revenue. These increases were
partially offset by fully-insured membership deelinin our Local Group business resulting from sgi&t product portfolio changes in certain
states, competitive pressure in certain marketsuafavorable economic conditions. Administrativedéncreased primarily as a result of
pricing increases for self-funded members in outidval Accounts and Local Group businesses, phrtidiset by membership declines in our
self-funded National Accounts business.

Net investment income decreased $17.6 , or 2.594686.1 in 2012 , primarily due to lower investrngields, partially offset by higher
average cash and investment balances resultingdatrissuances in 2012, including the debt isstiaglated to our acquisition of
Amerigroup.

Net realized gains on investments increased $9%.82.5% , to $334.9 in 2012rimarily due to increased gains on sales offixeturity
securities as a result of improved market condition

Other-than-temporary impairment losses on investsn@ecreased $55.5 , or 59.5% , to $37.8 in 20d@apily due to improved market
conditions.

Benefit expense increased $566.1 , or 1.2% , tg244836 in 2012 , primarily due to increases in Medicare and Medicaid businesses,
partially offset by decreases in our Local Groupibess. The increase in our Medicare business risgndorimarily by membership growth in
our Medicare Advantage business, including Carelatgle the increase in our Medicaid business wased by both increased benefit cost
trends and membership growth, including memberabguired with the acquisition of Amerigroup. Thésereases were partially offset by the
fully-insured membership declines in our Local Grdwsiness as described above, as well as favqueibleyear reserve development in 2012
compared to modest reserve strengthening in 2011.

Our benefit expense ratio increased 20 basis ptwrés.3% in 2012 , primarily due to higher medicasts in our Medicaid business,
primarily in California. The benefit expense ratigrease was partially offset by improvements in ou
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Local Group and Medicare businesses and the faleopator year reserve development.

Selling, general and administrative expense ine@&244.9 , or 2.9% , to $8,680.5 in 2012 , prilpatiue to additional selling, general
and administrative expense related to CareMorayisitipn and integration related expenses assatiatéh Amerigroup and the impairment of
certain software assets, partially offset by loasployee incentive compensation costs.

Our selling, general and administrative expende mtreased 20 basis points to 14.3% in 2012marily due to the increased selling,
general and administrative expense discussed iprdeading paragraph, partially offset by increaseerating revenue.

Other expense increased $75.1 , or 11.2% , to 87442012 primarily due to increased interest esgarsulting from higher outstanding
debt balances and financing costs associated withaquisition of Amerigroup.

Income tax expense decreased $103.9 , or 7.9%1,207.3 in 2012 , primarily due to a lower effeettax rate in 2012 and, to a lesser
extent, lower income from continuing operationsopefincome tax expense. The effective tax rat@0iP and 2011 were 31.3% and 33.1% ,
respectively. The effective tax rate decreasedgmilgpndue to the impact from the 2012 settlemerihwhe IRS of items related to not-for-profit
conversions and corporate reorganizations in years, as well as issues related to certain ohoguired companies incurred prior to our
acquisition of those companies. This was partiaifget by increases due to the impact of non-tadudgble litigation settlement expenses and
an increase in our state deferred tax asset vaiuatiowance attributable to uncertainty associatitd certain state net operating loss
carryforwards.

Our net income as a percentage of total revenueadsed 10 basis points to 4.3% in 2012 as compar2@ll as a result of all factors
discussed above.

Reportable Segments Results of Operati

We use operating gain to evaluate the performahoaraeportable segments, which are CommercialZpetialty Business; Government
Business; and Other. Operating gain is calculase@tal operating revenue less benefit expensesellidg, general and administrative expel
It does not include net investment income, netfzedlgains/losses on investments, other-than-teanpémpairment losses recognized in
income, interest expense, amortization of othemigible assets, loss on extinguishment of debtame taxes, as these items are manage
corporate shared service environment and are Batgponsibility of operating segment managementaBditional information, including a
reconciliation of non-GAAP financial measures, Bete 20, “Segment Information,” to our audited auitkated financial statements as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2013 includedignRfrm 10-K. The discussion of segment resultsHeryears ended December 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011 presented below are based on opgegatin, as described above, and operating mardiithws calculated as operating gain
divided by operating revenue. Our definitions oégiing gain and operating margin may not be coaipgarto similarly titled measures
reported by other companies.
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Our Commercial and Specialty Business, Governmestrigss, and Other segments’ summarized resuligestions for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Change
Years Ended December 31 2013 vs. 2012 2012 vs. 2011

2013 2012 2011 $ % $ %
Commercial and Specialty Businest
Operating revenue $ 38,790.. $ 38,852.¢ % 39,961.. $ (62.) 0.2% $ (1,108.) (2.8%
Operating gain $ 3,093 $ 3,339.. $ 3,344 $ (246.9) T79% $ (4.9 (0.2)%
Operating margin 8.C% 8.6% 8.4% (GCE:)p 2Cbp
Government Business
Operating revenue $ 31,366.° $ 21,625 $ 19,874.( $ 9,741 45(% $ 1,751. 8.6%
Operating gain $ 927.1 % 341.¢ % 461.€¢ % 585.: 1712% $ (119.9 (26.0%
Operating margin 3.C% 1.€% 2.3% 14Cbp (7Cbp
Other
Operating revenue $ 34¢€ % 352 % 30 % 0.9 239% $ 5.4 18.(%
Operating los$ $ (19.00 % (61.¢) $ 240 % 42.¢€ (69.9% $ (37.¢) 156.7 %

1 Fluctuations not materii
2 Fluctuations primarily a result of changes in lodted corporate expens

Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared to the Yewteld December 31, 2012

Commercial and Specialty Business

Operating revenue decreased $62.8 , or 0.2% ,§¥$8.1 in 2013, primarily due to fulipsured membership declines in our Local Gi
business resulting from strategic product portfeli@nges in certain states, competitive pressucertiain markets and, we believe, affordak
challenges affecting healthcare consumers in geriéhis decrease was partially offset by premiute facreases in our Local Group,
Individual and National businesses designed torcoverall cost trends, premium rate and memberisitcigases in our Specialty businesses,
primarily related to our dental and vision prodyeis well as increased administrative fees reguftiom pricing increases for self-funded
members in our Commercial businesses.

Operating gain decreased $246.4 , or 7.4% , to@8330n 2013, primarily as a result of higherisell general and administrative expense
driven by costs incurred in preparation for the lenpentation of Health Care Reform provisions thetdime effective in 2014 as well as
increases in allocated incentive compensationrasudt of consolidated operating performance. Té@ehse was further attributable to
increased benefit costs in our Individual busing&s®se decreases were partially offset by impraeesdits in our Local Group business
resulting from lower than anticipated medical doshds.

The operating margin in 2013 was 8.0% , a 60 hasist decrease over 2012 , primarily due to théofscdiscussed in the preceding two
paragraphs.

Government Business

Operating revenue increased $9,741.0 , or 45.@831,366.7 in 2013 , primarily due to the acqigsibf Amerigroup, growth in our FEP
business due to premium rate increases desigrex/&y overall cost trends, and increases in merhigens our CareMore and FEP businesses
These increases were partially offset by membemdédgtines in our non-CareMore Medicare AdvantageMadicare Part D businesses relate
to our product repositioning strategy toward HM©@drct offerings.

Operating gain increased $585.3 , or 171.2% , &y #9in 2013 , primarily due to the acquisitionAwherigroup and
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improved operating results in the majority of othier government lines of business.

The operating margin in 2013 was 3.0% , a 140 hasigt increase from 2012 , primarily due to thetéas discussed in the preceding two
paragraphs.

Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared to the Yewteld December 31, 2011

Commercial and Specialty Business

Operating revenue decreased $1,108.3 , or 2.8%38@52.9 in 2012 , primarily due to fully-insune@mbership declines in our Local
Group business resulting from strategic productfplio changes in certain states, competitive pressin certain markets and unfavorable
economic conditions, partially offset by premiurterancreases in our Local Group business desigmeduer overall cost trends. Partially
offsetting the decline in premium revenue was @ndase in administrative fees resulting from pgddimcreases for self-funded members in ou
National Accounts and Local Group busines

Operating gain decreased $4.8 , or 0.1% , to $37382012 , primarily as a result of declines ur bocal Group business due to fully-
insured membership losses as a result of strapegduct portfolio changes in certain markets, catitige pressure in certain markets and
unfavorable economic conditions as well as declinesir Individual business due to higher beneaditdrends. These decreases were partially
offset by an improved benefit expense ratio forloaral Group business, including the impact of fade prior year reserve development in
2012 compared to modest reserve strengtheninglih.20

The operating margin in 2012 was 8.6% , a 20 hasist increase from 2011 , primarily due to thedas discussed in the preceding two
paragraphs.

Government Business

Operating revenue increased $1,751.7 , or 8.8%$210625.7 in 2012 , primarily due to membershipagh in our Medicare Advantage
business, including CareMore, and, to a lessenéxgeowth in our Medicaid business resulting froetroactive premium rate increases in the
California market as well as premium revenue fromeigroup’s operations during the post-acquisippeniod. Additionally, growth in our
FEP business resulting from premium rate incredssigned to cover overall cost trends during 2Qi#ributed to the increase.

Operating gain decreased $119.8 , or 26.0% , t6.834 2012 , primarily due to declines in our Meadd business due to higher benefit
cost trends and increased general and adminigtratigense resulting from transaction expensesiagsoevith the Amerigroup acquisition &
restructuring activities.

The operating margin in 2012 was 1.6% , a 70 hasirst decrease from 2011 , primarily due to thedescdiscussed in the preceding two
paragraphs.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We prepare our consolidated financial statementsimormity with GAAP. Application of GAAP requiresanagement to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the amounts reportedriconsolidated financial statements and accogipgmotes and within this MD&A. We
consider our most important accounting policies thguire significant estimates and managementmugig to be those policies with respect to
liabilities for medical claims payable, income taxgoodwill and other intangible assets, investsiant retirement benefits, which are
discussed below. Our other significant accountiolicpes are summarized in Note 2, “Basis of Prestiont and Significant Accounting
Policies,” to our audited consolidated financialtsiments as of and for the year ended Decemb&O033,, included in this Form 10-K.

We continually evaluate the accounting policies astilnates used to prepare the consolidated fiabstaitements. In general, our
estimates are based on historical experience, avatuof current trends, information from third fyaprofessionals and various other
assumptions that we believe to be reasonable uhddmnown facts and circumstances.
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Medical Claims Payabl

The most subjective accounting estimate in our clideted financial statements is our liability foedical claims payable. At
December 31, 2013, this liability was $6,127.2 eegresented 17.6% of our total consolidated ligddl. We record this liability and the
corresponding benefit expense for incurred bufpadd claims including the estimated costs of prsicgssuch claims. Incurred but not paid
claims include (1) an estimate for claims thatiaceirred but not reported, as well as claims reqgbtd us but not yet processed through our
systems, which approximated 95.5%, or $5,851.0uoftotal medical claims liability as of Decembdr, 2013 ; and (2) claims reported to us
and processed through our systems but not yet waidh approximated 4.5%, or $276.2, of the totatinal claims payable as of
December 31, 2013 . The level of claims payablegssed through our systems but not yet paid magutitie from one period end to the next,
from 1% to 5% of our total medical claims liabilitgue to timing of when claim payments are made.

Liabilities for both claims incurred but not repexitand reported but not yet processed throughysterss are determined in aggregate,
employing actuarial methods that are commonly dseldealth insurance actuaries and meet Actuaradgirds of Practice. Actuarial
Standards of Practice require that the claim lisddl be appropriate under moderately adverse wistances. We determine the amount of the
liability for incurred but not paid claims by follong a detailed actuarial process that entailsgibith historical claim payment patterns as
as emerging medical cost trends to project our éstghate of claim liabilities. Under this procesistorical paid claims data is formatted into
“claim triangles,” which compare claim incurred esto the dates of claim payments. This informasamalyzed to create “completion
factors” that represent the average percentagagafincurred claims that have been paid througtven date after being incurred. Completion
factors are applied to claims paid through theqakteind date to estimate the ultimate claim expensered for the period. Actuarial estimates
of incurred but not paid claim liabilities are th@etermined by subtracting the actual paid claimmfthe estimate of the ultimate incurred
claims.

For the most recent incurred months (typicallyiest recent two months), the percentage of cla@mis for claims incurred in those
months is generally low. This makes the completamtor methodology less reliable for such montheer€fore, incurred claims for recent
months are not projected from historical completimd payment patterns; rather they are projectezbbgnating the claims expense for those
months based on recent claims expense levels atith lvare trend levels, or “trend factors.”

Because the reserve methodology is based upomib#tmformation, it must be adjusted for knownsmspected operational and
environmental changes. These adjustments are nyaolgr lactuaries based on their knowledge and #stimate of emerging impacts to ben
costs and payment speed. Circumstances to be eoedith developing our best estimate of reservelade changes in utilization levels, unit
costs, mix of business, benefit plan designs, pleEvieimbursement levels, processing system coiowvisrand changes, claim inventory levels,
claim processing patterns, claim submission pagtand operational changes resulting from businesbimations. A comparison of prior
period liabilities to re-estimated claim liabiliidased on subsequent claims development is atsidesed in making the liability
determination. In our comparison of prior year, tiiethods and assumptions are not changed as resgeveecalculated; rather the availability
of additional paid claims information drives ouiadiges in the re-estimate of the unpaid claim ligbilT o the extent appropriate, changes in
such development are recorded as a change to tpgead benefit expense.

We regularly review and set assumptions regardasg ttends and utilization when initially estabirgiclaim liabilities. We continually
monitor and adjust the claims liability and benefipense based on subsequent paid claims acthviitys determined that our assumptions
regarding cost trends and utilization are signiftbadifferent than actual results, our incomeestaént and financial position could be impactec
in future periods. Adjustments of prior year estiésamay result in additional benefit expense @daction of benefit expense in the period an
adjustment is made. Further, due to the considerabiability of health care costs, adjustmentslaim liabilities occur each period and are
sometimes significant as compared to the net inc@oarded in that period. Prior period developniemécognized immediately upon the
actuary’s judgment that a portion of the prior pdriiability is no longer needed or that an addigibliability should have been accrued. That
determination is made when sufficient informatisravailable to ascertain that the re-estimateefittbility is reasonable.

While there are many factors that are used astabptre estimation of our medical claims payamd®ility, the two key assumptions
having the most significant impact on our incurbed not paid claims liability as of December 3112@vere the completion and trend factors.
As discussed above, these two key assumptionsecarflbenced by other operational
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variables including system changes, provider susionispatterns and business combinations.

There is variation in the reasonable choice of detign factors by duration for durations of threenths through twelve months where the
completion factors have the most significant impastpreviously discussed, completion factors tenie less reliable for the most recent
months and therefore are not specifically utilifmdmonths one and two. In our analysis for thénclgabilities at December 31, 2013 , the
variability in months three to five was estimatede between 40 and 90 basis points, while morikhitiough twelve have much lower
variability ranging from 0 to 30 basis points.

The difference in completion factor assumptionspasng moderately adverse experience, resultsriahitity of 2%, or approximately
$146.0, in the December 31, 2013 incurred but aat plaims liability, depending on the completiaetors chosen. It is important to note that
the completion factor methodology inherently asssithat historical completion rates will be reflgetiof the current period. However, it is
possible that the actual completion rates for tiveent period will develop differently from histosl patterns and therefore could fall outside
the possible variations described herein.

The other major assumption used in the establishofehe December 31, 2013 incurred but not paihtliability was the trend factors.
In our analysis for the period ended December 8132 there was a 310 basis point differentiahmtiigh and low trend factors assuming
moderately adverse experience. This range of ti@etdrs would imply variability of 5%, or approxitedy $279.0, in the incurred but not paid
claims liability, depending upon the trend factosed. Because historical trend factors are oftémepsesentative of current claim trends, the
trend experience for the most recent six to ninethng plus knowledge of recent events likely affecturrent trends, have been taken into
consideration in establishing the incurred butpwt claims liability at December 31, 2013 .

See Note 12, “Medical Claims Payable,” to our adiitonsolidated financial statements as of anthioyear ended December 31, 2013
included in this Form 10-K, for a reconciliationtbe beginning and ending balance for medical dgwayable for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 . Componenteedbtal incurred claims for each year include ant®accrued for current year estimated
claims expense as well as adjustments to prior gstémated accruals. In Note 12, “Medical Claimgdpéde,” the line labeled “Net incurred
medical claims: Prior years redundancies” accofantthose adjustments made to prior year estimates.impact of any reduction of “Net
incurred medical claims: Prior years redundancieay be offset as we establish the estimate of fiNetrred medical claims: Current year.”
Our reserving practice is to consistently recogtiieeactuarial best estimate of our ultimate liggbfbr our claims. When we recognize a
release of the redundancy, we disclose the ambahtg not in the ordinary course of business,aferial.

The ratio of current year medical claims paid @ecent of current year net medical claims incuwed 89.3% for 2013, 89.1% for 2012
and 88.8% for 2011 . The increase in these ratif'eats acceleration in processing claims that mecuover the course of the past three years

We calculate the percentage of prior yeaesiundancies in the current year as a percenti@fyears' net incurred claims payable less |
year¢ redundancies in the current year in order to destrate the development of the prior years’ reservhis metric was 10.8% for the year
ended December 31, 2013, 10.4% for the year endedmber 31, 2012 and 4.5% for the year ended Dis=e8i, 2011 . The years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012 reflect a higher lefgrgeted reserve for adverse deviation and dteggthigher level of prior years'
redundancies than the year ended December 31, 2011.

We calculate the percentage of prior years’ rednoi@a in the current period as a percent of praaryg’ net incurred medical claims to
indicate the percentage of redundancy includetiérpreceding year calculation of current year metired medical claims. We believe this
calculation supports the reasonableness of our peiar estimate of incurred medical claims andcthresistency in our methodology. For the
year endedDecember 31, 2013 , this metric was 1.3% , which eadculated using the redundancy of $599.1 . fit@sic was 1.1% for 2012
and 0.5% for 2011 .
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The following table shows the variance between tweaincurred medical claims as reported in N&@&g“Medical Claims Payable,” to our
audited consolidated financial statements as offanthe year ended December 31, 2013 includeldignRorm 10-K, for each of 2012 a@f11
and the incurred claims for such years had it liitarmined retrospectively (computed as the diffeeebetween “net incurred medical claims
— current year” for the year shown and “net incumegtlical claims — prior years redundancies” forithmediately following year):

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011
Total net incurred medical claims, as reported $ 47,566.! $ 47,071
Retrospective basis, as described above 47,481.( 46,768.(
Variance $ 855 % 303.¢
Variance to total net incurred medical claims,esorted 0.2% 0.6%

Given that our business is primarily short tailethich means that medical claims are generally patidin twelve months of the member
receiving service from the provider), the variatméotal net incurred medical claims, as reporteova, is used to assess the reasonableness
our estimate of ultimate incurred medical claimsdaiven calendar year with the benefit of oneryéaxperience. We expect that
substantially all of the development of the 201tneste of medical claims payable will be known digr2014.

The 2012 variance to total net incurred medicahtdaas reported of 0.2% was smaller in value thar2011 percentage of 0.6% . The
lower 2012 variance was driven by a more consides of prior year redundancies in 2013 and 2@dsbciated with 2012 and 2011 claim
payments, respectively. Prior year redundanci@firl associated with 2010 claim payments were rfawe@r by comparison, thus creating a
higher 2011 variance.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance with FA8ilance, which requires, among other thingss#parate recognition of deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities. Such defietax assets and deferred tax liabilities reprietbee tax effect of temporary differences
between financial reporting and tax reporting meagat tax rates enacted at the time the defeareddset or liability is recorded. A valuation
allowance must be established for deferred taxsafseis “more likely than not” that all or a pimn may be unrealized. Our judgment is
required in determining an appropriate valuatidavednce.

At each financial reporting date, we assess thquatyy of the valuation allowance by evaluating ezfobur deferred tax assets based on
the following:

» the types of temporary differences that createdidierred tax ass
» the amount of taxes paid in prior periods angilable for a carrysack claim
» the forecasted future taxable income, and thereftdy future deduction of the deferred tax iteamg

e any significant other issues impacting the likedglization of the benefit of the temporary diffezes

We, like other companies, frequently face challsngem tax authorities regarding the amount of sackee. These challenges include
questions regarding the timing and amount of deédnstthat we have taken on our tax returns. Inuatalg any additional tax liability
associated with various positions taken in ourédmrn filings, we record additional liabilitiesrfpotential adverse tax outcomes. Based on ou
evaluation of our tax positions, we believe we happropriately accrued for uncertain tax benedissiequired by the guidance. To the extent
we prevail in matters we have accrued for, ourrieffective tax rate would be reduced and netrireavould increase. If we are required to
pay more than accrued, our future effective ta vauld increase and net income would decreaseefirative tax rate and net income in any
given future period could be materially impacted.

In the ordinary course of business, we are regubaurtited by federal and other tax authorities, faooh time to time, these audits result in
proposed assessments. We believe our tax posa@amply with applicable tax law and we intend toed®f our positions vigorously through
federal, state and local appeals processes. Wevbelie have adequately
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provided for any reasonable foreseeable outconatebto these matters. Accordingly, although thkimate resolution may require additional
tax payments, we do not anticipate any materiabichpn our results of operations from these matters

For additional information, see Note 8, “Income &sX to our audited consolidated financial statetmes of and for the year ended
December 31, 2013, included in this Form 10-K.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Our consolidated goodwill at December 31, 2013 $88917.2 and other intangible assets were $8,441h@ sum of goodwill and other
intangible assets represented 42.6% of our totedaaated assets and 102.4% of our consolidataabblders’ equity at December 31, 2013

We follow FASB guidance for business combinationd goodwill and other intangible assets, which gfgscthe types of acquired
intangible assets that are required to be recodrard reported separately from goodwill. Underghielance, goodwill and other intangible
assets (with indefinite lives) are not amortizeti dme tested for impairment at least annually. ffemmhore, goodwill and other intangible assets
are allocated to reporting units for purposes efghnual impairment test. Our impairment testsirequs to make assumptions and judgments
regarding the estimated fair value of our reportings, which include goodwill and other intangiblesets. In addition, certain other intangible
assets with indefinite lives, such as trademanksatso tested separately.

We complete our annual impairment tests of exisiogdwill and other intangible assets with indaérives during the fourth quarter of
each year. These tests involve the use of estimaled to the fair value of goodwill at the refpag unit level and other intangible assets with
indefinite lives, and require a significant degofenanagement judgment and the use of subjectsungations. Certain interim impairment
tests are also performed when potential impairrratitators exist or changes in our business orrdtiggering events occur.

Fair value is estimated using the income and maptoaches for goodwill at the reporting unit lemgd the income approach for our
indefinite lived intangible assets. Use of the meoand market approaches for our goodwill impairntest reflects our view that both
valuation methodologies provide a reasonable egtimigfair value. The income approach is developsidg assumptions about future revenue
expenses and net income derived from our interiaalning process. These estimated future cash floeshen discounted. Our assumed
discount rate is based on our industry’s weightesl@ge cost of capital. Market valuations are basedbserved multiples of certain measure:
including membership, revenue and EBITDA (earnibgfore interest, taxes, depreciation and amortingtind include market comparisons to
publicly traded companies in our industry.

With the exception of the treatment associated with1-800 CONTACTS disposal, we did not incur anpairment losses as a result of
our 2013 annual impairment tests as the estimaieadlues of our reporting units were substantiallexcess of the carrying values as of
December 31, 2013. Additionally, we do not belitvat the estimated fair values of our reportingsuare at risk of becoming impaired in the
next twelve months. However, as a result of cepaavisions of Health Care Reform, along with catreconomic conditions and continued
high unemployment rates, we have experienced lowerating margins in certain lines of business.sehmargins could become further
compressed if unemployment levels remain high &nesults from implementation of Health Care Refara significantly different than
anticipated. As a result, the estimated fair valfesertain of our reporting units with goodwillud fall below their carrying values in future
periods and if that were to occur, we would be neglto record impairment losses at that time.

While we believe we have appropriately allocateglghrchase price of our acquisitions, this all@satiequires many assumptions to be
made regarding the fair value of assets and lisslacquired. In addition, estimated fair valuegsaedloped based on our assumptions and
judgments might be significantly different if otheasonable assumptions and estimates were teebeliigstimated fair values are less t|
the carrying values of goodwill and other intanggblith indefinite lives in future annual impairméests, or if significant impairment
indicators are noted relative to other intangitssets subject to amortization, we may be requoeddord impairment losses against future
income.

For additional information, see Note 3, "Busineggjéisitions and Divestitures" and Note 10, “Goodiarid Other Intangible Assets,” to
our audited consolidated financial statements adffor the year ended December 31, 2013, indlirdéhis Form 10-K.

-64 -




Investments

Current and long-term available-for-sale investnsauurities were $19,254.9 at December 31, 2013eprésented 32.3% of our total
consolidated assets at December 31, 2013 . Wafgléizsed maturity and equity securities in our #stment portfolio as “available-for-sale” or
“trading” and report those securities at fair valGertain fixed maturity securities are availaldestipport current operations and, accordingly,
we classify such investments as current assetoutitiegard to their contractual maturity. Investisarsed to satisfy contractual, regulatory or
other requirements are classified as long-termhaut regard to contractual maturity.

We review investment securities to determine iflides in fair value below cost are other-than-terapp This review is subjective and
requires a high degree of judgment. We conductréhiiew on a quarterly basis, using both qualieaéwnd quantitative factors, to determine
whether a decline in value is other-than-tempor&nch factors considered include the length of timeé the extent to which a security’s
market value has been less than its cost, themedepthe decline in value (i.e., credit event pamed to liquidity, general credit spread
widening, currency exchange rate or interest i@teofs), financial condition and near term prospetthe issuer, including the credit ratings
and changes in the credit ratings of the issuenmenendations of investment advisors, and forecdstsonomic, market or industry trends. In
addition, for equity securities, we determine wleetive have the intent and ability to hold the siggdior a period of time to allow for a
recovery of its fair value above its carrying ambulifany declines of equity securities are deteedito be other-thatemporary, we charge t
losses to income when that determination is made.

Certain FASB other-than-temporary impairment, oiSBAOTTI, guidance applies to fixed maturity sedesitand provides guidance on the
recognition and presentation of other-than-tempoirapairments. In addition, this FASB OTTI guidarreguires disclosures related to other-
than-temporary impairments. If a fixed maturity @ty is in an unrealized loss position and we htneeintent to sell the fixed maturity
security, or it is more likely than not that we Miave to sell the fixed maturity security befoeeavery of its amortized cost basis, the decline
in value is deemed to be other-than-temporary ameldorded to other-than-temporary impairment sseognized in income in our
consolidated income statements. For impaired firatlrity securities that we do not intend to selt @& more likely than not that we will not
have to sell such securities, but we expect thatvilenot fully recover the amortized cost bashse tredit component of the other-than-
temporary impairment is recognized in other-thangerary impairment losses recognized in incomeaumoonsolidated statements of income
and the non-credit component of the other-than-taany impairment is recognized in other comprehangicome. Furthermore, unrealized
losses entirely caused by non-credit related faglated to fixed maturity securities for which @ect to fully recover the amortized cost
basis continue to be recognized in accumulated cthraprehensive income.

The credit component of an other-than-temporaryainmpent is determined by comparing the net pregaloe of projected future cash
flows with the amortized cost basis of the fixedtuniy security. The net present value is calcudig discounting our best estimate of
projected future cash flows at the effective inteérate implicit in the fixed maturity securitythe date of acquisition. For mortgalgaeked an
asset-backed securities, cash flow estimates aegllim assumptions regarding the underlying co#lhilecluding prepayment speeds, vintage,
type of underlying asset, geographic concentratidefult rates, recoveries and changes in valiealFother debt securities, cash flow
estimates are driven by assumptions regarding pililyeof default, including changes in credit rags, and estimates regarding timing and
amount of recoveries associated with a default.

We have a committee of accounting and investmesttciates and management that is responsible foagiagthe impairment review
process. The current economic environment andilrplaif securities markets increase the difficuttiyassessing investment impairment and
the same influences tend to increase the risk @@l impairment of these assets.

We believe we have adequately reviewed our investisecurities for impairment and that our investhesturities are carried at fair
value. However, over time, the economic and magketronment may provide additional insight regagdihe fair value of certain securities,
which could change our judgment regarding impaitm&his could result in other-than-temporary impant losses on investments being
charged against future income. Given the curremketaonditions and the significant judgments imeal, there is continuing risk that further
declines in fair value may occur and additionalterial other-than-temporary impairment losses medtiments may be recorded in future
periods.

In addition to available-for-sale investment setiesj we held additional long-term investments b5#2.6 , or 2.6% of total consolidated
assets, at December 31, 2013 . These long-termstimemts consisted primarily of certain other equity
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investments, cash surrender value of corparateed life insurance policies and real estate. @ubeir less liquid nature, these investments
classified as long-term.

Through our investing activities, we are exposefinancial market risks, including those resultingm changes in interest rates and
changes in equity market valuations. We managentiriet risks through our investment policy, whishkablishes credit quality limits and
limits on investments in individual issuers. Inetfee management of these risks could have an ibgaour future earnings and financial
position. Our investment portfolio includes fixedturity securities with a fair value of $17,488tIDe&ecember 31, 2013 . The weightederagt
credit rating of these securities was “A” as of Beber 31, 2013 . Included in this balance are imvests in fixed maturity securities of states,
municipalities and political subdivisions and magg-backed securities of $1,699.8 and $9.7, respictthat are guaranteed by third parties.
With the exception of eleven securities with a faitue of $9.7, these securities are all investrgeatle and carry a weighted-average credit
rating of “AA” as of December 31, 2013 . The setiesi are guaranteed by a number of different guararmnd we do not have any significant
exposure to any single guarantor (neither indileaiugh the guarantees, nor direct through investimethe guarantor). Further, due to the
high underlying credit rating of the issuers, theighted-average credit rating of these securitigisont the guarantee was “AA” as of
December 31, 2013 for the securities for which doétrmation is available.

Fair values of available-for-sale fixed maturitydagquity securities are based on quoted market¢qrighere available. These fair values
are obtained primarily from third party pricing giees, which generally use Level | or Level Il inpdior the determination of fair value in
accordance with FASB guidance for fair value measiemts and disclosures. We have controls in ptaceview the third party pricing
services’ qualifications and procedures used terdghe fair values. In addition, we periodicallyieav the third party pricing services’ pricing
methodologies, data sources and pricing inputsisoire the fair values obtained are reasonable.

We obtain only one quoted price for each securdynfthird party pricing services, which are deriteugh recently reported trades for
identical or similar securities making adjustmetht®ugh the reporting date based upon availabl&ebtabservable information. For securities
not actively traded, the third party pricing seeganay use quoted market prices of comparablaimsints or discounted cash flow analyses,
incorporating inputs that are currently observabldne markets for similar securities. Inputs tha often used in the valuation methodologies
include, but are not limited to, broker quotes,dienark yields, credit spreads, default rates arggyment speeds. As we are responsible for
the determination of fair value, we perform monthahalysis on the prices received from third paiibedetermine whether the prices are
reasonable estimates of fair value. Our analysisidies a review of month-to-month price fluctuasioti unusual fluctuations are noted in this
review, we may obtain additional information froither pricing services to validate the quoted prideere were no adjustments to quoted
market prices obtained from third party pricingvéegs during the years ended December 31, 20120h2 .

In certain circumstances, it may not be possiblgetave pricing model inputs from observable madetvity, and therefore, such inputs
are estimated internally. Such securities are deségl Level Il in accordance with FASB guidancec®ities designated Level 11l at
December 31, 2013 totaled $177.9 and represerdgedian 1% of our total assets measured at faievah a recurring basis. Our Level lII
securities primarily consisted of certain corporisgeurities, equity securities and structured sgesifor which observable inputs were not
always available and the fair values of these stesiwvere estimated using internal estimatesrfpuis including, but not limited to,
prepayment speeds, credit spreads, default ratebexrrchmark yields.

For additional information, see Part Il, Item 7Au@ntitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MaRisk” in this Form 10-K, and Note
2, “Basis of Presentation and Significant Accougtiolicies,” Note 5, “Investments,” and Note 7, iffdalue,” to our audited consolidated
financial statements as of and for the year endexteBber 31, 2013, included in this Form 10-K.

Retirement Benefit:
Pension Benefits

We sponsor defined benefit pension plans for sohoeioemployees. These plans are accounted fardardance with FASB guidance for
retirement benefits, which requires that amountsgaized in financial statements be determinedmactuarial basis. As permitted by the
guidance, we calculate the value of plan assedesaibed below. Further, the difference
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between our expected rate of return and the aperédrmance of plan assets, as well as certainggsaim pension liabilities, are amortized ¢
future periods.

An important factor in determining our pension exgeis the assumption for expected long-term redarplan assets. As of our
December 31, 2013 measurement date, we selectedhtad-average long-term rate of return on plaetgsof 7.66% , consistent with our
prior year assumption. We use a total portfoliometanalysis in the development of our assumpfactors such as past market performance,
the long-term relationship between fixed maturityg @&quity securities, interest rates, inflation asdet allocations are considered in the
assumption. The assumption includes an estimateeaddditional return expected from active managerogthe investment portfolio. Peer
data and an average of historical returns areraldewed for appropriateness of the selected assompVe believe our assumption of future
returns is reasonable. However, if we lower oureex@d long-term return on plan assets, future dmrttons to the pension plan and pension
expense would likely increase.

This assumed long-term rate of return on asseippled to a calculated value of plan assets, wigcbgnizes changes in the fair value of
plan assets in a systematic manner over three,y@aducing the expected return on plan assetssliatluded in the determination of pension
expense. The difference between this expectedrana the actual return on plan assets is defamddamortized over the average remaining
service of the workforce as a component of pensiqgrense. The net deferral of past asset gainssedoaffects the calculated value of plan
assets and, ultimately, future pension expense.

The discount rate reflects the current rate at wthie pension liabilities could be effectively kmttat the end of the year based on our 1
recent measurement date, December 31, 2013 . Tdweskweighted-average discount rate was 4.39%chmvas developed using a yield
curve approach. Using yields available on high-tpéiked maturity securities with various maturitiates, the yield curve approach provides
“customized” rate, which is meant to match the exgpa cash flows of our specific benefit plans. fibeeffect of changes in the discount rate,
as well as the net effect of other changes in aicitessumptions and experience, have been defang@émortized as a component of pension
expense in accordance with FASB guidance.

In managing the plan assets, our objective is ta Esponsible fiduciary while minimizing financiék. Plan assets include a diversified
mix of investment grade fixed maturity securitieguity securities and alternative investments acaosinge of sectors and levels of
capitalization to maximize the long-term return éoprudent level of risk. In addition to producimgeasonable return, the investment strategy
seeks to minimize the volatility in our expense aadh flow.

Other Postretirement Benefits

We provide most associates with certain medicalpwiand dental benefits upon retirement. We usews actuarial assumptions,
including a discount rate and the expected trerftkadth care costs, to estimate the costs and ibebéfjations for our retiree benefits.

At our December 31, 2013 measurement date, thetedldiscount rate for all plans was 4.48% , comgan a discount rate of 3.71% at
the December 31, 2012 measurement date. We dedeloiserate using a yield curve approach as destrébove.

The assumed health care cost trend rates usedasuneethe expected cost of pre-Medicare (thoseamoot currently eligible for
Medicare benefits) other benefits at our DecemtiePB813 measurement date was 8.00% for 2014 wgtiadual decline to 4.50% by the year
2025 . The assumed health care cost trend ratdsaseeasure the expected cost of post-Medicaosétivho are currently eligible for
Medicare benefits) other benefits at our DecemtieB813 measurement date was 6.00% for 2014 wgtiadual decline to 4.50% by the year
2021 . These estimated trend rates are subjebtiiage in the future. The health care cost trerelassumption has a significant effect on the
amounts reported. For example, an increase inghien@ed health care cost trend rate of one peraeptzigt would increase the postretirement
benefit obligation as of December 31, 2013 by $44@ would increase service and interest costslt® $Conversely, a decrease in the
assumed health care cost trend rate of one pegeeptant would decrease the postretirement beaoleligation by $38.1 as of December 31,
2013 and would decrease service and interest bps#g.5 .

For additional information regarding our retirembanefits, see Note 11, “Retirement Benefits,” o audited consolidated financial
statements as of and for the year ended Decemb@023 , included in this Form 10-K.
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New Accounting Pronouncemen

For information regarding new accounting pronouneets that were issued or became effective duriagyéar ended December 31, 2013
that had, or are expected to have a material imgacur financial position, results of operatiomgivancial statement disclosures, see the
“New Accounting Pronouncements” section of NotéBasis of Presentation and Significant Accountimadi¢es” to our audited consolidated
financial statements as of and for the year endsteBber 31, 2013, included in this Form 10-K.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Introduction

Our cash receipts result primarily from premiundmanistrative fees, investment income, other reegipuoceeds from the sale or matu
of our investment securities, proceeds from bomosj and proceeds from the exercise of stock aptiGash disbursements result mainly fron
claims payments, administrative expenses, taxeshpses of investment securities, interest expgrasenents on borrowings, acquisitions,
capital expenditures, repurchases of our debt gimuand common stock and the payment of casldelns. Cash outflows fluctuate with the
amount and timing of settlement of these transastidny future decline in our profitability woultkély have an unfavorable impact on our
liquidity.

We manage our cash, investments and capital steustuwe are able to meet the short and long-téligations of our business while
maintaining financial flexibility and liquidity. Wéorecast, analyze and monitor our cash flows sbinvestment and financing within the
overall constraints of our financial strategy.

A substantial portion of the assets held by ouulegd subsidiaries are in the form of cash antl egsivalents and investments. After
considering expected cash flows from operatingvaies, we generally invest cash that exceeds ear term obligations in longer term
marketable fixed maturity securities to improve ouerall investment income returns. Our investnsdritegy is to make investments
consistent with insurance statutes and other regylaequirements, while preserving our asset b@se.investments are generally available-
for-sale to meet liquidity and other needs. Oursilibries pay out excess capital annually in thienfof dividends to their respective parent
companies for general corporate use, as permittegpplicable regulations.

The availability of financing in the form of debt equity is influenced by many factors including puofitability, operating cash flows,
debt levels, debt ratings, contractual restrictisagulatory requirements and market condition® 3écurities and credit markets have in the
past experienced higher than normal volatilityhaltgh current market conditions are more stableinguecent years, the Federal Governmer
and various governmental agencies have taken aewwhisteps to restore liquidity in the financiadnivets and to help relieve the credit crisis
and strengthen the regulation of the financial isessmarket. In addition, governments around thddvwave developed their own plans to
provide liquidity and security in the credit markeind to ensure adequate capital in certain fiahngtitutions.

We have a $2,500.0 commercial paper program. Shamutinercial paper issuance be unavailable, wedrignse a combination of cash
on hand and/or our $2,000.0 senior revolving criediility to redeem our commercial paper when itunas. While there is no assurance in the
current economic environment, we believe the lengarticipating in our credit facility will be witig and able to provide financing in
accordance with their legal obligations. In additto the $2,000.0 senior revolving credit facilitye estimate that we will receive
approximately $2,100.0 of dividends from our sulzsids during 2014 , which also provides furtheermgting and financial flexibility.
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The table below outlines the cash flows providedbuysed in operating, investing and financingwétogis for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 :

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011

Cash flows provided by (used in):
Operating activities $ 3,052.0 % 2,744¢ % 3,374.
Investing activities (2,234.9) (4,551.9) (942.0
Financing activities (1,717.9 2,088.¢ (2,019.9)
Effect of foreign exchange rates on cash and casivaents 2.2 1.1 (0.9
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents $ (897.0) % 283.C $% 412.¢

Liquidity—Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared to Year Bridecember 31, 2012

During the year ended December 31, 2013 , netftastprovided by operating activities was $3,052cdmpared to $2,744f6r the yea
ended December 31, 2012, an increase of $30hi& ificrease was driven primarily by an increaseehincome adjusted for non-cash items,
primarily due to the loss on disposal of discontidiwperations, changes in amortization expenseeatided losses on extinguishment of debt.
The increase was further attributable to an in@éaset cash flow provided by Amerigroup as 20i@uded post-acquisition change-in-
control payments and transaction costs that didewtr in 2013. Additionally, the increase was tlua net increase in the collection of income
tax refunds in 2013.

Net cash flow used in investing activities was $4,2 during the year ended December 31, 2013 , acedpo $4,551.6 for the year ended
December 31, 2012 . The decrease in cash flowingeslesting activities of $2,317.2 primarily regad from a decrease in cash used for the
purchase of subsidiaries, as net cash used intingezctivities for 2012 included the acquisitiafsAmerigroup and BOO CONTACTS, while
there were no purchases of subsidiaries in 201i8.détrease was partially offset by the net chamgevestment activity and changes in
securities lending collateral.

Net cash flow used in financing activities was $%,8 during the year ended December 31, 2013 , amdpo net cash flow provided by
financing activities of $2,088.9 for the year endEtember 31, 2012 . The change in cash flow fioanting activities of $3,806.7 primarily
resulted from an increase in long-term borrowing2012 primarily used to fund the acquisition of émgroup compared to an increase in net
repayments of long-term borrowings in 2013. Thengasin cash flow from financing activity was furthadtributable to a decrease in common
stock repurchases, changes in securities lendiyabts, and an increase in proceeds from the issuafhwommon stock under our employee
stock plans.

Liquidity— Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared to Yeardgndecember 31, 2011

During the year ended December 31, 2012 , netftastprovided by operating activities was $2,744ddmpared to $3,374.4 for the year
ended December 31, 2011 , a decrease of $629i8 débrease was driven primarily by payments rdledehe run-out of medical claims for
former members, net operating cash outflows byAouerigroup subsidiary during the post-acquisiti@nipd (including claims payments,
change-in-control payments and payments for trdimsacosts), increased litigation settlement paytwand the addition of required minimum
MLR rebate payments in 2012 (which were establisieliabilities during the year ended December281,1 ).

Net cash flow used in investing activities was $4,6 during the year ended December 31, 2012 , acedpo $942.0 for the year ended
December 31, 2011 . The increase in cash flow iset/esting activities of $3,609.6 between the wesiods primarily resulted from an
increase in the purchase of subsidiaries, reflgdtie acquisitions of Amerigroup and 1-800 CONTAGI8ing 2012 , and an increase in
purchases of property and equipment, partiallysdffsy changes in securities lending collateral@méhcrease in the net proceeds from the
sales of investments.

Net cash flow provided by financing activities wi&#088.9 during the year ended December 31, 26&&pared to net cash flow used in
financing activities of $2,019.2 for the year endEtember 31, 2011 . The increase in cash flowigeavby financing activities of $4,108.1
primarily resulted from an increase in net procdeais long-term borrowings and a decrease in comatook repurchases, partially offset by
changes in bank overdrafts, changes in securéigding payable and a decrease in the proceedsfimmsuance of common stock under our
employee stock plans.
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Financial Condition

We maintained a strong financial condition andiliify position, with consolidated cash, cash eqigmts and investments, including long-
term investments, of $22,395.9 at December 31, 2@ifce December 31, 2012 , total cash, cash afgmits and investments, including long-
term investments, decreased by $68.7 primarilytduw®mmon stock repurchases, purchases of propedequipment, net repayments of
borrowings and cash dividends paid to shareholdémsse decreases were partially offset by cashrgetefrom operations and proceeds from
employee stock option exercises.

Many of our subsidiaries are subject to variousagoment regulations that restrict the timing andant of dividends and other
distributions that may be paid to their respecfigseent companies. Certain accounting practicexpbesl by insurance regulatory authorities,
or statutory accounting practices, differ from GAAFhanges that occur in statutory accounting prestiif any, could impact our subsidiaries'
future dividend capacity. In addition, we have &gréo certain undertakings to regulatory authaijtiecluding the requirement to maintain
certain capital levels in certain of our subsidari

At December 31, 2013, we held $2,164.5 of cashcastl equivalents and investments at the parernp@oyn which are available for
general corporate use, including investment intusinesses, acquisitions, potential future comnbacksepurchases and dividends to
shareholders, repurchases of debt securities drtchdd interest payments.

We calculate our consolidated debt-to-capital rainon-GAAP measure, which we believe assistssiove and rating agencies in
measuring our overall leverage and additional lwirrg capacity. In addition, our bank covenantstidel a maximum debt-to-capital ratio that
we cannot exceed. Our targeted range of debt-titatagtio is 30% to 35%. Our debt-to-capital rasacalculated as the sum of debt divided b
the sum of debt plus shareholders’ equity. Our-delatapital ratio may not be comparable to simjlailed measures reported by other
companies. Our consolidated debt-to-capital rats 86.9% and 38.6% as of December 31, 2013 and,2@%pectively. The higher than
targeted consolidated debt-to-capital ratios atdbdwer 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 were primduidyto the increased debt we incurred
to finance our acquisition of Amerigroup in 2012lame expect in time to return to targeted levels.

Our senior debt is rated “A-" by Standard & PoofBBB+" by Fitch, Inc., “Baa2” by Moody’s Investdervice, Inc. and “bbb+" by AM
Best Company, Inc. We intend to maintain our sedét investment grade ratings. A significant dorvawlg in our debt ratings could adversely
affect our borrowing capacity and costs.

Future Sources and Uses of Liquidity

We have a shelf registration statement on file with Securities and Exchange Commission to regastemlimited amount of any
combination of debt or equity securities in onenarre offerings. Specific information regarding teremd securities being offered will be
provided at the time of an offering. Proceeds ffamre offerings are expected to be used for gémerporate purposes, including, but not
limited to, the repayment of debt, investmentsriextensions of credit to our subsidiaries andfitiencing of possible acquisitions or business
expansion.

We have a senior credit facility, or the facilityith certain lenders for general corporate purposks facility, as amended, provides credit
up to $2,000.0 and matures on September 29, 20tbirterest rate on the facility is based on eiffjghe LIBOR rate plus a predetermined
percentage rate based on our credit rating atdtesaf utilization, or (ii) a base rate as defimrethe facility agreement plus a predetermined
percentage rate based on our credit rating atdteeaf utilization. Our ability to borrow under tFeility is subject to compliance with certain
covenants. There were no amounts outstanding uhddacility as of December 31, 2013 .

We have an authorized commercial paper progranp o6 $2,500.0, the proceeds of which may be useddberal corporate purposes. At
December 31, 2013 and 2012, $379.2 and $570spectvely, were outstanding under our commeragakp program. Commercial paper
borrowings have been classified as long-term debeaember 31, 2013 and 2012 as our practice dadtiis to replace short-term commercial
paper outstanding at expiration with additionalrstterm commercial paper for an uninterrupted pBatending for more than one year and
we have the ability to redeem our commercial paptr borrowings under the senior credit facilitysdabed above.

We are a member, through certain subsidiarie$)eofederal Home Loan Bank of Indianapolis, the Fidd¢ome Loan Bank of Cincinne
and the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta, coNexyi, the FHLBs, and as a member we have the
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ability to obtain short-term cash advances suligecertain minimum collateral requirements. At Deber 31, 2013 and 2012 , $400.0 and
$250.0, respectively, were outstanding under bartd¢erm FHLBs borrowings.

On July 30, 2013, we initiated a cash tender aifet consent solicitation to purchase certain ofoutistanding 5.875% Notes due 2017,
7.000% Notes due 2019, 5.950% Notes due 2034, %d&@tes due 2036, 6.375% Notes due 2037 and 5.808t&s due 2040 (collectively,
the “Tendered Notes”). On August 13, 2013, we repased $700.0 of the Tendered Notes for cashngt&B37.7. Holders who tendered their
notes prior to the early tender date received theeipal amounts, applicable premium for early magéon and accrued and unpaid interest to
the early tender offer settlement date. Additionadh September 5, 2013, we redeemed the $400staoding principal balance of our 6.000%
senior unsecured notes due 2014, plus applicablaipm for early redemption and accrued and unpaétést to the redemption date, for cast
totaling $411.0. In connection with our early region and repurchase of the $1,100.0 aggregateipahamount of outstanding notes, we
realized losses on debt extinguishment of $145.3.

On July 30, 2013, we issued $650.0 of 2.300% ndites2018 and $600.0 of 5.100% notes due 2044 undeshelf registration statement.
We used the proceeds from this offering in paftital the purchase price of the Tendered Noteslamé.000% senior unsecured notes
discussed above, and the balance for general @gpurposes. Interest on the notes is payable@amuially in arrears on January 15 and Jul
15 of each year, commencing on January 15, 201&lndtes have a call feature that allows us to mkasge the notes at any time at our option
and a put feature that allows a note holder toirequs to repurchase the notes upon the occurieoeth a change in control event and a
downgrade of the notes below an investment grdifegra

As a result of our acquisition of Amerigroup on Bether 24, 2012, the carrying amount of $556.9 okAgnoup’s $475.0 of 7.500%
senior unsecured notes due 2019 were includedrioansolidated balance sheet as of December 32, Zii January 25, 2013, we redeemed
the outstanding principal balance of these noties, gpplicable premium for early redemption, fostt#otaling $555.6. The weighted-average
redemption price of the notes was approximately?4 b the principal amount outstanding.

While we generally issue senior unsecured notelf-term borrowing purposes, on October 9, 20d2issued $1,500.0 of senior
convertible debentures, or the Debentures. The Meales are governed by an indenture, or the Indentlated as of October 9, 2012 between
us and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust CompanyANas trustee. The Debentures bear interestaeaf 2.750% per year, payable semi
annually in arrears in cash on April 15 and Octdeof each year, and mature on October 15, 2048ssl earlier redeemed, repurchased or
converted into shares of common stock at the agiglicconversion rate. We used approximately $3@fltBe net proceeds from the issuanc
repurchase shares of our common stock concurretittythe offering of the Debentures, and the bagawas used for general corporate
purposes, including but not limited to additionafghases of shares of our common stock pursuamnirtshare repurchase program and the
repayment of debt. For additional information rethto the Debentures, including the circumstanoegiuwhich holders may convert the
Debentures into common stock, see Note 13, “Debtur audited consolidated financial statementsf and for the year ended December 31,
2013, included in this Form 10-K.

As discussed in “Financial Condition” above, mafypr subsidiaries are subject to various governmegulations that restrict the timing
and amount of dividends and other distribution$ thay be paid. Based upon these requirements, eveuarently estimating approximately
$2,100.0 of dividends to be paid to the parent caomyduring 2014 . During 2013 , we received $3,846.dividends from our subsidiaries.

We regularly review the appropriate use of capitaluding common stock repurchases, repurchasdshifsecurities and dividends to
shareholders. The declaration and payment of anglatids or repurchases of our common stock or sihirities are at the discretion of our
Board of Directors and depend upon our financialdition, results of operations, future liquidityaus, regulatory and capital requirements
other factors deemed relevant by our Board of Darsc
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A summary of the cash dividend activity for the yeaded December 31, 2013 is as follows:

Cash
Dividend
Declaration Date Record Date Payment Date per Share Total
February 20, 201 March 8, 201: March 25, 201. $  0.375( $ 113.¢
May 15, 201 June 10, 201 June 25, 201 0.375( 112.7
July 23, 201: September 10, 20: September 25, 20: 0.375( 111.4
October 22, 201 December 9, 201 December 23, 201 0.375( 110.t

On January 28, 2014 , our Board of Directors dedar quarterly cash dividend of $0.4375 per sharhe outstanding shares of our
common stock. This quarterly dividend is payablévarch 25, 2014 to shareholders of record as ofckla0, 2014 .

A summary of common stock repurchases for the gefémuary 1, 2014 through February 7, 2014 (suleseda December 31, 2013 ) and
for the year ended December 31, 2013 is as follows:

January 1, 2014 Year Ended
Through December 31,
February 7, 2014 2013
Shares repurchased 5.4 20.7
Average price per share $ 84.9¢ $ 78.0¢
Aggregate cost $ 457.¢ $ 1,620.:
Authorization remaining at the end of each period $ 2,633.: $ 3,691.(

On February 4, 2014, we entered into an accelesdtack repurchase, or ASR, program with a countigrpehe agreement provides for a
repurchase of a number of shares, equal to $688 .@etermined by the dollar volume weighted-aveshgee price during a period up through
at least March 14, 2014, but not to exceed Marci2814. At the end of the term of the ASR, theahi&mount of shares will be adjusted up or
down based on the dollar volume weighted-average jpiuring the same period. On February 4, 2014reparchased 6.0 shares under this
program. These ASR shares are not included inrthees repurchased subsequent to December 31, 2080 in the table above as the final
shares to be repurchased will not be determineatitbetcompletion of the program in March 2014. Hwer, the $600.0 has been removed
from the authorization remaining as of Februarg2(14 in the table above.

On September 25, 2013, the Board of Directors aithd a $3,500.0 increase to the common stock obpse program. We expect to
utilize unused authorization remaining at Decen#dgr2013 over a multi-year period, subject to magkel industry conditions. Our stock
repurchase program is discretionary as we are uraebligation to repurchase shares. We repurcttzesees when we believe it is a prudent
use of capital.

Our current retirement benefits funding strategipifund an amount at least equal to the minimuguired funding as determined under
ERISA with consideration of maximum tax deductiblaounts. We may elect to make discretionary camiiohs up to the maximum amount
deductible for income tax purposes. For the yededrDecember 31, 2013 , no material contributioasswmecessary to meet ERISA required
funding levels. However, during the year ended Ddwer 31, 2013 , we made tax deductible discretipnantributions to the pension benefit
plans of $38.6 .
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Contractual Obligations and Commitments

Our estimated contractual obligations and commitsas of December 31, 2013 are as follows:

Payments Due by Period

Less than More than

Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
Debt* $ 23297 $ 1,489.¢ $ 2,838 % 3,148.( $ 15,821.
Operating lease commitments 769.< 133.( 226.< 188.¢ 221.¢
Projected other postretirement benefits 440.7 43.4 133.2 135.¢ 128.2

Purchase obligations:

IBM outsourcing agreements 251.2 200.: 50.¢ — —
Other purchase obligatioAs 2,757.: 1,499.: 780.1 450.( 27.¢
Other long-term liabilitied 912.2 — 377.¢ 347.2 187.¢
Investment commitments 341.¢ 148.¢ 1113 61.1 19.€
Total contractual obligations and commitments $ 28,769t $ 3,514¢ $ 4518.: $ 4,330.¢ $ 16,406..

Includes estimated interest exper
Relates to agreements with International BusineasHihes Corporation, or IBM, to provide informati@thnology infrastructure servic
See Note 14, “Commitments and Contingences,” tatltited consolidated financial statements as dffanthe year ended December 31,
2013 included in this Form 10-K for further infortican.

3 Includes obligations related to néBM information technology service agreements atdadommunication contrac
Estimated future payments for funded pension benkéive been excluded from this table as we hddmding requirements under ERISA
at December 31, 2013 as a result of the valueeo&sisets in the plans. In addition, amount includlesr obligations resulting from third-
party service contracts.

The above table does not contain $121.5 of grabdlities for uncertain tax positions and interfestwhich we cannot reasonably estimate
the timing of the resolutions with the respectiaeithg authorities. See Note 8, “Income Taxes, h®dudited consolidated financial statement:
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2018dedlin this Form 10-K for further information.

In addition to the contractual obligations and catmmants discussed above, we have a variety of athatractual agreements related to
acquiring materials and services used in our ojpermtHowever, we do not believe these other ageeésrcontain material noncancelable
commitments.

We believe that funds from future operating castw$, cash and investments and funds available undesenior credit facility or from
public or private financing sources will be suféint for future operations and commitments, anctéital acquisitions and other strategic
transactions.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangemieatsvill require funding in future periods.
Risk-Based Capital

Our regulated subsidiaries’ states of domicile hsteg¢utory risk-based capital, or RBC, requireménmtdealth and other insurance
companies and health maintenance organizationsljabgsed on the National Association of Insur&dommissioners, or NAIC, RBC Model
Act. These RBC requirements are intended to measypi¢al adequacy, taking into account the riskatteristics of an insurer’s investments
and products. The NAIC sets forth the formula falcalating the RBC requirements, which are designdedke into account asset risks,
insurance risks, interest rate risks and othewagierisks with respect to an individual insurasoepany’s business. In general, under the RB
Model Act, an insurance company must submit a tegfdts RBC level to the state insurance departroeimsurance commissioner, as
appropriate, at the end of each calendar yearr&yulated subsidiaries' respective RBC levels @&egkember 31, 2013, which was the most
recent date for which reporting was required, werexcess of all mandatory RBC thresholds. In aoldito exceeding
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the RBC requirements, we are in compliance withlithedity and capital requirements for a liceneé¢he BCBSA and with the tangible net
worth requirements applicable to certain of ourifdaiia subsidiaries.

For additional information, see Note 22, “Statutbrformation,” to our audited consolidated finamsiatements as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2013, included in this FornK10-

Safe Harbor Statement under the Private Securitiekitigation Reform Act of 1995

This document contains certain forward-looking mfiation about us that is intended to be coverethbysafe harbor for “forward-
looking statements” provided by the Private Se@sit.itigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-lookisigitements are statements that are not
generally historical facts. Words such“expect(s),” “feel(s),” “believe(s),” “will,” “may, " “anticipate(s),” “intend,” “estimate,” “project”
and similar expressions are intended to identifywlrd-looking statements, which generally are nistdrical in nature. These statements
include, but are not limited to, financial projeatis and estimates and their underlying assumptistadements regarding plans, objectives anc
expectations with respect to future operationsdpiadis and services; and statements regarding fyteréormance. Such statements are subje
to certain risks and uncertainties, many of which difficult to predict and generally beyond oumtml, that could cause actual results to
differ materially from those expressed in, or iraglor projected by, the forward-looking informatiand statements. These risks and
uncertainties include: those discussed and idextifin our public filings with the U.S. SecuritigedaExchange Commission, or SEC; increase
government participation in, or regulation or tai@t of health benefits and managed care operatiomdyding, but not limited to, the impe
of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Actiahe Health Care and Education Reconciliation #2010, or Health Care Reform;
trends in health care costs and utilization ratesr ability to secure sufficient premium rates udihg regulatory approval for and
implementation of such rates; our participationtie federal and state health insurance exchangdsridealth Care Reform, which have
experienced technical difficulties in implementatand which entail uncertainties associated witt ithix and volume of business, particularly
in our individual and small group markets, that thoegatively impact the adequacy of our premiutasand which may not be sufficiently
offset by the risk apportionment provisions of He&lare Reform; our ability to contract with proeig consistent with past practice;
competitor pricing below market trends of increasawosts; reduced enroliment, as well as a negathange in our health care product mix;
risks and uncertainties regarding Medicare and Madll programs, including those related to non-caamie with the complex regulations
imposed thereon and funding risks with respecet@nue received from participation therein; a dovaatg in our financial strength ratings;
litigation and investigations targeted at our intlysand our ability to resolve litigation and inté&gations within estimates; medical
malpractice or professional liability claims or a@hrisks related to health care services providgdbr subsidiaries; our ability to repurchase
shares of our common stock and pay dividends orcammon stock due to the adequacy of our cashdtaearnings and other
considerations; non-compliance by any party ofEixpress Scripts, Inc. pharmacy benefit managenegmices agreement, which could result
in financial penalties, our inability to meet custer demands, and sanctions imposed by governnmamtities, including the Centers for
Medicare and Medicaid Services; events that raauliegative publicity for us or the health benefitdustry; failure to effectively maintain a
modernize our information systems and e-busingganization and to maintain good relationships vitilrd party vendors for information
system resources; events that may negatively aftedicenses with the Blue Cross and Blue Shialsbaiation; possible impairment of the
value of our intangible assets if future resultsnad adequately support goodwill and other intaigiaissets; intense competition to attract and
retain employees; unauthorized disclosure of merabasitive or confidential information; changeghe economic and market conditions, as
well as regulations that may negatively affect mwestment portfolios and liquidity; possible réstions in the payment of dividends by our
subsidiaries and increases in required minimumlewécapital and the potential negative effechirour substantial amount of outstanding
indebtedness; general risks associated with mergedsacquisitions; various laws and provisions ur governing documents that may pre\
or discourage takeovers and business combinatifotigre public health epidemics and catastrophes} general economic downturns.
Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliancthese forwar-looking statements that speak only as of the datedi. Except to the extt
otherwise required by federal securities law, wendbundertake any obligation to republish revisedvard-looking statements to reflect
events or circumstances after the date hereof oeflect the occurrence of unanticipated eventadees are also urged to carefully review
consider the various disclosures in our SEC reports
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK.
(In Millions, Except Per Share Data or As Otherwg&tated Herein)

As a result of our investing and borrowing actasti we are exposed to financial market risks, gioly those resulting from changes in
interest rates and changes in equity market valngsitiPotential impacts discussed below are baseu sgnsitivity analyses performed on our
financial position as of December 31, 2013 . Actesllts could vary from these estimates. Our myrodjectives with our investment
portfolio are to provide safety and preservatiorayfital, sufficient liquidity to meet cash flong@irements, the integration of investment
strategy with the business operations and an at&ihof a competitive after-tax total return.

Investments
Our investment portfolio is exposed to three priyreources of risk: credit quality risk, interesteraisk and market valuation risk.

The primary risks associated with our fixed mayusiecurities are credit quality risk and interegérisk. Credit quality risk is defined as
the risk of a credit event, such as a ratings doaagy or default, to an individual fixed maturitycadty and the potential loss attributable to
event. Credit quality risk is managed through owestment policy, which establishes credit qudiititations on the overall portfolio as well
as diversification and percentage limits on se@giof individual issuers. The result is a wellatsified portfolio of fixed maturity securities,
with an average credit rating of approximately “Anterest rate risk is defined as the potentiakimmnomic losses on fixed maturity securities
due to a change in market interest rates. Our fimaturity portfolio is invested primarily in U.Sogernment securities, corporate bonds, asse
backed bonds, mortgage-related securities and ripahtmonds, all of which represent an exposureénamges in the level of market interest
rates. Interest rate risk is managed by maintaiagsgt duration within a band based upon our iieds) operating performance and liquidity
needs. Additionally, we have the capability of hietgany security to maturity, which would allow tasrealize full par value.

Our available-for-sale investment portfolio inclsd®rporate securities which account for 40.0%neftotal portfolio at December 31,
2013 and are subject to credit/default risk. Irealiting economic environment, corporate yieldd wslually increase prompted by concern
over the ability of corporations to make interezyiments, thus causing a decrease in the pricerpbie securities, and the decline in value c
the corporate fixed maturity portfolio. We manalgis risk through fundamental credit analysis, dsiferation of issuers and industries and an
average credit rating of our corporate fixed mayypbrtfolio of approximately “BBB.”

Our equity portfolio is comprised of large capitalion and small capitalization domestic equitfiesgign equities and index mutual funds.
Our equity portfolio is subject to the volatilitghierent in the stock market, driven by concerns egenomic conditions, earnings and sales
growth, inflation, and consumer confidence. Thgstesnic risks cannot be managed through diversifinalone. However, more routine ris
such as stock/industry specific risks, are mandgedvesting in a diversified equity portfolio.

As of December 31, 2013, 90.8% of our availablesfile investments were fixed maturity securitMarket risk is addressed by actively
managing the duration, allocation and diversifimatdf our investment portfolio. We have evaluateslimpact on the fixed maturity portfolio’s
fair value considering an immediate 100 basis pdi@inge in interest rates. A 100 basis point iregréa interest rates would result in an
approximate $783.2 decrease in fair value, wheael30 basis point decrease in interest rates wesldt in an approximate $807.7 increase it
fair value. While we classify our fixed maturitycsgities as “available-for-sale” for accounting poses, we believe our cash flows and
duration of our portfolio should allow us to holkekcsirrities to maturity, thereby avoiding the recdigni of losses should interest rates rise
significantly.

As of December 31, 2013, 9.2% of our availablesfale investments were equity securities. An imaiedi0% decrease in each equity
investment’s value, arising from market movemerduld result in a fair value decrease of $17.6ARkernatively, an immediate 10% increas:
each equity investment’s value, attributable togame factor, would result in a fair value increas$176.7 .

For additional information regarding our investngrsee Note 5, “Investments”, to our audited cadatéd financial

-75-




statements as of and for the year ended Decemb@023 , and “Investments” within “Critical Accoumg Policies and Estimates” in Part Il,
Item 7 “Management’s Discussion and Analysis ofdfitial Condition and Results of Operations” incllidethis Form 10-K.

Long-Term Debt

Our total long-term debt at December 31, 2013 wlas@1.6 , and included $379.2 of commercial papee. carrying values of the
commercial paper approximate fair value as the tyidg instruments have variable interest ratematket value. The remainder of the debt
includes senior unsecured notes, convertible debesiind subordinated surplus notes by one ofnsurance subsidiaries. This debt is subjec
to interest rate risk as these instruments hawelfirterest rates and the fair value is affectediganges in market interest rates. The senior
unsecured notes had combined carrying and estinfaitecalue of $12,721.5 and $12,987.0, respedtivel December 31, 2013 . The carrying
value and estimated fair value of the convertildbahtures were $966.0 and $2,030.6 , respecti@elecember 31, 2013 . The carrying value
and estimated fair value of the surplus notes B89 and $27.3, respectively, at December 31, 2013

Should interest rates increase or decrease irutheef the estimated fair value of our fixed ragbtdvould decrease or increase
accordingly. For additional information regardingr dong-term debt, see Note 7, "Fair Value" andeNk, “Debt” to our audited consolidated
financial statements as of and for the year endaxeBber 31, 2013, included in this Form 10-K.

Derivatives

We have exposure to economic losses due to intextestisk arising from changes in the level ortitity of interest rates. We attempt to
mitigate our exposure to interest rate risk throtighuse of derivative financial instruments. Thesategies include the use of interest rate
swaps and forward contracts, which are used toilodhkterest rates or to hedge (on an economicshastierest rate risks associated with
variable rate debt. We have used these types wlimsnts as designated hedges against specifititiesh

Changes in interest rates will affect the estimé&a@dvalue of these derivatives. As of DecemberZIl3 , we recorded a net asset of
$10.2, the estimated fair value of the swaps dtdhte. We have evaluated the impact on the irtesées swap’s fair value considering an
immediate 100 basis point change in interest r&te€)0 basis point increase in interest rates woesdlt in an approximate $52.9 decrease in
fair value, whereas a 100 basis point decreasgéndst rates would result in an approximate $5&&ase in fair value.

We also utilize put and call options on the S&P &tiex to hedge, on an economic basis, the expagurer equity security portfolio to
fluctuations in the equity markets. While the impaicfluctuations in the equity markets on thesevddives are largely offset by changes in the
fair values of our equity security portfolio, thieange in fair value of the derivatives is recogdizemediately in our income statement,
whereas the change in fair value of our equity sées is recognized in accumulated other comprsiverincome. Accordingly, a decrease in
the S&P 500 index of 10% would result in an appmade increase of $38.3 in the fair value of themivetives. An increase in the S&P 500
index of 10% would result in an approximate deceezs$18.8 in the fair value of these derivatives.

For additional information regarding our derivadysee Note 6, “Derivative Financial Instrumentsbur audited consolidated financial
statements as of and for the year ended Decemb&033 , included in this Form 10-K. Also for acoting related to securities in our equity
portfolio, see “Critical Accounting Policies andtiasates — Investments” within Part II, Item 7 “Maanent Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” irtgd in this Form 10-K.
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Report of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of WellRdnt.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of WellPoint, Inc. (the “Company”) aPetember 31, 2013 and 2012, and the
related consolidated statements of income, compedhe income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flflmveach of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2013. Our audits also inclugedinancial statement schedule listed in the Iratdkxem 15(a). These financial statements
and schedule are the responsibility of the Compamanagement. Our responsibility is to expresspaman on these financial statements and
schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstials of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBioUnited States). Those standard:
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtagsonable assurance about whether the finataiaiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managenenielhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements refer@alove present fairly, in all material respedts,¢onsolidated financial position of WellPoint,
Inc. at December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the catzell results of its operations and its cash flimwgach of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2013, in conformity with U.Segally accepted accounting principles. Also, in @pinion, the related financial statem
schedule, when considered in relation to the Hasanicial statements taken as a whole, presentyg faiall material respects the information
set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), WellPoint, Inc.’s
internal control over financial reporting as of Batber 31, 2013, based on criteria establishedtémrial Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission (1992 framework) andreport dated February 20, 2014
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ ERNST & Y OUNGLLP

Indianapolis, Indiana
February 20, 2014
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(In millions, except share data)
Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments available-for-sale, at fair value:

WellPoint, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

Fixed maturity securities (amortized cost of $16,82and $16,033.1)

Equity securities (cost of $1,168.5 and $869.9)

Other invested assets, current
Accrued investment income
Premium and self-funded receivables
Other receivables

Income taxes receivable

Securities lending collateral

Deferred tax assets, net

Other current assets

Assets held for sale

Total current assets

Long-term investments available-for-sale, at failue:
Fixed maturity securities (amortized cost of $45h@ $426.0)

Equity securities (cost of $27.4 and $27.1)
Other invested assets, long-term
Property and equipment, net
Goodwill
Other intangible assets
Other noncurrent assets
Total assets
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Policy liabilities:
Medical claims payable
Reserves for future policy benefits
Other policyholder liabilities
Total policy liabilities
Unearned income
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Security trades pending payable
Securities lending payable
Short-term borrowings
Current portion of long-term debt
Other current liabilities
Liabilities held for sale
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, less current portion
Reserves for future policy benefits, noncurrent
Deferred tax liabilities, net

Other noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

M Arnnitimamnta A Annba A~ Nt~ 14

December 31,

December 31,

2013 2012
1,582.: 2,475.
17,038.. 16,912.¢
1,735. 1,212.¢
16.c 14.¢
168.¢ 162.2
3,968." 3,687.
1,063. 927.¢
235.1 228.%
969.¢ 564.€
383.( 236.¢
1,677. 1,827.«
906.¢ 1,098.(
29,745. 29,347.!
449.¢ 431.5
31.c 30.1
1,542.¢ 1,387.¢
1,801. 1,717
16,917.. 16,889.
8,441.( 8,665.!
645.2 486.1
59,574.! 58,955.«
6,127.: 6,174.
63.1 61.c
2,073.: 2,345,
8,263.! 8,581.!
822.1 896.¢
3,426. 3,098.°
95.2 69.2
969.7 564.%
400.( 250.(
518.( 557.1
1,674. 1,769.¢
181.¢ 207.1
16,351.! 15,995.(
13,573. 14,170.¢
723.( 750.¢
3,325.: 3,222.¢
836.( 1,013.:
34,809.: 35,152




Shareholders’ equity

Preferred stock, without par value, shares autedz100,000,000; shares issued and outstanding—none

Common stock, par value $0.01, shares authorize®890,000; shares issued and outstanding: 293 2038d 304,715,144
Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

See accompanying notes.
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2.6 3.C
10,765.: 10,853.!
13,813.! 12,647..

183.2 299.1
24,765.. 23,802
59,574.! 58,955.




WellPoint, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Income

(In millions, except per share data)
Revenues
Premiums
Administrative fees
Other revenue
Total operating revenue
Net investment income
Net realized gains on investments
Other-than-temporary impairment losses on investsnen
Total other-than-temporary impairment losses orstments

Portion of other-than-temporary impairment lossEognized in other
comprehensive income

Other-than-temporary impairment losses recogniaéddome
Total revenues
Expenses
Benefit expense
Selling, general and administrative expense:
Selling expense
General and administrative expense
Total selling, general and administrative expense
Interest expense
Amortization of other intangible assets
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Total expenses
Income from continuing operations before income taxexpense
Income tax expense
Income from continuing operations
(Loss) income from discontinued operations, net aax
Net income
Basic net income (loss) per share:
Basic - continuing operations
Basic - discontinued operations
Basic net income per share
Diluted net income (loss) per share:
Diluted - continuing operations
Diluted - discontinued operations
Diluted net income per share

Dividends per share
See accompanying notes.
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Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
66,119 $ 56,496 $  55969.(
4,031.¢ 3,934 3,854.¢
40.4 83.c 41.C
70,191 60,514.( 59,865..
659.1 686.1 703.7
271.¢ 334.¢ 235.1
(100.6) (41.2) (114.7)
1.7 3.4 21.4
(98.5) (37.9) (93.9)
71,0231 61,497.. 60,710.
56,237. 48,213 47,647
1,526.¢ 1,586.¢ 1,616.¢
8,426.( 7,093.¢ 6,818.¢
9,952.¢ 8,680.! 8,435.¢
602.7 511.¢ 430.
245.: 233.( 239.£
145.: — —
67,183.: 57,638.¢ 56,752.1
3,840.. 3,858. 3,957.¢
1,205.¢ 1,207.: 1,311
2,634. 2,651.( 2,646.
(144.6) 4E —
2,489 $ 2,655 $ 2,646.
8.8 $ 82F $ 7.3t
(0.4%) 0.01 —
8.3 $ 8.2¢ $ 7.3
8.67 $ 8.17 $ 7.2¢
(0.47) 0.01 —
8.2 $ 8.16 $ 7.2F
1.5C $ 115§ 1.0C




WellPoint, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011

(In millions)
Net income $ 2,489, $ 2,655! $ 2,646.
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax:
Change in net unrealized gains/losses on investment (294.9) 189.¢ 20.¢
Change in non-credit component of other-than-tesgompairment

losses on investments 1.7 4.t (0.7)
Change in net unrealized gains/losses on cashttxlges 3.C 0.1 (10.0
Change in net periodic pension and postretiremestisc 172.5 (20.9 (119.9)
Foreign currency translation adjustments 1.4 0.€ 0.z
Other comprehensive (loss) income (115.9 184.2 (109.%)
Total comprehensive income $§ 2373¢ § 2839 § 2,537

See accompanying notes.
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WellPoint, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
(In millions)
Operating activities
Net income $ 2,489. $ 2,655 $ 2,646.;
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activities:
Net realized gains on investments (271.9 (334.9 (235.))
Other-than-temporary impairment losses recognizéddome 98.¢ 37.€ 93.2
Loss on extinguishment of debt 145.: — —
Loss on disposal from discontinued operations 221.¢ — —
Loss on disposal of assets 3.¢ 4.7 3.3
Deferred income taxes 59.1 127.t 74.%
Amortization, net of accretion 800.¢ 633.€ 541.F
Depreciation expense 107.¢ 107.1 95.7
Impairment of property and equipment 47.7 66.€ —
Share-based compensation 146.( 146.5 134.¢
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation (30.7) (28.€) (42.2)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, neffett of business combinations:
Receivables, net (418.9) 189.¢ (401.9
Other invested assets (15.7) (38.9 (8.9
Other assets (33.6) 79.2 (259.2)
Policy liabilities (345.9) (53.9) 978.(
Unearned income (73.¢) (193.9) 35.1
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 303.¢ (406.5) (208.7%)
Other liabilities (154.6) (132.9) (13.9
Income taxes 9.2 (73.9 (44.€)
Other, net (38.6) (40.9) (14.2)
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,052.! 2,744.¢ 3,374.¢
Investing activities
Purchases of fixed maturity securities (13,704.Y) (15,040.9 (11,914.9
Proceeds from fixed maturity securities:
Sales 10,977. 13,675.! 10,446.:
Maturities, calls and redemptions 1,836.¢ 1,781.t 1,891.¢
Purchases of equity securities (820.9 (232.9) (259.0)
Proceeds from sales of equity securities 721.( 422.7 287.L
Purchases of other invested assets (251.5) (303.%) (207.9
Proceeds from sales of other invested assets 127.1 ok 29.4
Settlement of non-hedging derivatives (109.9) (59.) (96.€)
Changes in securities lending collateral (405.7) 307.¢ 28.¢
Purchases of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired — (4,597.() (600.0)
Purchases of property and equipment (646.5) (544.9 (519.5
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment 39.2 0.4 3.7
Other, net 1.3 3.1 (31.3)
Net cash used in investing activities (2,234.9 (4,551.9 (942.0)
Financing activities
Net (repayments of) proceeds from commercial papeowings (191.9) (229.0) 463.€
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 1,250.( 6,468.¢ 1,097.«
Repayments of long-term borrowings (1,801.9 (1,251.) (705.7)
Proceeds from short-term borrowings 1,100.( 642.( 100.C
Repayments of short-term borrowings (950.0) (492.0) (100.0)
Changes in securities lending payable 405.( (307.9 (29.0)



Changes in bank overdrafts

Premiums paid on equity options

Repurchase and retirement of common stock

Cash dividends

Proceeds from issuance of common stock under ereplstock plans
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities

Effect of foreign exchange rates on cash and cashievalents
Change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Less cash and cash equivalents of discontinued opépns at end of year

Cash and cash equivalents of continuing operatioret end of year

See accompanying notes.
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9. (17.6 264.%
(25.9) = =
(1,620.2) (2,496.9) (3,039.9
(448.0) (367.9) (357.9)
524.7 110.¢ 245.(
30.1 28.€ 42
(1,717.9 2,088.¢ (2,019.9)
2.2 1.1 (0.9
(897.%) 283.( 412.¢
2,484.¢ 2,201.¢ 1,788.¢
1,586.¢ 2,484 2,201.¢
A9 9.9 =
1,582.. % 24750 $ 2,201.¢




WellPoint, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

Common Stock Accumulated

Additional Other Total
Number Par Paid-in Retained Comprehensive Shareholders’
of Shares Value Capital Earnings Income Equity

(In millions)
January 1, 2011 3777 $ 3.6 $ 12,862.4 $ 10,721« $ 224¢ % 23,812.¢
Net income — — — 2,646. — 2,646.°
Other comprehensive loss — — — — (209.%) (109.%)
Repurchase and retirement of common sto (44.5) (0.4 (1,523.) (1,516.9) — (3,039.9
Dividends and dividend equivalents — — — (361.9 — (361.9
Issuance of common stock under employe

stock plans, net of related tax benefits 6.2 — 339.¢ — — 339.¢
December 31, 2011 339.2 $ 34 $ 11,679.. $ 11,490 $ 114¢ % 23,288..
Net income — — — 2,655.! — 2,655.!
Other comprehensive income — — — — 184.2 184.z
Repurchase and retirement of common sto (39.7) (0.4 (1,368.9 (1,127.9 — (2,496.9)
Dividends and dividend equivalents — — — (371.9) — (371.9
Issuance of convertible debentures — — 331t — — 331.t
Conversion of stock awards in connection

with AMERIGROUP Corporation

acquisition — — 19.7 — — 19.7
Issuance of common stock under employet

stock plans, net of related tax benefits 5.C — 191.¢ — — 191.¢
December 31, 2012 3047 % 3C $ 10,853.! $ 12,647.. $ 299.1 % 23,802
Net income — — — 2,489.° — 2,489.°
Other comprehensive loss — — — — (115.9 (115.9
Premiums paid on equity options — — (7.9 — — (7.9
Repurchase and retirement of common stock  (20.7) (0.7 (749.5 (870.5 — (1,620.)
Convertible debentures tax adjustment — — 3.3 — — 3.9
Dividends and dividend equivalents — — — (452.9 — (452.9
Issuance of common stock under employee

stock plans, net of related tax benefits i — 672. — — 672.
December 31, 2013 293.: % 2¢ $ 10,765.. $ 13,813.¢ $ 183.2 % 24,765.:

See accompanying notes.
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WellPoint, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2013
(In Millions, Except Per Share Data or As Otherwg&tated Herein)
1. Organization

References to the terms “we”, “our”, “us”, “WellPwi or the “Company” used throughout these Note€dnsolidated Financial
Statements refer to WellPoint, Inc., an Indiangooation, and unless the context otherwise requitedirect and indirect subsidiaries.

We are one of the largest health benefits companissms of medical membership in the United Staserving 35.7 medical members
through our affiliated health plans and approxitya®&.8 individuals through our subsidiaries aPetember 31, 2013 . We offer a broad
spectrum of network-based managed care healthibpfaafs to large and small employer, individuakditaid and senior markets. Our
managed care plans include: preferred providermizgtions, or PPOs; health maintenance organizatanHMOS; point-of-service, or POS,
plans; traditional indemnity plans and other hylpians, including consumer-driven health plans;BDHPs; and hospital only and limited
benefit products. In addition, we provide a broa@yof managed care services to self-funded custenmcluding claims processing,
underwriting, stop loss insurance, actuarial seyiprovider network access, medical cost managenlisaase management, wellness
programs and other administrative services. Weigeoan array of specialty and other insurance prtsdand services such as behavioral h
benefit services, dental, vision, life and disapilnsurance benefits, radiology benefit managerramdlytics-driven personal health care
guidance and long-term care insurance. We alsdgeervices to the Federal Government in conneetith the Federal Employee Program,
or FEP, and various Medicare programs. We alsosmihct lenses, eyeglasses and other ocular peotfwough our 800 CONTACTS, Inc.
or 1-800 CONTACTS, business, which was divestedamuary 31, 2014.

We are an independent licensee of the Blue Cras8hare Shield Association, or BCBSA, an associabbmdependent health benefit
plans. We serve our members as the Blue Crossskecfor California and as the Blue Cross and Bhiel&, or BCBS, licensee for: Colorado,
Connecticut, Georgia, Indiana, Kentucky, Maine, $digri (excluding 3@ounties in the Kansas City area), Nevada, New tsaing, New Yorl
(as BCBS in 10 New York City metropolitan and sumding counties, and as Blue Cross or BCBS in ssdegpstate counties only), Ohio,
Virginia (excluding the Northern Virginia suburbBWashington, D.C.) and Wisconsin. In a majoritytleése service areas we do business as
Anthem Blue Cross, Anthem Blue Cross and Blue 8higlue Cross and Blue Shield of Georgia, and EenBlue Cross Blue Shield, or
Empire Blue Cross (in our New York service are®#g. also conduct business through our AMERIGROURG@tion, or Amerigroup,
subsidiary, in Florida, Georgia, Kansas, Louisiaviaryland, Nevada, New Jersey, New York, TennesBexas and Washington. Amerigroup
also provided services in the state of Ohio thralighe 30, 2013 and in the state of New Mexico thindDecember 31, 2013. We also serve
customers throughout the country as HealthLinkG#iné, and in certain Arizona, California, NevadayNy ork and Virginia markets through
our CareMore Health Group, Inc., or CareMore, slibsy. We are licensed to conduct insurance operatin all 50 states through our
subsidiaries.

2. Basis of Presentation and Significant Accountingolicies

Basis of PresentationThe accompanying consolidated financial statemientade the accounts of WellPoint and its subsidgaand have
been prepared in conformity with U.S. generallyegded accounting principles, or GAAP. All signifitantercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Certain of our subsidiaries operate outside ofith#ged States and have functional currencies dtiear the U.S. dollar, or USD. We
translate the assets and liabilities of those slido$es to USD using the exchange rate in effett@end of the period. We translate the
revenues and expenses of those subsidiaries tousBD the average exchange rates in effect dun@géeriod. The net effect of these
translation adjustments is included in “Foreignrency translation adjustments” in our consolidatedements of shareholders’ equity.

ReclassificationsCertain prior year amounts have been reclassifietform to the current year presentation. The
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operating results for 1-800 CONTACTS are reportediacontinued operations as a result of the pgndiiestiture at December 31, 2013.
These results were previously reported in the Comaisleand Specialty Business segment. Additionahg, assets and liabilities of 1-800-
CONTACTS are reported as held for sale in the clichested balance sheets. Unless otherwise specélkfinancial information presented in
the accompanying consolidated financial statemamdsin the notes to consolidated financial statéseriates only to our continuing
operations, other than cash flows presented ondhsolidated statements of cash flows. In accomlanth Financial Accounting Standards
Board, or FASB, guidance, we have elected to nodrseely disclose net cash provided by or usegérating, investing, and financing
activities and the net effect of those cash flowsash and cash equivalents for discontinued dpesatluring the periods presented.
Information related to discontinued operationsiduded in Note 3, "Business Acquisitions and Diiteses," and in some instances, where
appropriate, is included as a separate disclosithénvthe individual footnotes.

Use of EstimatesThe preparation of consolidated financial states@ntonformity with GAAP requires us to make esties and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported irtonsolidated financial statements and accompamatgs. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Cash EquivalentsAll highly liquid investments with maturities ofrbe months or less when purchased are classifiedsdisequivalents.

Investments:Certain FASB other-than-temporary impairment, oiSBAOTTI, guidance applies to fixed maturity sedesitand provides
guidance on the recognition and presentation ddretiian-temporary impairments. In addition, thisSSBAOTTI guidance requires disclosures
related to other-than-temporary impairments. likad maturity security is in an unrealized lossipos and we have the intent to sell the fixed
maturity security, or it is more likely than noathwe will have to sell the fixed maturity secutitgfore recovery of its amortized cost basis, the
decline in value is deemed to be other-than-temg@mad is recorded to other-than-temporary impairn@sses recognized in income in our
consolidated income statements. For impaired firaturity securities that we do not intend to selt és more likely than not that we will not
have to sell such securities, but we expect thawileot fully recover the amortized cost basls tredit component of the other-than-
temporary impairment is recognized in other-th@mporary impairment losses recognized in incomauinconsolidated income statements
the non-credit component of the other-than-temyarapairment is recognized in other comprehensie®ine. Furthermore, unrealized losses
entirely caused by non-credit related factors egldb fixed maturity securities for which we expexcfully recover the amortized cost basis
continue to be recognized in accumulated other cehgnsive income, or AOCI.

The credit component of an other-than-temporaryainmpent is determined by comparing the net pregaloe of projected future cash
flows with the amortized cost basis of the fixectuniéy security. The net present value is calcudig discounting our best estimate of
projected future cash flows at the effective inderate implicit in the fixed maturity securitythie date of acquisition. For mortgabaeked an
asset-backed securities, cash flow estimates amdl@En assumptions regarding the underlying coflbilecluding prepayment speeds, vintage,
type of underlying asset, geographic concentratidefault rates, recoveries and changes in valiealFother debt securities, cash flow
estimates are driven by assumptions regarding pililyaof default, including changes in credit rags, and estimates regarding timing and
amount of recoveries associated with a default.

The unrealized gains or losses on our current@amgtterm equity securities classified as availdbtesale are included in accumulated
other comprehensive income as a separate compohsimareholders’ equity, unless the decline in #atudeemed to be other-than-temporary
and we do not have the intent and ability to hoichsequity securities until their full cost canreeovered, in which case such equity securitie:
are written down to fair value and the loss is gedrto other-than-temporary impairment losses neized in income.

We maintain various rabbi trusts to account forahgets and liabilities under certain deferred @mption plans. Under these plans, the
participants can defer certain types of compensaia elect to receive a return on the deferreduatsdased on the changes in fair value of
various investment options, primarily a varietynwfitual funds. Rabbi trust assets are classifigcading, which are reported in other invested
assets, current, in the consolidated balance sheets

We use the equity method of accounting for investsién companies in which our ownership interestibées us to influence the operating
or financial decisions of the investee company. @roportionate share of equity in net income otéhanconsolidated affiliates is reported \
net investment income.
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For asset-backed securities included in fixed nitgtsecurities, we recognize income using an efffectield based on anticipated
prepayments and the estimated economic life ofduarrities. When estimates of prepayments chahgeftective yield is recalculated to
reflect actual payments to date and anticipatag-éupayments. The net investment in the secuigtiadjusted to the amount that would have
existed had the new effective yield been appliadesthe acquisition of the securities. Such adjastmare reported with net investment
income.

Investment income is recorded when earned. Allsesi sold resulting in investment gains and Issm@ recorded on the trade date.
Realized gains and losses are determined on tlie dfabe cost or amortized cost of the specificusities sold.

We participate in securities lending programs whgmarketable securities in our investment portfalie transferred to independent
brokers or dealers based on, among other things,dreditworthiness in exchange for cash colldtaitially equal to at least 102% of the
value of the securities on loan and is thereaf@ntained at a minimum of 100% of the market valfithe securities loaned (calculated as the
ratio of initial market value of cash collateraldarrent market value of the securities on loargcakdingly, the market value of the securities
on loan to each borrower is monitored daily andibeower is required to deliver additional cashateral if the market value of the securities
on loan exceeds the initial market value of cadlatal delivered. The fair value of the collatexeceived at the time of the transaction
amounted to $969.7 and $564.7 at December 31, 20d 2012 , respectively. The value of the caslatathl delivered represented 102% of
the market value of the securities on loan at Déxer1, 2013 and 2012 . Under FASB guidance refkatedcounting for transfers and
servicing of financial assets and extinguishmeht&bilities, we recognize the cash collaterabasasset, which is reported as “securities
lending collateral” on our consolidated balanceetti@nd we record a corresponding liability for eldigation to return the cash collateral to
the borrower, which is reported as “securities ieggayable.” The securities on loan are repontetthé applicable investment category on the
consolidated balance sheets. Unrealized gainsee$oon securities lending collateral are inclidedtcumulated other comprehensive incom
as a separate component of shareholders’ equity.

Premium and Self-Funded ReceivableBremium and self-funded receivables include theleced amounts from fully-insured and self-
funded groups, and are reported net of an allowéoragoubtful accounts of $223.6 and $197.1 at Drdwer 31, 2013 and 2012 , respectively.
The allowance for doubtful accounts is based otfital collection trends and our judgment regagdime ability to collect specific accounts.

Other ReceivablesDther receivables include pharmacy rebates, progdeances, claims recoveries, reinsurance, govarhprograms,
proceeds due from brokers on investment trade®tredt miscellaneous amounts due to us. These addessare reported net of an allowance
for uncollectible amounts of $115.0 and $79.0 atédeber 31, 2013 and 2012 , respectively, whictageld on historical collection trends and
our judgment regarding the ability to collect sfie@amounts.

Income TaxesWe file a consolidated income tax return. Defeirembme tax assets and liabilities are recognizedeimporary difference
between the financial statement and tax returndhaSassets and liabilities based on enacted tas emd laws. The deferred tax benefits of the
deferred tax assets are recognized to the extaligagon of such benefits is more likely than ridéferred income tax expense or benefit
generally represents the net change in deferrexrindax assets and liabilities during the yearlushag the impact from amounts initially
recorded for business combinations, if any. Curigzime tax expense represents the tax consequehemsenues and expenses currently
taxable or deductible on various income tax retfionshe year reported.

We account for income tax contingencies in accardamith FASB guidance that contains a model to @skluncertainty in tax positions
and clarifies the accounting for income taxes ®spribing a minimum recognition threshold, whichirmdome tax positions must achieve
before being recognized in the financial statements

Property and EquipmentProperty and equipment is recorded at cost, nataiimulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed
principally by the straight-line method over estiethuseful lives ranging from 15 to 39 years foifdings and improvements, three to seven
yearsfor data processing equipment, furniture and o#fuglipment, and three to five years for computetwsok. Leasehold improvements are
depreciated over the term of the related leasdaierosts related to the development or purchésdernal-use software are capitalized and
amortized.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Asset§&ASB guidance requires business combinations gcbeunted for using the acquisition method o
accounting and it also specifies the types of aeguintangible assets that are required to be
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recognized and reported separately from goodwabdwill represents the excess of cost of acquisiticer the fair value of net assets acqu
Other intangible assets represent the values asbignsubscriber bases, provider and hospital mksy8lue Cross and Blue Shield and other
trademarks, licenses, non-compete and other agréent@oodwill and other intangible assets are atlet to reportable segments based on th
relative fair value of the components of the buséss acquired.

Goodwill and other intangible assets with indeérites are not amortized but are tested for inmpaitt at least annually. We complete oul
annual impairment tests of existing goodwill andestintangible assets with indefinite lives durthg fourth quarter of each year. Certain
interim impairment tests are also performed whaemtal impairment indicators exist or changesun lousiness or other triggering events
occur. Goodwill and other intangible assets aracalied to reporting units for purposes of the ahgaadwill impairment test. In addition,
certain other intangible assets with indefiniteeiysuch as trademarks, are also tested separately.

FASB guidance allows for qualitative assessmentghather it is more likely than not that the fa@we of a reporting unit is less than its
carrying amount for purposes of a goodwill impainhanalysis and whether it is more likely than thait an indefinite-lived intangible asset is
impaired for purposes of an indefinite-lived intélg asset impairment analysis. Quantitative anglysist be performed if qualitative analyses
are not conclusive. Entities also have the optiobypass the assessment of qualitative factorpeombed directly to performing quantitative
analyses. We begin our annual tests with quantganalyses. Our impairment tests require us teeragkumptions and judgments regarding
the estimated fair value of our reporting unitgluding goodwill and other intangible assets wittdfinite lives. Estimated fair values
developed based on our assumptions and judgmegtg be significantly different if other reasonabsumptions and estimates were to be
used.

Fair value for purposes of the goodwill impairmgsst is calculated using a blend of a projectedrime and market valuation approach.
The projected income approach is developed usisgnagtions about future revenue, expenses and ecahimderived from our internal
planning process. Our assumed discount rate isllaseur industry’s weighted-average cost of chpita reflects volatility associated with
the cost of equity capital. Market valuations aaedtl on observed multiples of certain measuresdiv@ membership, revenue, EBITDA
(earnings before interest, taxes, depreciationsemalrtization) and net income as well as markettahpation analyses of WellPoint and other
comparable companies. A goodwill impairment losegnized to the extent that the carrying amedneeds the asset’s fair value. This
determination is made at the reporting unit level aonsists of two steps. First, the fair valua oéporting unit is determined and compared tc
its carrying amount. Second, if the carrying amaafrd reporting unit exceeds its fair value, anamment loss is recognized for any excess of
the carrying amount of the reporting unit's goodwiler the implied fair value of that goodwill. Tiraplied fair value of goodwill is
determined by allocating the fair value of the mtipg unit in a manner similar to a purchase pettecation on a business acquisition, at the
impairment test date.

The fair value of indefinite-lived intangible assét estimated and compared to the carrying valleeestimate the fair value of indefinite-
lived intangible assets using a projected incom@agrh. We recognize an impairment loss when ttimated fair value of indefinite-lived
intangible assets is less than the carrying vafigignificant impairment indicators are noted tela to other intangible assets subject to
amortization, we may be required to record impairhiesses against future income.

Derivative Financial InstrumentsWe primarily invest in the following types of degitive financial instruments: interest rate swaps,
forward contracts, put and call options, creditadéifswaps, embedded derivatives, warrants andtgwap Derivatives embedded within non-
derivative instruments, such as options embeddednnertible fixed maturity securities, are bifuexhfrom the host instrument when the
embedded derivative is not clearly and closelytegldo the host instrument. Our use of derivatigdsnited by statutes and regulations
promulgated by the various regulatory bodies tociviwve are subject, and by our own derivative pol@yr derivative use is generally limited
to hedging purposes, on an economic basis, ancenerglly do not use derivative instruments for sfsd/e purposes.

We have exposure to economic losses due to intextestisk arising from changes in the level ortitity of interest rates. We attempt to
mitigate our exposure to interest rate risk throagtive portfolio management, including rebalanaog existing portfolios of assets and
liabilities, as well as changing the characterssti€investments to be purchased or sold in thadutin addition, derivative financial
instruments are used to modify the interest rapmsure of certain liabilities or forecasted tranisms. These strategies include the use of
interest rate swaps and forward contracts, whiehuaed to lock-

- 87 -




WellPoint, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu

in interest rates or to hedge, on an economic paségest rate risks associated with variable datat. We have used these types of instrument
as designated hedges against specific liabilities.

All investments in derivatives are recorded astasseliabilities at fair value. If certain corrélan, hedge effectiveness and risk reduction
criteria are met, a derivative may be specificdlygignated as a hedge of exposure to changes irafaé or cash flow. The accounting for
changes in the fair value of a derivative depemdthe intended use of the derivative and the naifieey hedge designation thereon. Amount:
excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveiiess/, as well as the ineffective portion of tin or loss, are reported in results of
operations immediately. If the derivative is nosigeated as a hedge, the gain or loss resultimg fr@ change in the fair value of the deriva
is recognized in results of operations in the pkabchange. Cash flows associated with the settidrof non-designated derivatives are showt
on a net basis in investing activity in our condated statements of cash flow.

From time to time, we may also purchase derivatiodgedge, on an economic basis, our exposura¢igfocurrency exchange
fluctuations associated with the operations ofaierdf our subsidiaries. We generally use future®avard contracts for these transactions.
generally do not designate these contracts as bedgk accordingly, the changes in fair value e§¢hderivatives are recognized in income
immediately.

Credit exposure associated with non-performanci&ygounterparties to derivative instruments isegalty limited to the uncollateralized
fair value of the asset related to instrumentsgazed in the consolidated balance sheets. We pttenmitigate the risk of non-performance
by selecting counterparties with high credit rasimgnd monitoring their creditworthiness and by diifging derivatives among multiple
counterparties. At December 31, 2013 , we belibeest were no material concentrations of creditwihk any individual counterparty.

Certain of our derivative agreements contain cragiitport provisions that require us to post cailidti there are declines in the derivative
fair value or our credit rating.

Retirement BenefitsWe recognize the funded status of pension and gitstretirement benefit plans on the consolidatddrite sheets
based on fiscal-year-end measurements of plansaasétbenefit obligations. Prepaid pension benedfisesent prepaid costs related to define
benefit pension plans and are reported with otbacarrent assets. Postretirement benefits represgstanding obligations for retiree medical,
life, vision and dental benefits. Liabilities foepsion and other postretirement benefits are regavith current and noncurrent liabilities basec
on the amount by which the actuarial present vafugenefits payable in the next twelve months ideldiin the benefit obligation exceeds the
fair value of plan assets.

Medical Claims Payablet.iabilities for medical claims payable include esited provisions for incurred but not paid claimsan
undiscounted basis, as well as estimated provid@mmsxpenses related to the processing of cldinesirred but not paid claims include (1) an
estimate for claims that are incurred but not regmhras well as claims reported to us but not yetgssed through our systems; and (2) claims
reported to us and processed through our systetmobyet paid.

Liabilities for both claims incurred but not repexitand reported but not yet processed throughysterss are determined in aggregate by
employing actuarial methods that are commonly dseldealth insurance actuaries and meet Actuaradgirds of Practice. Actuarial
Standards of Practice require that the claim litsddl be appropriate under moderately adverse wistances. We determine the amount of the
liability for incurred but not paid claims by folldng a detailed actuarial process that entailsgubith historical claim payment patterns as
as emerging medical cost trends to project our éstghate of claim liabilities.

We regularly review and set assumptions regardasg ttends and utilization when initially estabirginclaim liabilities. We continually
monitor and adjust the claims liability and benefipense based on subsequent paid claims activityr assumptions regarding cost trends
and utilization are significantly different thantaal results, our income statement and financialtjpm could be impacted in future periods.

Premium deficiencies are recognized when it is gbtd that expected claims and administrative exgendll exceed future premiums on
existing medical insurance contracts without coasition of investment income. Determination of premdeficiencies for longer duration li
and disability contracts includes consideratiomaéstment income. For purposes of premium defies) contracts are deemed to be either
short or long duration and are grouped in a manoesistent with our method of acquiring, servicamgl measuring the profitability of such
contracts. Once established,
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premium deficiencies are released commensurateasttial claims experience over the remaining lifthe contract. No premium deficiencies
were established at December 31, 2013 or 2012 .

Reserves for Future Policy BenefitReserves for future policy benefits include ligek for life and long-term disability insurancelipp
benefits based upon interest, mortality and motpiaésumptions from published actuarial tables, ifrezstibased upon our experience. Future
policy benefits also include liabilities for insum@e policies for which some of the premiums reagiveearlier years are intended to pay
anticipated benefits to be incurred in future yeRrgure policy benefits are continually monitoed reviewed, and when reserves are
adjusted, differences are reflected in benefit agpe

The current portion of reserves for future poli@nbfits relates to the portion of such reserveswiesexpect to pay within one year . We
believe that our liabilities for future policy bdits, along with future premiums received are ageguo satisfy our ultimate benefit liability;
however, these estimates are inherently subjexitamber of variable circumstances. Consequemhityattual results could differ materially
from the amounts recorded in our consolidated i@ rstatements.

Other Policyholder Liabilities:Other policyholder liabilities include rate stabdtion reserves associated with retrospectivebdrat
insurance contracts and certain case-specificvesas well as liabilities for minimum medical loaio, or MLR, rebates. Rate stabilization
reserves represent accumulated premiums that exdesidcustomers owe us based on actual claim esqui The timing of payment of these
retrospectively rated refunds is based on the aotial terms with the customers and can vary frenogd to period based on the specific
contractual requirements.

Effective beginning in 2011, we are required to tmegtain minimum MLR thresholds prescribed by Baient Protection and Affordable
Care Act and related Health Care and Education iaiéation Act of 2010, or collectively, Health GaReform. If we do not meet or exceed
the minimum MLR thresholds specified by Health CReform, we are required to pay rebates to cedastomers. Minimum MLR rebates are
calculated by applicable line of business (largrugr small group and individual) and legal entityaccordance with regulations issued by the
Department of Health and Human Services, or HH8h®alculations are made using estimated caleretarmedical loss expense and
premiums, as defined by HHS.

We follow HHS guidelines for determining the typd#expenses that may be included in our minimum MéBate calculations, which
differ from benefit expense and premiums as repldrte@ur consolidated financial statements preparednformity with GAAP. Certain
amounts reported as expense in our GAAP basis tdats financial statements may be reported @&slaation of premiums in accordance
with HHS regulations. For example, certain federal state income taxes and assessments recorofetiare tax expense or general and
administrative expense, as appropriate, in ouradafeted GAAP financial statements are allowededririuded as a reduction of premium
revenue in HHS’ calculation of minimum MLR. In atidn, profit amounts included in our payments tiodtparty administrative service
providers are recorded as benefit expense in msdiolated GAAP financial statements while HHS doetsallow for the inclusion of these
expenses within the medical loss expense for peposcalculating minimum MLR.

Revenue RecognitionPremiums for fully-insured contracts are recogniasdevenue over the period insurance coveragevided, net
of amounts recognized for minimum MLR rebatespiblecable. Premiums related to the unexpired ceiiied coverage periods are reflected ir
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets asnateincome. Premiums include revenue from retctsgely rated contracts where
revenue is based on the estimated ultimate lossriexce of the contract. Premium revenue includesdjustment for retrospectively rated
refunds based on an estimate of incurred clain@mRim rates for certain lines of business are stibjeapproval by the Department of
Insurance of each respective state.

Administrative fees include revenue from certaiougr contracts that provide for the group to basktfor all, or with supplemental
insurance arrangements, a portion of their clairpegence. We charge these self-funded groups minétrative fee, which is based on the
number of members in a group or the group’s claipeeence. In addition, administrative fees incladeounts received for the administration
of Medicare or certain other government programmedey our self-funded arrangements, revenue is rézed as administrative services are
performed. All benefit payments under these program excluded from benefit expense.

Share-Based CompensatioQur current compensation philosophy provides farstbased compensation, including stock options and
restricted stock awards. Stock options are grafmed fixed number of shares with an exercise paitckeast equal to the fair value of the share:
at the date of the grant. Restricted stock awamrel$saued at the fair value of the stock on thetgdate. Effective January 1, 2014, the empl
stock purchase plan will allow for a purchase ppee share
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which is 95%of the fair value of a share of common stock onlaisétrading day of the plan quarter. The emplasteek purchase plan discol
is not recognized as compensation expense basédAR guidance. All other share-based payments tfol@yees are recognized as
compensation expense in the income statement loastdir fair values. Additionally, excess tax bsewhich result from actual tax benefits
exceeding deferred tax benefits previously recagphlzased on grant date fair value, are recognizediditional paid-in-capital and are
reclassified from operating cash flows to financiragh flows in the consolidated statements of 8agls. Our share-based employee
compensation plans and assumptions are descrili¢ot&n15, “Capital Stock.”

Advertising and Marketing CostsWe use print, broadcast and other advertisingdampte our products and to develop our corporate
image. We market our products through direct mamgedctivities and an extensive network of indepamdgents, brokers and retail
partnerships for individual and Medicare customans) for certain Local Group customers with a senamployee base. Products for Nationa
Accounts and Local Group customers with a largepleyree base are generally sold through indeperutekers or consultants retained by the
customer and working with industry specialists froar in-house sales force. In the individual anédléigroup markets we offer on-exchange
products through state or federally facilitated ke#places and off-exchange products. Federal prarsitbsidies are available only for certain
on-exchange products. The cost of advertising aakating for product promotion is expensed as iretlwhile advertising and marketing
costs associated with corporate image is expenbked Virst aired. Total advertising and marketingense was $350.9 , $285.4 and $287.8 fo
the years ended December 31, 2013 , 2012 and 2@spectively.

Earnings per ShareEarnings per share amounts, on a basic and dih&sid, have been calculated based upon the weighkitzdge
common shares outstanding for the period.

Basic earnings per share excludes dilution andnsputed by dividing income available to common shatders by the weighted-average
number of common shares outstanding for the pebddted earnings per share includes the dilutiffeot of stock options, restricted stock
convertible debentures, using the treasury stodkode The treasury stock method assumes exercsead options and vesting of restricted
stock, with the assumed proceeds used to purcloaseon stock at the average market price for thogeThe difference between the numbel
of shares assumed issued and number of sharesexspunchased represents the dilutive shares.

New Accounting Pronouncements$n February 2013, the FASB issued Accounting Stedslblpdate 2013-0Z,omprehensive Income
(Topic 220): Reporting of Amounts Reclassified @uccumulated Other Comprehensive IncomeASU 2013-02. ASU 2013-02 amends
certain portions of Accounting Standards Codifigati opic 220Comprehensive Incomer ASC 220, to improve reporting by requiring the
presentation, in one place, of significant recksations out of accumulated other comprehensigerime on the respective line items in net
income if the amount being reclassified is requinader GAAP to be reclassified in its entirety & income. For other amounts that are not
required to be reclassified in their entirety to imeome in the same reporting period, cross-refas to other disclosures that provide
additional detail about those amounts is requifée: adoption of ASU 2013-02 in the first quarte26fL3 did not have an impact on our
consolidated financial position, results of opemasi or cash flows.

In July 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-06, ©ffxpenses (Topic 720Fees Paid to the Federal Government by Health lesufa
consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task FoocédSU 2011-06. Health Care Reform imposes a ratomyg annual fee on health insurers
that write certain types of health insurance on. tisks for each calendar year beginning on or d@uary 1, 2014. The annual fee will be
allocated to health insurers based on the rattbesmount of an insurer's net premium revenuesanrduring the preceding calendar year to
the amount of health insurance for all U.S. heattk for those certain lines of business that igtem during the preceding calendar year. ASU
201106 addresses how this fee should be recognizedlassified in the income statements of health iexsuand stipulates that the liability
the fee should be estimated and recorded in fudédhe insurer provides qualifying health insuraincie applicable calendar year in which
fee is payable, with a corresponding deferred t@dtis amortized to expense using a straightstie¢hod of allocation, unless another method
better allocates the fee over the calendar yeaittisapayable. This ASU is effective for calengaars beginning after December 31, 2013,
when the fee initially becomes effective. The tataount to be collected from allocations to healtfurers in 2014 is $8,000.0 . Our portion of
the 2014 fee is currently estimated to be at I8880.0 . This fee is non-deductible for incomeparposes. Accordingly, adoption of this
guidance and the enactment of this fee could hawatarial impact on our financial position, resafperations or cash flows in future
periods.

There were no other new accounting pronouncembatsitere issued or became effective during the geded
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December 31, 2013 that had, or are expected tq havaterial impact on our financial position, fesof operations or financial statement
disclosures.

3. Business Acquisitions and Divestitures
Amerigroup

In December 2012 , we completed our acquisitioArakrigroup, one of the nation’s leading manage@ campanies focused on meeting
the health care needs of financially vulnerable Acams. This acquisition furthers our goal of ciregbetter health care quality at more
affordable prices for our customers. Amerigroup advances our capabilities in effectively andogdfitly serving the growing Medicaid
population, including the expanding dual eligiblesniors, persons with disabilities and long-teemvises and support markets.

We paid $92.00 per share in cash to acquire di@butstanding shares of Amerigroup for total castisideration of $4,755.8 . In
addition, 0.5 shares of Amerigroup restricted stomkverted to 0.7 shares of WellPoint restrictedlstvalued at $17.1 , and 0.1 shares
underlying Amerigroup stock options converted % 8hares underlying WellPoint stock options, vdlae$2.6 . We also incurred $24.0 of
transaction costs, which were recorded to genecbaministrative expense during the year endeéiber 31, 2012.

In accordance with FASB accounting guidance foiress combinations, the consideration transferrasl allocated to the fair value of
Amerigroup’s assets acquired and liabilities assymmeeluding identifiable intangible assets. In 30Wve finalized our purchase accounting ant
made a measurement period adjustment to the flaie vd certain assets acquired and liabilities amiiat the date of acquisition. The effect o
these adjustments on the preliminary purchase pficeation recorded at December 31, 2012 was erease to goodwill of $28.%n increas
in other intangible assets of $20.0 , a decreasarirent liabilities of $1.6 , and an increase a@mcurrent liabilities of $50.5 . The below table
and the accompanying consolidated balance shdkgstrine impact of these adjustments.

The excess of the consideration transferred oweestimated fair value of net assets acquiredtesbsirl non-tax-deductible goodwill of
$3,062.0 , all of which was allocated to our Goveent Business segment. Goodwill recognized fromattrpuisition of Amerigroup primarily
relates to the future economic benefits arisingifexpected synergies and is consistent with otedfatentions to strengthen our position anc
expand operations in the government sector to 9dedicaid and Medicare enrollees.

The following table summarizes the estimated falugs of Amerigroup assets acquired and liabildigsumed:

Current assets $ 2,716.!
Goodwill 3,062.(
Other intangible assets 975.(
Other noncurrent assets 406.1
Total assets acquired 7,159.¢
Current liabilities 1,416.¢
Noncurrent liabilities 967.5
Total liabilities assumed 2,384.;
Net assets acquired $ 4,775.

Of the $975.0 of total other intangible assets aedu$65.0 represents finite-lived customer relathips with an amortization period of
three years , $30.0 represents provider and hosgitaorks with an amortization period of twentyaye and $880.0 represents indefinite-lived
state Medicaid contracts and trade names.

The results of operations of Amerigroup for theigefollowing December 24, 2012 are included in consolidated financial statements
within our Government Business segment and reptedé219.0 of our operating revenue and an ofésaet income of $6.for the year ende
December 31, 2012. The pro-forma effects of theguagition for periods prior to acquisition were monsidered material to our consolidated
results of operations.
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1-800 CONTACTS

In December 2013 , we entered into a definitiveeagrent to sell our 800 CONTACTS business to the private equity firnoitas H. Le:
Partners, L.P. Additionally, we entered into areagsirchase agreement with Luxottica Group toaellglasses.com related assets
(collectively, 1-800 CONTACTS). The operating reésdbr 1-800 CONTACTS are reported as discontinyeerations in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income. These results previously reported in the Commercial and Spgcusiness segment. Additionally, the
assets and liabilities of 1-800-CONTACTS are regubis held for sale in the accompanying consolidaééance sheets. This divestiture will
enable us to focus on our core growth opportuné@ess both our Commercial and Specialty and Gorent business segments.

Summarized financial information for the 1-800 COMTS discontinued operations for the years endezkBéer 31, 2013 and 2012 is
as follows:

2013 2012
Revenues $ 4347 214.F
Income from discontinued operations before tax 17.5 7.2
Income tax (benefit) expense (2.6) 2.7
Income from discontinued operations 19.€ 4.5
Loss on disposal from discontinued operationspheax (164.5 —
Discontinued operations, net of tax $ (1446 $ 45

In connection with the sale of 1-800 CONTACTS, weagnized a loss on disposal of $221.8 , net afi@ame tax benefit of $57.3 for the
year ended December 31, 2013. The loss on disp@satalculated as the difference between the &irey as determined by the se
agreements less costs to sell, and the carryingealthe held for sale assets at December 31,. 20f8sale was completed on January 31,
2014 and did not result in any material differetaéhe loss on disposal shown above.

The assets and liabilities of 1-800 CONTACTS aported as held for sale in the accompanying codatdd balance sheets at
December 31, 2013 and 2012 and consist of theviollg

2013 2012

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 48 $ 9.2
Property and equipment 27.€ 21.C
Goodwill 409.¢ 620.7
Other intangibles 415. 437.:
Other assets 49.2 9.7
Total assets $ 906.¢ $ 1,098.(
Liabilities

Accounts payable and other accrued expenses $ 34z $ 33
Deferred income taxes 142t 158.1
Other liabilities 4.7 15.2
Total liabilities $ 1814 § 207.]

4. Restructuring Activities

As a result of restructuring activities implementeding 2012 and 2011, we recorded liabilitiesdorployee termination costs and lease
and other contract exit costs. The restructurirtiyities are classified as components of general
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and administrative expenses in the consolidatadratents of income for the respective period in Whiey occurred. There were no
restructuring activities implemented during 2013.

The 2012 restructuring activities were initiatetharily as a result of personnel changes, orgaioizat realignment to create efficiencies
in our business processes and certain integratitivities associated with the Amerigroup acquisitidctivity related to these liabilities for the
year endeDecember 31, 2013 and 2012, by segment, is asvgllo

Commercial
and Specialty Government
Business Business Other Total
2012 Restructuring Activities
Employee termination costs:
Costs incurred in 2012 $ 70.¢ % 645 $ 35 $ 138
2012 payments (10.8) (9.9 (0.6) (21.2)
Liabilities for employee termination costs endirajdnce at December 31
2012 60.C 54.7 2.9 117.¢
2013 payments (34.¢ (34.6) 2.7 (70.9
Liabilities released in 2013 (12.0 (15.9 (0.6) (28.5)
Liabilities for employee termination costs endirajamce at December 31,
2013 13.4 4.z 0.6 18.2
Lease and other contract exit costs:
Costs incurred in 2012 8.8 3.C 0.1 11.€
2012 payments (0.7 — — (0.7)
Liabilities for lease and other contract exit castgling balance at
December 31, 2012 8.7 3.C 0.1 11.¢
2013 payments (5.7 (2.0 (0.7 (7.9
Liabilities released in 2013 (0.6) (0.2 — (0.8
Liabilities for lease and other contract exit castsling balance at
December 31, 2013 2.4 0.€ — 3.2
Total liabilities for 2012 restructuring activitiending balance at December 31, 2'$ 15 $ 5C $ 06 $ 21.4

The 2011 restructuring activities were initiatechagsult of a change in strategic focus primarnilyesponse to Health Care Reform. At
December 31, 2013, our total liabilities for 2@&$tructuring activities were $17.5 , of which $fefated to employee termination costs and

$15.6 related to lease and other contract exisc®styments for lease and other contract exit eaitsontinue to occur over the remaining
terms of the related contracts.
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5. Investments

A summary of current and long-term investmentsjlabke-for-sale, at December 31, 2013 and 2012 if®bows:

Non-Credit
Component of
Other-Than-
Gross Unrealized Losses Temporary
Cost or Gross Impairments
Amortized Unrealized Less than 12 Months Estimated Recognized in
Cost Gains 12 Months or Greater Fair Value AOCI
December 31, 2013:
Fixed maturity securities:
United States Government securities $ 300.¢ $ 28 % B9 $ — 3 299.¢ $ =
Government sponsored securities 174.¢ 0.4 1.3 — 173.t —
States, municipalities and political
subdivisions, tax-exempt 5,899.! 202.¢ (90.7) (9.6) 6,002.° (0.6)
Corporate securities 7,614.: 205.2 (95.2) (15.5) 7,708.¢ (0.7
Options embedded in convertible
securities 89.2 — — — 89.2 —
Residential mortgage-backed securities  2,269.¢ 48.C (41.9 (7.2) 2,268.¢ —
Commercial mortgage-backed securitit 479.( 10.t (2.6) 0.3 486.¢ —
Other debt securities 456.2 5.8 (2.5) (0.9 458.7 (0.7
Total fixed maturity securities 17,282. 475.3 (236.5) (33.9) 17,488.. $ (0.8
Equity securities 1,195.¢ 578.¢ (8.0 — 1,766.¢
Total investments, available-for-sale $ 18,478! $ 1,054. $ (2445 $ (33.9 $ 19,254
December 31, 2012
Fixed maturity securities:
United States Government securities $ 330.: % 131 $ 02 $ — 8 343 $ —
Government sponsored securities 153.¢ 2.€ — — 156.2 —
States, municipalities and political
subdivisions, tax-exempt 5,501.: 388.2 (5.7 (1.6) 5,882.: —
Corporate securities 7,642.( 387.( (17.0 (8.0 8,004.( 1.7)
Options embedded in convertible
securities 67.2 — — — 67.2 —
Residential mortgage-backed securitie 2,204. 103.1 1.2 (1.9 2,304.¢ (0.4
Commercial mortgage-backed securities 323.2 22.5 — — 345.7 —
Other debt securities 236.¢ 7.€ (0.2 (3.2 241.1 (1.3
Total fixed maturity securities 16,459.. 924.1 (24.2) (14.6) 17,344.. $ (3.4
Equity securities 897.( 358.( (12.5) — 1,242
Total investments, available-for-sale $ 17,356.. $ 1,282. $ (36.) $ (14.€) $ 18,586.!

At December 31, 2013 , we owned $2,755.5 of morgaacked securities and $423.8 of asset-backediseswut of a total available-for-
sale investment portfolio of $19,254.9 . These stes included sub-prime and Alt-A securities wigtir values of $32.2 and $102.4 ,
respectively. These sub-prime and Alt-A securitied accumulated net unrealized gains of $1.7 ant, $&spectively. The average credit
rating of the sub-prime and Alt-A securities was3"Band “CCC”, respectively.
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The following tables summarize for fixed maturigcsrities and equity securities in an unrealized jposition at December 31, 2013 and
2012 , the aggregate fair value and gross unreblass by length of time those securities have lmeatinuously in an unrealized loss position.

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater
Gross Gross
Number of Estimated Unrealized Number of Estimated Unrealized
Securities Fair Value Loss Securities Fair Value Loss
(Securities are whole amounts)
December 31, 2013:
Fixed maturity securities:
United States Government securities 27 % 179.2  $ (3.9) —  $ — 3 —
Government sponsored securities 22 73.4 1.3 — — —
States, municipalities and political
subdivisions, tax-exempt 80¢€ 2,070.¢ (90.7 42 82.4 (9.6)
Corporate securities 1,44¢ 2,586.¢ (95.9) 107 81.F (15.5)
Residential mortgage-backed securities 60& 1,243.( (41.9 8C 116.2 (7.2
Commercial mortgage-backed securities 52 177.% (2.6 4 5.€ (0.3
Other debt securities 65 185.: (2.5) 17 16.2 (0.9
Total fixed maturity securities 3,02t 6,516.: (236.5) 25( 301.7 (33.9
Equity securities 42¢ 120.¢ (8.0) — — —
Total fixed maturity and equity securities 3451 $ 6,636.¢ $ (244.5) 25C % 3017 9 (33.9)
December 31, 2012
Fixed maturity securities:
United States Government securities 17 % 485 % (0.2) —  $ — 3 —
States, municipalities and political
subdivisions, tax-exempt 184 420.1 (5.7) 1 46.¢ (1.6
Corporate securities 457 1,066.! (17.0 74 52.¢ (8.0
Residential mortgage-backed securities 79 211.( (1.2 44 25.k (1.9
Commercial mortgage-backed securities 4 10.1 — 3 4.1 —
Other debt securities 7 5.4 (0.2 21 28.¢ (3.7
Total fixed maturity securities 74¢ 1,761.¢ (24.2) 145 158.( (14.¢
Equity securities 961 149.¢ (12.5) — — —
Total fixed maturity and equity securities 1,70¢ $ 1911 % (36.7) 14: 158.C $ (14.9

The amortized cost and fair value of fixed matusiegurities at December 31, 2013, by contractwdlirity, are shown below. Expected
maturities may differ from contractual maturitieschuse the issuers of the securities may havégthteto prepay obligations.

Amortized Estimated

Cost Fair Value
Due in one year or less $ 423.¢ % 426.:
Due after one year through five years 4,580.! 4,712..
Due after five years through ten years 5,105.¢ 5,196.¢
Due after ten years 4,424 4,397.¢
Mortgage-backed securities 2,748.¢ 2,755.!
Total available-for-sale fixed maturity securities $ 17,282.. $ 17,488.:
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The major categories of net investment incometerytears ended December 31 are as follows:

2013 2012 2011
Fixed maturity securities $ 638.¢ $ 6712 $ 692.4
Equity securities 45.¢ 38.4 34.C
Cash and cash equivalents 1.C 2.t 3.7
Other 19.¢ 16.2 2.4
Investment income 705.¢ 728.% 732.5
Investment expense (46.5) (42.2) (28.9)
Net investment income $ 659.1 $ 686.1 $ 703.7

Net realized investment gains/losses and net chiangerealized appreciation/depreciation in investits for the years ended Decembe
are as follows:

2013 2012 2011
Net realized gains (losses) on investments:
Fixed maturity securities:
Gross realized gains from sales $ 225¢ % 401.C $ 289.2
Gross realized losses from sales (125.9) (54.9) (65.7)
Net realized gains from sales of fixed maturityséies 100.2 346.2 224.1
Equity securities:
Gross realized gains from sales 224.1 82.C 75.4
Gross realized losses from sales (100.9 (93.9 (68.0
Net realized gains (losses) from sales of equityisges 123.¢ (11.¢) 7.4
Other realized gains on investments 48.1 0.t 3.€
Net realized gains on investments 271.¢ 334.¢ 235.1
Other-than-temporary impairment losses recognigéddome:
Fixed maturity securities (42.5) (11.9 (24.2)
Equity securities (13.9 (17.5) (27.9
Other invested assets, long-term (42.5) (8.5 (41.2)
Other-than-temporary impairment losses recognigeddome (98.9 (37.9) (93.9)
Change in net unrealized (losses) gains on invegsne
Fixed maturity securities (679.9 199.¢ 155.¢
Equity securities 225.¢ 94.7 (124.¢
Total change in net unrealized (losses) gains wesitments (454.9) 294.t 31.:
Deferred income tax benefit (expense) 159.% (104.¢ (20.7)
Net change in net unrealized (losses) gains orstmeents (294.7) 189.¢ 20.€
Net realized gains on investments, other-than-teargampairment losses
recognized in income and net change in net uneghliipsses) gains on
investments $ (12179 $ 487.C % 162.¢

A primary objective in the management of our fixedturity and equity portfolios is to maximize totaturn relative to underlying
liabilities and respective liquidity needs. In aoling this goal, assets may be sold to take adgarmdtimarket
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conditions or other investment opportunities ad agltax considerations. Sales will generally predrealized gains and losses. In the ordinar
course of business, we may sell securities atsaftosa number of reasons, including, but not Eaito: (i) changes in the investment
environment; (ii) expectations that the fair vatweild deteriorate further; (iii) desire to redus@@sure to an issuer or an industry; (iv) change
in credit quality; or (v) changes in expected ctis.

Proceeds from fixed maturity securities, equityusties and other invested assets and the relates$ gealized gains and gross realized
losses for the years ended December 31 are asfollo

2013 2012 2011
Proceeds $ 13,662¢( $ 159154 $ 12,654..
Gross realized gains 498.1 483.t 368.2
Gross realized losses (226.2) (148.¢) (133.))

A significant judgment in the valuation of investmeis the determination of when an other-than-tenamy decline in value has occurred.
We follow a consistent and systematic processdoognizing impairments on securities that susttierethantemporary declines in value. V
have established a committee responsible for tipaimment review process. The decision to impag@usty incorporates both quantitative
criteria and qualitative information. The impairneeview process considers a number of factoradinl, but not limited to: (i) the length of
time and the extent to which the fair value hasdess than book value, (ii) the financial conditend near term prospects of the issuer,

(iii) our intent and ability to retain impaired atyusecurity investments for a period of time stiffnt to allow for any anticipated recovery in
fair value, (iv) our intent to sell or the likelibd that we will need to sell a fixed maturity setyubefore recovery of its amortized cost basis,
(v) whether the debtor is current on interest amacgpal payments, (vi) the reasons for the dedimealue (i.e., credit event compared to
liquidity, general credit spread widening, curreesghange rate or interest rate factors) and geijeral market conditions and industry or
sector specific factors. For securities that aentied to be other-than-temporarily impaired, theisgcis adjusted to fair value and the
resulting losses are recognized in the consolidstiements of income. The new cost basis of tipaied securities is not increased for future
recoveries in fair value.

Other-than-temporary impairments recorded in 204312 and 2011 were primarily the result of thetcwred credit deterioration on
specific issuers in the bond markets and certaiityegecuritiesfair values remaining below cost for an extendetibgeof time. There were r
individually significant other-than-temporary impaient losses on investments by issuer during 2@032 or 2011 .

Investment securities are exposed to various rigksh as interest rate, market and credit. Dubkedetvel of risk associated with certain
investment securities and the level of uncertaialgted to changes in the value of investment #&esirit is possible that changes in these risk
factors in the near term could have an adverseriabit@pact on our results of operations or shaldés’ equity.

The changes in the amount of the credit componfesther-than-temporary impairment losses on fixexturity securities recognized in
income, for which a portion of the other-than-temgvg impairment losses was recognized in other celgmsive income, was not material for
the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 or 2011 .

At December 31, 2013 and 2012 , no investmentsesbank10% of shareholders’ equity.

As of December 31, 2013 we did not hold any fixegtumity investments that did not produce incomeriuf013 . The carrying value of
fixed maturity investments that did not produceome during 2012 was $1.8 at December 31, 2012 .

As of December 31, 2013 we had committed approxm&341.6 to future capital calls from variougdhparty investments in exchange
for an ownership interest in the related entity.

At December 31, 2013 and 2012 , securities withyaag values of approximately $449.9 and $431é&spectively, were deposited by our
insurance subsidiaries under requirements of regylauthorities.
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6. Derivative Financial Instruments

A summary of the aggregate contractual or notianaunts and estimated fair values related to d@r&véinancial instruments at

December 31, 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

Estimated Fair
Contr_actual/ Value
Notional
Amount Balance Sheet Location Asset (Liability)
December 31, 2013
Heddging instruments
Interest rate swaps $ 1,660.( Other assets/other liabilities $ 30 $ (20.7)
Non-hedging instruments
Derivatives embedded in convertible securities 295.( Fixed maturity securities 89.7 —
Interest rate swaps 72.€ Equity securities 1.8 (2.5
Options 7,891.¢ Equity securities/other assets 776.5 (787.%)
Futures — Equity securities 3.t (2.6
Subtotal non-hedging 8,259.; Subtotal non-hedging 871.( (791.9)

Total derivatives $ 9,919. Total derivatives 901.¢ (812.%)

Amounts netted (791.9) 791.¢

Net derivatives $ 1101 % (20.7)
December 31, 2012
Hedging instruments
Interest rate swaps $ 1,650.( Other assets/other liabilities $ 58.t % (0.3
Non-hedqing instruments
Derivatives embedded in convertible securities 278.¢ Fixed maturity securities 67.2 —
Credit default and interest rate swaps 95.¢ Equity securities — (7.3
Options 6,271.¢ Equity securities 385.¢ (411.9
Futures — Equity securities 2.1 (0.4)

Subtotal non-hedging 6,646.! Subtotal non-hedging 454.¢ (418.9)

Total derivatives $ 8,296 Total derivatives 513.t (419.0

Amounts netted (418.9 418.¢

Net derivatives $ 946 $ (0.)
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Fair Value Hedge:

We have entered into various interest rate swafpracts to convert a portion of our interest ratpasure on our long-term debt from fixed
rates to floating rates. The floating rates payablall of our fair value hedges are benchmarkddB®R. A summary of our outstanding fair

value hedges at December 31, 2013 and 2012 idlaw$o

Year Outstanding Notional Amount Interest
Entered Rate
Type of Fair Value Hedges Into 2013 2012 Received Expiration Date

Interest rate swap 2013 $ 10.C $ — 4.350% August 15, 202
Interest rate swap 2012 200.( 200.¢ 4.350 August 15, 202
Interest rate swap 2012 625.( 625.( 1.875 January 15, 201
Interest rate swap 2012 200.( 200.C 2.375 February 15, 201
Interest rate swap 2011 200.( 200.C 5.250 January 15, 201
Interest rate swap 2010 25.C 25.C 5.250 January 15, 201
Interest rate swap 2006 200.¢ 200.C 5.000 December 15, 201
Interest rate swap 2005 200.( 200.¢ 5.000 December 15, 201
Total notional amount outstanding $ 1,660.( $ 1,650.(

A summary of the effect of fair value hedges onionaome statement for the years ended Decemb&(3B,, 2012 and 201§ as follows

Income Statement

Income Statement Hedge Location of Hedged Item
Location of Hedge Gain Hedged Item Loss
Type of Fair Value Hedges Gain Recognized Hedged Item Loss Recognized
Year ended December 31, 2013
Interest rate swaps Interest expens $ 31.t Fixed rate dek Interest expens $ (31.5)
Year ended December 31, 2012
Interest rate swaps Interest expens $ 38.2 Fixed rate det  Interest expens $ (38.2)
Year ended December 31, 2011
Interest rate swaps Interest expens $ 45.1 Fixed rate det  Interest expens $ (45.7)

Cash Flow Hedges

We have historically entered into forward startpay fixed interest rate swaps, with the objectizelmninating the variability of cash
flows in the interest payments on various debtasses. These swaps have all terminated and no asneare outstanding at December 31,
2013 or 2012 . The unrecognized loss for all teat@d cash flow hedges included in accumulated aiviprehensive income was $32.3 and
$35.3 at December 31, 2013 and 2012 . As of DeceBihe2013 , the total amount of amortization aber next twelve months for all cash

flow hedges will increase interest expense by apprately $5.0 .
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A summary of the effect of cash flow hedges onfmancial statements for the years ended Decembe2®L.3 , 2012 and 2011 is as
follows:

Effective Portion

Income Statement
Location of
Loss

Ineffective Portion

Pretax Hedge Hedge Loss

Loss Reclassification Reclassified from Income
Recognized from Accumulated Accumulated Statement
in Other Other Other Location of
Comprehensive Comprehensive Comprehensive Loss Hedge Loss
Type of Cash Flow Hedge (Loss) Income Income Income Recognized Recognized
Year ended December 31, 2013
Forward starting pay fixed swaps $ — Interest expens $ (4.6) None $ —
Year ended December 31, 2012
Interest
Forward starting pay fixed swaps $ 4.0 Interest expens $ 4.2 expense $ (0.2
Year ended December 31, 2011
Forward starting pay fixed swaps $ (18.9 Interest expens $ 1.9 None $ —

We test for cash flow hedge effectiveness at hauggption and re-assess at the end of each reggutiriod. No amounts were excluded

from the assessment of hedge effectiveness.

Nor-Hedging Derivatives

A summary of the effect of non-hedging derivatie@sour income statement for the years ended Dece®ih@013 , 2012 and 2011 is as

follows:
Derivative
Income Statement Location of Gain (Loss)
Type of Non-hedging Derivatives Gain (Loss) Recognized Recognized
Year ended December 31, 2013
Derivatives embedded in convertible securities Net realized gains on investments $ 31.t
Interest rate swaps Net realized gains on investments 2.2
Options Net realized gains on investments (111.%)
Futures Net realized gains on investments 22.:
Swaptions Net realized gains on investments $ 3.C
Total $ (52.7)
Year ended December 31, 2012
Derivatives embedded in convertible securities Net realized gains on investments $ (2.9
Credit default and interest rate swaps Net realized gains on investments (3.9
Options Net realized gains on investments (66.0
Futures Net realized gains on investments (6.7)
Total $ (79.0
Year ended December 31, 2011
Derivatives embedded in convertible securities Net realized gains on investments $ (7.6
Credit default and interest rate swaps Net realized gains on investments (53.9)
Options Net realized gains on investments 9.€
Futures Net realized gains on investments (5.9
Total $ (57.9)

- 100 -




WellPoint, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu

7. Fair Value

Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value ie tionsolidated balance sheets are categorized bpsedhe level of judgment associated
with the inputs used to measure their fair valuevdl inputs, as defined by FASB guidance for faiue measurements and disclosures, are a
follows:

Level Input: Input Definition:
Level | Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices for identisakts or liabilities in active markets at the mesmment date.
Level Il Inputs other than quoted prices included in Leuabt are observable for the asset or liabilityptigh corroboration with
market data at the measurement date.
Level llI Unobservable inputs that reflect management’s éstghate of what market participants would usericipg the asset or

liability at the measurement date.

The following methods, assumptions and inputs weesl to determine the fair value of each clashefdllowing assets and liabilities
recorded at fair value in the consolidated balasheets:

Cash equivalents€Cash equivalents primarily consist of highly ratedney market funds with maturities of three mortthtess, and are
purchased daily at par value with specified yigltes. Due to the high ratings and short-term natfitee funds, we designate all cash
equivalents as Level .

Fixed maturity securities, available-for-saleair values of available-for-sale fixed maturitggeties are based on quoted market prices,
where available. These fair values are obtainedanily from third party pricing services, which geally use Level | or Level Il inputs for the
determination of fair value to facilitate fair valmmeasurements and disclosures. United States @oeat securities represent Level |
securities, while Level Il securities primarily Inde corporate securities, securities from statesjicipalities and political subdivisions and
mortgage-backed securities. For securities novelgtiraded, the third party pricing services mag guoted market prices of comparable
instruments or discounted cash flow analyses, pa@iting inputs that are currently observable erttarkets for similar securities. We have
controls in place to review the third party pricisgyvices’ qualifications and procedures used terdene fair values. In addition, we
periodically review the third party pricing seng&@ricing methodologies, data sources and prigipgts to ensure the fair values obtained are
reasonable. Inputs that are often used in the tialuenethodologies include, but are not limitedidmker quotes, benchmark yields, credit
spreads, default rates and prepayment speeds.s&/aale certain fixed maturity securities, primacibrporate debt securities, that are
designated Level Ill securities. For these seasgitihe valuation methodologies may incorporat&dirquotes or discounted cash flow anal
using assumptions for inputs such as expectedftgb, benchmark yields, credit spreads, defattsand prepayment speeds that are not
observable in the markets.

Equity securities, available-for-sal&air values of equity securities are generally giesied as Level | and are based on quoted market
prices. For certain equity securities, quoted migpkiees for the identical security are not alwayailable and the fair value is estimated by
reference to similar securities for which quoteitgs are available. These securities are desigh&tes 1. We also have certain equity
securities, including private equity securities,icnich the fair value is estimated based on eachrity’s current condition and future cash
flow projections. Such securities are designateceLBl. The fair values of these private equitggsaties are generally based on either broker
guotes or discounted cash flow projections usisgiaptions for inputs such as the weighted-averageadf capital, long-term revenue growth
rates and earnings before interest, taxes, depigetiand amortization, or EBITDA, and/or revenueltiples that are not observable in the
markets.

Other invested assets, currefitther invested assets, current include securitégsih rabbi trusts that are classified as tradirgjr values
are based on quoted market prices.

Securities lending collateraFair values of securities lending collateral arsedohon quoted market prices, where available. Tiase
values are obtained primarily from third party pri¢services, which generally use Level | or Lelv@hputs for the determination of fair value,
to facilitate fair value measurements and disclesur

Derivatives:Fair values are based on the quoted market pricéiselfinancial institution that is the counterpatid the derivative
transaction. We independently verify prices prodithy the counterparties using valuation modelsiti@irporate
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market observable inputs for similar derivativenfactions.

In addition, the following methods and assumptiamese used to determine the fair value of each dapgnsion benefit plan assets and
other benefit plan assets not defined above (s¢e NQ “Retirement Benefits,” for fair values ofrtedit plan assets):

Mutual funds Fair values are based on quoted market priceishwhpresent the net asset value, or NAV, of shhedd.

Common and collective trust$-air values of common/collective trusts that iegike traded money market funds are based onwbath
approximates fair value. Fair values of commongaiile trusts that invest in securities are valaethe NAV of the shares held, where the
applies fair value measurements to the underlyingstments to determine the NAV.

Partnership interestsFair values are estimated based on the planjsoptionate share of the undistributed partnersitabps reported in
audited financial statements of the partnership.

Contract with insurance companyrair value of the contract in the insurance comypgeneral investment account is determined by the
insurance company based on the fair value of tidenlying investments of the account.

Investment in DOL 103-12 trusEair value is based on the plan’s proportionasgesiof the fair value of investments held by thestr
qualified as a Department of Labor Regulation 25@8-12 entity, or DOL 103-12 trust, as reportedundited financial statements of the trust,
where the trustee applies fair value measuremeritetunderlying investments of the trust.

Life insurance contractsFair value is based on the cash surrender valtieegiolicies as reported by the insurer.
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A summary of fair value measurements by level fsess and liabilities measured at fair value oecanring basis at December 31, 2013
and 2012 is as follows:

Level | Level Il Level Il Total
December 31, 2013
Assets:
Cash equivalents $ 632 % — ¢ — $ 632:¢
Investments available-for-sale:
Fixed maturity securities:
United States Government securities 299.¢ — — 299.¢
Government sponsored securities — 173.t — 173.t
States, municipalities and political subdivisiota-exempt — 6,002.° — 6,002.°
Corporate securities — 7,593. 115.2 7,708.¢
Options embedded in convertible securities — 89.2 — 89.2
Residential mortgage-backed securities — 2,268.¢ — 2,268.¢
Commercial mortgage-backed securities — 480.1 6.5 486.¢
Other debt securities 35.€ 408.: 14.¢ 458.7
Total fixed maturity securities 335t 17,016.: 136.£ 17,488.:
Equity securities 1,475. 249.7 41.4 1,766.¢
Other invested assets, current 16.2 — — 16.2
Securities lending collateral 408.t 561.: — 969.¢
Derivatives excluding embedded options (reportetth wiher assets) — 58.4 — 58.4
Total assets $ 2,868. $17,885.! $ 177.¢ $ 20,931’
Liabilities:
Derivatives excluding embedded options (reporteti wiher liabilities) $ — $ (209 ¢ — $ (20.9)
Total liabilities $ — $ (20.9) % — $ (209
December 31, 2012:
Assets:
Cash equivalents $ 728 % — ¢ — $ 728:¢
Investments available-for-sale:
Fixed maturity securities:
United States Government securities 343.2 — — 343.2
Government sponsored securities — 156.2 — 156.2
States, municipalities and political subdivisiotas-exempt — 5,882.: — 5,882.:
Corporate securities — 7,882.¢ 121.1 8,004.(
Options embedded in convertible securities — 67.2 — 67.2
Residential mortgage-backed securities — 2,300.! 4.2 2,304.¢
Commercial mortgage-backed securities — 345.7 — 345.7
Other debt securities 33.¢ 203.¢ 3.€ 241.7
Total fixed maturity securities 377.( 16,838.: 129.: 17,344
Equity securities 1,103.: 113.2 26.2 1,242!
Other invested assets, current 14.¢ — — 14.¢
Securities lending collateral 231.7 332.¢ — 564.¢
Derivatives excluding embedded options (reportetti wiher assets) — 58.¢€ — 58.¢€
Total assets $ 2,454¢ $ 17,342 $ 155%F $ 19,953.
Liabilities:
Derivatives excluding embedded options (reportetth wiher liabilities) $ — 3 0.) $ — 3 0.7
Total liabilities $ — 3 0.1 $ — 3 0.2
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending bakmof assets measured at fair value on a recuseisig using Level Il inputs for the
years endeDecember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

Residential Commercial
Mortgage- Mortgage-
Corporate backed backed Other Debt Equity
Securities Securities Securities Securities Securities Total
Year Ended December 31, 2013:
Beginning balance at January 1, 2013 $ 1211 $ 432 % —  $ 3¢ % 262 $ 155.F
Total gains (losses):
Recognized in net income (30.9) — — (0.3 (4.€) (35.9)
Recognized in accumulated other comprehensive iacom (3.5) — — 0.€ 9.k 6.€
Purchases 51.¢ — — 1€ 17.€ 71.1
Sales (4.8) — — — (7.3 (11.9
Settlements (15.5 1.9 (6.1) (0.7 — (24.2)
Transfers into Level lll 3.C 13.1 12.€ 9.8 — 38.t
Transfers out of Level Ill 6.7) (15.5) — 0.3 — (22.5)
Ending balance at December 31, 2013 $ 1152 $ — 3 65 $ 14 $ 412 $ 177.¢
Change in unrealized losses included in net incataged to assets
still held for the year ended December 31, 2013 $ (30.9) $ — % —  $ 0.1 $ 65 $ (37.9)

Year Ended December 31, 2012:
Beginning balance at January 1, 2012 $ 1951 % — S 6.2 $ 50.C $ 24 $ 284.¢

Total gains (losses):

Recognized in net income 15.2 — — 0.1 (0.9) 14.2

Recognized in accumulated other comprehensive iacom (29.%) — 0.1 0.7 (4.2 (33.)
Purchases 77.€ 3.C 3.4 — 4.¢ 89.1
Business combinations 2.€ — — — — 2.€
Sales (29.9) = = (16.6) (0.5) (46.9)
Settlements (67.¢) (0.3 (0.7) 1.3 — (69.9)
Transfers into Level lll 2.¢ 14 1.¢ 12.C 12t 30.7
Transfers out of Level Ill (55.9) — (11.¢) (50.0 — (116.¢)
Ending balance at December 31, 2012 $ 1211 $ 42  $ — $ 3¢ $ 26 $ 155.¢
Change in unrealized losses included in net incatated to assets

still held for the year ended December 31, 2012 $ — 3 — 3 — 3 — 3 07 $ 0.7

Year Ended December 31, 2011:

Beginning balance at January 1, 2011 $ 278+  $ 38 % 7€ 3 81z % 172 $ 388.7
Total gains (losses):

Recognized in net income 5.2 — — (1.7) (7.0) (3.5)

Recognized in accumulated other comprehensive iacom 3.0 0.1 0.1 — 4.1 1.2
Purchases 31.2 2.8 2.€ 12.2 10.Z 59.C
Sales (27.6) 9.9 (8.2 (22.9 0.9 (68.2)
Settlements (130.9) (0.9) (1.9) (17.%) — (150.9)
Transfers into Level lll 41.¢ 9.7 54 7.8 0.z 64.5
Transfers out of Level Ill — (6.5 — (0.3 — (6.€)
Ending balance at December 31, 2011 $ 1951 $ — % 6.2 $ 50.C $ 244 $ 284.¢
Change in unrealized losses included in net incafeged to assets

still held for the year ended December 31, 2011 $ (0.6 $ —  $ — % (12 $ (79 $ (8.6)

Transfers between levels, if any, are recorded &sedbeginning of the reporting period. There weoematerial transfers into or out of
Level lll during the years ended December 31, 2¥13011 and no material transfers into Level lltidg the year ended December 31, 2012.



During the year ended December 31, 2012, the ®asmisiut of Level Il of
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corporate securities were for certain sub-primeisges transferred from Level Ill to Level Il ag@sult of inputs that were previously
unobservable becoming observable due to increadladhe and level of trading in active markets. lditidn, the transfers out of Level Il of
other debt securities were for certain inversetihgarate securities transferred from Level lliLievel Il as a result of those securities’
impending maturity and settlement and recent taditivity of similar securities in observable meatsk

During the years ended December 31, 2013, 201R1t,2here were no material transfers from Levelllevel Il or from Level Il to
Level I.

Certain assets and liabilities are measured av#&dire on a nonrecurring basis; that is, the imsémits are not measured at fair value on an
ongoing basis but are subject to fair value adjestonly in certain circumstances. As disclosedate 3, “Business Acquisitions and
Divestitures”, we completed our acquisition of Aigeoup on December 24, 2012. The values of net@sseuired in our acquisition of
Amerigroup and resulting goodwill and other intdiigiassets were recorded at fair value primariilggusevel Il inputs. The majority of
Amerigroup's assets acquired and liabilities assinwere recorded at their carrying values as ofdéispective dates of acquisition, as their
carrying values approximated their fair values thutheir short-term nature. The fair values of geitidand other intangible assets acquired in
our acquisitions of Amerigroup were internally esiied based on the income approach. The incomeagipestimates fair value based on the
present value of the cash flows that the assetbeaxpected to generate in the future. We devdlogernal estimates for the expected cash
flows and discount rate in the present value cattat. Refer to Note 13, “Debt,” for additional dissure regarding the Amerigroup senior
unsecured notes recorded at their acquisitionfdatgalue during 2012 (nonrecurring fair value m@&@ment). Other than the assets acquired
and liabilities assumed in our acquisition of Argeoup described above, there were no materialsiesdinbilities measured at fair value on a
nonrecurring basis during the years ended Decethe2013 and 2012 .

Our valuation policy is determined by members afto@asury and accounting departments. Wheneveilgesour policy is to obtain
guoted market prices in active markets to estirfatesalues for recognition and disclosure purpo¥eékere quoted market prices in active
markets are not available, fair values are estichasing discounted cash flow analyses, broker gumt@ther valuation techniques. These
techniques are significantly affected by our asgionp, including discount rates and estimates tufreucash flows. Potential taxes and other
transaction costs are not considered in estiméiingalues. Our valuation policy is generally fotain only one quoted price for each security
from third party pricing services, which are dedwrough recently reported trades for identicadiorilar securities making adjustments
through the reporting date based upon availabl&etabservable information. When broker quotesuaes, we generally obtain only one
broker quote per security. As we are responsibi¢hi® determination of fair value, we perform mdythinalysis on the prices received from
third parties to determine whether the prices aasaonable estimates of fair value. This analygieiormed by our internal treasury personnel
who are familiar with our investment portfoliosetthird party pricing services engaged and theatedn techniques and inputs used. Our
analysis includes a review of month-to-month pfioetuations. If unusual fluctuations are notedhis review, we may obtain additional
information from other pricing services to valid#éte quoted price. There were no adjustments ttegumarket prices obtained from third
party pricing services during the years ended Déer81, 2013 , 2012 or 2011 .

In addition to the preceding disclosures on agsetsrded at fair value in the consolidated balastmets, FASB guidance also requires the
disclosure of fair values for certain other finaténstruments for which it is practicable to esttenfair value, whether or not such values are
recognized in the consolidated balance sheets.

Non-financial instruments such as real estate,gntg@mnd equipment, other current assets, def@émmne taxes, intangible assets and
certain financial instruments, such as policy litibs, are excluded from the fair value disclosurherefore, the fair value amounts cannot be
aggregated to determine our underlying economigeval

The carrying amounts reported in the consolidatddrize sheets for cash, accrued investment inquramium and self-funded
receivables, other receivables, income taxes rabkiyunearned income, accounts payable and acerpethses, security trades pending
payable, securities lending payable and certaiarathrrent liabilities approximate fair value besawf the short term nature of these items.
These assets and liabilities are not listed inadbé below.

The following methods and assumptions were usestimate the fair value of each class of finanicistrument:

Other invested assets, long-ter@ther invested assets, long-term include primamir investments in limited
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partnerships, joint ventures and other non-corgdotlorporations, as well as the cash surrendeeailuorporateswned life insurance policie
Investments in limited partnerships, joint ventuses other non-controlled corporations are camieour share in the entities’ undistributed
earnings, which approximates fair value. The cagyialue of corporate-owned life insurance policeggresents the cash surrender value as
reported by the respective insurer, which approtéséair value.

Short-term borrowings The fair value of our short-term borrowings iséd on quoted market prices for the same or simdat, or, if no
guoted market prices were available, on the cumerket interest rates estimated to be availables tor debt of similar terms and remaining
maturities.

Long-term debt - commercial papefhe carrying amount for commercial paper appratans fair value as the underlying instruments |
variable interest rates at market value.

Long-term debt - notesThe fair values of our notes are based on quuidket prices in active markets for the same oilairdebt, or, if
no quoted market prices are available, on the numarket observable rates estimated to be avaitahlis for debt of similar terms and
remaining maturities.

Long-term debt—convertible debentur@he fair value of our convertible debenturesasda on the quoted market price in the active
private market in which the convertible debenturade.

A summary of the carrying value and fair value &ydl of financial instruments not recorded at f@ilue on our consolidated balance
sheets at December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows

Carrying Fair Value
Value Level | Level Il Level Il Total
December 31, 2013
Assets:
Other invested assets, long-term $ 1,542¢ $ — 3 — $ 1,542¢ $ 1,542
Liabilities:
Debt:
Short-term borrowings 400.( — 400.( — 400.(
Commercial paper 379.2 — 379.2 — 379.2
Notes 12,746.« — 13,014.. — 13,014..
Convertible debentures 966.( — 2,030.¢ — 2,030.¢
December 31, 2012
Assets:
Other invested assets, long-term $ 1,387. $ — 3 — $ 1,387 $ 1,387.
Liabilities:
Debt:
Short-term borrowings 250.( — 250.( — 250.(
Commercial paper 570.¢ — 570.¢ — 570.¢
Notes 13,198.¢ — 14,407.: — 14,407.:
Convertible debentures 958.1 — 1,613.¢ — 1,613.¢
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8. Income Taxes

The components of deferred income taxes at DeceBibare as follows:

2013 2012
Deferred tax assets relating to:
Retirement benefits $ 287.¢ % 405.3
Accrued expenses 342.¢ 431.2
Insurance reserves 213.1 221
Net operating loss carryforwards 17.2 19.2
Bad debt reserves 124.¢ 108.2
State income tax 32.¢ 79.c
Deferred compensation 52.C 55.7
Investment basis difference 166.: 138.2
Other 84.C 47.C
Total deferred tax assets 1,320.¢ 1,505.:
Valuation allowance (24.7 (18.7)
Total deferred tax assets, net of valuation allavean 1,296.¢ 1,487..
Deferred tax liabilities relating to:
Unrealized gains on securities 266.5 431.(
Acquisition related:
Trademarks and other non-amortizable intangibletass 2,200.! 2,200.!
Subscriber base, provider and hospital networks 370.¢ 447
Internally developed software and other amortizatdferences 703.¢ 599.:
Retirement benefits 231.k 214.1
Debt discount 186.¢ 189.%
State deferred tax 55.2 165.¢
Depreciation and amortization 33.1 73.¢
Other 190.¢ 151.¢
Total deferred tax liabilities 4,239.( 4,473.
Net deferred tax liability $ (2,942.) $ (2,986.Y)
Deferred tax asset-current $ 383.C $ 236.4
Deferred tax liability-noncurrent (3,325.) (3,222.9
Net deferred tax liability $ (2,942.) $ (2,986.9

Changes in the valuation allowance during 2013uithetl an increase of $12.1 impacting tax expenagerkto additional state operating
losses and a reduction of $6.1 impacting goodwilited to acquisition goodwill adjustments for &inerease of $6.0 .

Changes in the valuation allowance during 2012ishetl an $11.0elease related to federal credits and loss camgials as tax settleme
were completed and establishment of an $18.1 allowaelated to state net operating losses needetteral benefit.
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Significant components of the provision for incotares for the years ended December 31 consisedbtlowing:

2013 2012 2011
Current tax expense (benefit):
Federal $ 1226« $ 1,060.. $ 1,150«
State and local (42.€ 95.7 21.€
Total current tax expense 1,183.¢ 1,155.¢ 1,172.(
Deferred tax expense 22.1 51.¢ 139.2
Total income tax expense $ 1205¢ $ 1,207 $ 1,311.:

State and local current tax expense is reportessgrbfederal benefit, and includes amounts relatddie up of prior years’ tax, audit
settlements, uncertain tax positions and staterdits. Such items are included in multiple lineghe following rate reconciliation table on a
net of federal tax basis.

A reconciliation of income tax expense recordethsconsolidated statements of income and amoontpated at the statutory federal
income tax rate for the years ended December 3, isllows:

2013 2012 2011

Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent
Amount at statutory rate $ 1,344. 35.(% $ 1,350. 35.(% $ 1,385. 35.C%
State and local income taxes net of federal tavefiien 24.4 0.€ 25t 0.€ 425 1.1
Tax exempt interest and dividends received deductio (64.9) 2.7 (59.9) (1.5 (58.€) (1.5
Audit settlements — — (200.5 (5.2 (49.7) 1.3
Other, net (97.7) (2.5) 91.2 2.4 (8.1 (0.2
Total income tax expense $ 1,205.¢ 314% $ 1,207. 31.% $ 1,311. 33.1%

During the year ended December 31, 2013 we recedniome tax benefits of $65.0 , or $ 0.21 partdd share, resulting from a
favorable tax election made subsequent to the Agrarp acquisition. This benefit is included in Qtheet above.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we rezedrnncome tax benefits of $200.5 , or $0.62 plertetil share, for settlement of
certain of our open tax issues with the Internald®deie Service, or IRS, following approval by thenl@ommittee on Taxation. This included
amounts related to not-for-profit conversion antpooate reorganizations in prior years, as wellmsunts associated with issues related to
certain of our acquired companies. This incomebtxefit includes the release of gross unrecogrteetdenefits from uncertain tax positions,
discussed below, release of a valuation allowatiseussed above, and recognition of interest incdrhis income tax benefit, and resulting
decrease in the effective tax rate, was partidfiged due to the non-tax deductibility of litigati@ettlement expenses associated with the
settlement of a class action lawsuit in June 201Ram increase in our state deferred tax asseatafuallowance attributable to the uncerta
associated with some of our state net operatirgydasyforwards.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, folloveipgroval by the Joint Committee on Taxation, wdesthe audit of our 2003 and
2004 (short year) federal tax returns, which haghtia the appeals process with the IRS. This reguilt a tax benefit of $39.3 . In addition,
during the year ended December 31, 2011, we coatpkestate tax examination, resulting in additidgaglbenefits for audit settlements of
$10.4 .
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The change in the carrying amount of gross unrezedrtax benefits from uncertain tax positionstfer years ended December 31, is as
follows:

2013 2012

Balance at January 1 $ 1435 % 229.1
Additions for tax positions related to:

Current year 5.C 50.1

Prior years — 13.C
Reductions related to:

Tax positions of prior years (45.9) —

Settlements with taxing authorities — (148.9)
Balance at December 31 $ 103.2 % 143.t

The table above excludes interest, net of relatedbénefits, which is treated as income tax expévseefit) under our accounting policy.
The interest is included in the amounts describatie following paragraph.

As of December 31, 2013, $61.7 of unrecognizedemefits would impact our effective tax rate itufe periods, if recognized. Also
included in the table above is $10.9 that woulddmgnized as an adjustment to additional paidapital and $5.7 that would be recognized a:
an adjustment to goodwill, neither of which woufteat our effective tax rate. The December 31, 2Baf&ance also includes $0.8 of tax
positions for which ultimate deductibility is hightertain but for which there is uncertainty abitgt timing of such deductibility. Excluding 1
impact of interest and penalties, the disallowasfabe shorter deductibility period would not affecir effective tax rate, but would accelerate
the payment of cash to the taxing authority to aier period.

For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 &k, 20e recognized approximately $2.6 , $(9.0) $¢@d1)in interest, respectively. W\
had accrued approximately $18.3 and $15.7 for #yenent of interest at December 31, 2013 and 2@42pectively.

As of December 31, 2013, as further describedvihedertain tax years remain open to examinatiothbyiRS and various state and local
authorities. In addition, we continue to discusgaige industry issues with the IRS. As a resulthafse examinations and discussions, we have
recorded amounts for uncertain tax positions. éniscipated that the amount of unrecognized tasefies will change in the next twelve mon
due to possible settlements of audits and chamgesriporary items. However, the ultimate resolutibthese items is dependent on the
completion of negotiations with various taxing aurtties. While it is difficult to determine whenhar tax settlements will actually occur, it is
reasonably possible that one could occur in thé tweedve months and our unrecognized tax benefitdccchange within a range of
approximately $8.3 to $(84.8) .

We are a member of the IRS Compliance AssuranceeBspor CAP. The objective of CAP is to reduc@ager burden and uncertainty
while assuring the IRS of the accuracy of tax murior to filing, thereby reducing or eliminatittte need for post-filing examinations.

As of December 31, 2013, the examinations of @1r32hrough 2010 tax years continue to be in psacHEse issues in 2010 have been
resolved, but still require final approval from th@int Committee on Taxation before they can balifted. The 2011 tax year is at IRS Appe
but at this time no hearing date has been esta&dlisthe other years are being discussed with tBe IR

In certain states, we pay premium taxes in liestafe income taxes. Premium taxes are reportedgeitbral and administrative expense.

At December 31, 2013, we had unused federal tarperating loss carryforwards of approximately 844 offset future taxable income.
The loss carryforwards expire in the years 201@ugh 2024 . During 2013 , 2012 and 2011 federalrme taxes paid totaled $1,172.0 ,
$1,188.2 and $1,153.9 , respectively.
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9. Property and Equipment

A summary of property and equipment at Decembes 3% follows:

2013 2012
Land and improvements $ 354 % 45.¢
Building and components 384.( 406.(
Data processing equipment, furniture and otherpgent 861.5 783.<
Computer software, purchased and internally deslop 1,879.( 1,656.!
Leasehold improvements 325.1 303.1
Property and equipment, gross 3,485.( 3,194.¢
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (1,683.9 (1,477.9
Property and equipment, net $ 1,801t $ 1,717.

Depreciation expense for 2013, 2012 and 2011 W85.8 , $102.9 and $95.7 , respectively. Amortaragxpense on computer software
and leasehold improvements for 2013 , 2012 and 2@E1$351.8 , $260.6 and $204.6 , respectivelychvimcludes amortization expense on
computer software, both purchased and internalgldged, for 2013 , 2012 and 2011 of $313.6 , #38d $183.9 , respectively. Capitalized
costs related to the internal development of softved $1,561.0 and $1,316.8 at December 31, 2082842 , respectively, are reported with
computer software.

During the years ended December 31, 2013 and 204 Pecognized $47.7 and $66.8 , respectively, ghinments related to computer
software (primarily internally developed) due tmject cancellation or asset replacement, some afhwiesulted from a change in strategic
focus needed to effectively manage business operatn a post-Health Care Reform environment.

10. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

A summary of the change in the carrying amountaafdyvill by reportable segment (see Note 20, “Sedridormation”) for 2013 and
2012 is as follows:

Commercial
and Specialty Government
Business Business Other Total

Balance as of January 1, 2012 $ 11555.¢ $ 2,303.. $ — $ 13,858
Amerigroup acquisition — 3,033.: — 3,033.:
Measurement period adjustments (0.3 (2.7) — (2.0
Balance as of December 31, 2012 $ 115550 $ 5,334.! — $ 16,889.
Measurement period adjustments (1.3 28.1 — 27.4
Balance as of December 31, 2013 $ 115541 % 5,363.: — $ 16,917.
Accumulated impairment as of December 31, 2013 $ (410 $ — — (41.0

Goodwill adjustments incurred during 2013 and 2BtAided a reduction of $1.5 and $0.4 , respegtjvelated to the tax benefit on the
exercise of stock options issued as part of varamgmiisitions and an increase of $28.9 and a deerfe$1.6 , respectively, related to other
measurement period adjustments.

As required by FASB guidance, we completed anrmaphirment tests of existing goodwill and other ingfible assets with indefinite lives
during 2013, 2012 and 2011 . We perform these @rimpairment tests during the fourth quarter. FAGBdance also requires interim
impairment testing to be performed when potentigdairment indicators exist. These tests involveusde of estimates related to the fair value
of goodwill and intangible assets with indefiniteels and require a significant degree of manageifuegiment and the use of subjective
assumptions. The fair values were estimated usi@gncome and market value valuation methods, parating Level Il internal estimates for
inputs, including, but not limited to, revenue gejons, income projections, cash flows and distoates. We did not incur any impairment
losses in 2013,
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2012 or 2011 as the estimated fair values of quonténg units were substantially in excess of tleairying values.

The components of other intangible assets as ofber 31 are as follows:

2013 2012
Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
Intangible assets with finite lives:
Customer relationships $ 3308¢ $ (2,264 $ 1,044° $ 3,334¢ % (2,058.) $ 1,276.¢
Provider and hospital relationships 140.t (44.7) 95.¢ 140.t (38.]) 102.¢
Other 61.7 (28.9) 33.4 66.1 (26.9) 39.2
Total 3,611.: (2,337.9) 1,173.¢ 3,541.. (2,123.() 1,418.¢
Intangible assets with indefinite lives:
Blue Cross and Blue Shield and other
trademarks 6,298." — 6,298." 6,298." — 6,298."
Provider network 271.¢ — 271.¢ 271.¢ — 271.¢
State Medicaid contracts 696.¢ — 696.¢ 676.¢ — 676.¢
Total 7,267.: — 7,267.. 7,247.. — 7,247..
Other intangible assets $ 10,778. $ (2,337.2) $ 8,441.( $ 10,788. $ (2,123.() $ 8,665.

As of December 31, 2013, the estimated amortimatigpense for each of the five succeeding yeas fsllows: 2014, $213.3 ; 2015,
$182.1; 2016, $151.4 ; 2017, $131.5 ; and 20181 F1.

11. Retirement Benefits

We sponsor various non-contributory employee definenefit plans through certain subsidiaries.

The WellPoint Cash Balance Pension Plan, or thdR&#it Plan, is a cash balance pension plan coyeentain eligible employees of the

affiliated companies that participate in the WeiliR®lan. Effective January 1, 2006, benefits wandailed, with the result that most
participants stopped accruing benefits but conttougarn interest on benefits accrued prior toctimtailment. Certain participants subject to
collective bargaining and certain other particigamho met grandfathering rules continue to accerebts. Several pension plans acquired

through various corporate mergers and acquisiti@ave been merged into the WellPoint Plan. Effeclamuary 1, 2011, we split the WellPoint
Plan, with no change in benefits for any particip&urrent employees who are still receiving creditd/or benefit accruals were placed into a

new plan, the WellPoint Cash Balance Pension PlaliBther participants remain in the WellPoinaR! Effective January 1, 2012, the
WellPoint Plan was renamed the WellPoint Cash Badd®ension Plan A.

The UGS Pension Plan is a defined benefit pendemm\pith a cash balance component. The UGS Peamcovers eligible employees
of the affiliated companies that participate in /i8S Pension Plan. Effective January 1, 2004, litsngére curtailed, with the result that most

participants stopped accruing benefits but contiougarn interest on benefits previously accruesttain employees subject to collective
bargaining and certain other employees who metdjasimering rules continue to accrue benefits.

The Employees’ Retirement Plan of Blue Cross off@alia, or the BCC Plan, is a defined benefit penglan that covers eligible

employees of Blue Cross of California who are ceddry a collective bargaining agreement. Effecliaeuary 1, 2007, benefits were curtailed

under the BCC Plan with the result that no BluesSrof California employees hired or rehired aftec@mber 31, 2006 are eligible to
participate in the BCC Plan.

All of the plans’ assets consist primarily of conmaiocks, fixed maturity securities, investmentdsiand short-term investments. The

funding policies for all plans are to contribute@amts at least sufficient to meet the minimum fugdiequirements set forth in the Employee

Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amende&RISA, including amendment by the Pension Rtaie Act of 2006, and in
accordance with income tax regulations, plus sultitianal amounts as are necessary to providesasaéficient to meet the benefits to be
to plan participants.
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We use a December 31 measurement date for detagrbenefit obligations and fair value of plan asset

The following tables disclose consolidated “pendienefits,” which include the defined benefit pensplans described above, and
consolidated “other benefits,” which include posteanent health and welfare benefits including malivision and dental benefits offered to
certain employees. Calculations were computed wssisgmptions at the December 31 measurement dates.

The reconciliation of the benefit obligation isfaBows:

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2013 2012 2013 2012
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 1,948! $ 1851 $ 623.( $ 651.:
Service cost 14.2 16.4 6.7 6.€
Interest cost 67.¢ 76.2 22.¢ 27.F
Actuarial (gain) loss (129.9 129.¢ 4.€ (28.9
Benefits paid (135.9 (125.2) (49.9) (34.9)
Benefit obligation at end of year $ 1,764 $ 1,948% § 607.t $ 623.(
The changes in the fair value of plan assets afellasvs:
Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2013 2012 2013 2012
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 1,817.¢ $ 1,721¢ $ 3202 $ 3011
Actual return on plan assets 223.¢ 186.¢ 37.C 21.¢
Employer contributions 38.¢€ 34.t 31.: 38.4
Benefits paid (135.9) (125.9) (38.9) (41.7
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 1944 ¢ 1817¢ § 349& § 320:
The net amount included in the consolidated balaheets is as follows:
Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2013 2012 2013 2012
Noncurrent assets $ 240 $ 3C $ — 3 =
Current liabilities (3.9 (11.5) — —
Noncurrent liabilities (58.0) (122.7) (257.7) (302.%)
Net amount at December 31 $ 1795 § (1306 $ (257.7) $ (302))

The net amounts included in accumulated other cehgarsive loss (income) that have not been recogiaige&omponents of net periodic
benefit costs are as follows:

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2013 2012 2013 2012
Net actuarial loss $ 42772 $ 6866 $ 169.6 $ 191.(
Prior service credit (3.0 (3.9 (102.9 (103.0
Net amount before tax at December 31 $ 4247 $  682¢ § 672 $  88(

The estimated net actuarial loss and prior semtiedit for the defined benefit pension plans thiithve reclassified from accumulated ot
comprehensive loss into net periodic benefit coges the next year are $18.8 and $0.8 , respeytiVéle estimated net actuarial loss and priot
service credit for postretirement benefit plang thil be reclassified from accumulated other coatyansive loss into net periodic benefit cost:
over the next year are $9.4 and $14.5 , respegtivel
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The accumulated benefit obligation for the defibedefit pension plans was $1,758.2 and $1,941D@e¢mber 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

As of December 31, 2013, certain pension plansacadmulated benefit obligations in excess of plssets. For those same plans, the
projected benefit obligation was also in excesglafi assets. Such plans had a combined projectedibebligation, accumulated benefit
obligation and fair value of plan assets of $6(8Q.7 and $0.0 , respectively.

The weighted-average assumptions used in calcgl#tim benefit obligations for all plans are asdiat:

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2013 2012 2013 2012
Discount rate 4.3%% 3.6(% 4.4% 3.71%
Rate of compensation increase 3.0(% 3.5(% 3.0(% 3.5(%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.6€% 7.6€% 7.0(% 7.0(%

The components of net periodic benefit cost inallitethe consolidated statements of income arelasfs:

2013 2012 2011

Pension Benefits

Service cost $ 14z $ 164 $ 17.z
Interest cost 67.¢ 76.4 84.7
Expected return on assets (133.)) (134.9) (128.9)
Recognized actuarial loss 28.2 30.t 26.4
Amortization of prior service credit (0.8 (0.8 (0.9
Settlement loss 11.C 13.¢ 21.c
Net periodic benefit cost $ (12.¢) $ 1€ $ 20.7
Other Benefits

Service cost $ 6.7 $ 6.8 $ 6.3
Interest cost 22.4 27.5 31.4
Expected return on assets (22.7) (21.0 (17.9
Recognized actuarial loss 11.2 14.1 10.2
Amortization of prior service credit (13.9) (23.9) (12.0)
Net periodic benefit cost $ 48 § 141 $ 18.¢

During the years ended December 31, 2013 , 2012@htl we incurred total settlement losses of $1$1B.8 and $21.3 , respectively, as
lump-sum payments exceeded the service cost agre@ttcost components of net periodic benefit fmrstertain of our plans.
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The weighted-average assumptions used in calcgl#tmsnet periodic benefit cost for all plans asdalows:

2013 2012 2011

Pension Benefits

Discount rate 3.6(% 4.2% 5.15%
Rate of compensation increase 3.5(% 3.5(% 3.7%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.91% 8.0(% 8.0(%
Other Benefits

Discount rate 3.71% 4.3€% 5.24%
Rate of compensation increase 3.5(% 3.5(% 3.7%%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.0(% 7.0(% 6.75%

The assumed health care cost trend rates usedasuneethe expected cost of pre-Medicare (thoseasoot currently eligible for
Medicare benefits) other benefits at our DecemtiePB813 measurement date was 8.00% for 2014 wgtiadual decline to 4.50% by the year
2025 . The assumed health care cost trend ratdsaiseeasure the expected cost of post-Medicaosétivho are currently eligible for
Medicare benefits) other benefits at our DecemtiePB813 measurement date was 6.00% for 2014 wgtiadual decline to 4.50% by the year
2021 . These estimated trend rates are subjebtiiage in the future. The health care cost trerelassumption has a significant effect on the
amounts reported. For example, an increase inghien@ed health care cost trend rate of one peraeptzigt would increase the postretirement
benefit obligation as of December 31, 2013 by $44A@ would increase service and interest costslt® $Conversely, a decrease in the
assumed health care cost trend rate of one pegeeptant would decrease the postretirement beoleligation by $38.1 as of December 31,
2013 and would decrease service and interest bps#g.5 .

Plan assets include a diversified mix of investnggate fixed maturity securities, equity securi@sl alternative investments across a
range of sectors and levels of capitalization taimé&e the long-term return for a prudent leveligk. The weighted-average target allocation
for pension benefit plan assets is 45% equity $8esir46% fixed maturity securities, and 9all other types of investments. Equity secusi
primarily include a mix of domestic securities,dimn securities and mutual funds invested in egglitrixed maturity securities primarily
include treasury securities, corporate bonds, asdtebacked investments issued by corporationshend.S. government. Other types of
investments include partnership interests, collectiusts that replicate money market funds andrarse contracts designed specifically for
employee benefit plans. As of December 31, 20bh8retwere no significant concentrations of investisé the pension benefit assets or othe
benefit assets. No plan assets were invested itPdiet common stock.

Pension benefit assets and other benefit assetieetat fair value are categorized based upoletls of judgment associated with the
inputs used to measure their fair value.
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The fair values of our pension benefit assets d@herdenefit assets at December 31, 2013 , exdusBrd of cash, investment income
receivable and amounts due to/from brokers, byt@assegory and level inputs, as defined by FASRIgace regarding fair value measurem
and disclosures (see Note 7, “Fair Value,” for #iddal information regarding the definition of ldweputs), are as follows:

Level | Level Il Level Il Total
December 31, 2013:
Pension Benefit Assets:
Equity securities:
U.S. securities $ 613.¢ $ — % — 8 613.¢
Foreign securities 296.¢ — — 296.¢
Mutual funds 37.¢ — — 37.4
Fixed maturity securities:
Government securities 177.¢ 11.5 — 189.¢
Corporate securities — 272.1 — 272.1
Asset-backed securities — 127.C — 127.C
Other types of investments:
Common and collective trusts — 46.€ — 46.€
Partnership interests — — 159.1 159.1
Insurance company contracts — — 197. 197.
Treasury futures contracts 0.7 — — 0.7
Total pension benefit assets $ 1,126 $ 4572 $ 356.f $ 1,940.
Other Benefit Assets:
Equity securities:
U.S. securities $ 39.C % — 3 — 8 39.C
Foreign securities 18.€ — — 18.€
Mutual funds 4.7 — — 4.7
Fixed maturity securities:
Government securities 14.5 — — 14.5
Corporate securities 4.2 9.¢ — 14.2
Asset-backed securities — 11.2 — 11.2
Other types of investments:
Common and collective trusts — 2.2 — 2.2
Partnership interests — — 1.2 1.2
Life insurance contracts — — 230.( 230.(
Investment in DOL 103-12 trust — 14.2 — 14.2
Total other benefit assets $ 80.¢ §$ 378§  231: § @ 349¢
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The fair values of our pension benefit assets d@herdenefit assets at December 31, 2012 , exdukBi2 of cash, investment income
receivable and amounts due to/from brokers, byt@assegory and level inputs, as defined by FASRIgace regarding fair value measurem
and disclosures (see Note 7, “Fair Value,” for &ddal information regarding the definition of ldweputs) are as follows:

Level | Level Il Level Il Total
December 31, 2012:
Pension Benefit Assets:
Equity securities:
U.S. securities $ 514: % —  $ — $ b5l14:
Foreign securities 272.% — — 272.%
Mutual funds 30.¢ — — 30.¢
Fixed maturity securities:
Government securities 192.1 18.C — 210.1
Corporate securities — 240.t — 240.t
Asset-backed securities — 138.% — 138.%
Other types of investments:
Common and collective trusts — 28.¢ — 28.¢
Partnership interests — — 176.t 176.t
Insurance company contracts — — 202.t 202.5
Treasury futures contracts 0.2 — — (0.2
Total pension benefit assets $ 1,009¢ $ 4261 $ 379.C $ 1,814°
Other Benefit Assets:
Equity securities:
U.S. securities $ 23z % — ¢ — 8 23.2
Foreign securities 11.€ — — 11.€
Mutual funds 36.1 — — 36.1
Fixed maturity securities:
Government securities 4.3 — — .3
Corporate securities — 9.2 — 9.2
Asset-backed securities — 13.¢ — 13.¢
Other types of investments:
Common and collective trusts — 2.1 — 2.1
Partnership interests — — 1.2 1.2
Life insurance contracts — — 203.7 203.7
Investment in DOL 103-12 trust — 15.1 — 15.1
Total other benefit assets $ 75z $ 40z § 204¢ $  320:
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending bakmof plan assets measured at fair value usingl Liéweputs for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

Insurance Life
U.S. Equity Partnership Company Insurance
Securities Interests Contracts Contracts Total
Year Ended December 31, 2013:
Beginning balance at January 1, 2013 $ — 3 1775 ¢ 202f $ 2037 $ 583¢
Actual return on plan assets:

Relating to assets still held at the reporting date — 2.2 (5.6 26.2 22.¢
Purchases — 15.€ 9.t — 25.1
Sales — (35.2) (9.0 — (44.2)
Ending balance at December 31, 2013 $ — % 160.: $ 1972 $ 230 $ 587.
Year Ended December 31, 2012:

Beginning balance at January 1, 2012 $ 317¢ % 166.1 $ 195f $ 957 $ 774«
Actual return on plan assets:

Relating to assets still held at the reporting date — 4.t 5.k 13.2 23.2
Purchases — 14.1 8.€ 94.¢ 117.7
Sales (317.¢ (7.0) (7.9 — (331.9
Ending balance at December 31, 2012 $ — 3 1775 $ 202t $ 2037 $ 583«
Year Ended December 31, 2011:

Beginning balance at January 1, 2011 $ 429.¢ $ 153.1 $ 188 % — $ 7713
Actual return on plan assets:

Relating to assets still held at the reporting date 4. 5.€ 2.7 1.0 14.2
Purchases — 7.€ 11.€ 94.7 113.¢
Sales (117.0 (0.4) (7.6 — (125.0
Ending balance at December 31, 2011 $ 317.¢ $ 166.1 $ 1955 $ 95.7 $ 774¢

There were no transfers between Levels I, Il ahddting the years ended December 31, 2013 , 2826811 . The significant decline in
plan assets measured using Level Il inputs asemfember 31, 2012 was primarily due to the saleafcuity partnership.

Our current funding strategy is to fund an amouméast equal to the minimum required funding asiteined under ERISA with
consideration of maximum tax deductible amounts.riiég elect to make discretionary contributionsaithe maximum amount deductible for
income tax purposes. For the years ended Decemb@033 , 2012 and 2011 , no material contributivagse necessary to meet ERISA
required funding levels. However, during the yearded December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, we madkethictible discretionary
contributions to the pension benefit plans of $3&84.5 and $57.7 , respectively. Additionallyridg the year ended December 31, 2011, we
made tax deductible discretionary contributionstteer benefit plans of $30.0 . Employer contribngido other benefit plans represent
discretionary contributions and do not include pamis to retirees for current benefits.
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Our estimated future payments for pension benafitspostretirement benefits, which reflect expebiitare service, as appropriate, are ac
follows:

Pension Other

Benefits Benefits
2014 $ 1382 $ 43.4
2015 147.¢ 43.5
2016 141.( 43.¢
2017 145.¢ 447
2018 148.: 45.4
2019 - 2023 656.5 225.¢

In addition to the defined benefit plans, we mamthe WellPoint 401(k) Retirement Savings PlanigBéore 401(k) Pension Plan and the
Amerigroup Retirement Savings Plan which are qigaliflefined contribution plans covering substalytiall employees. Voluntary employee
contributions are matched by us subject to cefiaitations. Contributions made by us totaled $502591.0 and $87.8 during 2013, 2012 anc
2011, respectively.

12. Medical Claims Payable

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending bakséor medical claims payable for the years endecebber 31 is as follows:

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011

Gross medical claims payable, beginning of year $ 6,174t $ 5489.C $ 4,852.
Ceded medical claims payable, beginning of year (27.2) (16.9 (32.9
Net medical claims payable, beginning of year 6,147.: 5,472.¢ 4,819.!
Business combinations and purchase adjustments — 804.¢ 100.¢
Net incurred medical claims:

Current year 55,894.. 48,080.: 47,281.

Prior years redundancies (599.7) (513.¢) (209.%)
Total net incurred medical claims 55,295. 47,566.! 47,071.¢
Net payments attributable to:

Current year medical claims 49,887. 42,832. 41,999.(

Prior years medical claims 5,451 4,863.¢ 4,520."
Total net payments 55,338 47,696.. 46,519.
Net medical claims payable, end of year 6,103.¢ 6,147.: 5,472.¢
Ceded medical claims payable, end of year 23.4 27.2 16.4
Gross medical claims payable, end of year $ 6,127.. $ 6,174 $ 5,489.(

Amounts incurred related to prior years vary froravpously estimated liabilities as the claims atanately settled. Liabilities at any
period end are continually reviewed and re-estichageinformation regarding actual claims paymeortsyunout, becomes known. This
information is compared to the originallgstablished year end liability. Negative amounporeed for incurred medical claims related to prior
years result from claims being settled for amoiggs than originally estimated. The prior year rethncy 01$599.1 shown above for the year
ended December 31, 2013 represents an estimate dagaid claim activity from January 1, 2013 taccBaber 31, 2013 . Medical claim
liabilities are usually described as having a “stait,” which means that they are generally paithim twelve months of the member receiving
service from the provider. Accordingly, the majpritf the $599.1 redundancy relates to claims iredim calendar year 2012 .

-118 -




WellPoint, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu

The following table provides a summary of the tvay lassumptions having the most significant impacbuar incurred but not paid liabili
estimates for the years ended December 31, 20082 &nd 2011 , which are the completion and trewtbfs. These two key assumptions can
be influenced by utilization levels, unit costsxrof business, benefit plan designs, provider reirsdment levels, processing system
conversions and changes, claim inventory levedgircprocessing patterns, claim submission pati@ndsoperational changes resulting from
business combinations.

(Favorable) Unfavorable Developments
by Changes in Key Assumptions

2013 2012 2011
Assumed trend factors $ (428.9) $ (394.) $ (264.%)
Assumed completion factors (170.%) (119.9 55.1
Total $ (599.) $ (513.¢ $ (209.9)

The favorable development recognized in 2013 redytimarily from trend factors in late 2012 deyeim more favorably than originally
expected as well as a smaller but significant doution from completion factor development. Thedeable development recognized in 2012
resulted primarily from trend factors in late 20developing more favorably than originally expecésdwrell as a smaller but significant
contribution from completion factor developmenteTavorable development recognized in 2011 wasedrby trend factors in late 2010
developing more favorably than originally expectélis impact was partially offset by completiontfars developing unfavorably due to slight
increases in payment cycle times.

13. Debt
Short-term Borrowings

We are a member, through certain subsidiarie$)eoftderal Home Loan Bank of Indianapolis, the Fdd¢ome Loan Bank of Cincinne
and the Federal Home Bank of Atlanta, collectivéhg FHLBs, and as a member we have the abiligbtain short-term cash advances subjec
to certain minimum collateral requirements. At Daber 31, 2013 and 2012, $400.0 and $250.0 , raspbgtwere outstanding under our
short-term FHLBs borrowings. These outstanding tstesm FHLBs borrowings at December 31, 2013 antP2tad fixed interest rates of
0.170% and 0.206% , respectively.
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Long-term Debt

The carrying value of long-term debt at Decembec@isists of the following:

2013 2012
Senior unsecured notes:

6.000%, due 2014 $ — 3 399.¢

5.000%, due 2014 518.( 535.¢

1.250%, due 2015 624.¢ 624.¢

5.250%, due 2016 1,109.¢ 1,114.(

2.375%, due 2017 399.¢ 401.t

5.875%, due 2017 545.1 697 .

1.875%, due 2018 614.t 625.2

2.300%, due 2018 647.k —

7.500%, due 2019 — 556.¢

7.000%, due 2019 452.¢ 599.:

4.350%, due 2020 688.¢ 701.(

3.700%, due 2021 699.¢ 699.:

3.125%, due 2022 846.: 845.¢

3.300%, due 2023 996.¢ 996.

5.950%, due 2034 447.% 498.¢

5.850%, due 2036 775.€ 895.%

6.375%, due 2037 651. 796.7

5.800%, due 2040 216.: 296.¢

4.625%, due 2042 893.¢ 893.%

4.650%, due 2043 994 ¢ 994.2

5.100%, due 2044 599.1 —
Senior convertible debentures:

2.750%, due 2042 966.( 958.1
Surplus notes:

9.000%, due 2027 24.¢ 25.C
Variable rate debt:

Commercial paper program 379.2 570.¢
Capital leases — 0.2
Total long-term debt 14,091. 14,727
Current portion of long-term debt (518.0 (557.7)
Long-term debt, less current portion $ 13,5734 $ 14,170.

All long-term debt shown above is a direct obligatbf WellPoint, Inc., except for the Amerigroupbtidescribed below, the surplus notes
and capital leases.

On September 5, 2013 , we redeemed the $400.Gndisg principal balance of our 6.000% senior unsst notes due 2014, plus
applicable premium for early redemption and accramd unpaid interest to the redemption date, feh tataling $411.0 . We recognized a los:
on extinguishment of debt of $10.0 for the redempbdf these notes.

On July 30, 2013, we initiated a cash tender @fat consent solicitation to purchase up to $3a89d¥yegate principal amount of our
outstanding 5.875% notes due 2017 and 7.000% da&2019 (the “First Tranche Offer”) and to purehap
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to $300.0 aggregate principal amount of our outiitan5.950% notes due 2034, 5.850% notes due B0385% notes due 2037 and 5.800%
notes due 2040 (the “Second Tranche Offer”), ctillety, the “Tender Offers”. The Tender Offers we@ch subject to increase up to an
additional $100.0 at our election. On August 12120we increased the Second Tranche Offer to $40@d on August 13, 2013 we
repurchased $300.0 of the First Tranche Offer natels$400.0 of the Second Tranche Offer notesdeh ¢otaling $837.7 . Holders who
tendered their notes prior to the early tender dateived the principal amounts, applicable premionearly redemption and accrued and
unpaid interest to the early tender offer settleindeare. We recognized a loss on extinguishmenebf df $135.3 for the repurchase of these
notes.

On July 30, 2013, we issued $650.0 of 2.300% nihes2018 and $600.0 of 5.100%tes due 2044 under our shelf registration stater
We used the proceeds from this offering in pafuta the purchase price of the 6.000% senior unselauotes and the Tender Offers,
discussed above, and the balance for general @igpurposes. Interest on the notes is payableaamially in arrears on January 15 and Jul
15 of each year, commencing on January 15, 201€lnbkes have a call feature that allows us to m@ase the notes at any time at our option
and a put feature that allows a note holder toirequs to repurchase the notes upon the occuri@meeth a change in control event and a
downgrade of the notes below an investment grdifegra

As a result of our acquisition of Amerigroup on Beter 24, 2012, the carrying amount of Amerigrodi#g5.0 of 7.500% senior
unsecured notes due 2019 were included in our tidaged balance sheet as of December 31, 201Zdordance with FASB accounting
guidance for business combinations, the notes veex@ded at their estimated fair value of $556.%hendate of acquisition. The fair value of
the notes was estimated based on the most receteicgmarket price for the notes, which we considdre a Level Il input in accordance with
FASB guidance for fair value measurements. On Jgri2lg 2013 , we redeemed the outstanding prindipkince of these notes, plus
applicable premium for early redemption, for castialing $555.6 . The weighted-average redemptiaref the notes was approximately
117% of the principal amount outstanding.

On September 10, 2012 , we issued $625.0 of 1.2%6%s due 2015, $625.0 of 1.875% notes due 201808D of 3.300% notes due
2023 and $1,000.0 of 4.65086tes due 2043 under our shelf registration statérifée used the net proceeds of this offering §pgportion of
the consideration for our acquisition of Amerigraand the balance for general corporate purposesndtes have a call feature that allows us
to repurchase the notes at any time at our optidnegput feature that allows a note holder to requs to repurchase the notes upon the
occurrence of both a change in control event asiovengrade of the notes below an investment gratitegra

At maturity on August 1, 2012 , we repaid the $808utstanding balance of our 6.800% senior unsdaunées.

On May 7, 2012 , we issued $850.0 of 3.125% nates2d22 and $900.0 of 4.625% notes due 2042 undeshelf registration statement.
We used the proceeds from this offering for workdagital and for general corporate purposes, ietydut not limited to, repayment of
short-term and long-term debt. The notes haveldezgture that allows us to repurchase the notesatime at our option and a put feature the
allows a note holder to require us to repurchasetiies upon the occurrence of both a change itnad@vent and a downgrade of the notes
below an investment grade rating.

At maturity on January 17, 2012 , we repaid the0d3®utstanding balance of our 6.375% senior unselcuotes.

Surplus notes are unsecured obligations of Anthesarence Companies, Inc., or Anthem Insurance,@lyvbwned subsidiary, and are
subordinate in right of payment to all of Anthensunance’s existing and future indebtedness. Anynaany of interest or principal on the
surplus notes may be made only with the prior aygdrof the Indiana Department of Insurance, or IP&id only out of capital and surplus
funds of Anthem Insurance that the IDOI determitoelse available for the payment under Indiana iasce laws.

We have a senior credit facility, or the facilityith certain lenders for general corporate purposhs facility, as amended, provides credit
up to $2,000.0 and matures on September 29, 2016 interest rate on the facility is based on ejtfigthe LIBOR rate plus a predetermined
percentage rate based on our credit rating atdteeaf utilization, or (ii) a base rate as defimrethe facility agreement plus a predetermined
percentage rate based on our credit rating atdteeaf utilization. Our ability to borrow under tFeility is subject to compliance with certain
covenants. There were no amounts outstanding uhddacility at December 31, 2013 or 2012 .

We have an authorized commercial paper progranp o6 $2,500.0 , the proceeds of which may be useddneral
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corporate purposes. The weighted-average intextesson commercial paper borrowings at Decembe2@13 and 2012 was 0.420% and
0.396% , respectively. Commercial paper borrowingge been classified as long-term debt as ouripeaahd intent is to replace short-term
commercial paper outstanding at expiration withigmahl shortterm commercial paper for an uninterrupted perixtereding for more than o
year and we have the ability to redeem our comrakpeiper with borrowings under the senior creditlity described above

Convertible Debentures

On October 9, 2012 , we issued $1,500.0 of seminvertible debentures, or the Debentures. The Dalenare governed by an indenture
or the Indenture, dated as of October 9, 2012 leriws and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust CompaA., as trustee. The Debentures
bear interest at a rate of 2.750% per year, paysdhi-annually in arrears in cash on April 15 @uatbber 15 of each year, and mature on
October 15, 2042, unless earlier redeemed, repsechar converted into shares of common stock appécable conversion rate. The
Debentures also have a contingent interest fe#tatevill require us to pay additional interesté@®n certain thresholds and for certain ev
as defined in the Indenture, beginning on OctoBerR2022.

Holders may convert their Debentures at their opfidor to the close of business on the businegsmmediately preceding April 15,
2042, only under the following circumstances: (&ig any fiscal quarter commencing after the fisgarter ended December 31, 2012, if the
last reported sale price of our common stock fdeast 20 trading days during a period of 30 cousee trading days ending on the last trading
day of the preceding fiscal quarter is greater thaequal to 130% of the applicable conversionepdn each applicable trading day; (2) during
the five business day period after any 10 conseettading day period, or the measurement periodihich the trading price per $1,000
(whole dollars) principal amount of Debenturesdach trading day of that measurement period wases 98% of the product of the last
reported sale price of our common stock and théicgile conversion rate on each such day; (3) iteleany or all of the Debentures for
redemption, at any time prior to the close of bes@on the third scheduled trading day prior ta¢demption date; or (4) upon the occurrence
of specified corporate events, as defined in tidemture. On and after April 15, 2042 and until ¢hese of business on the third scheduled
trading day immediately preceding the Debenturestunity date of October 15, 2042o0lders may convert their Debentures into comstonk
at any time irrespective of the preceding circumsts. The Debentures are redeemable at our oftaotydime on or after October 20, 2022 ,
upon the occurrence of certain events, as defiméidei Indenture.

Upon conversion of the Debentures, we will delivash up to the aggregate principal amount of tHeebeires converted. With respect to
any conversion obligation in excess of the aggeegancipal amount of the Debentures convertedhae the option to settle the excess with
cash, shares of our common stock or a combinaficash and shares of common stock based on aatailyersion value, determined in
accordance with the Indenture. The initial convarsate for the Debentures will be 13.2319 shaf@air common stock per $1,000 (whole
dollars) of principal amount of Debentures, whiepresents a 25.0% conversion premium based ondsieg price of $60.46 per share of our
common stock on October 2, 2012 (the date the Oiabesi terms were finalized) and is equivalentrdratial conversion price of $75.57per
share of our common stock. As of December 31, 26aBcommon stock was last traded at a price of30ger share. If the Debentures had
been converted or matured at December 31, 2018;auéd be obligated to pay the principal of the Datlbees plus an amount in cash or sh,
equal to $342.0 . The Debentures and underlyingeshaf our common stock have not been and wilbeotegistered under the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Act, orstéatg securities laws and may not be offered atisathe United States absent registration or
an applicable exemption from registration requireteeThe Debentures were offered and sold to gedlifistitutional buyers pursuant to Rule
144A under the Securities Act; the restrictionsvitiich expired in October 2013. We used approxitpad71.0 of the net proceeds from the
issuance to repurchase shares of our common stockiaently with the offering of the Debenturesg éime remaining balance was used for
general corporate purposes, including but not échib additional purchases of shares of our comstmrk pursuant to our share repurchase
program and the repayment of short-term and/or-teng debt.

We have accounted for the Debentures in accordaitbehe cash conversion guidance in FASB guiddocéebt with conversion and
other options. As a result, the value of the embddmbnversion option has been bifurcated frometst thost and recorded as a component of
“additional paid-in capital” (net of deferred taxasd equity issuance costs) in our consolidateanual sheet.
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The following table summarizes at December 31, 20&3elated balances, conversion rate and comvepsice of the Debentures:

Outstanding principal amount $ 1,500.(
Unamortized debt discount 534.(
Net debt carrying amount 966.(
Equity component carrying amount 543.¢
Conversion rate (shares of common stock per $100@@ncipal amount) 13.291°
Effective conversion price (per $1,000 of principaiount) 75.234!

The remaining amortization period of the unamodidebt discount as of December 31, 2013 is apprately 29 years . The unamortized
discount will be amortized into interest expensegishe effective interest method based on an #¥emterest rate of 5.130% , which
represents the market interest rate for a compaddit instrument that does not have a convers@tufe. During the year ended Decembe
2013, we recognized $49.2 of interest expenseatkat the Debentures, of which $41.3 representedeist expense recognized at the stated
interest rate of 2.750% and $7.9 represented sttesgense resulting from amortization of the aidtount.

Total interest paid during 2013, 2012 and 2011 $/&987.2 , $479.1 , and $432.9 , respectively.
We were in compliance with all applicable covenamider all of our outstanding debt agreements aeBer 31, 2013.

Future maturities of all long-term debt outstandimdpecember 31, 2013 are as follows: 2014, $89Z(MA 5, $624.9 ; 2016, $1,109.6 ;
2017, $944.7 ; 2018, $1,262.0 and thereafter, 9225

14. Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation

In the ordinary course of business, we are defesdanor parties to, a number of pending or theeatl legal actions or proceedings. Tc
extent a plaintiff or plaintiffs in the followingases have specified in their complaint or in otlwaurt filings the amount of damages being
sought, we have noted those alleged damages teswiptions below. With respect to the cases destibelow, we contest liability and/or 1
amount of damages in each matter and believe we im&vitorious defenses.

In the Los Angeles County Superior Court, we deéeha lawsuit filed by the Los Angeles City Attorradieging the wrongful rescission
of individual insurance policies and representaiorade concerning rescission practices and pali€les suit named WellPoint as well as B
Cross of California, or BCC, and BC Life & Healtisurance Company, or BCL&H (which name changedrtthém Blue Cross Life and
Health Insurance Company in July 2007), both WetiPsubsidiaries. The lawsuit generally allegedaimusiness practices and a purported
practice of rescinding new individual members faflog the submission of large claims. The Los Angdliy Attorney filed an amended
complaint in October 2010 , adding claims of misespntation arising from several public statemerdde by the Company during 2010. The
Los Angeles City Attorney requested two thousard fiundred dollars ( $2,500 ) per alleged violatbthe California Business and
Professions Code. The lawsuit was recently seftie@6.0 . The court entered final approval of se¢tlement and judgment on July 10, 2013 .

We are defending a certified class action fileé assult of the 2001 demutualization of Anthem rasge Companies, Inc., or AICI. The
lawsuit names AICI as well as Anthem, Inc., or Aeth n/k/a WellPoint, Inc., and is captioriednald Gold, et al. v. Anthem, Inc. etAICI's
2001 Plan of Conversion, or the Plan, providedfierconversion of AICI from a mutual insurance campinto a stock insurance company
pursuant to Indiana law. Under the Plan, AICI dlstred the fair value of the company at the timeaifversion to its Eligible Statutory
Members, or ESMs, in the form of cash or Anthem cam stock in exchange for their membership intsristhe mutual company. Plaintiffs
in Gold allege that AICI distributed value to the wrong ESMLross motions for summary judgment were graimgart and denied in part on
July 26, 2006 with regard to the issue of sover@igmunity asserted by co-defendant, the state oh@octicut, or the State.
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The court also denied our motion for summary judghae to plaintiffs’ claims on January 10, 2005e Btate appealed the denial of its motior
to the Connecticut Supreme Court. We filed a caggseal on the sovereign immunity issue. On May2010, the Court reversed the judgment
of the trial court denying the State’s motion terdiss the plaintiff's claims under sovereign immyrind dismissed our cross-appeal. The cas
was remanded to the trial court for further prodegsl Plaintiffs’ motion for class certification wagranted on December 15, 2011. We and thi
plaintiffs filed renewed cross-motions for summarggment on January 24, 2013. Argument on the redewotions was held on April 19,
2013. On August 19, 2013, the court denied pldgitifiotion for summary judgment. The court deferaeihal ruling on our mation for
summary judgment, instead requesting supplemergah@nt which occurred on November 7, 2013. Thaanatas taken under advisement.
We intend to vigorously defend ti@old lawsuit; however, its ultimate outcome cannot bespntly determined.

We are currently a defendant in eleven putativescictions relating to out-ofetwork, or OON, reimbursement that were consatidanto
a single multi-district lawsuit callelsh re WellPoint, Inc. Out-of-Network “UCR” Ratestlgation that is pending in the United States District
Court for the Central District of California. Thawsuits were filed in 2009. The plaintiffs includgrrent and former members on behalf of a
putative class of members who received OON senfaeshich the defendants paid less than billedgbs, the American Medical
Association, four state medical associations, O@¥jzians, chiropractors, clinical psychologiswdiatrists, psychotherapists, the American
Podiatric Association, California Chiropractic Asgtion and the California Psychological Associatim behalf of a putative class of all
physicians and all nophysician health care providers. The plaintiffsédiled several amended complaints alleging thatdéfendants violat:
the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizathmisor RICO, the Sherman Antitrust Act, ERISA, éedl regulations, and state law by
using an OON reimbursement database called Ingemixn our use of nomgenix OON reimbursement methodologies. We hded finotion:
to dismiss in response to each of those amendeglaoits. Our motions to dismiss have been gramtgzhit and denied in part by the Court.
The most recent pleading filed by the plaintiff@aiBourth Amended Complaint to which we filed aimoto dismiss most, but not all, of the
claims. In July 2013 the court issued an ordertirgrin part and denying in part our motion. Theitdeld that the state and federal anti-trust
claims along with the RICO claims should be dismiss their entirety with prejudice. The court het found that the ERISA claims, to the
extent they involved non-Ingenix methodologiesnglavith those that involved our alleged non-disates should be dismissed with prejudice
The court also dismissed most of the plaintiffatstlaw claims with prejudice. The only claims trexhain after the court’s decision are an
ERISA benefits claim relating to claims priced lhsa Ingenix, a breach of contract claim on bebatine subscriber plaintiff, a breach of
implied covenant claim on behalf of one plainté#fid one subscriber plaintiff's claim under the @afiia Unfair Competition Law. The
plaintiffs filed a motion for reconsideration ofetlmotion to dismiss order, which the court granteplart and denied in part. The court ruled
that the plaintiffs adequately allege that one @reoprovider plaintiff is deemed to have exhaustdnhinistrative remedies regarding non-
Ingenix methodologies based on the facts alleggdrding that plaintiff so those claims are backhim case. Fact discovery is complete. The
plaintiffs filed a motion for class certification November 2013. The plaintiffs seek the followalgsses: (1) a subscriber ERISA class as to
OON claims processed using the Ingenix databat®egsricing methodology; (2) a physician providierss as to OON claims processed using
Ingenix; (3) a non-physician provider class as @NOclaims processed using Ingenix; (3) a providetFA class as to OON claims processed
using non-Ingenix pricing methodologies; (4) a €@atia subscriber breach of contract/unfair contmaticlass; and (5) a subscriber breach of
implied covenant class for all WellPoint stateseptaCalifornia. We deposed all of the plaintifftags certification experts. Our response to th
class certification is due in February 2014. Eailiethe case, in 2009, we filed a motion in the&tlh States District Court for the Southern
District of Florida, or the Florida Court, to enjdihe claims brought by the medical doctors andais®f osteopathy and certain medical
associations based on prior litigation releases;hwivas granted in 2011. The Florida Court ordehedplaintiffs to dismiss their claims that
barred by the release. The plaintiffs then filguetition for declaratory judgment asking the cdartind that these claims are not barred by the
releases from the prior litigation. We filed a noatito dismiss the declaratory judgment action, Whwas granted. The plaintiffs appealed the
dismissal of the declaratory judgment to the Uniéates Court of Appeals for the Eleventh Cirduit, the dismissal was upheld. The enjoinec
physicians have not yet dismissed their claims. Aloeda Court found the enjoined physicians inteompt and sanctioned them in July 2012.
The barred physicians are paying the sanction$ane appealed the Florida Court’s sanctions owl#rd United States Court of Appeals for
the Eleventh Circuit. Oral argument on that appealrred in October 2013. We intend to vigoroudfedd these suits; however, their ultirr
outcome cannot be presently determined.

Where available information indicates that it istmable that a loss has been incurred as of theofithe consolidated financial statements
and we can reasonably estimate the amount ofdkat We accrue the estimated loss by a charge to
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income. In many proceedings, however, it is diffica determine whether any loss is probable osaaably possible. In addition, even where
loss is possible or an exposure to loss existgdrss of the liability already accrued with resged previously identified loss contingency,
not always possible to reasonably estimate the abafuthe possible loss or range of loss.

With respect to many of the proceedings to whichaweea party, we cannot provide an estimate optissible losses, or the range of
possible losses in excess of the amount, if argruad, for various reasons, including but not ledito some or all of the following: (i) there
novel or unsettled legal issues presented, (iiptioeeedings are in early stages, (iii) there isentainty as to the likelihood of a class being
certified or decertified or the ultimate size acde of the class, (iv) there is uncertainty athé&ooutcome of pending appeals or motions,

(v) there are significant factual issues to be Ikesh and/or (vi) in many cases, the plaintiffs daot specified damages in their complaint or ir
court filings. For those legal proceedings whelasa is probable, or reasonably possible, and fochwit is possible to reasonably estimate the
amount of the possible loss or range of losses;umently believe that the range of possible losisesxcess of established reserves, for all of
those proceedings is from $0 to approximately $250December 31, 2013 . This estimated aggregatgerof reasonably possible losses is
based upon currently available information takimigp iaccount our best estimate of such losses fahwduch an estimate can be made.

Other Contingencies

From time to time, we and certain of our subsi@is@re parties to various legal proceedings, mamhizh involve claims for coverage
encountered in the ordinary course of business.l&HMOs and health insurers generally, excludeain health care and other services 1
coverage under our HMO, PPO and other plans. Weratiee ordinary course of business, subject ¢éocthims of our enrollees arising out of
decisions to restrict or deny reimbursement forowmeced services. The loss of even one such cléibrgsults in a significant punitive damage
award, could have a material adverse effect otnusddition, the risk of potential liability undpunitive damage theories may increase
significantly the difficulty of obtaining reasonab$ettlements of coverage claims.

In addition to the lawsuits described above, weadse involved in other pending and threatenegddtion of the character incidental to our
business, and are from time to time involved aar#ypn various governmental investigations, audasiews and administrative proceedings.
These investigations, audits, reviews and admatist proceedings include routine and special inegiby state insurance departments, state
attorneys general, the U.S. Attorney General abd@umittees of the U.S. Congress. Such investigatiaudits, reviews and administrative
proceedings could result in the imposition of cosilcriminal fines, penalties, other sanctions additional rules, regulations or other
restrictions on our business operations. Any ligbihat may result from any one of these actiamsn the aggregate, could have a material
adverse effect on our consolidated financial positr results of operations.

The National Organization of Life & Health Insur@n@uaranty Associations, or NOLHGA, is a voluntarganization consisting of the
state life and health insurance guaranty assoomtmcated throughout the U.S. State life and heaiurance guaranty associations, working
together with NOLHGA, provide a safety net for th&tiate’s policyholders, ensuring that they corditmreceive coverage even if their insurer
is declared insolvent. We are aware that the Pdvansip Insurance Commissioner, or Insurance Comariss, has placed Penn Treaty
Network America Insurance Company and its subsiddanerican Network Insurance Company, or colledjivenn Treaty, in rehabilitatio
an intermediate action before insolvency. The statet denied the Insurance Commissioner’s petitiorthe liquidation of Penn Treaty and
ordered the Insurance Commissioner to file an watptan of rehabilitation, which proposed plan fitl@sl on April 30, 2013. The state court
has ordered a hearing on the proposed plan foritate has not yet been set. The Insurance Caiomés has filed a Notice of Appeal
asking the Pennsylvania Supreme Court to reveesertter denying the liquidation petition. The SupeeCourt has probable jurisdiction over
the appeal and issued a schedule for filing briefthe event rehabilitation of Penn Treaty is wgssful and Penn Treaty is declared insolvet
and placed in liquidation, we and other insurery marequired to pay a portion of their policyhaldi&ims through state guaranty association
assessments in future periods. Given the unceytamund whether Penn Treaty will ultimately beldesd insolvent and, if so, the amount of
the insolvency, the amount and timing of any asdedifuture guaranty fund assessments and theabilig§l and amount of any potential
premium tax and other offsets, we currently camstitnate our net exposure, if any, to this potém&olvency. We will continue to monitor
the situation and may record a liability and exgeinsfuture reporting periods, which could be miatdo our cash flows and results of
operations.
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Contractual Obligations and Commitments

We are a party to an agreement with Express Sciipts or Express Scripts, to provide pharmacyefiemanagement, or PBM, services
for our plans, excluding Amerigroup and certairf-g&ured members, which have exclusive agreemetitsdifferent PBM services provide!
provided however that Amerigroup will be transifiog to the Express Scripts agreement during 20hé.ifitial term of this agreement expi
on December 31, 2019. Under this agreement, Exj@esgts is the exclusive provider of certain sflediPBM services, such as pharmacy
network management, home delivery, pharmacy custeamgice, claims processing, rebate managemard, dilization and specialty
pharmaceutical management services. Accordingéyatireement contains certain financial and operalti@quirements obligating both
Express Scripts and us. Express Scripts’ primaligations relate to the performance of such sesva®d meeting certain pricing guarantees
and performance standards. Our primary obligatrelse to oversight, provision of data, paymentsivices and certain minimum volume
requirements. The failure by either party to mbetrespective requirements could potentially sasva basis for financial penalties or early
termination of the contract. We believe we haverappately recognized all rights and obligationslenthis contract at December 31, 2013 .

During the first quarter of 201,0ne entered into a new agreement with InternatiBnginess Machines Corporation to provide infoliora
technology infrastructure services. This new age@rsupersedes certain prior agreements and alsmlé@s provisions for additional services.
Our remaining commitment under this agreement aeber 31, 2013 was $251.2 through March 31, 20¥8 have the ability to terminate
this agreement upon the occurrence of certain eysubject to early termination fees.

On March 31, 2009 , we entered into an agreemehtAiffiliated Computer Services, Inc. to providetegn print and mailroom services
that were previously performed in-house. Our reimgicommitment under this agreement at Decembe2@13 was $141.4 through
March 31, 2016 . We have the ability to termin&is aigreement upon the occurrence of certain evembgect to early termination fees.

Vulnerability from Concentrations

Financial instruments that potentially subjectaisancentrations of credit risk consist primarifycash equivalents, investment securities,
premium receivables and instruments held througlying activities. All investment securities are mged by professional investment
managers within policies authorized by our Boar®wéctors. Such policies limit the amounts thayrba invested in any one issuer and
prescribe certain investee company criteria. Conatans of credit risk with respect to premiuma®@bles are limited due to the large nun
of employer groups that constitute our customee limshe geographic regions in which we conductriass. As of December 31, 2013, there
were no significant concentrations of financiatinments in a single investee, industry or geogralattation.

15. Capital Stock
Stock Incentive Plars

On March 15, 2006, our Board of Directors adoptedWellPoint 2006 Incentive Compensation Planhera006 Plan, which was
approved by our shareholders on May 16, 2006. Orcivi4, 2009, our Board of Directors approved anrament and restatement of the 200€
Plan to increase the number of shares availabB8ty shares, to rename the plan as the WellPatenhtive Compensation Plan, or Incentive
Plan, and to extend the term of the Incentive Blash that no awards may be granted on or after Ma019, which was approved by our
shareholders on May 20, 2009.

The Incentive Plan gives authority to the Compdaeafommittee of the Board of Directors to makeeintive awards to our noemployet
directors, employees and consultants, consistirggoak options, stock, restricted stock, restrictiedk units, cash-based awards, stock
appreciation rights, performance shares and pedgocaunits. The Incentive Plan, as amended aratedsincreases the number of available
shares for issuance to 60.1 shares, subject tstathut as set forth in the Incentive Plan.

Stock options are granted for a fixed number ofehavith an exercise price at least equal to thievédue of the shares at the grant date.
Stock options vest over three years in equal semiral installments and generally have a term oéseears from the grant date.

Certain option grants contain provisions wherelgygmployee continues to vest in the award subseétpégrmination
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due to retirement. Our attribution method for negtgnted awards considers all vesting and othesigioms, including retirement eligibility, in
determining the requisite service period over whiahfair value of the awards will be recognized.

Restricted stock awards are issued at the fairevaluhe stock on the grant date and may alsodiechne or more performance measures
that must be met for the restricted stock awanegi. The restrictions lapse in three equal animséhliments.

For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 &titl,20e recognized share-based compensation c$446f0 , $146.5 and $134.8 ,
respectively, as well as related tax benefits &.65 $52.0 and $48.6 , respectively.

A summary of stock option activity for the year edddecember 31, 2013 is as follows:

Weighted-Average

Weighted-Average Remaining Aggregate
Number of Option Price per Contractual Life Intrinsic
Shares Share (Years) Value
Outstanding at January 1, 2013 176 $ 64.61
Granted 2.C 62.5¢
Exercised (8.4 62.3¢
Forfeited or expired (1.4) 70.71
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 10.C 65.3¢ 33 % 270.¢
Exercisable at December 31, 2013 7.6 66.0¢ 26 $ 199.¢

The intrinsic value of options exercised during years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011rdetbto $176.0 , $65.4 and $115.8
respectively. We recognized tax benefits of $5&82.9 and $42.9 in 2013 , 2012 and 2011 , resggtifrom option exercises and
disqualifying dispositions. During the years en@atember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 we receivedafebl4.7 , $110.8 and $245.0 ,
respectively, from exercises of stock options.

The total fair value of restricted stock awardg trested during the years ended December 31, 2AB82 and 2011 was $46.7 , $22ar
$120.2, respectively.

A summary of the status of nonvested restrictedksa@tivity, including restricted stock units, fitne year ended December 31, 2013 is as
follows:

Weighted-Average

Restricted Grant Date

Stock Shares Fair Value

and Units per Share
Nonvested at January 1, 2013 2€ % 63.8
Granted 2.7 63.0¢
Vested (0.6) 59.9¢
Forfeited (0.5 64.8¢
Nonvested at December 31, 2013 4.2 63.8:

During the year ended December 31, 2013 , we giapproximately 0.9 restricted stock units underltitentive Plan that were
contingent upon us achieving specified operatirig gagets for 2013 . We expect to issue approxgdt.2 restricted stock units under this
performance plan as certain performance targets eareeded. These restricted stock units haveibelewled in the activity shown above.

As of December 31, 2013, the total remaining ungeized compensation cost related to nonvestedt siations and restricted stock
amounted to $10.5 and $88.1 , respectively, whitiHoe amortized over the weighted-average remaiméquisite service periods d1 month:
and 12 months , respectively.

As of December 31, 2013, there were approxima&tél9 shares of common stock available for futuenty under the Incentive Plan.
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Fair Value

We use a binomial lattice valuation model to estarthe fair value of all stock options granted. &ed volatility assumptions used in the
binomial lattice model are based on an analysimpfied volatilities of publicly traded options aur stock and historical volatility of our stc
price. The risk-free interest rate is derived fritia U.S. Treasury strip rates at the time of tlegrThe expected term of the options was
derived from the outputs of the binomial latticedab which incorporates post-vesting forfeitureumsptions based on an analysis of historical
data. The dividend yield was based on our estimfatieture dividend yields. Similar groups of empéag that have dissimilar exercise beha
are considered separately for valuation purposesulilize the “multiple-grant” approach for recoginig compensation expense associated
with each separately vesting portion of the shased award.

The following weighted-average assumptions werel ig@stimate the fair values of options grantednduthe years ended December 31:

2013 2012 2011
Risk-free interest rate 1.25% 1.41% 2.80%
Volatility factor 35.00% 34.0(% 34.0%
Dividend yield (annual) 2.4(% 1.6(% 1.5(%
Weighted-average expected life (years) 4.C 41 4.C

The following weighted-average fair values wereed®ined for the years ending December 31:

2013 2012 2011
Options granted during the year $ 146¢ $ 16.5C $ 17.8¢
Restricted stock and stock awards granted durieydar 63.0¢ 65.91 66.1¢

The binomial lattice option-pricing model requitag input of highly subjective assumptions inclgdihe expected stock price volatility.
Because our stock option grants have characterisiimificantly different from those of traded apts, and because changes in the subjective
input assumptions can materially affect the falugaestimate, in our opinion, existing models domecessarily provide a reliable single
measure of the fair value of our stock option gsant

Employee Stock Purchase Ple

We have registered 14.0 shares of common stodkéEmployee Stock Purchase Plan, or the StockhBsecPlan, which is intended to
provide a means to encourage and assist emplayeesjiliring a stock ownership interest in WellPoirite Stock Purchase Plan was
suspended effective January 1, 2011, and no sheresissued during 2013, 2012 or 2011 . Effeclveuary 1, 2014, the Stock Purchase Pla
is being reinstated. Pursuant to terms of the SRaokhase Plan, an employee is permitted to pueamasnore than $23,750 (actual dollars)
worth of stock in any calendar year, based ondivevhlue of the stock at the end of each plantguaEmployees become participants by
electing payroll deductions from 1% to 15% of grosmpensation. Once purchased, the stock is acetealih the employee's investment
account. The Stock Purchase Plan allows particspanpurchase shares of our common stock at a peicehare of 95% of the fair value of a
share of common stock on the last trading day @fptln quarter. As of December 31, 2013 , 6.1 shasze available for issuance under the
Stock Purchase Plan.

Use of Capital and Stock Repurchase Program

We regularly review the appropriate use of capitedluding common stock and debt security repurebad dividends to shareholders.
The declaration and payment of any dividends onmgpases of our common stock or debt are at thoeedisn of our Board of Directors and
depend upon our financial condition, results ofrafiens, future liquidity needs, regulatory andit@pequirements and other factors deemed
relevant by our Board of Directors. Historicallyraommon stock repurchase program, discussed bbkswheen our primary use of capital.
Beginning in 2011, our Board of Directors estaldidla quarterly dividend to shareholders.
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A summary of the cash dividend activity for the ige@anded December 31, 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

Cash Dividend per

Declaration Date Record Date Payment Date Share Total
Year Ended December 31, 201
February 20, 201 March 8, 201: March 25, 201  $ 0.375( $ 113«
May 15, 201 June 10, 201 June 25, 201 0.375( 112.7
July 23, 201: September 10, 20: September 25, 20: 0.375( 111«
October 22, 201 December 9, 201 December 23, 201 0.375( 110.t

Year Ended December 31, 201

January 24, 201 March 9, 201: March 23, 201: $ 0.287¢ $ 95.¢
May 16, 201: June 8, 201 June 25, 201 0.287! 93.t
July 24, 201: September 10, 20: September 25, 20: 0.287: 90.7

November 6, 201 December 7, 201 December 21, 201 0.287¢ 87.1

On January 28, 2014 , the Board of Directors dedlarquarterly cash dividend to shareholders &f3%& per share on the outstanding
shares of our common stock. This quarterly dividetiibe paid on March 25, 2014 to the shareholadngcord as of March 10, 2014 .

Under our Board of Directors’ authorization, we ntain a common stock repurchase program. On Septe2a 2013, the Board of
Directors authorized a $3,500.0 increase to thencomstock repurchase program. Repurchases may dbe fineen time to time at prevailing
market prices, subject to certain restrictions olume, pricing and timing. The repurchases arecedfbfrom time to time in the open market,
through negotiated transactions, including acctddrahare repurchase agreements, and throughdsaigmed to comply with Rule 10b5-1
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as aeter@ur stock repurchase program is discretionsiyeaare under no obligation to
repurchase shares. We repurchase shares undeotitam when we believe it is a prudent use of eapithe excess cost of the repurchased
shares over par value is charged on a pro rata tiaadditional paid-in capital and retained eagsin

A summary of common stock repurchases for the gelémuary 1, 2014 through February 7, 2014 (suleseéda December 31, 2013 ) and
for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012fwlaws:

January 1, 2014 Years Ended December 31
through
February 7, 2014 2013 2012
Shares repurchased 5.4 20.7 39.7
Average price per share $ 84.9¢ $ 78.0¢ $ 62.9¢
Aggregate cost $ 457.¢ $ 1,620.. $ 2,496.¢
Authorization remaining at the end of each period $ 2,633.. % 3,691.( $ 1,836.¢

During 2013, we purchased call options on 3.0 shaf®ur common stock. The call options allow ussjpurchase shares at a
predetermined strike price up through the expiratiates. The purpose of the call options is tocedinare price volatility on potential future
common stock repurchases. The aggregate premiudmwges $25.8 , of which $7.9 was recorded as a texfuof shareholders' equity and the
remaining $17.9 was recorded as a derivative &ssetd on FASB guidance. The aggregate premiunpdéstesl in financing activities in our
consolidated statements of cash flow. The callomsthad strike prices ranging from $77.50 to $8®di0share. The aggregate fair value of the
call options reported as a derivative asset wass&&7/December 31, 2013. The call options wereais&d on various dates throughout Januar
and February 2014.

On February 4, 2014, we entered into an accelesdtack repurchase, or ASR, program with a countigrpehe agreement provides for a
repurchase of a number of shares, equal to $6@& @etermined by the dollar volume weighted-avesdtare price during a period up through
at least March 14, 2014, but not to exceed Marci2814. At the end of the
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term of the ASR, the initial amount of shares Ww#l adjusted up or down based on the dollar volugighted-average price during the same
period. On February 4, 2014, we repurchased 6./@shader this program. These ASR shares are cladied in the shares repurchased
subsequent to December 31, 2013 shown in the &floiee as the final shares to be repurchased with@adetermined until the completion of
the program in March 2014. However the $600.0 leehlsemoved from the authorization remaining a@seiruary 7, 2014 in the table above.

16. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

A reconciliation of the components of accumulatéteocomprehensive income at December 31 is asaisll

2013 2012

Investments:

Gross unrealized gains $ 1,054 % 1,282.:

Gross unrealized losses (277.9 (51.9

Net pretax unrealized gains 776. 1,230.¢

Deferred tax liability (267.9 (427.7)
Net unrealized gains on investments 509.( 803.%
Non-credit components of OTTI on investments:

Unrealized losses (0.9 (3.9

Deferred tax asset 0.3 1.2
Net unrealized non-credit component of OTTI on Biweents (0.5 (2.2
Cash flow hedges:

Gross unrealized losses (49.7) (54.9)

Deferred tax asset 17.4 19.C
Net unrealized losses on cash flow hedges (32.9) (35.9)
Defined benefit pension plans:

Deferred net actuarial loss (427.2) (686.¢)

Deferred prior service credits 3.C 3.8

Deferred tax asset 169.¢ 269.1
Net unrecognized periodic benefit costs for defibedefit pension plans (254.9 (413.9)
Postretirement benefit plans:

Deferred net actuarial loss (169.6) (291.0

Deferred prior service credits 102.¢ 103.(

Deferred tax asset 27.C 34.¢
Net unrecognized periodic benefit costs for posaeetent benefit plans (40.2) (539
Foreign currency translation adjustments:

Gross unrealized gains 2.2 0.2

Deferred tax liability (0.7) 0.2
Net unrealized gains on foreign currency transtasidjustments 1kt 0.1
Accumulated other comprehensive income $ 1832 $ 299.1

-130 -




WellPoint, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu

Other comprehensive income (loss) reclassificadidjustments for the years ended December 31 doli@ss:

2013 2012 2011

Investments:

Net holding loss on investment securities arisingrdy the period, net of tax benefit of

$223.6, $5.4 and $38.2, respectively $ (407.9) $ (3.2 % (71.€)

Reclassification adjustment for net realized gainmvestment securities, net of tax

expense of ($60.6), ($104.0) and ($49.6), respelgtiv 112. 193.1 92.2
Total reclassification adjustment on investments (294.7) 189.¢ 20.€
Non-credit component of OTTI on investments:

Non-credit component of OTTI on investments, netaaf(expense) benefit of ($0.9),

($2.4) and $0.5, respectively 1.7 4.5 (0.7)
Cash flow hedges:

Holding gain (loss), net of tax (expense) bendfii$d.6), ($0.1) and $5.3, respectively 3.C 0.1 (10.0)
Other:

Net change in unrecognized periodic benefit castgléfined benefit pension and

postretirement benefit plans, net of tax (expebsekgfit of ($106.8), ($7.1) and $81.7,

respectively 172.5 (10.9 (119.9

Foreign currency translation adjustment, net ofeggense of ($0.6), ($0.3) and ($0.:

respectively 1.4 0.€ 0.2
Net (loss) gain recognized in other comprehensigerme, net of tax benefit (expense) of . )
$53.1, ($108.5) and $75.9, respectively $ (115.9 $ 184.2  $ (109.9)

17. Reinsurance

We reinsure certain risks with other companiesasslime risk from other companies. We remain priynéable to policyholders under
ceded insurance contracts and are contingentlielfab amounts recoverable from reinsurers in trenéthat such reinsurers do not meet their

contractual obligations.

We evaluate the financial condition of our reinssr@nd monitor concentrations of credit risk agsirom similar geographic regions,
activities, or economic characteristics of the saners to minimize our exposure to significant ésskom reinsurer insolvencies.

A summary of direct, assumed and ceded premiunttewrand earned for the years ended Decemberdlfalows:

2013 2012 2011
Written Earned Written Earned Written Earned
Direct $ 65,939. $ 66,038. $ 56,443.( $ 56,373.( $ 56,190.. $ 55,875.
Assumed 174.; 174.C 197.C 196.¢ 179.¢ 178.%
Ceded (92.6) (93.9) (73.2) (73.9) (84.2) (84.7)
Net premiums $ 66,020. $ 66,119. $ 56,567. $ 56,496 $ 56,286. $ 55,969.(
Percentage—assumed to net premiul 0.2% 0.2% 0.2% 0.2% 0.2% 0.2%
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A summary of net premiums written and earned byr&sd (see Note 20, “Segment Information”) for tleans ended December 31 is as
follows:

2013 2012 2011
Written Earned Written Earned Written Earned

Reportable segments:

Commercial and Specialty

Business $ 351264 $ 35159.¢ $ 35352. $ 35251 $ 36,476. $ 36,436.

Government Business 30,894. 30,959.. 21,215. 21,244 19,809." 19,532.¢

Other — — — — — —
Net premiums $ 66,0208 $ 66,119.. $ 56,567.. $ 56,496.° $ 56,286. $ 55,969.(

The effect of reinsurance on benefit expense ferydars ended December 31 is as follows:

2013 2012 2011
Direct $ 56,185.: $ 48,135.. $ 47,569.¢
Assumed 155.¢ 173.C 165.(
Ceded (103.%) (94.5) (87.9)
Net benefit expense $ 56,237.. $ 48,213.0 % 47,647.!

The effect of reinsurance on certain assets abdifias at December 31 is as follows:
2013 2012

Policy liabilities, assumed $ 554 § 62.4
Unearned income, assumed 0.4 0.t
Premiums payable, ceded 17.1 18.1
Premiums receivable, assumed 14.1 16.€

18. Leases

We lease office space and certain computer antetetquipment using noncancelable operating leAsdecember 31, 2013, future
lease payments for operating leases with initiakamaining noncancelable terms of one year or roonsist of the following:

2014 $ 133.(
2015 126.7
2016 99.€
2017 97.2
2018 91.1
Thereafter 221.¢
Total minimum payments required $ 769.3

We have certain lease agreements that containngamti payment provisions. Under these provisiomspay contingent amounts in
addition to base rent, primarily based upon annbahges in the consumer price index. The schedbaleeacontains estimated amounts for
potential future increases in lease payments baiséde contingent payment provisions.

Lease expense for 2013, 2012 and 2011 was $183%8,3 and $148.6 , respectively.
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19. Earnings per Share

The denominator for basic and diluted earningsspare at December 31 is as follows:

2013 2012 2011
Denominator for basic earnings per share—weightedage shares 298.t 321t 360.2
Effect of dilutive securities—employee stock optpnon-vested restricted stock awards and
convertible debentures 5.2 3.8 4.¢
Denominator for diluted earnings per share 303.¢ 324.¢ 365.1

During the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012@hd , weighted-average shares related to cestagk options of 4.2 , 12.6 and
10.5, respectively, were excluded from the denamoinfor diluted earnings per share because tluk siptions were anti-dilutive.

20. Segment Information

On May 20, 2013, we announced certain organizatiama executive leadership changes to align witli bar new Chief Executive
Officer is managing our operations. Beginning wifth three months ended June 30, 2013, our orgamaéstructure is comprised of three
reportable segments: Commercial and Specialty BssinGovernment Business; and Other.

Our Commercial and Specialty Business segmentdeslour Local Group, National Accounts, Individaat Specialty businesses.
Business units in the Commercial and Specialty Bass segment offer fully-insured products; prodd®oad array of managed care services
to selffunded customers including claims processing, umdting, stop loss insurance, actuarial servicesyioler network access, medical ¢
management, disease management, wellness prognahasheer administrative services; and provide aayaof specialty and other insurance
products and services such as behavioral healtéfibsarvices, dental, vision, life and disabilithsurance benefits, radiology benefit
management, analytics-driven personal health asidagce and long-term care insurance.

Our Government Business segment includes Medicatdviedicaid businesses, National Government Ses\daoe services provided to-
Federal Government in connection with FEP. Our Maai business includes services such as Medicarartabe, Medicare Part D, and
Medicare Supplement, while our Medicaid busineshkioles our managed care alternatives through pulilinded health care programs,
including Medicaid, state Children’s Health InsuwrarPrograms and Medicaid expansion programs. Natidavernment Services acts as a
Medicare contractor in several regions across #tiem.

Our Other segment includes other businesses thavtdmeet the quantitative thresholds for an ojjegategment as defined by FASB
guidance, as well as corporate expenses not adidtatthe other reportable segments.

We define operating revenues to include premiurorime, administrative fees and other revenues. Qpgragvenues are derived from
premiums and fees received primarily from the sale administration of health benefit products. @peg gain is calculated as total operating
revenue less benefit expense and selling, genedahdministrative expense.

Through our participation in various federal goveamt programs, we generated approximately 20.386792 and 23.5% of our total
consolidated revenues from agencies of the U.Semowent for the years ended December 31, 2013, 202011, respectively. These
revenues are contained in the Government Busiregsaent.

The accounting policies of the segments are camgistith those described in the summary of sigaiftcaccounting policies in Note 2,
“Basis of Presentation and Significant Accountirggid®es,” except that certain shared administraéxpenses for each segment are recognize
on a pro rata allocated basis, which in aggregapeoximates the consolidated expense. Any diffexdretween the allocated expenses and
actual consolidated expense is included in othpeeses not allocated to reportable segments. égersnt sales and expenses are recorded ¢
cost and eliminated in the consolidated finandiaesnents. We evaluate performance of the repertddments based on operating gain ot
as defined above. We evaluate investment inconmteenbzed gains on investments, other-than-temgonapairment losses recognized in
income, interest expense, amortization expensg dogxtinguishment of debt and income taxes, aadtand liability
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details on a consolidated basis as these itemmanaged in a corporate shared service environnmeindre not the responsibility of segment
operating management.

Financial data by reportable segment for the yeaded December 31 is as follows:

Commercial and

Specialty Government

Business Business Other Total
Year ended December 31, 2013
Operating revenue $ 38790.. $ 31,366 % 34€ $ 70,191.
Operating gain (loss) 3,093.: 927.1 (29.0 4,001.-
Depreciation and amortization of property and emapt — — 457.1 457.1
Year ended December 31, 2012
Operating revenue $ 38852¢ $ 21,625 % 354 $ 60,514.(
Operating gain (loss) 3,339.° 341.¢ (61.€) 3,619.¢
Depreciation and amortization of property and emapt — — 363.t 363.t
Year ended December 31, 2011
Operating revenue $ 39961. $ 19,874 $ 30.C $ 59,865.
Operating gain (loss) 3,344." 461.¢ (24.0) 3,782.:
Depreciation and amortization of property and emapt — — 300.: 300.:

The major product revenues for each of the replertsdgments for the years ended December 31, dodass:

2013 2012 2011
Commercial and Specialty Business
Managed care products $ 33903. $ 34,091! $ 35,387.
Managed care services 3,472.. 3,444.¢ 3,374."
Dental/Vision products and services 952.t 903.¢ 826.¢
Other 461.¢ 412.7 372.1
Total Commercial and Specialty Business 38,790.: 38,852. 39,961.
Government Business
Managed care products 30,959.. 21,244. 19,533.(
Managed care services 407 . 381.( 341.(
Total Government Business 31,366. 21,625’ 19,874.(
Other
Other 34.¢ 35.4 30.C
Total product revenues $ 70,191 $ 60514 $ 59,865.:

The classification between managed care productsreamaged care services in the above table prymdistinguishes between the level
risk assumed. Managed care products represenamseiproducts where we bear the insurance riskieabananaged care services represent
product offerings where we provide claims adjudaatind other administrative services to the custinut the customer principally bears the
insurance risk.

Asset and equity details by reportable segment havéeen disclosed, as we do not internally repuch information.
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A reconciliation of reportable segment operatingereies to the amounts of total revenues includéderconsolidated statements of
income for the years ended December 31 is as fellow

2013 2012 2011
Reportable segments operating revenues $ 70,191 $ 60514 $ 59,865.:
Net investment income 659.1 686.1 703.7
Net realized gains on investments 271.¢ 334.¢ 235.]
Other-than-temporary impairment losses recogniréddome (98.9) (37.9) (93.9
Total revenues $ 71,023! $ 61,497. $ 60,710’

A reconciliation of reportable segment operatingnga income from continuing operations before imeotaxes included in the
consolidated statements of income for the years@iecember 31 is as follows:

2013 2012 2011
Reportable segments operating gain $ 4,001 $ 3,619.¢ $ 3,782.:
Net investment income 659.1 686.] 703.7
Net realized gains on investments 271.¢ 334.¢ 235.]
Other-than-temporary impairment losses recognigéddome (98.9 (37.9) (93.9
Interest expense (602.7) (511.9) (430.9)
Amortization of other intangible assets (245.9) (233.0 (239.9
Loss on extinguishment of debt (145.9) — —
Income from continuing operations before incomedsagense $ 3,840 $ 3,858.0 % 3,957.¢

21. Related Party Transactions

WellPoint Foundation, Inc., or the Foundation,nsliadiana non-profit organization exempt from feddéaxation under Section 501(c)(3)
of the Internal Revenue Code. The Foundation wasdd to conduct, support and assist charitablditieslated, educational, and other
community-based programs and projects. The offiaatsdirectors of the Foundation are also our efficThese officers and directors receive
no compensation from the Foundation for the manageservices performed for the Foundation but meayeimbursed by the Foundation for
any cash expenditures incurred on behalf of thenBation. During the years ended December 31, 2Q032 and 2011 , we received $0.7 ,
$0.6 and $0.6 , respectively, from the Foundat@mrafiministrative services provided by our assesidiVe contributed $10t6 the Foundatio
during the year ended December 31, 2013 . We mademiributions to the Foundation during the yearded December 31, 2012 and 2011 .
The Foundation is not a subsidiary of ours andittencial results of the Foundation are not comsdéd with our financial statements. We
have no current legal obligations for future conmants to the Foundation.

22. Statutory Information

The majority of our insurance and HMO subsidiarigzort their accounts in conformity with accountprgctices prescribed or permitted
by state insurance regulatory authorities, or gtaguwhich vary in certain respects from GAAP. Hoxer, certain of our insurance and HMO
subsidiaries, including BCC, Blue Cross of CalifarRartnership Plan, Inc., Golden West Health Rlam,and CareMore Health Plan are
regulated by the California Department of Managedlth Care, or DMHC, and report their accountsonfarmity with GAAP (these entities
are collectively referred to as the “DMHC regulatadities”). Typical differences of GAAP reportiag compared to statutory reporting are the
inclusion of unrealized gains or losses relatin§@ed maturity securities in shareholders’ equiggognition of all assets including those that
are non-admitted for statutory purposes and retiognof all deferred tax assets without regardtédugory limits. The National Association of
Insurance Commissioners, or NAIC, developed a emdlifersion of the statutory accounting principlissigned to foster more consistency
among the states for accounting guidelines andrtiego

Our insurance and HMO subsidiaries that are subjestatutory reporting are domiciled in variouggdictions. These subsidiaries prepare
statutory financial statements in accordance wittoanting practices prescribed or permitted byréspective jurisdictions’ insurance
regulators. Prescribed statutory accounting prestare set forth in a variety of
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publications of the NAIC as well as state lawsutations and general administrative rules.

Our ability to pay dividends and credit obligatioasignificantly dependent on receipt of dividefidsn our subsidiaries. The payment of
dividends to us by our insurance and HMO subsielsawithout prior approval of the insurance depantsief each subsidiary’s domiciliary
jurisdiction is limited by formula. Dividends in eass of these amounts are subject to prior applgvtie respective state insurai
departments or the DMHC.

Our statutory basis insurance and HMO subsidiaiesubject to risk-based capital requirementk-Bésed capital is a method develo
by the NAIC to determine the minimum amount of ity capital appropriate for an insurance compamyiMO to support its overall
business operations in consideration of its sizkresk profile. The formula for determining the aumt of risk-based capital specifies various
factors, weighted based on the perceived degreskpfwhich are applied to certain financial balesend financial activity. Below minimum
risk-based capital requirements are classifiediwitkrtain levels, each of which requires specifiettective action. Additionally, the DMHC
regulated entities are subject to capital and smlyeequirements as prescribed by the DMHC. Aseddéinber 31, 2013 and 2012, all of our
regulated subsidiaries exceeded the minimum risleth@apital requirements and/or capital and solveequirements of their applicable
governmental regulator. The statutory risk-basguitabnecessary to satisfy regulatory requiremehtsur statutory basis insurance and HMO
subsidiaries was approximately $3,500.0 and $38¢8 of December 31, 2013 and 2012 , respectiVéky tangible net equity required for the
DMHC regulated entities was approximately $450.0faBecember 31, 2013 and 2012.

Statutory-basis capital and surplus of our insugaaned HMO subsidiaries and capital and surplusiobther regulated subsidiaries,
excluding the DMHC regulated entities, was $10,0@81d $9,967.7 at December 31, 2013 and 2012 ecteely. Statutory-basis net income
of our insurance and HMO subsidiaries and net ireofrour other regulated subsidiaries, excludirgRMHC regulated entities, was
$2,594.8 , $2,800.0 and $2,402.5 for 2013 , 201224111 , respectively. GAAP equity of the DMHC rigad entities was $1,449.2 and
$1,312.5 at December 31, 2013 and 2012 , respBctiBAAP net income of the DMHC regulated entitieas $487.7 , $469.7 and $524.3 for
the years ended December 31, 2013 , 2012 and 2@spectively.

-136 -




WellPoint, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu

23. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Selected quarterly financial data is as follows:

For the Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
2013
Total revenues $ 175760 $ 17,690. $ 17,855.) $ 17,901’
Income from continuing operations before incomesax 1,282t 1,208.: 879.7 469.¢
Income from continuing operations 872.C 799.C 653.¢ 308.¢
Income (loss) from discontinued operations 12.¢ 0.8 2.4 (160.%)
Net income 885.2 800.1 656.2 148.2
Basic net income per share - continuing operations $ 28t $ 267 $ 22C 8 1.0t
Basic net income (loss) per share - discontinuetaifpns 0.04 — 0.01 (0.55
Basic net income per share 2.92 2.6 2.21 0.5C
Diluted net income per share - continuing operation $ 28t % 26, % 2.1t $ 1.0z
Diluted net income (loss) per share - discontinogerations 0.04 — 0.01 (0.5%)
Diluted net income per share 2.8¢ 2.6 2.1¢ 0.4¢
2012
Total revenues $ 15415. $ 15396. $ 15,247 $ 15,438.
Income from continuing operations before incometax 1,309.¢ 1,048." 1,019.¢ 480.z
Income from continuing operations 856.k 643.¢ 687.t 463.¢
Income from discontinued operations — — 3.7 0.8
Net income 856.5 643.¢ 691.2 464.2
Basic net income per share - continuing operations $ 25€ $ 19¢ $ 2.1 $ 1.52
Basic net income per share - discontinued operation — — 0.01 —
Basic net income per share 2.5¢ 1.9¢ 2.17 1.52
Diluted net income per share - continuing operation $ 25z ¢ 192 % 212 % 1.51
Diluted net income per share - discontinued opemnati — — 0.01 —
Diluted net income per share 2.5¢ 1.9¢ 2.1t 1.51

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

There have been no changes in or disagreement®witihdependent registered public accounting Binraccounting or financial
disclosures.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We carried out an evaluation as of December 313 20xder the supervision and with the participatbour management, including our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officerf the effectiveness of the design and operaifayur disclosure controls and procedure
defined in Rule 13a-15(e) of the Securities Excleafigt of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Acte@apon that evaluation, the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer comgéd that our disclosure controls and procedueeféective in timely alerting them to
material information relating to
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us (including our consolidated subsidiaries) regglito be disclosed in our reports under the Exabdmy. In addition, based on that evaluat
the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial ioéf concluded that our disclosure controls andgdares were effective in ensuring that
information required to be disclosed by us in tgorts that we file or submit under the Exchangei®\accumulated and communicated to oul
management, including the Chief Executive Offiaed &hief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allimely decisions regarding required
disclosures.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Management, under the supervision and with theqgyaation of the principal executive officer andrmipal financial officer, of WellPoin
Inc., or the Company, is responsible for estahtigl@ind maintaining effective internal control ofiaancial reporting, or Internal Control, as
such term is defined in the Exchange Act. The Camisanternal Control is designed to provide readua assurance regarding the reliability
of the Company’s financial reporting and the pragian of financial statements for external rep@ourposes in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles, or GARRe Company’s Internal Control includes those pesi@and procedures that (i) pertain to
the maintenance of records that in reasonablel detairately and fairly reflect the transactiond dispositions of the assets of the Company;
(i) provide reasonable assurance that transactiomsecorded as necessary to permit preparatifinasfcial statements in accordance with
GAAP, and that receipts and expenditures of the (@ are being made only in accordance with authtioins of management and directors
of the Company; and (iii) provide reasonable agwmeaegarding prevention or timely detection ofutharized acquisition, use or disposition
of the Company’s assets that could have a magffizdt on the financial statements.

Because of inherent limitations in any Internal €ol no matter how well designed, misstatementstduerror or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Accordingly, even effective Internahttol can provide only reasonable assurance ragatde reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements foemel purposes in accordance with GAAP.

Management, under the supervision and with theégiaation of the principal executive officer andrqmipal financial officer, assessed the
effectiveness of the Company’s Internal ControbBBecember 31, 2013. Management's assessmentagas lon criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework (1992) issbgdhe Committee of Sponsoring Organizations efThreadway Commission.

Based on management’s assessment, managemennichgied that the Company’s Internal Control wasetfe as of December 31,
2013 to provide reasonable assurance regardingliability of financial reporting and the prepacat of financial statements for external
reporting purposes in accordance with GAAP.

Ernst & Young LLP, the Company’s independent regist public accounting firm, has audited the cadatdd financial statements of the
Company for the year ended December 31, 2013, as@lso issued an audit report dated February@@l, n the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reportiag of December 31, 2013, which is included in Bngual Report on Form 10-K.

/s!/  JOSEPHR. SWEDISH /s/ WAYNE S. DEVEYDT

Chief Executive Officer Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There have been no changes in our internal coowl financial reporting that occurred during theee months ended December 31, 201
that have materially affected, or are reasonaksjyjito materially affect, our internal control avf@ancial reporting.

-138 -




Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of WellRdirc.

We have audited WellPoint, Inc.’s internal contaér financial reporting as of December 31, 20E3ddl on criteria established in Internal
Control-Integrated Framework issued by the CommitteSponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Casgion (1992 framework) (the
COSO criteria). WellPoint, Inc.’s management ipmasible for maintaining effective internal contoser financial reporting, and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal cootret financial reporting included in the accomgagyManagement’s Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsipiig to express an opinion on the company’s infezaatrol over financial reporting based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8dé/nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenalteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal corax@r financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, testing and etnadutihe design and operating effectiveness ofiraiecontrol based on the assessed risk, anc
performing such other procedures as we considezeéssary in the circumstances. We believe thadwdit provides a reasonable basis for ou
opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableamesuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statets:iéor external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (ftajmeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetsafdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@anwith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureh®ttbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabsurance regarding prevention or timely detecfainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, WellPoint, Inc. maintained, in alaterial respects, effective internal control ditgancial reporting as of December 31, 2013,
based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the consolidated
balance sheets of WellPoint, Inc. as of DecembeRB13 and 2012, and the related consolidatednséatts of income, comprehensive income
shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each efttinee years in the period ended December 31, @\\&IIPoint, Inc. and our report dated
February 20, 2014 expressed an unqualified opitfiereon.

/s/  ERNST & Y OUNGLLP
Indianapolis, Indiana
February 20, 2014
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
PART llI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

The information required by this Item concerning Buecutive Officers, Directors and nominees farebfor, Audit Committee members
and financial expert(s) and concerning disclostidetinquent filers under Section 16(a) of the Exatpe Act and our Standards of Business
Conduct is incorporated herein by reference fromddinitive Proxy Statement for our 2014 Annualéflag of Shareholders, which will be
filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A withi20 days after the end of our last fiscal year.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item concerningnumeration of our Executive Officers and Directongterial transactions involving
such Executive Officers and Directors and Compéms&@ommittee interlocks, as well as the Compenaafiommittee Report, are
incorporated herein by reference from our defigitRroxy Statement for our 2014 Annual Meeting adrgholders, which will be filed with the
SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 daysrafte end of our last fiscal year.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item concerning ftock ownership of management and five percemgfii@al owners and securities
authorized for issuance under equity compensati&msgs incorporated herein by reference from a@finitive Proxy Statement for our 2014
Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which will be fileith the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within H&ys after the end of our last fiscal
year.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Iltem concerningai relationships and related person transactmalsdirector independence is
incorporated herein by reference from our defimitRroxy Statement for our 2014 Annual Meeting adr8holders, which will be filed with the
SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 daysrafie end of our last fiscal year.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item concernin@pipal accounting fees and services is incorporatrein by reference from our
definitive Proxy Statement for our 2014 Annual Megtof Shareholders, which will be filed with th&S pursuant to Regulation 14A within
120 days after the end of our last fiscal year.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) 1. Financial Statements:
The following consolidated financial statementshef Company are set forth in Part Il, Item 8

Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&€13012
Consolidated Statements of Income for the yearsei:cember 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomthéoyears ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equityiferyears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeaidled December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Financial Statement Schedule:
The following financial statement schedule of th@pany is included in Item 15(c):
Schedule II—Condensed Financial Information of Reghnt (Parent Company Only).

All other schedules for which provision is madetir applicable accounting regulations of the SECnat required under the
related instructions, are inapplicable, or the hegliinformation is included in the consolidatediiincial statements, and therefore, have
been omitted.

3. Exhibits:

A list of exhibits required to be filed as parttbis report is set forth in the Index to Exhibitghich immediately precedes such
exhibits, and is incorporated herein by reference.

(b) Exhibits

The response to this portion of ltem 15 is submiitte a separate section of this report.

(c) Financial Statement Schedule

Schedule II—Condensed Financial Information of Regint (Parent Company Only).
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Schedule II—Condensed Financial Information of Regitrant

WellPoint, Inc. (Parent Company Only)
Balance Sheets

(In millions, except share data)

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments available-for-sale, at fair value:
Fixed maturity securities (amortized cost of $8%hd $1,415.5)
Equity securities (cost of $52.6 and $26.7)
Other invested assets, current
Other receivables
Income taxes receivable
Net due from subsidiaries
Securities lending collateral
Deferred tax assets, net
Other current assets
Total current assets
Long-term investments available-for-sale, at failue:
Equity securities (cost of $6.7 and $6.8)
Other invested assets, long-term
Property and equipment, net
Deferred tax assets, net
Investments in subsidiaries
Other noncurrent assets
Total assets
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Security trades pending payable
Securities lending payable
Net due to subsidiaries
Current portion of long-term debt
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, less current portion
Other noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies—Note 5
Shareholders’ equity

Preferred stock, without par value, shares autbdriz100,000,000; shares issued and outstanding—none
Common stock, par value $0.01, shares authorize®;800,000; shares issued and outstanding: 29327 3;&d

304,715,144
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Total shareholders’ equity
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

December 31,

December 31,

2013 2012
$ 1,174% $ 588.1
900.¢ 1,425.¢
89.¢ 15.C
1.¢ 1.€
35.¢ 37.7
154.¢ 227.(
893.¢ —
46.2 29.1
11.€ 7.5
183.1 1455
3,490.¢ 2,478.(
6.7 6.8
615.% 596.4
148.c 110.2
2.6 23.¢
35,516.: 35,462.:
152.5 218.¢
$ 39,933.( $ 38,896.
$ 592.1 $ 402.1
28.¢ 17.7
46.2 29.1
= 89.7
518.( —
213 214.¢
1,398.¢ 753.2
13,548.1 14,145.¢
220.€ 194.5
15,167. 15,093.
2.6 3.C
10,765.: 10,853.!
13,813.! 12,647..
183.2 299.1
24,765. 23,802.
$ 39,9330 % 38,896.:




See accompanying notes.
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WellPoint, Inc. (Parent Company Only)
Statements of Income

Years ended December 31

(In millions) 2013 2012 2011
Revenues
Net investment income $ 61z $ 95.2 % 116.€
Net realized losses on investments (83.2) (28.5) (17.9
Other-than-temporary impairment losses on investsnen

Total other-than-temporary impairment losses oe#tments (51.€ (15.9 (18.9)

Portion of other-than-temporary impairment lossEognized in other comprehensive

income 0.2 1.3 0.3

Other-than-temporary impairment losses recognigeddome (51.9 (14.0) (18.0
Other revenue 4.4 3.5 3.1
Total revenues (69.0) 56.2 83.¢
Expenses
General and administrative expense 196.€ 211.¢ 53.4
Interest expense 598.4 507.( 407.:
Loss on extinguishment of debt 145.% — —
Total expenses 940.° 718.¢ 460.7
Loss before income tax credits and equity in net tbme of subsidiaries (1,009.9 (662.€) (376.9
Income tax credits (369.%) (172.7) (207.0)
Equity in net income of subsidiaries 3,129.: 3,146.( 2,816.¢
Net income $ 2,489.7 $ 2,655.f $ 2,646."

See accompanying notes.
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WellPoint, Inc. (Parent Company Only)
Statements of Comprehensive Income

(in millions)

Net income
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax:
Change in net unrealized gains/losses on investment

Change in non-credit component of other-than-temgompairment losses on
investments

Change in net unrealized gains/losses on cashttxlges
Change in net periodic pension and postretiremestisc
Foreign currency translation adjustments

Other comprehensive (loss) income

Total comprehensive income

See accompanying notes.
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Years ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
2,489 $ 2,655 $ 2,646.
(294.7) 189.¢ 20.€
1.7 45 (0.7)
3. 0.1 (10.0)
172.7 (10.9) (119.)
1.4 0.6 0.2
(115.9 184.. (109.7)
2,373¢ $ 2,839.7 $ 2,537.(




WellPoint, Inc. (Parent Company Only)
Statements of Cash Flows

(In millions) Years ended December 31
2013 2012 2011
Operating activities
Net income $ 2,489 $ 2,655 $ 2,646.
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activities:
(Undistributed) distributed earnings of subsidiarie (78.5) (432.0 399.:
Net realized losses on investments 83.2 28.t 17.¢
Other-than-temporary impairment losses recognigeddome 51. 14.C 18.C
Loss on extinguishment of debt 1452 — —
Loss on disposal of assets 3.€ — —
Deferred income taxes 4.5) 49.2 95.2
Amortization, net of accretion 25.2 23.2 3.1
Depreciation 457 13.1 .3
Share-based compensation 146.( 146.5 134.¢
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation (30.7) (28.¢) (42.2)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, neffett of business combinations:
Receivables, net 3.3 9.€ 13.8
Other invested assets, current 0.9 0.2 4.€
Other assets 42.: (31.9) (52.0)
Amounts due (from) to subsidiaries (983.) 754.5 (497.2)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 111.¢ (34.5) 1t
Other liabilities (18.¢) 8.¢ 0.9
Income taxes 83.¢ (204.0 35.C
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,116t 2,972.. 2,778.(
Investing activities
Purchases of investments (1,964.)) (5,383.) (2,681.)
Proceeds from sales, maturities, calls and redempbf investments 2,443 5,554} 3,689.¢
Settlement of non-hedging derivatives (109.9) (59.9) (96.6)
Capitalization of subsidiaries (121.79) (6,085.7) (832.])
Changes in securities lending collateral 17.0 73.€ 17.2
(Purchases) sales of property and equipment, net (87.9 (117.7) 2.3
Other, net (18.9) (114.9 (49.6)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 124.5 (6,131.) 49.2
Financing activities
Net (repayments of) proceeds from commercial papenowings (191.7) (229.0) 463.7
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 1,250.( 6,468.¢ 1,097
Repayments of long-term borrowings (1,245.() (800.0) (700.0)
Changes in securities lending payable 17.1 (72.%) (17.9)
Changes in bank overdrafts 71.¢ 30.t (66.9)
Premiums paid on equity options (25.9) —
Repurchase and retirement of common stock (1,620.) (2,496.9) (3,039.9
Cash dividends (465.9 (380.9) (369.9)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under emelstpck plans 524. 110.¢ 245.(
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation 30.1 28.¢ 42.2
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (1,654.9) 2,659.¢ (2,345.Y
Change in cash and cash equivalents 586.¢ (499.9 481.7
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 588.1 1,087. 605.%

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 1,174 3 588.1 $ 1,087.




See accompanying notes.
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WellPoint, Inc.
(Parent Company Only)
Notes to Condensed Financial Statements

December 31, 2013
(In Millions, Except Per Share Data)

1. Basis of Presentation and Significant Accountingolicies

In the parent company only financial statementé/eflPoint, Inc., or WellPoint, WellPoint’s investmigin subsidiaries is stated at cost
plus equity in undistributed earnings of the suiasids. WellPoint’s share of net income of its umeolidated subsidiaries is included in income
using the equity method of accounting.

Certain amounts presented in the parent compampfimaincial statements are eliminated in the cadatéd financial statements of
WellPoint.

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassifiesbbhform to the current year presentation.

WellPoint's parent company only financial statensestiould be read in conjunction with WellPoint'sliéded consolidated financial
statements and the accompanying notes includédsif-orm 10-K.

2. Subsidiary Transactions
Dividends from Subsidiarie

WellPoint received cash dividends from subsidiaog$3,046.5 , $2,935.1 and $2,915.9 during 200322and 2011, respectively.
Dividends to Subsidiarie

Certain subsidiaries of WellPoint own shares of F@ht common stock. WellPoint paid cash dividetwlsubsidiaries related to these
shares of common stock in the amount of $17.9 ,848d $12.0 during 2013, 2012 and 2011, respéytive

Investments in Subsidiarie
Capital contributions to subsidiaries were $12%8,085.1 and $832.1 during 2013, 2012 and 20kpewddively.
Amounts Due to and From Subsidiarie

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, WellPoint repori@@3% due from subsidiaries and $89.7 payablelisidiaries, respectively. The
amounts due to or from subsidiaries primarily indwlmounts for allocated administrative expensessn held overnight at the parent level
resulting from daily cash management activitieseSéhitems are routinely settled, and as such |lassified as current assets or liabilities.

3. Derivative Financial Instruments

The information regarding derivative financial inshents contained in Note 6, “Derivative Finandimtruments,” of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements of WellPoint igsmdubsidiaries is incorporated herein by refegenc

4. Long-Term Debt

The information regarding long-term debt contaiiretlote 13, “Debt, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial StatemehtellPoint anc
its subsidiaries is incorporated herein by refeeenc

5. Commitments and Contingencies

The information regarding commitments and contimgeicontained in Note 14, “Commitments and Cormtimuies,” of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements of WellPoint igsmdubsidiaries is incorporated herein by refegenc
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6. Capital Stock

The information regarding capital stock containedlbte 15, “Capital Stock,” of the Notes to Condated Financial Statements of
WellPoint and its subsidiaries is incorporated heby reference.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regitthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

W ELL POINT, I NC.

By: /SI JOSEPH R. SWEDISH

Joseph R. Swedish
Chief Executive Officer and Director

Dated: February 20, 2014

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#tes indicated.

Signature Title Date
Chief Executive Officer and Director (Principal Ex¢ive
/S/ JOSEPH R. SWEDISH Officer) February 20, 201

Joseph R. Swedish

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi(ferincipal
/sl  WAYNE S. DEVEYDT Financial Officer) February 20, 201

Wayne S. DeVeydt

Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Offigferincipal

/sl  JOHN E. GALLINA Accounting Officer) February 20, 201
John E. Gallina
/sl GEORGE A. SCHAEFER, JR. Chair of the Board February 20, 201
George A. Schaefer, Jr.
/s/ ROBERT L. DIXON, JR. Director February 20, 201
Robert L. Dixon, Jr.
/sl LEWIS HAY Il Director February 20, 201
Lewis Hay I
/s/ JULIE A. HILL Director February 20, 201
Julie A. Hill
/sl WARREN Y. JOBE Director February 20, 201
Warren Y. Jobe
Is/  RAMIRO G. PERU Director February 20, 201
Ramiro G. Peru
/sl WILLIAM J. RYAN Director February 20, 201
William J. Ryan
/sl JOHN H. SHORT Director February 20, 201
John H. Short
/sl ELIZABETH E. TALLETT Director February 20, 201

Elizabeth E. Tallett
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Number Exhibit

2.1 Stock and Interest Purchase Agreement dated Ap2i0@9, by and between the Company and Exprespt§dric., incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the Company’s Curieaport on Form 8-K filed on April 13, 2009.

2.2 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of Jul0®2dy and among WellPoint, Inc., WellPoint Mergaib, Inc. and
AMERIGROUP Corporation, incorporated by referenz&xhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Current Report omnr&-K filed on
July 10, 2012.

(@) Amendment No. 1 to Agreement and Plan of Memged as of October 2, 2012, by and among WigltPloic.,
WellPoint Merger Sub, Inc. and AMERIGROUP Corparatiincorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 (ath® Companys
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter enflegtember 30, 2012.

3.1 Articles of Incorporation of the Company, as amehe#ective May 17, 2011, incorporated by referetacExhibit 3.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Mdy 2011.

3.2 By-laws of the Company, as amended effective OctdBe2013, incorporated by reference to Exhititttd.the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter enSeptember 30, 2013.

4.1 Articles of Incorporation of the Company, as ahed effective May 17, 2011 (Included in Exhibit)3.
4.2 By-laws of the Company, as amended effectiveolmt 22, 2013 (Included in Exhibit 3.2).

4.2 Specimen of Certificate of the Company’s commouwlst§0.01 par value per share, incorporated byeafse to Exhibit 4.1 to
the Company’s Registration Statement on Form $e8 in December 28, 2005 (Registration No. 333-43D7

4.4 Indenture, dated as of December 9, 2004, betwee@dmpany and The Bank of New York Trust Company.Nas trustee,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the @any’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Decembier2004, SEC File
No. 001-16751.

(@) Form of the Company’s 5.000% Notes dd®4X(included in Exhibit 4.4).

(b) Form of the Company’s 5.950% Notes 2084 (included in Exhibit 4.4).

4.t Indenture, dated as of January 10, 2006, betwee@dmpany and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust @amy, N.A.
(formerly known as The Bank of New York Trust CompaN.A.), as trustee, incorporated by referencéxbibit 4.1 to the
Company'’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Jamud,, 2006, SEC File No. 001-16751.

(@) Form of 5.25% Notes due 2016, incorporatedehgrence to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Curreep&t on Form 8-K
filed on January 11, 2006, SEC File No. 001-16751.

(b) Form of 5.85% Notes due 2036, incorporateddgrence to Exhibit 4.4 to the Company’s Curreep&t on Form 8-K
filed on January 11, 2006, SEC File No. 001-16751.

(c) Form of 5.875% Notes due 2017, incorporatedeigrence to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Curieeport on Form 8-K
filed on June 8, 2007, SEC File No. 001-16751.

(d) Form of 6.375% Notes due 2037, incorporatedegrence to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Curieeport on Form 8-K
filed on June 8, 2007, SEC File No. 001-16751.

(e) Form of 7.000% Notes due 2019, incorporatecefisrence to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s CuriReport on Form 8-K
filed on February 5, 2009.

(f)  Form of 4.350% Notes due 2020, incorporateddigrence to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Curieeport on Form 8-K
filed on August 12, 2010.



(g) Form of 5.800% Notes due 2040, incorporatedeigrence to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Curieeport on Form 8-K
filed on August 12, 2010.
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Exhibit
Number

4.¢€

10.1 *

10.z *

Exhibit

(h) Form of 2.375% Notes due 2017, incorporatedefgrence to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Curieeport on Form 8-K
filed on August 15, 2011.

(i) Form of 3.700% Notes due 2021, incorporateddigrence to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Curieeport on Form 8-K
filed on August 15, 2011.

() Form of 3.125% Notes due 2022, incorporateddigrence to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Curieeport on Form 8-K
filed on May 7, 2012.

(k) Form of 4.625% Notes due 2042, incorporateddigrence to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Curieeport on Form 8-K
filed on May 7, 2012.

(D Form of 1.250% Notes due 2015, incorporateddigrence to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Curieeport on Form 8-K
filed on September 10, 2012.

(m) Form of 1.875% Notes due 2018, incorporatedeigrence to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Curieeport on Form 8-K
filed on September 10, 2012.

(n) Form of 3.300% Notes due 2023, incorporatedeigrence to Exhibit 4.4 to the Company’s Curieeport on Form 8-K
filed on September 10, 2012.

(o) Form of 4.650% Notes due 2043, incorporatedeigrence to Exhibit 4.5 to the Company’s CuriReport on Form 8-K
filed on September 10, 2012.

(p) Form of 2.300% Notes due 2018, incorporatedeigrence to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Curieeport on Form 8-K
filed on July 31, 2013.

(q) Form of 5.100% Notes due 2044, incorporatedeigrence to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Curieeport on Form 8-K
filed on July 31, 2013.

Indenture dated as of October 9, 2012 between tinep@ny and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Compax.A. as trustee
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the @any’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on OctoBeR012.

(@) Form of the 2.750% Senior ConvertibldoB®ures due 2042 (included in Exhibit 4.6).

Upon the request of the Securities and Exch&@agamission, the Company will furnish copies of atlyer instruments defining
the rights of holders of long-term debt of the Camy or its subsidiaries.

Anthem 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, amended andtezstes of January 1, 2003, incorporated by referém&xhibit 10.1(iii) to
the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q fordbarter ended June 30, 2003, SEC File No. 0011.675

(@) Form of Stock Incentive Plan General Stocki@pGrant Agreement as of March 1, 2006, incorpatdtty reference to
Exhibit 10.1(b) to the Company’s Quarterly Repartorm 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20@&; Eile No. 001-
16751.

WellPoint Incentive Compensation Plan as amendddestated effective May 20, 2009, incorporateddgrence to Exhibit 99
to the Company'’s Registration Statement on Fornmfie® June 8, 2009.

(@) First Amendment to WellPoint Incentive Comait Plan effective December 8, 2010, incorporaedeference to
Exhibit 10.2(a) to the Company’s Annual Report amrf 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010.

(b) Form of Incentive Compensation Plan NonquadifStock Option Award Agreement under the 2006ritice
Compensation Plan, incorporated by reference tabixt0.2(j) to the Company’s Quarterly Report aoris 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 2007, SEC File No. 001-1675



(c) Form of Incentive Compensation Plan NonquadifStock Option Award Agreement for 2008 under20@6 Incentive
Compensation Plan, incorporated by reference tabiixt0.2(k) to the Company’s Annual Report on Far@iK for the
year ended December 31, 2007, SEC File No. 0011.675
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Exhibit
Number

(d)

(e)

()

(@

(h)

(i)

)

(k)

o

(m)

(n)
(0)

Exhibit

Form of Incentive Compensation Plan Nonquatdifstock Option Award Agreement for 2009 under20@6 Incentive
Compensation Plan, incorporated by reference tabixt0.2(m) to the Company’s Annual Report on FAiaK for the
year ended December 31, 2008, SEC File No. 0011.675

Form of Incentive Compensation Plan Non-QieadifStock Option Award Agreement, incorporated éfgrence to Exhibit
10.2(o) to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Fof¥QLfor the quarter ended March 31, 2010.

Form of Incentive Compensation Plan Restricdaolck Unit Award Agreement, incorporated by refieeto Exhibit 10.2
(p) to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 1@6£xhe quarter ended March 31, 2010.

Form of Incentive Compensation Plan PerforneaBlcare Award Agreement, incorporated by referémé&sxhibit 10.2(q)
to the Company'’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Qttierquarter ended March 31, 2010.

Form of Incentive Compensation Plan Restri@amtk Unit Award Agreement, incorporated by refieeto Exhibit 10.2
(r) to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 1@8€the quarter ended March 31, 2011.

Form of Incentive Compensation Plan PerforneaBbare Award Agreement, incorporated by referémé&sxhibit 10.2(s)
to the Company'’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Qttierquarter ended March 31, 2011.

Form of Incentive Compensation Plan Perfornea8bare Award Agreement, Grant A for 2012, incaapext by reference
to Exhibit 10.2(p) to the Company’s Quarterly Repnr Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2012

Form of Incentive Compensation Plan PerforneaBhare Award Agreement, Grant B for 2012, incaajet by reference
to Exhibit 10.2(q) to the Company’s Quarterly Repmr Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2012

Form of Incentive Compensation Plan Restrickack Unit Award Agreement, incorporated by refieeeto Exhibit 10.2
(t) to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-Kdilon September 14, 2012.

Form of Incentive Compensation Plan NonquadifStock Option Award Agreement for 2013, incorpedaby reference to
Exhibit 10.2(s) to the Company's Quarterly ReparForm 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2013.

Form of Incentive Compensation Plan Restri@amtk Unit Award Agreement for 2013, incorporabgdreference to
Exhibit 10.2(t) to the Company's Quarterly RepartFmrm 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2013.

Form of Incentive Compensation Plan Perforrea®liare Award Agreement for 2013, incorporatedeligrence to Exhibit
10.2(u) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Fobr@QIfor the quarter ended March 31, 2013.

10.2  * WellPoint, Inc. Comprehensive Non-Qualified Defer@ompensation Plan, as amended and restatediedfdanuary 1, 2014,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to thenpany’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the geraended March 31,
2013.

10.£ * WellPoint, Inc. Executive Agreement Plan, amendadi restated effective January 1, 2009, incorporbyectference to Exhibit
10.4 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-Ktffie year ended December 31, 2008.

(@)

(b)

(©

Amendment to the WellPoint, Inc. Executive égment Plan effective as of April 1, 2009, incogted by reference to
Exhibit 10.4(a) of the Company’s Quarterly Reportform 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2009.

Second Amendment to the WellPoint, Inc. Exeeufgreement Plan effective as of March 1, 20h&orporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4(b) to the Company’s CatriReport on Form 8-K filed on March 10, 2011.

Third Amendment to the WellPoint, Inc. ExegatiAgreement Plan effective as of August 6, 20d8piporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4(c) to the Company's QargriReport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended &aper 30, 2013.
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Exhibit

Number

10.5

10.¢

10.7

10.¢

10.¢ *

10.1C *

10.171 *

10.1Z *

10.1:

Exhibit

* WellPoint, Inc. Executive Salary Continuation Pé&ffective January 1, 2006, incorporated by refezend=xhibit 10.59 to the

Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for thertpraended June 30, 2006, SEC File No. 001-016751.

* WellPoint Directed Executive Compensation Plan agedreffective January 1, 2014, incorporated byresiee to Exhibit 10.6

to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Qtther quarter ended September 30, 2013.

* WellPoint, Inc. Board of Directors Compensationd?ean, as amended effective May 15, 2013, incorpdrhy reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report amrir 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2013.

* WellPoint Board of Directors’ Deferred CompensatRian, as amended and restated effective Janu2809, incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s Annuep&t on Form 10-K for the year ended Decembe2328, SEC File No.
001-16751.

Amerigroup Corporation 2009 Equity Incentive Pldieetive May 7, 2009, incorporated by referenc&ihibit 99.1 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 filledecember 26, 2012 (Registration No. 333-185675).

Employment Agreement between Anthem Insurance Campalnc. and Samuel R. Nussbaum, M.D., dated dsrmary 2,
2001 (with respect to Section 5(b) only), incorpedaby reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the CompanyegiBtration Statement on
Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-67714).

(&) Amendment dated September 30, 2011 to Employmeregehgent between Anthem Insurance Companies, ldcSamue
R. Nussbaum, M.D., dated as of January 2, 200brjcated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Canys Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Septedbe2011.

(@) Form of Employment Agreement between the Camppad each of the following: Ken R. Goulet and 8ahR.
Nussbaum, M.D., incorporated by reference to ExHiBi43 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 1fikthe year
ended December 31, 2005, SEC File No. 001-16751.

(b) Form of Employment Agreement between the Com@and Wayne S. DeVeydt, incorporated by refereadexhibit A to
Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Current Report onfk@&-K filed on November 2, 2006, SEC File No. O@GI31.

(c) Form of Employment Agreement between the Companyeach of the following: John Cannon, Jose D. ToamakGlorie
McCarthy incorporated by reference to Exhibit ABxhibit 10.41 to the Company’s Quarterly ReportFamm 10-Q for
the quarter ended September 30, 2007, SEC Fil®0Io16751.

(d) Form of Employment Agreement between the Camzand Joseph R. Swedish, incorporated by referenEghibit A to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report onfk&-K filed on February 12, 2013.

Employment Agreement between WellPoint, Inc. &ichard C. Zoretic dated as of July 9, 2012 arfelctf’e December 24,
2012, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1éheCompany’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for tkaryended December
31, 2012.

(&) First Amendment to Employment Agreement betw@lIPoint, Inc. and Richard C. Zoretic dated &®ctober 26, 2012
and effective December 24, 2012, incorporated freace to Exhibit 10.16(a) to the Company’s Anrfieaport on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012.

(b) Second Amendment to Employment Agreement betviellPoint, Inc. and Richard C. Zoretic date@@&pril 23, 2013,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16(b) te @ompany's Current Report on Form 8-K filed onilA28, 2013.

Blue Cross License Agreement by and between BlossOBlue Shield Association and the Company, inolydevisions, if
any, adopted by the Member Plans through June®®R, 2ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1theCompany's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembePB12.
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10.1¢ Blue Shield License Agreement by and between Blws£Blue Shield Association and the Company, tlinfy revisions, if
any, adopted by the Member Plans through June®®R,2ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1&hCompany's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembePB12.

10.1¢ Undertakings to California Department of Managed@ltheCare, dated October 15, 2012, delivered by Bltoss of California,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to tleen@any's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeateehDecember 31,
2012.

10.1¢ * Offer Letter, by and between WellPoint, Inc. andejth R. Swedish, dated as of February 6, 2013rgncated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report om#8¢K filed on February 12, 2013.

21 Subsidiaries of the Company.
23 Consent of Independent Registered Public AcéogriEirm.

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a) of the Excha&wdrules, as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2062.

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a) of the ExchawdRules, as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002.

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdiioBe906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdioBe906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.

101 The following materials from WellPoint, Inc.’s AnauReport on Form 18for the year ended December 31, 2013, formati
XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language)th@® Consolidated Balance Sheets; (ii) the Consii&tatements of
Income; (iii) the Consolidated Statements of Corhpresive Income; (iv) the Consolidated StatemenBasth Flows; (v) the
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equityie Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementk(gii) Financial
Statement Schedule II.

Indicates management contracts or compengatans or arrangements.
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Legal Name

Exhibit 21

State

American Imaging Management East, L.L.C.
American Imaging Management, Inc.
AMERIGROUP Arizona, Inc.

AMERIGROUP California, Inc.

AMERIGROUP Colorado, Inc.

AMERIGROUP Community Care of Arizona, Inc.
AMERIGROUP Community Care of Mississippi, Inc.
AMERIGROUP Community Care of New Mexico, Inc.
AMERIGROUP Connecticut, Inc.
AMERIGROUP Corporation

AMERIGROUP Delaware, Inc.

AMERIGROUP Florida, Inc.

AMERIGROUP Hawaii, Inc.

AMERIGROUP Health Solutions, Inc.
AMERIGROUP Indiana, Inc.

Amerigroup Insurance Company

Amerigroup Kansas, Inc.

AMERIGROUP Louisiana, Inc.
AMERIGROUP Maine, Inc.

AMERIGROUP Maryland, Inc.

AMERIGROUP Massachusetts, Inc.
AMERIGROUP Michigan, Inc.

AMERIGROUP Nevada, Inc.

AMERIGROUP New Jersey, Inc.
AMERIGROUP New York, LLC
AMERIGROUP Ohio, Inc.

AMERIGROUP Pennsylvania, Inc.
AMERIGROUP Puerto Rico, Inc.

Amerigroup Services, Inc.

AMERIGROUP Tennessee, Inc.
AMERIGROUP Texas, Inc.

AMERIGROUP Washington, Inc.
AMERIGROUP Wisconsin, Inc.

AMGP Georgia Managed Care Company, Inc.
AMGP Georgia, Inc.

Anthem Blue Cross Life and Health Insurance Company
Anthem Financial, Inc.

Anthem Health Insurance Company of Nevada
Anthem Health Plans of Kentucky, Inc.
Anthem Health Plans of Maine, Inc.

Anthem Health Plans of New Hampshire, Inc.
Anthem Health Plans of Virginia, Inc.

Anthem Health Plans, Inc.

Anthem Holding Corp.

Anthem Insurance Companies, Inc.




Legal Name State
Anthem Life & Disability Insurance Company NY
Anthem Life Insurance Company IN
Anthem Southeast, Inc. IN
Anthem UM Services, Inc. IN
Anthem Workers’ Compensation, LLC IN
Arcus Enterprises, Inc. DE
ARCUS HealthyLiving Services, Inc. IN
Associated Group, Inc. IN
ATH Holding Company, LLC IN
Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Georgia, Inc. GA
Blue Cross Blue Shield Healthcare Plan of Geolgia, GA
Blue Cross Blue Shield of Wisconsin Wi
Blue Cross of California CA
Blue Cross of California Partnership Plan, Inc. CA
CareMore Health Group, Inc. DE
CareMore Health Plan CA
CareMore Health Plan of Arizona, Inc. AZ
CareMore Health Plan of Colorado, Inc. co
CareMore Health Plan of Georgia, Inc. GA
CareMore Health Plan of Nevada NV
CareMore Health Plan of Texas, Inc. TX
CareMore Health System CA
CareMore Holdings, Inc. DE
CareMore IPA of New York, LLC NY
CareMore Medical Management Company, a Califormiaited Partnership CA
CareMore Services Company, LLC IN
CareMore, LLC IN
CareNex Health Services, LLC DE
Cerulean Companies, Inc. GA
Claim Management Services, Inc. Wi
CMMC Holding Company, LLC DE
Community Insurance Company OH
Compcare Health Services Insurance Corporation Wi
Crossroads Acquisition Corp. DE
DeCare Analytics, LLC MN
DeCare Dental Health International, LLC MN
DeCare Dental Insurance Ireland, Ltd. Ireland
DeCare Dental Networks, LLC MN
DeCare Dental, LLC MN
DeCare Operations Ireland, Limited Ireland




Legal Name State

DeCare Systems Ireland, Limited Ireland
Designated Agent Company, Inc. KY
EHC Benefits Agency, Inc. NY
Empire HealthChoice Assurance, Inc. NY
Empire HealthChoice HMO, Inc. NY
Forty-Four Forty-Four Forest Park RedevelopmenpGaition MO
Golden West Health Plan, Inc. CA
Government Health Services, L.L.C. wi
Greater Georgia Life Insurance Company GA
Health Core, Inc. DE
Health Management Corporation VA
Health Ventures Partner, L.L.C. L
HealthKeepers, Inc. VA
HealthLink HMO, Inc. MO
HealthLink, Inc. L
Healthy Alliance Life Insurance Company MO
HMO Colorado, Inc. co
HMO Missouri, Inc. MO
Imaging Management Holdings, L.L.C. DE
Imaging Providers of Texas X
Matthew Thornton Health Plan, Inc. NH
Meridian Resource Company, LLC Wi
National Government Services, Inc. IN
National Telehealth Network, LLC DE
OneNation Insurance Company IN
Park Square Holdings, Inc. CA
Park Square |, Inc. CA
Park Square I, Inc. CA
PHP Holdings, Inc. FL
R&P Realty, Inc. MO
Radiant Services, LLC IN
Resolution Health, Inc. DE
RightCHOICE Insurance Company L
RightCHOICE Managed Care, Inc. DE
Rocky Mountain Hospital and Medical Service, Inc. co
SellCore, Inc. DE
Southeast Services, Inc. VA
State Sponsored Business UM Services, Inc. IN
The WellPoint Companies of California, Inc. CA
The WellPoint Companies, Inc. IN
TrustSolutions, LLC Wi
UNICARE Health Insurance Company of the Midwest L
UNICARE Health Plan of Kansas, Inc. KS

UNICARE Health Plan of West Virginia, Inc. WV




Legal Name State
UNICARE Health Plans of Texas, Inc. TX
UNICARE Health Plans of the Midwest, Inc. IL
UNICARE lllinois Services, Inc. L
UniCare Life & Health Insurance Company IN
UNICARE National Services, Inc. DE
UniCare Specialty Services, Inc. DE
UtiliMed IPA, Inc. NY
WellPoint Acquisition, LLC IN
WellPoint Behavioral Health, Inc. DE
WellPoint California Services, Inc. DE
WellPoint Dental Services, Inc. DE
WellPoint Holding Corp. DE
WellPoint Information Technology Services, Inc. CA
WellPoint Insurance Setrvices, Inc. HI
WellPoint Partnership Plan, LLC L
WellPoint, Inc. IN
WPMI (Shanghai) Enterprise Service Co. Ltd. China

WPMI, LLC



CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We consent to the incorporation by reference iféllewing Registration Statements:

 Form S-8 No. 333-73516 and Form S-8 No. 338503 pertaining to the Anthem 2001 Stock IncenElan

* Form S-8 No. 333-84906 and Form S-8 No. 329334 pertaining to the WellPoint 401(k) Retirein®avings Plan (formerly Anthe
401(k) Long-term Savings Investment Plan);

e Form S-8 No. 333-121596 pertaining to the 200n@rehensive Executive NdDualified Retirement Pla
* Form S-8 No. 333:30743 pertaining to the WellChoice, Inc. 2003 Qwasilncentive Pla

* Form S-8 No. 33334253 pertaining to the WellPoint 2006 Incentivarpensation Pla
* Form S-8 No. 33356099 pertaining to the WellPoint, Inc. Employ¢ecR Purchase Pl
 Form S-3 No. 33378394 pertaining to the WellPoint, Inc. automatielf registratior

* Form S-8 No. 33359830 pertaining to the WellPoint Incentive Congaion Plan; ar

e Form S-8 No. 33385675 pertaining to the AMERIGROUP Corporation 2@guity Incentive Ple

of our report dated February 20, 2014, with respetite consolidated financial statements and sdbesf WellPoint, Inc. and the effectivent
of internal control over financial reporting of ViRbint, Inc. included in this Annual Report (For®+-K) of WellPoint, Inc. for the year ended
December 31, 2013.

February 20, 2014
Indianapolis, Indiana



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a-14(a) AND RULE 15d-14(a) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT RULES,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, Joseph R. Swedish, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this report on Form K@®f WellPoint, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resoftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presented
in this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Bd)) and internal control over financial repogti(as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrand have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procsgdareaused such disclosure controls and procedaoitee designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materialrinégion relating to the registrant, including ithsolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others withase entities, particularly during the period inieh this report is
being prepared,;

b) designed such internal control over finanaggarting, or caused such internal control overrfaia reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeragsurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and tr
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

C) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presenttisi report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by
this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegit’s internal control over financial reportititat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erélly affect, the registrant’s internal contrafes financial
reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evafuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of registrant’s board of directors farsons performing the
equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weasses in the design or operation of internal contrer financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize and
report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that ineslynanagement or other employees who have a simiifiole in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: February 20, 2014 /sl JOSEPH R. SWEDISH

Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a-14(a) AND RULE 15d-14(a) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT RULES,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Wayne S. DeVeydt, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this report on Form K@®f WellPoint, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resoftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presented
in this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Bd)) and internal control over financial repogti(as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrand have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procsgdareaused such disclosure controls and procedaoitee designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materialrinégion relating to the registrant, including ithsolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others withase entities, particularly during the period inieh this report is
being prepared,;

b) designed such internal control over finanadgarting, or caused such internal control overrfaia reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeragsurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and tr
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

C) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presenttisi report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by
this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegit’s internal control over financial reportititat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erélly affect, the registrant’s internal contrafes financial
reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evafuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of registrant’s board of directors farsons performing the
equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weasses in the design or operation of internal contrer financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize and
report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that ineslynanagement or other employees who have a simiifiole in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: February 20, 2014 /sl WAYNE S. DEVEYDT

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of WellPoilmtg. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the periodde December 31, 2013 as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on thelsatof (the “Report”), |, Joseph R. Swedish, CHeécutive Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adoptedyant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 26Qe;

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof1934; an

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finaraaldition and results of operations
of the Company.

/s/ JOSEPH R. SWEDISH

Joseph R. Swedish
Chief Executive Officer
February 20, 2014




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of WellPoilmtg. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the periodde December 31, 2013 as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on thelsatof (the “Report”), I, Wayne S. DeVeydt, ExeeatVice President and Chief Financial
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 ICS§ 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of theaBas-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof1934; an

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finaraaldition and results of operations
of the Company.

/sl WAYNE S. DEVEYDT
Wayne S. DeVeydt

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
February 20, 2014




